maryland

g) health services

cost review commission

624th Meeting of the Health Services Cost Review Commission
October 9, 2024

(The Commission will begin in public session at 11:30 am for the purpose of, upon motion and
approval, adjourning into closed session. The open session will resume at 1:00pm)

CLOSED SESSION
11:30 am

1. Update on Administration of Model - Authority General Provisions Article, §3-103 and §3-104

PUBLIC MEETING
1:00 pm

1. Review of Minutes from thelPuincIand Flosed Meetings on September 11, 2024

Specific Matters

There will be no specific matters discussed during this meeting. For the purpose of public notice, here is
the docket status.

Docket Status — Cases Closed

2655A  Johns Hopkins Health System
2656A  Johns Hopkins Health System
2657A  Johns Hopkins Health System

Docket Status — Cases Open

Johns Hopkins Health System
University of Maryland Medical Center

Subjects of General Applicability

Status Update: Nurse Support Program Il Renewal (External Presenters)

External Presenters & Discussion: Maryland’s Maternal Health Strategy and Role of HSCRC
Support through the MCH Improvement Fund

Emergency Department Wait Time Activities Update
a. HSCRC Staff Update

The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland
P: 410.764.2605 F: 410.358.6217 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 hscrc.maryland.gov



E Presentation: Adventist White Oak Emergency Department Improvement Efforts

5. Report from the Executive Director

CY 2023 TCOC Model Official Performance
Model Monitoring and Discussion of Projected CY 2024 Savings

Specific Matters
Final Recommendation: Confidential Data Request
Draft Recommendation: ARPA-H BCORE Outcome Buyer Recommendation

Subjects of General Applicability

Final Recommendation: Adoption of previously proposed amendments to Community Benefits
Reporting Regulation, COMAR 10.37.01.03.M.

Draft Recommendation: Out-of-State, Deregulation, and Repatriation Volume Policies
Draft Recommendation: Quality-Based Reimbursement (QBR) Policy

Set Aside Follow-Up

Hearing and Meeting Schedule



S

maryland

health services

cost review commission

MINUTES OF THE Joshua sharfstein, MD
623rd MEETING OF THE
HEAL TH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION James N. Elliott, MD

Vice-Chairman

September 11, 2024

Ricardo R. Johnson

Chairman Joshua Sharfstein called the public meeting to order at 11:35 a.m. In
addition to Chairman Sharfstein, in attendance were Commissioners James
Elliott, M.D., Ricardo Johnson, Maulik Joshi, DrPH., Adam Kane, J.D., Nicki Adam Kane, Esq
McCann, J.D., and Farzaneh Sabi, M.D. Upon motion made by Commissioner Nicki McCann, JD
Johnson and seconded by Commissioner Elliott, the Commissioners voted
unanimously to go into Closed Session. The Public Meeting reconvened at 1:13
p.m.

Maulik Joshi, DrPH

Farzaneh Sabi, MD

Jonathan Kromm, PhD
Executive Director

Chairman Sharfstein asked for a moment of silence before the meeting to -
commemorate those we lost during September 11, 2001. William Henderson

Director
Medical Economics & Data Analytics

REPORT OF SEPTEMBER 11, 2024, CLOSED SESSION

Allan Pack
Director

Mr. William Hoff, Chief of Audit and Integrity, summarized the items discussed =~ Population-Based Methodologies

at the September 11, 2024, Closed Session. Gerard J. Schmith
ggsgtnoure & Regulation Compliance
ITEMI
REVIEW OF THE MINUTES FROM THE JULY 10, 2024, PUBLIC g:;ucfti(i)?e Williams
MEETING AND CLOSED SESSION Healthcare Data Management & Integrity

Upon Motion made by Commissioner Kane and seconded by Commissioner
Joshi, the Commission voted unanimously to approve the minutes of the July 10,
2024, Public Meeting and Closed Session and to unseal the Closed Session
minutes.

ITEM 11
GREEN & HEALTHY HOMES INITIATIVE

Ms. Ruth Ann Norton, President and Chief Executive Officer and Mr. Michael McKnight, Senior Vice
President of National Programs presented an update on the Green & Healthy Homes Initiative (GHHI)
(see “Green & Healthy Homes Initiative” available on the HSCRC website).

GHHI is dedicated to addressing the social determinants of health and the advancement of racial and
health equity through the creation of healthy, safe, and energy efficient homes. By delivering a standard
of excellence in its work, GHHI aims to eradicate the negative health impacts of unhealthy housing and
unjust policies for children, seniors, and families to ensure better health, economic and social outcomes in
historically disinvested communities with an emphasis on communities of color.

Mr. McKnight listed GHHI accomplishments:

The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland
P:410.764.2605 F: 410.358.6217 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 hscrc.maryland.gov



e  $650 million raised and +45 pieces of legislation passed to support health and equity in housing.
Architect of the most health protective lead laws in the nation, leading to a 99% reduction in lead
poisoning in Maryland. Policies have been replicated around the country.

o Leading healthy housing convener at the local (over 75 partnering jurisdictions), state and
national levels.

o Field leader in alignment of housing with other sectors such as healthcare, energy, and education.

o National leader in innovative financing models for healthy homes including designing the first
Pay for Success model with Medicaid paying for outcomes.

e Leading healthy homes programs contracted by Medicaid MCOs and ACOs. Supports other
contracted programs by demonstration of Medicaid and Hospital Community Benefits
investments.

He noted as the result of decades of discrimination, low-income communities, communities of color, and
Indigenous communities are significantly more likely to suffer sickness and death from high levels of air
pollution, contaminated drinking water, proximity to toxic waste sites, and other legacy pollution. GHHI
work is centered on effective service delivery, policy change and developing sustainable funding
mechanisms to support the creation of healthy, safe and energy efficient homes. In addition to its direct
service programs, GHHI’s work includes technical assistance and capacity building for the field; training,
economic analysis and policy and standards development; and sustainable funding for the creation of
healthy, safe and energy efficient homes for low-income communities.

Ms. Norton provided example of projects with healthcare providers they are associated with, including
WellPoint Medicaid MCO, Penn Medicine Lancaster General Hospital, and Blue Cross NC.

ITEM 11
CLOSED CASES
No action is necessary on this agenda item.
ITEM IV
OPEN CASES
No action is necessary on this agenda item.
ITEMV

HCAHPS PRESENTATION

Dr. Alyson Shuster, Deputy Director, Quality Methodologies introduced Mr. Jonathan Sachs
who was hired as a Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems
(HCAHPS) performance improvement consultant (see “HCAHPS Presentation” available on the
HSCRC website). He is assisting the Commission Staff with the analysis of patient experience
data and identifying opportunities for improvement and to provide a framework for monitoring
HCAHPS scores for the Maryland hospitals.



Mr. Jonathan Sachs, MBA, FACHE, PCC presented and update on the HCAHPS survey. This
survey is the first national, standardized, publicly reported survey of patients’ perspectives of
hospital care. While many hospitals have collected information on patient satisfaction for their
own internal use, until HCAHPS there was no national standard for collecting and publicly
reporting information about patient experience of care that allowed valid comparisons to be
made across hospitals locally, regionally, and nationally.

The HCAHPS survey has three broad goals. First, the survey is designed to produce data about
patients' perspectives of care that allow objective and meaningful comparisons of hospitals on
topics that are important to consumers. Second, public reporting of the survey results creates new
incentives for hospitals to improve quality of care. Third, public reporting serves to enhance
accountability in health care by increasing transparency of the quality of hospital care provided
in return for the public investment.

The survey asks discharged patients 29 questions about their recent hospital stay. The survey
contains 19 core questions about critical aspects of patients' hospital experiences. They include
communication with nurses and doctors, the responsiveness of hospital staff, the cleanliness and
quietness of the hospital environment, communication about medicines, discharge information,
overall rating of hospital, and would they recommend the hospital.

Maryland hospitals are doing relatively well in discharge information, with 85% of patients
reporting that they did receive information prior to discharge, which is only 1% below the
national average of 86%. There is ample opportunity for improvement in all other measures, with
the greatest potential in responsiveness and cleanliness, each 9 points below the national average,
as well as medication communication and overall rating, which are 6 points below the national
average.

Mr. Sachs stated he is working with MHA representatives and the HSCRC Staff to compile and
share best practices to help Maryland hospital improve their HCAHPS scores by analyzing data,
sharing best practices and quality improvement initiatives using the plan-do-study-act (PDSA)
cycles.

Chairman Sharfstein asked what is needed to improve the HCAHPS scores.

Mr. Sachs noted that being able to analyze the data and the resources to implement best practices
and quality improvement listed in Press Ganey will help improve Maryland’s scores.

Chairman Sharfstein also asked Dr. Schuster about the incentive that is being added in the
quality measures for the HCAHPS scores — specifically, will it include processes that will drive



outcome that ultimately will get better scores. He noted that Maryland is ranked 46% in the
nation on the HCAHP survey results.

Dr. Schuster stated Staff is eager to get the work started on sharing best practices for the
Emergency Department, which also impact patients’ experiences.

Dr. Kromm added that it is a two-way learning collaborative, Staff needs to know why the
HCAHPS best practices are not being implemented or are not working in Maryland. Staff needs
to get the data to learn more about the process. Staff is looking forward to hospital engagement
to assist advancing the policy for improvement.

ITEM VI
REPORT FROM THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

AHEAD Model Update

Dr. Kromm informed the Commission that the state is actively engaged in negotiations with
CMMI on the agreement for the AHEAD model. Stakeholders have engaged with the Total
Cost of Care workgroup and with the Healthcare Transformation Advisory Committee (HTAC).
Two meetings were set up in the month of September to discuss the different elements of the
model.

No action is necessary on this agenda item.

Advancing Innovation in Maryland (AIM) Contest

Ms. Marla Oros, RN, MS, FAAN, Founder and Chief Executive Officer for the Mosaic Group
provided an update on the AIM contest (see “Advancing Innovation in Maryland Contest”
available on the HSCRC website).

Advancing Innovation in Maryland contest is a public-private partnership involving the
Maryland Department of Health (MDH), the HSCRC, and local foundations. The goal is to
surface ideas to support Maryland’s unique health care model, which incentivizes better health,
prevention of complications, and more efficient care. The contest will award cash prizes to
individuals and organizations with ideas to promote improved population health and reduce the
overall health care costs for the state. AIM is seeking ideas in three categories, all with the dual
goal of improving health outcomes and promoting affordability:



« Innovative Interventions: Ideas for interventions that a hospital can implement,
by itself or in coordination with community partners.

e Innovative Collective Action: Ideas for programs or platforms that require
collective implementation by all hospitals within a region or statewide, by
themselves, or in coordination with community partners.

« Innovative Payment Approaches: Ideas for payment innovations that the Health
Services Cost Review Commission can implement.

In addition to the cash prizes, winning ideas will be presented to the Health Secretary and the
Health Services Cost Review Commission for consideration. More information about the AIM
contest, including a call for ideas, will be released in the coming weeks.

Vice Chairman Elliott asked how the information about AIM is being disseminated.

Ms. Oros stated that her organization has a communication plan and is utilizing social media, the
press and MDH, and many other partners to help disseminate the information about AIM.

No action is necessary on this agenda item.

Model Monitoring

Ms. Deon Joyce, Chief of Hospital Rate Regulation, reported on the Medicare Fee for Service
data for the 4-month ending May 2024. The data showed that Maryland’s Medicare Hospital
spending per capita growth was favorable when compared to the nation. Ms. Joyce stated that
Medicare Nonhospital spending per-capita was favorable when compared to the nation. Ms.
Joyce noted that Medicare TCOC spending per-capita was favorable when compared to the
nation. Ms. Joyce stated that the Medicare TCOC guardrail is negative -1.48% below the nation
through May, and that Maryland Medicare hospital and non-hospital growth through May shows
a savings of ($56,261).

Emergency Department (ED) Initiatives Update

Dr. Alyson Schuster, Deputy Director, Quality Methodologies, and Ms. Tina Simmons,
Associate Director for Quality Methodologies, presented and updated the Commission on the
Emergency Department Initiatives. (see “Emergency Department Initiatives Updates™ available
on the HSCRC website).

Purpose: To address factors throughout the health care system that contribute to increased ED
wait times

Specific Focus:



Develop strategies and initiatives to recommend to state and local agencies, hospitals, and health
care providers for reducing emergency department wait times, including initiatives that:
« Ensure that patients are being seen in the most appropriate setting to reduce unnecessary
use of ED.
« Improve Hospital efficiency by increasing ED and Inpatient throughput.
« Improve post discharge resources to facilitate timely ED and inpatient discharges.
« ldentify and recommend improvement for the collection and submission of data that is
necessary to monitor and reduce ED wait times.
o Facilitate the sharing of best practices for reducing ED wait time.

Annual Legislative Reports will be due on 11/01/2025 and 11/01/2026.

The new members of the ED Wait-Time Commission have been appointed and will focus on
looking at statewide interventions as well as hospital interventions. The statewide interventions
will be driven by collaboration on behavioral health, post-acute, access to primary care, as well
as on-going analysis of capacity concerns across the system. The hospital specific focus is being
looked at as pre and post hospital opportunities that are within the hospital span of control. For
example, hospital efficiency impacts throughput and capacity as well as integration of population
healthcare and primary care integration. So, while the ED Commission will direct state level
intervention and may advise on hospital level interventions, the HSCRC will still approve all
hospital performance and payment policy.

Dr. Schuster presented the ED Best Practices Incentive Policy Development.

Objective:
o Develop process or structural measures that will address systematically longer ED length
of stay (LOS) in the State.
o Incentivize hospital best practices, as well as alignment with EDDIE and the ED Wait
Time Reduction Commission.

Description:

e Subgroup will advise on the development of 3-5 measures that will constitute a +/- 1%
revenue at risk program for CY 2025 performance.

e Repurposing QBR ED Subgroup 2 to assist with this development, as well as other
experts.

e Next Meeting: 9/27/2024 10 am — noon

« Incentive measures improvement from CY 2023 to CY 2024

e Measure: Percent change in the median time from ED arrival to physical departure from
the ED for patients admitted to the hospital



e Population: All non-psychiatric ED patients who are admitted to inpatient bed and
discharged from hospital during reporting period

e Scoring: Use attainment calculation for percent change to convert improvement into a O-
to-10-point score

o Data: Ad hoc data submissions of time stamps to merge in with case-mix data

o Statewide Goal: TBD by ED Wait Time Reduction Commission

Dr. Schuster stated the deadline to submit patient level data was extended to 9/13. HSCRC staff
and hMetrix are following up with hospitals with low match rates between the ad hoc ED LOS
data file and case mix data. The reasons for lack of matches include: the difference in admission
dates, patients who came to ED but left without being seen do not have case mix data, duplicates
and truncated Medical Record Numbers (MRNs). Staff will process data by the end of
September.

Commissioner McCann noted that it will be worth revisiting the timeline since the measuring
process began in January.

Dr. Schuster responded that this will be one of the tasks of the ED wait time Commission
understands how Maryland is performing compared to the nation and to set hospital specific
goals for improvement.

No action is necessary on this agenda item.

Hospital Refund Reimbursement Project Update

Mr. Zachary Starr, Intern, Policy and Government Affairs and Ms. Megan Renfrew, Deputy
Director, Policy and Consumer Protection, presented Hospital Refund Reimbursement Project
Update (see “Hospital Refund Reimbursement Project Update” available on the HSCRC
website).

Mr. Starr updated the Commission on the Hospital Free Care Reimbursement Law
Implementation. He stated Staff coordinated with MDH, Maryland Department of Human
Services (DHS), the Office of the Comptroller, the Health Education and Advocacy Unit
(HEAU), the Maryland State Department of Education (MSDE), and the Maryland Hospital
Association (MHA) to develop a process that:

1. ldentifies hospital patients who paid more than $25 for hospitals services provided in
2017-2021 and who qualified for free care, using data from hospitals, the Comptroller,
SNAP, Maryland’s energy assistance program, and WIC.

2. Provides reimbursement from the hospital to the identified patients.



w

Uses a “safe address” to contact the patient if available; and

4. Ensures that the state agencies share and disclose relevant information to the hospitals in
compliance with state and federal law and to the minimum extent necessary to carry out
the required process.

Legislators will schedule a meeting with stakeholders in the upcoming months to discuss
possible 2025 legislation and anticipates that a bill will be introduced in 2025 by one of the key
legislators to solve the sunset issue. Based on this expectation, Staff will continue to work with
stakeholders this fall to prepare for implementation in the spring. The goal is to have contractual
documents ready for signature by hospitals and state agencies as soon as the expected legislation
becomes law. Based on this timeline, refunds will likely start going out to eligible patients in the
second half of 2025.

Chairman Sharfstein asked when the Hospital Free Care Reimbursement Law is scheduled for
sunset.

Ms. Renfrew advised that the law was scheduled to sunset in July of 2025; however, she is
anticipating new legislation to change the sunset date with modifications to streamline the
process.

Commissioner McCann acknowledged that a great deal of Staff and Hospitals resources have
been expended developing this law; however, no one knows the number of individuals who will
qualify for a refund. Additionally, she believes a retrospective look-back to provide refunds
offers very little return in comparison to the resources that have been invested in trying to
implement this law.

No action is necessary on this agenda item.

Set-Aside Update

Dr. Kromm presented the Set-Aside update. He stated that the intention of the Set-Aside is to
use these funds for unforeseen events that occur at hospitals experiencing financial hardship,
regardless of efficiency (e.g., cyberattacks).

e Criteria for evaluation
e Weighting of evaluation criteria
e Evaluation responsibility



Ms. Caitlin Cooksey, Deputy Director, Hospital Rate Regulation stated that for rate year 2025,
the Commission approved $30M for the Set-Aside to be used for unforeseen events that occur at
hospitals with a financial hardship. Below is the process overview.

Scoring Rubric: Technical Evaluation
A. Financial Hardship Technical Evaluation
e Unforeseen and/or Preventable Ranking
e Is the request being made due to poor decision making/investments?

B. Relative Efficiency Technical Evaluation
e Population Health Ranking
e Does the proposed intervention improve the health of the population?
e Methodology Disadvantage Ranking
e How material is the adverse impact from a methodology?

Scoring Rubric: Need Evaluation & Oversight
A. Financial Assessment (e.g., 33 points)
FY24 Total Margin (Regulated + Unregulated)
Variance to Statewide Average
FY24 Regulated Margin
Variance to Statewide
Days Cash
Variance to Statewide
B. Improvement Opportunities (e.g., 33 points)
Cost per ECMAD
Variance from Statewide Average
Overhead Cost per ECMAD
Variance from Statewide Average
Margin from Unregulated System Operation
Variance from Statewide Average
PAU
e Variance from Statewide Average
C. Oversight & Accountability (e.g., 33 points)
e Controls to mitigate financial position
e How will hospital management find sustainable reduction in cost to offset
funding priorities?
e Pledge/management commitment
¢ Should funding be conditional on a pledge to not repeat funding request or
reduce other administrative cost for the next 2 years?



Ms. Cooksey concluded by asking for guidance on how the Set-Aside funding will be allocated.
The comment period is open through 9/25/2024, and Staff will follow up during the October
meeting.

Chairman Sharfstein clarified that once the Set-Aside policy is approved by the Commission, it
will be up to staff to implement the funding as per the policy.

Staff will provide the Commissioners the comments of the stakeholders upon receipt and in
advance of the next Commission meeting.

No action is necessary on this agenda item.
Fall Preview

Dr. Kromm presented the schedules for the Fall 2024 Meeting Preview. (see “Fall Preview”
available on the HSCRC website).

No action is necessary on this agenda item.

ITEM VII
ACCOUNTING & BUDGET MANUAL UPDATE

Wayne Nelms, Assistant Chief, Audit & Integrity, presented an update on the modernization of
the HSCRC Accounting and Budget Manual (see “Update to the Accounting and Budget
Manual” available on the HSCRC website).

The current version of the Accounting and Budget Manual was created in the late 1970s. In July
2023, Staff engaged 13 Healthcare Consulting to assist with an Annual Filing Modernization
(AFM) initiative. The goal of this project is to obtain additional information about the operational
costs at hospitals and to improve Staff oversight over compliance. The project also seeks to
streamline the documentation and collection of this information. During Phase |, Staff removed
outdated contents and revised the Manual.

Staff Recommendation:

1. That the Commission approve the revisions of Phase | to the Accounting & Budget
Manual. These revisions are to remove outdated contents and are part of the Annual
Filing Modernization initiative.

2. That the updated revisions of Phase | of the Accounting & Budget Manual be effective in
accordance with a subsequent Maryland Register notice of adoption.

10



Commissioner Johnson moved to approve the staff recommendation, and it was seconded by
Commissioner Joshi. The motion passed unanimously in favor of the Staff's recommendation.

ITEM VI
HEARING AND MEETING SCHEDULE

October 9, 2024, Time to be determined-4160 Patterson Ave.
HSCRC Conference Room

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 3:50 p.m.

11



Closed Session Minutes
of the
Health Services Cost Review Commission

September 11, 2024

Chairman Sharfstein stated reasons for Commissioners to move into administrative
session pursuant to 3-103, and 3-104 and of the Authority General Provisions
Articles for the purposes of discussing the administration of the Model and
providing an update on hospital rate requests.

Upon motion made in public session, Chairman Sharfstein called for adjournment
into closed session:

The Administrative Session was called to order by motion at 11:35 a.m.

In addition to Chairman Sharfstein, in attendance were Commissioners Elliott,
Kane, Johnson, Joshi, McCann and Sabi.

In attendance representing Staff were Jon Kromm, Claudine Williams, Allen Pack,
Alyson Schuster, Cait Cooksey, Bob Gallion, Megan Renfrew and William Hoff.

Joining by Zoom: William Henderson and Deb Rivkin

Also attending were Assistant Attorney General Stan Lustman and Ari Elbaum,
Commission Counsel.

Item One
Jon Kromm, Executive Director, updated the Commission on the process related to
rate request letters submitted by hospitals. Dr. Kromm also updated the
Commission's on the AHEAD model and its current status.

Item Two
William Henderson, Principal Deputy Director, Medical Economics and Data
Analytics, updated the Commission, and the Commission discussed the FY24
Hospital Unaudited Financial Performance.

The Closed Session was adjourned at 1:05 p.m.



Cases Closed

The closed cases from last month are listed in the agenda



¢ maryland

health services

cost review commission

Application for an Alternative Method
of Rate Determination
Johns Hopkins Health System

October 9, 2024




¢ maryland

% health services

cost review commission

IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR AN

ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE

BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH

SERVICES COST REVIEW

DETERMINATION COMMISSION

JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH *  DOCKET: 2024
SYSTEM *  FOLIO: 2468
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2658A

. INTRODUCTION

On August 29, 2024, Johns Hopkins Health System (“System”) filed a renewal application on behalf
of its member hospitals, Johns Hopkins Hospital and Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center (the
“Hospitals”) for an alternative method of rate determination, pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06. The System
is requesting approval to continue to participate in a revised global price arrangement with Blue Cross and
Blue Shield Association Blue Distinction Centers for Transplants (BDCT) for solid organ and bone marrow
transplant services. The Hospitals request that the Commission approve the arrangement for one year
beginning October 1, 2024.

Il. OVERVIEW OF APPLICATION

The contract will continue to be held and administered by Johns Hopkins HealthCare, LLC
("JHHC"), which is a subsidiary of the System. JHHC will continue to manage all financial transactions
related to the global price contract including payments to the Hospitals and bear all risk relating to regulated

services associated with the contract.

lll. FEE DEVELOPMENT

The hospital portion of the new global rates for solid organ transplants was developed by
calculating mean historical charges for patients receiving the procedures for which global rates are to be
paid. The remainder of the global rate is comprised of physician service costs. Additional per diem

payments were calculated for cases that exceed a specific length of stay outlier threshold.

IV. IDENTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF RISK

The Hospitals will continue to submit bills to JHHC for all contracted and covered services. JHHC is
responsible for billing the payer, collecting payments, disbursing payments to the Hospitals at their full
HSCRC approved rates, and reimbursing the physicians. The System contends that the arrangement

among JHHC, the Hospitals, and the physicians holds the Hospitals harmless from any shortfalls in



¢ maryland

@ health services

cost review commission

payment from the global price contract. JHHC maintains it has been active in similar types of fixed fee

contracts for several years, and that JHHC is adequately capitalized to bear risk of potential losses.

V. STAFF EVALUATION

Staff found that the experience under the arrangement for the last year has been favorable. Staff
believes that the Hospitals can continue to achieve a favorable performance under the arrangement.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospitals' application for an alternative
method of rate determination for solid organ and bone marrow transplant services with Blue Cross Blue
Shield Association Blue Distinction Centers for Transplants for the period beginning October 1, 2024. The

Hospitals must file a renewal application annually for continued participation.

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate determination,
the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the standard Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract. This document would formalize the
understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals and would include provisions for such things as
payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly
and annual reporting, confidentiality of data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination
and/or alteration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will

also stipulate that operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate

increases.




maryland

health services

cost review commission

Application for an Alternative Method
of Rate Determination
University of Maryland Medical Center

October 9, 2024




¢ maryland

% health services

cost review commission

IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR AN * BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH
ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE *  SERVICES COST REVIEW
DETERMINATION *  COMMISSION

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND *  DOCKET: 2024
MEDICAL CENTER *  FOLIO: 2469
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2659A

. INTRODUCTION

On August 29, 2024, University of Maryland Medical Center (“Hospital”) filed a renewal application
for an alternative method of rate determination, pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06. The Hospital is
requesting approval to continue to participate in a revised global price arrangement with Blue Cross and
Blue Shield Association Blue Distinction Centers for Transplants (BDCT) for solid organ and bone marrow
transplant services. The Hospital requests that the Commission approve the arrangement for one year
beginning October 1, 2024.

Il. OVERVIEW OF APPLICATION

The contract will continue to be held and administered by University of Maryland Faculty
Physicians, Inc. (FPI), which is a subsidiary of the University of Maryland Medical System. FPI will continue
to manage all financial transactions related to the global price contract including payments to the Hospital

and bear all risk relating to regulated services associated with the contract.

lll. FEE DEVELOPMENT

The hospital portion of the global rates was developed by calculating historical charges for patients
receiving the procedures for which global rates are to be paid. The remainder of the global rate is
comprised of physician service costs. Additional per diem payments were calculated for cases that exceed

a specific length of stay outlier threshold.

IV. IDENTIFICATION AND ASSESSMENT OF RISK

The Hospital will continue to submit bills to FPI for all contracted and covered services. FPI is
responsible for billing the payer, collecting payments, disbursing payments to the Hospital at its full HSCRC
approved rates, and reimbursing the physicians. The Hospital contends that the arrangement between FPI

and the Hospital holds the Hospital harmless from any shortfalls in payment from the global price contract.



¢ maryland

@ health services

cost review commission

V. STAFF EVALUATION

Staff found that the experience under the arrangement for the last year has been favorable. Staff

believes that the Hospital can continue to achieve a favorable performance under the arrangement.

VI. STAFF RECOMMENDATION

The staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital's application for an alternative
method of rate determination for solid organ and bone marrow transplant services with Blue Cross Blue
Shield Association Blue Distinction Centers for Transplants for the period beginning October 1, 2024. The

Hospitals must file a renewal application annually for continued participation.

Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate determination,
the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the standard Memorandum of
Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospital for the approved contract. This document would formalize the
understanding between the Commission and the Hospital and would include provisions for such things as
payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly
and annual reporting, confidentiality of data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination
and/or alteration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will

also stipulate that operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate

increases.




maryland

health services

cost review commission

Nurse Support Program ||

Update on Program Renewal and Performance Report




I NSP Il Timeline Update

NSP Il funding is used to support nursing education initiatives at Maryland Schools of Nursing, aiming
to increase educational capacity to meet the needs of the Maryland nursing workforce and improve
the delivery and quality of care in all healthcare settings.

December 2024: Draft Recommendation on Program Renewal and Progress Report
* Progress Report. Progress Report and Program Outcomes (FY 2021 - FY 2025 Activities)
* Program Renewal: Draft Recommendation on Program Renewal

« January 2025: Solicit formal public comments.

* February 2025: Final Recommendation - Commissioner vote

« Existing funding ends: June 30, 2025

« If approved, renewed funding would begin: July 1, 2025

AW maryland

k9 health services

cost review commission




I | ooking Back — Progress Report Preview

* NSP Il funded programs are required to align with one of the seven listed NSP Il initiatives (left column) and report on

outcomes specific to initiative goals.

* The progress report will include general metrics for all initiatives:

®  Total amount ($) of funding awarded

®  Geographic distribution of awards

Distribution of awards to underrepresented groups of nursing

* The progress report will include narrative and qualitative data on the initiatives and metrics shown below.

NSP Il Initiative

Specific Outcome Metrics

Increase Nursing Pre-Licensure Enroliments and Graduates

# of additional nursing pre-licensure graduates

Advance the Education of Students and RNs to BSN, MSN, & Doctoral
Level

# of additional nursing higher degrees completed

Increase the Number of Doctoral-Prepared Nursing Faculty

# of additional nursing faculty at Doctoral level

Build Collaborations between Education and Practice

# of academic-practice collaborations (& additional metrics specific to grant initiative)

Increase Capacity Statewide

# of statewide resources developed (& additional metrics specific to grant initiative)

Increase Cohen Scholars as Future Faculty and Clinical Educators

# of Cohen Scholars; # of additional nurse educators produced

Statewide faculty-focused initiatives to recruit & retain nurse faculty

Nurse faculty retention rates; # of nurse educator doctoral grants awarded, # of
Certified Nurse Educator certifications; # of nurse faculty recognition awards

{ TiaryLard

health services

cost review commission




NSP-ll Grants at JHU

e 35 grants including:

* New nursing program development

* pre-licensure nursing education, doctoral education (nurse anesthesia), post-master’s nursing
education (psychiatric mental health NP)

* Nurse educator preparation, preceptor education/training, faculty development
e Resilience training for nurses, faculty, students

* Current highlighted NSP-Il grant

e Supporting Nursing Advanced Practice Transitions (SNAPT)

* Goal to increase the number of primary care NPs in MD

* Have placed 22 primary care NPs since 2021 (currently 18 applicants for the 5t cohort starting in
Jan 2025)

» All fellows have remained in practices in which they were initially placed
e Expanding to include acute care NPs and acute care settings

JOHNS HOPKINS

SCHOOL of NURSING



Bowie State University & NSP I

NCLEX-RN Pass-Rates Key NSP Il Grants:
- e * New Nursing Faculty Fellowship
80 R S— 82.91 (NNFF)
70 * 11 recipients
60 — 550 * Improved faculty retention rate -
50 91%

39.47 == Pass Rate . .
40 veonstandard @ Certified Nurse Educators (CNE)
30 * Increased # of CNEs from O to 11

20 in 3-year period
10

0
2019-20202020-20212021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024



NSP Il Initiatives

I Conceptual Framework

Education
(Schools of

Nursing

Workforce

Care Delivery
Transformation &

Increase nursing pre-licensure
enrollments and graduates

Advance the education of students
and RNs to BSN, MSN, & doctoral
level

Increase the number of doctoral-
prepared nursing faculty

Build collaborations between
education and practice

Increase educational capacity
statewide

Increase Cohen Scholars as future
faculty and clinical educators

Faculty-focused initiatives to
recruit & retain nurse faculty

New: Prioritize education that
advances practice in community
health settings / advances
population health

Nursing)

Expanded enroliments,
pathways, and/or programs
through partnership

Strong foundations in nursing e
basics

New curricula address future
needs in equity-centered
healthcare system

Assist under-resourced
nursing schools in fulfilling
regulatory requirements

Aligned clinical training
opportunities to drive
competency-based care

Recruitment of diverse student
bodies & faculty

Increase the number of highly
qualified faculty & nurses to
meet workforce demands.

Increase collaborations
between education and
practice.

Recruit well-trained nurses to
address vacancies and gaps in
care across all care settings.

Support advanced nursing
education to enhance care
quality of care.

Healthcare Improvements

Transformation of care delivery
across all settings (acute, primary,
community)

Total cost of care

Quality improvements (e.g. lower
readmission rates)

Population health and health equity
improvements

Culturally competent care delivery to

meet community needs

Expansion of preventative care
practice

Chronic disease reduction

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



B Questions for Commissioners

« While NSP Il grants have already funded programs to advance nursing in primary care
and community health settings, staff will recommend adding a dedicated initiative to
prioritize building population health and community-based practice. Do Commissioners
believe this intentional focus is taking the program in the right direction?

* In recent years, staff have worked to foster collaboration between hospitals and schools
and aim to enhance this under the renewed program by promoting direct pathways to
practice and aligning NSP | (hospital-focused) and NSP [l (education-focused)
initiatives. Are there additional ways to encourage collaboration between providers and
schools to build a well-trained nursing workforce that meets Maryland's needs?

« What additional information about nursing education in Maryland, beyond the previously
listed outcome metrics, would help Commissioners understand the role of higher
education in advancing the nursing workforce?

4 maryland

b healthservices = 7

cost review commission




25

Maryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Improving Maternal Health in Maryland
Presentation to the Health Services Cost Review Commission

October 9, 2024

Iﬂ 5



Our current state - Maternal Health

Black non-Hispanic women were

women died
E 7 from pregnancy more likely to die from
(| ) . . 2 pregnancy related complications
‘ or its complications in .8x than White non-Hispanic women
Maryland, 2014-2018. Nearly from 2016-2018.

83% of cases were preventable.
Out-of-state patients contributed to a

2000 severe complications
@ ddk':rmg labor and delivery increase in abortions
were reported between Oct. - i
2022 and Oct. 2023, leading to 37.6% Eﬂﬁiﬁ :,:? ';?ﬁ;%';‘z“ Snd
o]

“significant short- or long-term June 2023,
health consequences.

28 states Nearly 75%

have banned or highly restricted of Maryland counties have no
access to abortion. abortion clinics and almost a

Maryland is the southernmost state third of Maryland women live
on the east coast with policies in those counties.
protecting abortion and reproductive rights.

&Maryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Maternal Health Prioritized in Maryland

Moore-Miller Administration 2024 State Plan

* Goal 8: Ensuring world-class health systems for all Marylanders
* Objective: 8.1: Improve eligibility and access to quality
care, ﬁartlcularly ocusing on maternal and infant

health, behavioral health, and support for veterans and
older adult populations

2024 State Health Improvement Plan (SHIP): Building a Healthier
Maryland

e Priority 3: Women’s Health
MOORE-MILLER

e Goal 1: Improve maternal health outcomes through
ADMINISTRATION improved maternal care before, during and after
2024 STATE PLAN pregnancy

Goal 2: Increase breast and cervical cancer prevention,
screening and care

;“EEMaryland
2

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH




Vision for Women’s Health in Maryland

Ensure all women can achieve
and maintain their highest
level of physical, mental, and
emotional well-being, and
have the agency to make
choices regarding their bodies

and reproductive and sexual
health.

NOTE: This work uses the term women. We recognize and respect that people including pregnant, birthing, postpartum, and

parenting people have a range of gender identities, and do not always identify with women. E I d
sMarylan

3 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Women’s Health Action Plan

Equity, Choice, and Access in Maryland

KEY GOALS

Protect reproductive rights and expand access to
reproductive health services, including abortion care.

Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and
infant health, through the perinatal continuum.

Support behavioral health needs across the life course.

Visit: health.maryland.gov/womens-action-plan

Improve access to comprehensive high-quality somatic
services through the life course.

Increase place-based and community-centered approaches
to promote health and prevent diseases.

Expand, support and diversify the perinatal workforce.

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Progress to Date:

Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and
infant health, through the perinatal continuum.

e Coverage Expansion

O 12-Month Postpartum Expansion: Expanded
postpartum coverage from 60 days to 12
months for those eligible for Medicaid due
to pregnancy (eff. April 1, 2022)

O Healthy Babies Equity Act: Comprehensive
care for pregnant individuals who are
Medicaid-eligible but for their immigration
status (eff. July 1, 2023)

m More than 13,700 participants
enrolled to date

Postpartum Expansion Positive Impact

Early research by the Hilltop Institute found that
extended postpartum coverage was associated with
positive impact in Medicaid-insured birthing parents.

» Those with extended coverage were 25 percent more likely to have a
primary care appointment in the postpartum period

e Those without extended coverage were two times more likely to
experience an avoidable postpartum hospitalization

Citation: Goetschius, L.G., Middleton, A., & Idala, D. (2023, October 26). The effect of
extended postpartum care on health care utilization and outcomes. Baltimore, MD:
The Hilltop Institute, UMBC.

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



° Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and
rog re SS o a e ° infant health, through the perinatal continuum.

e Prenatal Support Services
O Expansion of CenteringPregnancy, group-based Prenatal Care through start-up grant funds
and enhanced Medicaid Reimbursement (HSCRC-funded Population Health Improvement
Fund)
m Grant funds to 9 of 11 possible sites over in FY 22-24 ; Grant funds still available for 2
additional sites
m Enhanced Medicaid Reimbursement since 1/1/2023 with over 575 participants*
O Doulas to provide support through pregnancy, birth and postpartum (HSCRC-funded
Population Health Improvement Fund)
m Effective 2/21/2022 and over 100 Medicaid Participants*
o MOM Program: Expanded statewide case management for pregnant people with opioid
misuse and or Opioid Use Disorder (HSCRC-funded Population Health Improvement Fund)
m > 85 participants, effective 7/1/2021**

&Maryland

*Number of Medicaid participants between program start date and 5/3/2024.
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

**Initially launched as a small pilot program. Has been available statewide since 1/1/2023.



Goal 2: Advancing Birth Equity

MOM Case Management Participant Experiences

“[My case manager] also made sure not only to give me contact information, but really took the time to
explain other programs and resources available to me. She is so personable and kind and really took the time
to get to know me as a person and listened to my fears as a first time mother (also having a history of opioid
addiction) and helped me navigate through this very stressful process.

After | had the baby, | actually looked forward to [my case manager’s] call every month because | knew | could
ask her questions and she would have an educated but not judgemental answer for me...and if there were
things she didn't have the answer to, she took the time to find out or get me the help | needed. | have never
felt more connected with a healthcare professional that | trust as much as [my case manager] from the MOM
program.” - MOM participant, April 2024

“Addiction can be such an isolating thing, but having just one person who cares can make all the difference

in the world.” - MOM participant, May 2024
2¥Ma ryland

7 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and

P rog re S S to D a te : infant health, through the perinatal continuum.

o Enhancing linkages to community-based
resources through digitization of Prenatal
Risk Assessment and the Postpartum Infant
Maternal Referral Form

Noedamssod O Increase the number of referrals and

provide support for health-related social
- [ ' m needs across the perinatal continuum

&E?mmﬁém?rt& o Digitize existing referral forms and partner
with MCOs, CRISP, Local Health

Departments, CRISP.

O FY 2025 focus is on the Eastern Shore (Cecil,
Kent, Queen Anne’s, Caroline, Talbot,
Dorchester, Wicomico, Somerset,
Worcester) and Prince George’s County

Visual Depiction of
Systems-level Collaborations to Improve Maryland’s Perinatal Risk Assessments

Planned Information Pathway

/ Referred or Refused or )
Enrolled unable to reach

obtained by ACCUILHD and
il 2¥Maryland
b |

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH




Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and

Prog ress to Date: infant health, through the perinatal continuum.
. y| Sieslend eyt e Target the leading cause of
M@[BQC Co“aborative Resources Initiatives PBAC AboutUs Bulletins pregna ncy—related deaths a nd SIVI M

through the implementation of the
Obstetric Hemorrhage Safety
Bundle in the PQC initiative (HRSA
AIM grant)

e MDH has partnered with Bloom
Collective to provide training and
technical assistance for birthing
hospitals to incorporate

Perina’rdl Heal’rh ECIUITy reproductive justice, holistic care,

Ideqﬁ()n Sessions and what it means to center Black
birthing people in quality

improvement work.

Making Maryland a Safer
Place to Have a Baby

gt

https://www.mdpqc.org/

Imagining and Collaborating

in the State of Maryland

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Progress to Date:

Advance birth equity, with a focus on Black maternal and
infant health, through the perinatal continuum.

10

e Accelerate community-
based solutions and new
funding partnerships with
State of Birth Equity
Funders Alliance

e Target the leading cause of
postpartum readmissions-
complications of pregnancy
induced hypertension
through the HHS
Postpartum Collaborative

w B B s

-
Maryland

ELEVATING

WOMEN'S HEALTH

Equity, Choice, and Access
in Maryland

%MARVLAND MATERNAL
SMORT MIT

(LT

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Increase place-based and community-centered approaches to

P ro g ress to D a te promote health and prevent diseases.

® Expansion of Perinatal Home ViSiting Healthy Families America Home Visiting Sites in

o HRSA MIECHV Home Visiting Program Maryland
expanded from 10 jurisdictions to 17
jurisdictions in SFY25

O Expansion to 4 sites through the Population
Health Improvement Funds to serve an
additional 110 individuals

O Medicaid Reimbursement to Healthy Families
America and Nurse Family Partnership Models https://www.healthyfamiliesamerica.org/ma

O > 640 participants in Home Visiting Program p/
reimbursed through Medicaid (effective

1/13/2022). (HSCRC-funded Population Health
Improvement Fund) ﬂlMaryland

11 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH




Increase place-based and community-centered approaches to

P rog re Ss to D a te promote health and prevent diseases.

® Expansion of HealthySteps
o Offers Child development screenings and
resources
O Since 1/1/2023, there have been more than
1,480 participants (HSCRC-funded Population
Health Improvement Fund)

https://www.healthysteps.org/who-we-are/

H.eé\lthjSteps

;".'EMaryIand

12 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Progress to Date for Goals 1 & 3

13

Protect reproductive rights and expand access to reproductive
health services, including abortion care.

® Launched partnership with Upstream USA to expand access to on-demand contraceptive care. Currently
across 4 health center sites with more than 45,000 women reproductive age covered

e Developed first-in-nation Abortion Care Clinical Training Program with an inaugural cohort starting Fall
2024

e Funding to ensure every county has at least 1 Title X/Maryland Family Planning clinic by mid FY25

Support behavioral health needs across the life course.

e Launching Perinatal Mental Health Training Hub for in FY 2025 to increase more perinatal practitioners
certified in Postpartum Support International (PSI)

e MACS for MOMs - Provides training and support to providers across the state. In FY 2024, 160 unique
providers served by the Tele-ECHO Clinics; plan to double number of providers in program for FY 2025.

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Progress to Date for Goals 4 & 6

Improve access to comprehensive high-quality somatic services
through the life course.

e Expand SBHC footprint by supporting 3 organizations in FY 2025 to start new SBHC

e Start a Community-clinical linkage project focused on Black women in partnership with MDH’s
Breast and Cervical Cancer Program.

Expand, support and diversify the perinatal workforce.

® Support Doula workforce participation as Medicaid-enrolled providers and provide
technical assistance.

® Train CHWs on a MCH-specific curriculum that will be launched in FY 2025 that
provides basics on what is preconception health, stages of pregnancy, and behavioral
health in pregnancy.

;“EEMaryland

14 DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Women’s Health Action Plan

Summary

15

Women’s, maternal, and reproductive health remain key priorities
for Maryland Department of Health

Partnering amongst Public Health Services, Medicaid, and
Community partners key to collaboration and building sustainability
Upcoming work will focus on enhanced data translation, deepening

partnership with local health departments and communities, and
ongoing health equity promotion.

;“EEMaryland

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH



Thank you

Elizabeth.Kromm@maryland.gov

Shelly.Choo@maryland.gov

Laura.Goodman@maryland.gov

16

;".'EMaryIand

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH


mailto:Elizabeth.Kromm@maryland.gov
mailto:Shelly.Choo@maryland.gov
mailto:Laura.Goodman@maryland.gov

maryland

health services

cost review commission

Emergency Department Initiatives Update

October Commission Meeting




I Today's Presentation

» Update on Best Practices Incentive Policy

 Presentation from Adventist White Oak

« EDDIE Updates (in Appendix)

" .-,.-'.,'? health services 2

W commission



maryland

health services

cost review commission

ED-Hospital Best Practices Policy Development Update




I ED Best Practices Incentive Policy Development | Draft Policy November 2024
Final Policy January 2025

Commission leadership directive: ldentify 3-5 best practice measures that will constitute a +/- 1%
revenue at risk program for CY 2025 performance.

Policy Goal:

* Develop structural or process measures that will address systematically longer ED length of stay (LOS)

in the State.
* Promote adoption of hospital best practices by providing GBR financial incentives.
* Align hospital initiatives with the goals of the ED Wait Time Reduction Commission.

Subgroup Purpose:

1. Develop a set of hospital best practices and scoring criteria to improve overall hospital
throughput and reduce ED length of stay

2. Advise on revenue at-risk and scaled financial incentives
3. Provide input on data collection and auditing

{ maryland

7 |
R healthservices | 4

Ch? ; :
' COST review Commission




I Real Opportunity for Paradigm Shift

ED Commission State Initiatives

Primary Care Post-Acute Care

Hospital Initiatives

@ Reducing the Improving the hospital
@, | @] 3] 9 Improving throughput discharge process 14 \

| number of people o :
S| e within the hospital and post-ED , (( :
é\\ VRN who need the ED ; \Fﬁ
® L [ (7% community resources » R

Structure + Process = Outcomes :
Access Capacity
Behavioral Health Population Health Health Equity




Il The Donabedian Model for Quality of Care

== - N -~ BN

Physical and Focus on the care Effect of healthcare
organisational
characteristics
where healthcare

on the status of
patients and

populations

delivered to
patients e.g.
services, diagnostics

occurs or treatments

ED-Hospital Best
Practices Policy

maryland ! I
health services @ 6

cost review commission |



I ED-Hospital Best Practices

* Subgroup 2 Members submitted Best Practice recommendations prior to 9/27 meeting

* 9/27 Meeting
o Discussed a model with a drop-down menu of measures, each hospital selects a certain number
o Recommendation list reviewed
o Discussed the need for clear definitions, parameters and targets

* Subgroup 2 Members were asked to send their “Top Recommendations” from the complete list by 10/4

* Top Recommendation List compiled and shared with Subgroup for further discussion

o 5 top recommendations were selected by the majority of the 8 system respondents, an additional 5
recommendations were selected by multiple system respondents

o HSCRC and Hospital Members attended AHRQ Webinar on ED Boarding on 10/8

* Next meeting on 10/11
o Discuss Suggested Interventions discussed in AHRQ Webinar
o Discuss “Top Recommendations” and select final measures to move forward
o Begin further defining measures, parameters
o Revenue at Risk Discussion, “ramp up” model

{ maryland

p health services 74

cost review commission

=N

el




I Fxamples of Best Practices In Review

1. Implement/Optimize Bed Capacity Alert Process
2. Implement/Optimize Interdisciplinary Rounds

3. Patient Flow/Performance Improvement Throughput Council with Leadership

Accountability

4. Standardized Daily or Shift Huddles

4 maryland

k9 health services 8

cost review commission




Appendix

{ maryland

4 healthservices = 9

cost review commission




B Scptember Data 2024 Reporting

Monthly, public reporting of three measures:

 ED1-like measure: ED arrival to inpatient admission time for all admitted patients
 OP18-like measure: ED arrival to discharge time for patients who are not admitted

 EMS turnaround time (from MIEMSS): Time from arrival at ED to transfer of patient care from EMS to the hospital

Data received for 44 out of 44 hospitals

 These data should be considered preliminary given timeliness of the data (i.e., the hospitals must turn in by the first
Friday of new month)

 These data are being collected for hospital quality improvement and have NOT been audited by the HSCRC; data can be
used for trending purposes within the hospital

« Data may be updated over time if issues are identified or specifications change
Graphs:

* Rolling median (June 2023-Latest Month) and change from June 2023/first month provided

« Latest month grouped by CMS ED volume category (Volume data is from CMS Care Compare or imputed by hospital,
volume categories were recently updated on CMS Care Compare.)

 Graphs have not been QAed by hospitals due to fast turnaround time

maryland

ic§ health services 10

cost review commission



I ED Length of Stay and EMS Turnaround Data

* Monthly, unaudited data on ED length of stay for September 2024 was
received from 44 out of 44 hospitals (IP and OP data).
* There was a decrease for ED1a, ED1b, and an increase for ED1c in Median Wait Times in September
compared to August.
« September Average Median Wait Time:

ED1a: 539.3 minutes ED1b: 535.6 minutes ED1c: 783.3
minutes

« These data should be considered preliminary given timeliness of the data (i.e., the hospitals must
turn in by the first Friday of new month) and the data have NOT been audited by the HSCRC,; data

can be used for trending purposes within the hospital.
 EMS turnaround time data shows notable net movement of hospitals across
categories for September 2024, with six hospitals improving in performance
and two hospitals declining in performance

AW maryland

b4 health services 11

cost review commission



I Monthly Results 2023 vs. 2024

Average Median Wait Time

650

600

450

400

350

300

250

200

150

100

50

=

Year Month level Comparison- Median Wait Time for the Measure ED-1a

June July August September

608.59

581.74

57490 572.58 570.18

I I I |

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024

562.85

537.23

Measura
ED-1a

Year
=0z

M 2024

maryland 1
health services

cost review commission

12



I ED Median Wait Time

Reporting Month

Median Wait Time by Measure Type for September 2024 September 2024
800 783.3 Service Type
B

o M or
E
|—
2 °00 539.3 535.6
=
E 427.9
2 400
=
@
o
: 274.0 467
=
< 200

0

ED-1a ED-1b ED-1c OP-18a OP-18b OP-18c¢
maryland !
health services = 13

cost review commission



ISSIoN

t Adm

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital

ival to Inpati

ED Arr

B ED 1a

Reporting Month: September 2024

1000

2,000

sajnuiy ul Aels jo yibueq ul abueyd

800

1,500

600
400

1,000

200

NOLSYd JHOHS NN

AYO JLIHM

IWNIS

v MOH

NOID3E TV LIV N
AAYIdYSIHD ¥3ddn
JWME NN

NAOLNMOG DN N
SMIAdOH SNHOr
NMMOLAIIN DNINN
1S3IMHLEON

Hd3IsSOor 'Ls wn

SINDY LNIVS NOISNIDSY
"YW NYIHLNOS A LSAIN
TLIEYINYS QOO0 D oY LS
TOHAYD

B oV 3153 ONdN
I v

B v Ci03u SATHVHD
B 0s niiNvEd ¥YLSa3n
<IN ssoo Ao+
I ;0000

I 0. oNIHS Y LS
[ EREERERS
B 01N ‘38YOYNYILSIHHD
B / /3909 LINOW ¥y LSa3W
L=

B 0. MvE30 SSO¥D ATOH
L BLEE

N :09:vH dy1Sa3n
I -/ 00 AavHS

© I - nsiiNad HITYaHTYalL

e I :0W3WNOINNAYLSAIN

@
®

[ EBIEELEEE
[ FEEINLE

e T /v LS ¥vLsa3n
e I s aw

ﬁ | PEEEELD)

B veanao DNy ILY
o

500

saanuy ul Aeas o yabua a3

. Median of Change from Base Month to Latest

Bl Mean of Median Wait time

14

@ 5
Qf
S
@5

2L

a83
=M=

c @0

EL O



B ED 1a: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time

Latest Month Median By Volume--Latest Month

Very High

High

Medium

Low

Mot Av..

2000

1500

I s idoH SNHOT
B ovve nn

B invad uvisaan
I sso:0 A10H

B =100 AavHs
| EBREELEEE

B a3 HOvaHTvalL
B sniEan
I 10.5v3 3¥0HS NN

B 1\ 0LNMOA DWINN

I 1701938 SITAVHD
I Ls3mHLHON
B oHL1N0S ¥v.1Saan
B \vsunans

I oo

I NoiNnavisaan
B uvwocLsdvisaIw

I Hcasoriswn
| EXCENE
I o Na3Ls3amoowdn
B s ooo0ovisaan

I )i v3avs3HD d3ddn
B GuvovnNvILSiHHD

I :osuvH dv.isaaw
B /330 5508 AT0H
I s:o1o0

B o.vowavisaan
B nooniHSYM L

| PRELNR!
B vvioLaim ownn

B L3uavo

| RIREEREANETATIN

[l vuan3ooiNyILY

- =
=
[Hp]

1000

sajnuiy ueipan

. Very High

B High

. Medium

. Low

B ot Available

| 15

-
h services
cost review commission

health serv

maryland



lent Admission

ival to Inpati

ED Arr

B ED 1a

Median Wait Time Distribution for ED-1a

1500

awi| e ueipajy

AYO ILIHA

IAYIAAYSIHD d3ddn

AW Ng3LSIM 2NN
NMO LA DN
NAMOLNAMOO JWNIND
Hd350r "Lsin

NOLSY3 JH0OHS WN
NOID3d TV LIdY2 NN
JNME NN

YINSNINIA HLTV3IHTVAIL
NY8dnans

[ MNIS

INOHD AQWHS
LSIMHLEON

SNLIH3N

AN

THOWIN NOINN dYLSa3wn
SAEYIN LS dYLSa3n
"YW NYIHLNOS Y L1Sa3an
AYINODLINOIN ¥ LSA3 N
JOgdvH dv.L5a3IN

ULIMYINYS dO0D ¥ VLSOIN

"NDS NIMTINYYS 3 LSOIN
SNIAdOH SNHOT
adavmoH

TOLNYINGZD 55080 AT0H
1 134¥vD

SS0¥D AT0OH

JINan

NOLONIHSY M L]
pRlR-ElERE

5401204

NOINN ‘TYVIYNYILSIAHD
TYNOIDIAE SITHVHD
TOHAYD

LAIATYD

TvddINID DI LNV 1LY
SINDV LNIVS NOISNIDSY
I

16

-
| ices
cost revievw commission

health serv

maryland



I ED 1a: ED
Arrival to
Inpatient
Admission

Heat Graph:
Colors are relative to
June/first month reported.

Red = higher wait time
Green = lower wait time

JH Bayview did submit data but not in time for inclusion

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for ED-1a

Measure Change from Base

o

Saptember Movember  December Fabruary September
Hospital Niame uly2023  August 2023 ; & April 2024 May2024 June2024  July2024 August2024 2024
P . . : , e : o
ASCENSION SAINT AG 4 L £ 576 _
ATLANTIC GENERAL 191
CALVERT
CARROLL
CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI..
DOCTORS
FREDERICK
FTWASHINGTON
GARRETT
GBMC
HOLY CROSS
HOLY CROSS GERMANT.
HOWARD
JH BAYVIEW
JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRANKLIN
MEDSTAR GDOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HARBOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN
MEDSTAR ST. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY
MERITUS
NORTHWEST
SHADY GROVE
SINAI
SUBLRBAN L
TIDALHEALTH PENINSU..
UM BWMC
UM CAPITAL REGION
UM SHORE EASTON
UM ST. JOSEPH
UMMC DOWNTOWN
UMMC MIDTOWN
UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE
WHITEOAK

maryland
health services 17

cost review commission




- Non-Psychiatric

ime

lent Admission T

| to Inpat

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital

ED Arriva

I ED 1b

: September 2024

Reporting Month

2,000

SN U) A835 joy3bua] ujabueyd
= =]
o

(=] (]
(=) (=] (=] (=
[re] =

400

NOLSYE FHOHS NN
A0 3 LIHA

IMIS

AT IdYSIHDI HIddN
QHVMOH

NOID3 ™ 1Y LId%D 1N
JhE N

NAAD LNAOQ AN
SHIAdOHSHNHOT
MARC LT A JINLAIN
HAISOr LS AN
SANDY LN S NOISMIDSY
¥l NHIHLNOS HYLSQan
LSIMH LUON
" LIEYIAYS 009 ¥ YLSaan
QU NE3LSIM I
110¥HYD
I
o | 09T SATHYHD
S ;oo o

o | N oS NHNYES HYLSOIN
o | I i TV ILS HD
B 1oL onHS Y L
B o0
* B vounans
L EsEEM

R 030 SS0uD AT0H
[ [BlUEE]

S cviooiNon ¥YLSaIn
@ | EBEERCELICLET

o | N -5 AOvHS

o I s S HLTY A TYa L
® [ BERENE TR
o B 2030
(B  FEERSER]
¢ B v oLsuEYisaan
(N EaEE
i | JEEEERD)
P Bl van30 01N Ly

(=] o

=

0
000

saynulA Ul 235 o 436UaT g3

. Median of Change from Base Month to Latest

B tean of Madian Wait time

High

Medium

Low

Mot Av..

2000

maryland

health serv

18

-
| ices
2w Commission

cost rev

I o
I s
R - 'c0H shHOT
I -vve vin
I e dvisaan
B 00 0
| R
v
R =000 ravHs
| [ERIEESEEE
| RGEERISEER LA
| L]
I 101573 3HOHS 1N
I 0 L0 a AN
R - vonn Evisaan
I 10193 SITAYHD
I =+1nos Hvisaaw
B isavHison
I 1 vaanens
I ovem
| WSIEN)
I ovee
Bl vvvoLs dvisaaw
| EEIGISE)
| EREEME
R - 3s0r 1swn
| ELERRGERAEE
B o009 Hvisaan
I 2/ 3d vYS3HD W3ddn
Bl s
I o0 ssoud KoM
Il s:oo0a
Rl o:vovwvisaan
B o1onHSY Ld
| EEEINLs
B o o
| PECERS)
| RCIREEREIETRLY

| REEELEESITTAIL

0
1000
0

sanuIp ue|pajy

B very High

M Hign

B wedium

B Low

B not Available



I ED 1b: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric

Median Wait Time Distribution for ED-1b

1500
.
@ -
E
1
2 1000 . :{ . T
5 P . . E I S 18
i ¥ 4l 13 I 1 T ¥ Igf:
T :l I i : 1 £ 3 x P x ; ) :E i . - :t * i 2
500 ¥ - A - . TH T e i
2 H = E o) - ¥
® E
B3EZ3588 2E g P58 E z x
Z 2 w C = o 7 O w C &= W o
E2zES 258 g2z =$: %83 g g g g
il = ;2 & > % 3 = & L= s E B = o Z E
=A% & Z oz 05 a2 i 3 T e = = 2 g 2 = 0=
L = W S T T} = = o = I N {~ o =
z = 5 Z @ 2 0 = £ g =
53 ¥ = E i L g P 5 S Z =
G & T = = g = X %0 - = o
= Yo bt = f—l v ,ﬂ ’ = = =
. - . Change from B
Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for ED-1b , “"gig
I_EZ‘-_ 1485
- (29.9) (22.4)
690 (00 (5.8) 548.0 544.0 (12.2) (@Ls) (52)
523.0 505.5 - 505.0 5160 5155
£ s ' ) 11.4
[ (-22.1) (-1.1) (-15.3) 5330 (11.4) (-5.2) (11.7)
. 502.0 439.0 4940 50B.8 493.0 507.4
= 400
i
= =00
%
8 200
E]
100
m mom g 9 & ®% #®% & & 8 & =3 8
& & & & & & & & & [ = & & =
5 ) ™ o o o 2 = o B o N e
£ = 1 Ei Z & z 3 = & 2 maryland
health services 19

b cost review commission



I ED 1b: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for ED-1b

Measure Change from Base

o -ses [T <5

September November  December February September

Hospital Name ] 2023 (ctober 2023 2023 2023 5 .

AAMC A
ASCENSION SAINT AGM..
ATLANTIC GENERAL
CALVERT

CARROLL

CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI..
DOCTORS

FREDERICK
FTWASHINGTON
GARRETT

GBMC

HOLY CROSS

HOLY CROSS GERMANT..
HOWARD

JHBAYVIEW

JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRAMKLIN 50Q)..
MEDSTAR GOOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HARBOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN ..
MEDSTAR ST. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY

MERITUS

NORTHWEST

SHADY GROVE

SINAL

SUBURBAN
TIDALHEALTH PENINSU..
UM BWMC

UM CAPITAL REGION

UM SHORE EASTON

UM ST. JOSEPH

UMMC DOWNTOWN
UMMC MIDTOWN

UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE
WHITE DAK

maryland 1
ic§ health services

cost review commission



IC

- Psychiatr

.

Ime

T

t Admission

September 2024

len

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital
Reporting Menth

| to Inpat

IVa

ED Arr

I ED 1c

maryland

e s 8 s g I o stior
™~ -t
QHYANOH
,_ I.._zun_ HLTYIH YL
LSAMH LYON 2 &
= JADHD ATDYHS
SNIAdOHSNHOr w
g Iy
N AAGLLMAADE LA g I o
AR AN B 020 o
¥NIS R ivvs voisnasy
MOIS3H T LY (i I v wvisaan
501000 | EBIEEGECE!
Py 3d¥SIHI ¥Iddn ol
MOl 3 HS AN
e Ee I o rvoasniin
ML I NN
wHAl i
a
NOLSYITHOHS 1N
T¥NO 193 SITHYHD - i
@ HA3S0r 15 1IN £ I i venens
2
Y 3 I oo
c
° 11082 R I 10103 saTYHD
[+1]
SINOYLNIVS NOISNDSY € I AN
WA NEIHLNOS ¥YISAAN & B =00s wvisaan
on
SS0HI ATOH =
e 3 I >veo
HOHEAYH dvLSa3n o s . )
= . WYl LS WIS aaw
@ “LYINYS AD0DHYISAAN £
= “NOINM YIS TN
INOHD AWHS m ml :
L ] UN0S NITANYHS Wy Lsa3n . I Hd3sar'Lsin
o| I o 21520 o I - =+ 3
[, I 50100
B - = Rl - o000 vyisoan
o I 1t itad HUTYEH VO 1L m I <V rivais3amomdn
IR - vi0o 0w HyLSaIn = . A
® BILED]
— Bl avovnviisieo
R :oviv NOINN HY LSO
e . “OINOIN HYLSaIN
LI IHHwE
S Il zosevhavisaaw
! a
: E I WANOLQIA NN
MOIND MY ILS THH S = Ll e
¢ I ONn IYOVNYUSIHHY B 3 .
B ;oS evisaan = | FEEEEES
r e 5z I oo o en
= )
o [ a0 oLy 2 3 . Y ANID JILNY 1LY
.
(=] o o o Q ] o =] o o
. = & 8 & & & B
- - m ) - — 2
saynui vl feas jo yibuan a3 = s8Nl ueipayy

21

Ices
iew commission

cost rev

health serv

B very High

M High

. Medium

B ow

B tiot Available



I ED 1c: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Psychiatric

Median Wait Time Distribution for ED-1c

2000
I &
@ I . .
E 1s00 1 ¥ T I
s 1k 9 I7 . I I
: o 1. &l
= L]
gm-:c I H . . T i i . B
T § B
) I H - 1 I I I - = j: I H
L2 DL DR FY IIPE IR T It 8 1iI
=100 - =
< 1§ Tiiyg 1% 83y - f
¥ . i : * .
) (W] — F — - = Ty v o ] : o = : - w = = = = =2 I = w
L3 E32298°%2 33 25 3882 = 232848z =
23232035 &6 8 222z 2 oz "E22z@5H88 -
B U0 w82 0z Sk =E 3 2 EZ L [ = ]
2 g5 © 2 =g Est S 3 £ EEDLQ -
E: g 2 g a g
[w] = 2 = = =
Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for ED-1c CE““%
(48.6) (45.9) (30.1) (856 (27.9) (12) 221 90.1
681.0 : 7404 (77.1) 0 (25.9) :
552.0 7850  (57.4) (20.?)_4‘15\ gazp o35
6380 7015
g 600 (0.0) (-10.5) (20.8)
= ) 637.0 (98) (22.1)
; B633.0 (17.2) 6050 cog g 525.5
g 559.0
g ..
;E 400
=
®
g
< 200
. Iyl o i Iyl = = = = = = = r'?]
5 1] ] = I 5 ] ] < s & =
I L T g 8 o § 9
5 = - g T 5 2 = 3 3 E maryland
o z 3 o a =
s : 8 health services 22

b cost review commission



I ED 1c: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Psychiatric

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for ED-1c

Measure
ED-1c

September
Name June 2023 gust 2023 2023

_;-Amc el
ASCENSION SAINT AGN.. |
ATLANTIC GENERAL
CALVERT
CARROLL
CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI..
DOCTORS
FREDERICK
GARRETT
GEMC
HOLY CROSS
HOLY CROSS GERMANT.. |
HOWARD
JHBAYVIEW
JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRANKLIN 50Q..
MEDSTAR GOOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HAREOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN ..
MEDSTAR ST. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY
MERITUS
NORTHWEST
SHADY GROVE
SINAI
SUBURBAN
TIDALHEALTH PENINSU..
UM BWMC I
UM CAPITAL REGION
UM SHORE EASTON
UM ST. JOSEPH
UMMC DOWNTOWN
UMMC MIDTOWN
UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE

WHITE DAK

November December February

October 2023 2023 2023 January 2024 2024 March 2024  April 2024 May 2024

June 2024

July 2024

maryland 1
ic§ health services

cost review commission

23



24

health serv

maryland
cost rev

t
saynu |y vl Aeys joybua uiabuey) l CITHN YA WY LSa3N
O B Il cidoH SHHDT
M s 2 & 9@ 2 . ® § Il ssou0 A10H
s Il ovinva wn
o I >v0 3Lk < Il vmoH
y I 105 NN HYLSaan 5 | EBIEERELE]
b ® I v MEIHLNOS dYISaIw w W v
I ssci AoH & W s
e | EEELEECT Il 21089 havHs
I 0 LNAROA NN B snuaw
e [ V<300 s N T
: Il Lhvsnoisnasy
O | [EECEEREECBEEEED ; 3
= m— ¢ HEl:oO00 B .._zua E._q.u:ﬁo:
T o [ vmvE N B 2H1nos Hyisaaw
¢ [ s3vHLON I romn dYLsaEn
e e N cvvvoH B uvwvoLs wvisaaw
[ I s LS HY LS I oo Lumoa N
g ™ I 10 LI DN i B vhoi93 S3TEYHI
g =) ® I O NET LS DI R G B v
a € a I
o] I >vieo r= B samHLEoN
g I /01934 Ty LidvD KN = B o
h .m_,w & B LEviyS Q009 HYiSaan 2 )
m E @ I 5509 NOW EYLSa3N m Il o
C = 10193 S3TEYHD x Il nvednans
S = & vy S - NOLSYIIHOHS NN
m .. ')
- — 25 ® [ VOLONIHSYM L B B 0009 Hvisdan
=4
D €S I ONN THYOVNYISTHHD 5 I :o5:vH Hvisaan
M o | ReLELELE ",__,.m oo Evisaaw
s m @ I OV NOIND A LS a3 & B o 3LHm
O v a o [ 3/0w0 AQYHS o
o 3 — g Il s:o00a
i 2 ; : QW NYILSIM NN
a | ESEEL m
—_— i OF IS
< o I s3NOv LNIYS NOISNIISY g Il Ha3soruswin
a 0L EIDSS0ED AT0H - | EREECUEEEREEEED
V & | PEEINUS] Wl ovnYILSHD
- @ I :08YH dyISaan Il 439 55082 AT0H
— I snLan Il 1O1oMHSYM L
| - ® | [ERRED) [ EETRL
A I NvERnans B viE noLnyE e
10HHYd
I. ) I nmoLaiv ownn
I 70K IMEd HLTY M TraIL
D Bl V0 ALSIHIFEOHS N W v
I 0153 FHOHS 1N £ = Il 3453H0 340HS Wi
— — — H 120H3NI NAODLHYINEIS & | FEEEED
IWEREYD = | BOIEEERTITETAT
[ I
TWYINID JILNYILY 2 2 TWHINID JILNY 1LY
=
= . B AOvIIWHOYAHYOIL 2 B I 2owHLTYaHTYaIL
&
=] (=] [=] =] =] [s]
o - - m oo =1 :
saynuly U Aeys o yibuan a3 ] BN UeIpal

I OP18a

Ices
iew commission

W very High

M High

H redium

M Low

M riot Available



by Month

Ime

Ischarge T
Median Wait Time Distribution for OP-18a

ED Arrival to D

I OP18a

25

health services
cost review commission

maryland

e NAAD LEILSTHITHOHS AN ]
#  AOYIHEIIW HLYIHIYAIL @ By
H# ER L) &
E
HH UMNIDEIWI NMOLNYINEID o
£
o=t m o
K 2=
5 :
.
e @3
=t} ol g ¥207 Jaquardes
Wi o2
1523 Hd350r L5 T .
i g 202 35n6ny
“{# NOLSY3 JHOHS WN a8 o
- NOID3H T LidyD N =8
= id JIAAE N u w
L] WINSMINID HLTYIH YA 1L = g
i NyEYnans m 2 p202 auny
] 5 M
i INOYD AQYHS - @8 e
o | e MEn
HH LSIMH LEON o 13
SALIRAW . =1
-l ) [@] < panz |udy
HH ISEE(] W =R 202 | Udy
[0 )
. L] THOWAWNOINNYYISAIN o =5
o o Hw S.AHWA LS HYLSATN 2 a m 202 yen
-
. i "IN NEAHLNOS dY1Saan m =™
[®]
: HH T . 202 f1enigad
. 1H = ne
YaH < £4
t20z faenuer
bbb g la8 s
)
" SNINdOHSNHOT = o
et QHYMOH -~ o
. - g o oG
+H OLNYINHAD SS0HD AT0H W m .
- — [ =]
- H ik L) - M M E207 43 LUIADH
] 5503 AT0H 1 s
A O =
Hn = £202 4290120
e} MOLANIHS = o
HIHAATH S Q =
hd , o)) 6 8
Lok ] SH0L0d © S m
1o MOIND ey YN LS W HD w =
it TYNOIDTH 53 TvHD < . £202 106y
e 110uHYD & m
AT Ly
et Ld3NTYD h)a €202 AInF
I3 TYHANTD JILNYLY wa
=3
ol SANDY LNIWS NOISMNIAISY iq
e £202 aunr
(=] (=] o o
(=] (=] [« ] (=] (] ] [=] ] (]
w o ™ u ] u [=] u
(Y] o — —
aIL I PN URIPalY al| | ye A uepajy abeiany



Il OP18a: ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for OP-18a

Measure
0OP-183

—Hespital Name,

AAMC

ASCENSION SAINT AGN..
ATLANTIC GENERAL
CALVERT

CARROLL

CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI._.
DOCTORS

FREDERICK
FTWASHINGTON
GARRETT

GEMC

GERMANTOWN EMERG..
GRACE

HOLY CROSS

HOLY CROSS GERMANT..
HOWARD

JH BAYVIEW

JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRANKLIN 50.
MEDSTAR GOOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HARBOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN ..
MEDSTAR 5T. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY

MERITUS

NORTHWEST

SHADY GROVE

SINAI

SUBUREAN
TIDALHEALTH MCCREA..
TIDALHEALTH PENINSL..
UM BWMC

UM CAPITAL REGION

UM SHORE CHESTERTO..
UM SHORE EASTON

UM 5T. JOSEPH

UMMC DOWNTOWN
UMMC MIDTOWN

UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE
WHITE DAK

maryland
9 health services 26

cost review commission



tric

Ia

- Non-Psych

Ime

harge Ti

ISC

ED Arrival to Di

I OP18b

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital

Reporting Month: September 2024

1000

SBIU N U] B35 Jo 36U Ul abuRLy)

= ™ =}

0o

(=]
(=]
&l

A

JLYLS

(] EELENEN

] =] =]
=] =2 =]
n =1 ]
v Lol

saynuily ul Ae3s jo yibual a3

I 105 NHNYEd EYLSaIv

I v e3HLNOS WYLSaan

I s:0v0 A 0H
I -/ dOH SHHOT
I 10 LNAOT DN
I o
I 3507 LS N
| [ERRECREECREEREN
| I
I ;0000
| EERE
I (53/0H 0N
I 1101933 Ty LidyD 1N
I 0 Lo Drimn
I oV 3 S3 dn
| BIUEE
I 110193 S3THYHD
I riCLONIHS YA L

s Ao LS EyLSsaan

I roinn IOV NY LS IHHD
I 5509 LHOW BYLSaaN

| ERIEELELE

ey nYS Q009 HYLISaan

I =/0u0 AQvHS
| ESEEN

I 53NV LNIYS NOISHIDSY

I s

ol EI9 550U ATOH

| FEEINLN]

=0 NOINA Y LSaaN

| e

| NEEELERS

| [EEEE

| EBEERERICE

| RALEERS

I < 0SHINEd HLTYEH A IL
I 0 LHALSIHI THOHS KN

Il 1015 Y3 3HOHS NN

| FEEELED]

Il veanE0 Sy LY

- AQYIHIIN HLOYIHTYAIL

=]

. Median of Change from Ease Month to Latest

an Wait time

|}

B Mean of Med

High

Medium

Mot Avail..

2000

1000

maryland

ICes

health serv

27

eV Commission

cost rev

I VAN HYLSA AN
l SMIALOH SMHOT
Il ssouo oM
Il ovive win
W cuvod
Wl o1u303u
W oy
W s
Il 2n0u9 AavHs
| EREEL
Wl 1hivs NOISNIDSY
- YINId HLTy3HTWAIL
I =HLn0s Evisaan
I 10 LN DA
Il TvMOI93 STTHYHD
N owas
B 1s3wHIHON
. VYN LS HYLSOAN
| ESEEN
B nomn dvisaan
B o
B nveEunans
B MOLSYAIHOHS 1N
R < o009 dvisaan
B vo3LHm
Il s:o00a
Il Ho3sorismn
Il ovi E3LS3IM OGN
| EERECLEECREELEN
W oinow dvisaan
. C Y NYILSIHHD
. UINEID SS0H I AT0H
Il roLonHsYm Ld
| WEERNLS]
Wl soEdvHEvLSa3N
I nevoiaiv oy
| ERRED]
B 31s3H2 3woHs N
| PEUEEEND
Il 01938 TYLIdYI N
B veanao vy
1 20w HLaHTYQIL

n

SaInuIY ue|paly

. Very High

M High

B ttedium

H Low

 tiot Available



I OP18b:

ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric

Median Wait Time

Average Median Wait Time

400
=
200
0
oo
S w
I =
=L .—.'_'
=
=
L
=
n
=
fm
0
=L
(0.00)
250 254,00
200
150
100
50
0
0
m
o
(=]
o
@
E
5
3

Median Wait Time Distribution for OP-18b

b W

Ll
L]

-
k3 4 . = =
i @x
- i = iz ; x I T3 i~1I ¥
1.31%371% 3 .2 Fp3. ¥, . F3 s
= = B E = E = - . =
¥ L = =
ea
= =
.
-4 = = w (U I wnoo: o T R nok — =z o U = T e - =
a4 x [} g = w F Z 3 R B R e T P - s B E T I 0a =
[T = z — m o W 4 = O m U s F O F WS E g3 = w o <L I =
@43 © b ow EZ = g @ ¢ = E z = U g = x93z n0 m oy O
b0 .58 = > = 2T 2 0 E = F =4 =4 b 2= < @ = E VS
oW Jdow ws BT U = T I 4o - ) .= = = m =z = a O W
N ¥ o & X 5 = o n > o T | - ] =W O g W =
= T w X o2 i = =3 = wn = a [F o wn = i
E 0h S = + 9 zZ 3 o 5 x 9 I - = T U
= T = ) = o v < = w P oL T = F
= E = F n 2 ER o = i 3w - = Y
— <L =4 L O - Lu (73] - =L - - - w
b T = o ¥ x 5 € o o L s = W
=T o F 5 L g = T I = I T o
Wi - F F Wk = F - 0o =
= > w I o w =I5 = z I
g 3 a o o o a & o v
& 2 s2 25 & P =

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for OP-18b ples il

{-2.68) ) (1007}  (-7.21) (-4.40) -15.86 678
238.00 237.00 235.00

|

— 248
(-4.43) (223) (41 gg) (-15.86) (1138) (233)

244 50 245.50 241.00 247.00 (-9.71) (5.40)
- 239.00 23200 330,00 237.50 239.50
I} Il o Iy o <t 5 =t = -3 - 5 ) 5 = o
o o ¢ o [ ] I} £ ] ) \ u| ]
o [ ] = o [ ] o ] [a] = o o f] o=
od o Ly ol ™ o o o ol N o o r:_l
s & 2 § § € 3 s 3 3§ 2B
il =] [=} = =] o =3 = =] E
E] 5 c 5 = E] 8
o 5 L] E L= ::J"
A

maryland

health services

cost review commission

28



I OP18b: ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for OP-18b

_Hospital Name
AAME

ASCENSION SAINT AGN..
ATLANTIC GENERAL
CALVERT

CARROLL

CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI..
DOCTORS

FREDERICK

FT WASHINGTON
GARRETT

GEMC

GERMANTOWN EMERG..
GRACE

HOLY CROSS

HOLY CROSS GERMANT..
HOWARD

JHBAYVIEW

JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRANKLIN S0
MEDSTAR GOOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HARBOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN ..
MEDSTARST. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY

MERITUS

NORTHWEST

SHADY GROVE

SINAI

SUBURBAN
TIDALHEALTH MCCREA..
TIDALHEALTH PENINSU..
UM BWMC

UM CAPITAL REGION

UM SHORE CHESTERTO..
UM SHORE EASTON

UM ST. JOSERH

UMMC DOWNTOWN
UMBMC MIDTOWN

UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE
WHITE DAK

cost review commission

maryland
9 health services 29



by Month

Ime

harge T

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital

| to D

ED Arriva

I OP18c

: September 2024

Reporting Month

2,000

[=] [=] [=]
[=] [=] =]
=) = o~ [=]

s3I Ul Ae3s JoyBua ujabuey)

2 Q
[=] (=]
o =t

I v
9
0 3 LIHAA
NOLONIHSY A 1
LSIMH LHON
ITNIS
SS0UD ATOH
QHYMOH
JMED

o | s OHSHHOT
| [EECEEEEEEBEEERN

o I cosor LS N

* I, 5109 AQVHS
® | I 093 S3TEYHD

L
@

[ ]
@
L ]

[=] [=]
o
(=] un

saynully u) Aeas Jo yibuan g3

1,500
0

L ELEEREIELSRU
o I e N

o I 0.l0vNEHID SS0D ATOH
® I v NHEIHLN0S WYLSaan
B 0 LMAACE DIAINN
I 00 LA NN

N ;o000
[ EWEERERE
I 0 L83 LS3H D JH0H
I ) ETLS3A Dd N

¢ [ 5200V LNIYS NOISNADSY

| BOEE R EEEL

I iy

o I 030 NOINA MY 1SOTN

I H5009LN0N HYLSaA

| RRLEEDS

| EBPEERGERTENE
I rvednans
I 0153 3HOHS N

| EREEN
| FEERE

| UL E

| R

o I LYYS 009 YYISaIm

I 00NN 3R YN ILSTHHD
I Sk N3 HL T H YA IL

| FEEEERD]
| REEERERRIa i
Wl NEDHINE NAOLN

439

Il Aa¥ TN HLWAHTYAIL

=

. Median of Change from Base Month to Latest

. Mean of Median Wait time

Very High

High

Medium

Low

Mot Ava

2000

30

health serv

maryland

ices
2w Commission

cost rev

AN D ADYHS

LG

SNIADOH SNHOT

| ERT

3
[ EERENCIN
]
L2
— |

55082 AT0H
JWAhE 1IN
“IDANYH HYLSATN
bl EWERE]

MY

LIS NOISNISY
SALHAN

“IN3d HLTYIHTAIL
LSIMMHLHON
WNOI9TH STTHYHI
JWE9

MO LNAADQ I
"AHLNOS WYLSaIn
CMOINT HYLS AN
MOLSYIIHAHS AN
| EEE

Bl nowen

Il " veunens
Bl uvwoLs wvisaan
MOLINIHSYAA L

Hd3S0r LS N
CAEAD S50 AT0H
I3 WSAHI W 3ddn
I s:co0a
I o EELsamowdn
| RELEERAETIEEL]
Hl oinon EYLSaan
Il FHOYNYILSHAD
| FEELES]
B 50009 wvisoaw
. CIAE MAMOLNYINE 3D

BT

0!
1000
0

S8} ue|pal

v roLain Jnn
| RETCECREELEUY
| PEEEED!

oo Ly win

| RLEEIELBITRIT)
| owHOwaHwaLL

=

B very High

W High

. Medium

B Low

B riot Available



by Month

iIscharge Time

| to D

ED Arriva

I OP18c

Median Wait Time Distribution for OP-18c¢

1500

|l

H3LSIHITHOH

o pel LOYIHDIW HLTYIHTYAIL

g

sopiil =
*
e}

laa b

awL yen ueipay

poas ———p

H#
Hi -
LR
HH
oHi4
MM
|
H
T+

un

D

TNIDHINT NAADLNYINEID
A0 LIHM

TAYIdWSIHI HAddN

S%A JHOHS NN
MOIS93H 19 Lidv N
JIAAE N

VINSH NI HLTYIH 7O 1L
NYadNans

IFMIS

AMDHD ADYHS
LSIMHLEON
SNLIEAN

A Al
UHOAEIN NOINA Y LSa3 N
SAYYIALLS WYLSTIN

| NHIHLNOS Wy lSa3n
AHIMODLMNOW dYL5d3N
HOAYYH ¥yLsa3n

CN0S MITANYHS WY LSO

SNIHdOHSMNHOT
QEYOH
COLMYNEIDSSOHD ATOH
L1 3dHY D

S50 AN0H

Jran

MOLDMNIHSY M L]
ERlE-ElaELE]

SHO L0

MOIND " Fey MY ILS 1HHD
TYNOIDIY STTHYHD
110D

JE-ELYL ]

TVHANID JLNTTLY
SANDY LNIYS NOISNIDSY

Y

Change from Base

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for OP-18c

4755

-20.07

(12.02)
366.00
—

(-20.07)
381.00

{-?-S?)———_\ /\( 5.24)

369.00

(13.38) (-18.63)
37450 376.00

7.98)
412.50 40658

(4

=

(842) (4478) (s.02) (-886) (0.38)
386.00 385.00 38400 387.00 389.50

(3.79)
399.00

364.00

(-5.63)
325.00

=1
=
=

[=]
[=1
o

[=]
[=1
—

aw| | yeg) ueipajy abeiany

31

health services
cost review commission

maryland

202 Jaquadas

#2202 fe

20z | W dy

F202 Y ew

202 Auenigay

£202 4899920




I OP18c: ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Volume
Psychiatric ED Visits

Average Median Wait Time All Hospitals for OP-18c

Measure
Op-18c

ARMC

ASCENSION SAINT AGN...
ATLANTIC GENERAL
CALVERT

CARROLL

CHARLES REGIONAL
CHRISTIANACARE, UNI..
DOCTORS

FREDERICK

FT WASHINGTON
GARRETT

GBMC

GERMANTOWN EMERG..
GRACE

HOLY CROSS

HOLY CROSS GERMANT...
HOWARD

JH BAYVIEW

JOHNS HOPKINS
MEDSTAR FRANKLIN 5Q.
MEDSTAR GOOD SAMA..
MEDSTAR HARBOR
MEDSTAR MONTGOME..
MEDSTAR SOUTHERN ..
MEDSTAR ST. MARY'S
MEDSTAR UNION MEM..
MERCY

MERITUS

NORTHWEST

SHADY GROVE

SINAI

SUBURBAN
TIDALHEALTH MCCREA..
TIDALHEALTH PENINSU..
UM BWMC

UM CAPITAL REGION
UM SHORE CHESTERTO..
UM SHORE EASTON
UMST. JOSEPH

UnMMC DOWNTOWN
UMMEC MIDTOWMN

UPMC WESTERN MD
UPPER CHESAPEAKE
WHITE OAK

maryland
9 health services 32

cost review commission




B ENS Turnaround Times: September Performance

« 25 hospitals reported the 90th percentile of turnaround time was <=35 minutes
« 23 hospitals reported the 90th percentile of turnaround time was 35-60 minutes
« 3 hospitals reported the 90th percentile of turnaround time was over 60 minutes
« Hospitals with improving performance

* (Average to high performing): Anne Arundel Medical Center, Bowie Health Center, Carroll
Hospital Center

» (Low performing to average): Charles Regional, St. Agnes Hospital, White Oak Medical
Center

« Hospitals with declining performance
* (High performing to average): Suburban Hospital
* (Average to low performing) : St. Agnes Hospital, Northwest Hospital

AW maryland

k-9 health services

cost review commission




B EMS Turnaround Times: September 2024 Performance

90th Percentile: 0-35 Minutes

Anne Arundel Medical Center+
Atlantic General Hospital

Bowie Health Center +

Cambridge Free-Standing ED
Carroll Hospital Center +
Chestertown

Frederick Health Hospital

Garrett Regional Medical Center
Germantown Emergency Center
Holy Cross Germantown Hospital
Holy Cross Hospital

Johns Hopkins Hospital PEDIATRIC
McCready Health Pavilion

Meritus Medical Center

Montgomery Medical Center
Peninsula Regional

Queenstown Emergency Center

R Adams Cowley Shock Trauma Center
Shady Grove Medical Center

St. Mary’s Hospital

Union Memorial Hospital

Upper Chesapeake Health Aberdeen
Walter Reed National Military Medical Center
Western Maryland

>35 Minutes

Baltimore Washington Medical Center
CalvertHealth Medical Center
Charles Regional +

Doctors Community Medical Center
Easton

Fort Washington Medical Center
Franklin Square

Good Samaritan Hospital

Grace Medical Center

Greater Baltimore Medical Center
Harbor Hospital

Howard County Medical Center
Johns Hopkins Bayview

Johns Hopkins Hospital ADULT
Laurel Medical Center

Mercy Medical Center

Midtown

Sinai Hospital

St. Agnes Hospital +

St. Joseph Medical Center
Suburban Hospital -

Union Hospital

University of Maryland Medical Center
Upper Chesapeake Medical Center
White Oak Medical Center +

(+): Hospital improved by one or more categories; (-): Hospital declined by one or more categories

>60 Minutes

&) heatths

WO S

Capital Region Medical Center
Northwest Hospital -
Southern Maryland Hospital

ervices

34



White Oak Medical Center
ED Throughput Improvement

10/09/2024

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare



White Oak
Medical Center

MENZE S

Dr. Jim Rost - Chief Medical Officer, White Oak
Medical Center

Kevin Cargill, CPA - Chief Financial Officer, White Oak
and Fort Washington Medical Centers

Dr. Mary Kim - VP, Adventist HealthCare Primary Care
and Population Health

Katie Eckert, CPA - VP, Adventist HealthCare
Reimbursement, Strategic Analytics & Operational
Excellence



WOMC

Overview

Governmental Payer Mix ED Visits per year Volume from Prince

599, ~40,000 iogesgu/n;y

(ranked 25th in the state)

Census Capacity IP Adults Admissions Entered through the ED

1 OOO/ 0+ ~ 8 50/ (0] (ranked 16t* highest in the state)

ED Diversion (% of time) HSCRC MPA TCOC Ranking*
(CY 2024)

>7OO/0 # 1 in MD Leap Frog Safety Grade A

Lon est ED Wait Time Rank Lowest ED Use Rate per Capita — Medicare FFS

Top 7% in US

#8 ln US (on par with Kodiak, Alaska)

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare

*MPA TCOC: Medicare Performance Adjustment for Total Cost of Care performance



WOMC ED Optimization Initiatives

Emergency Department LOS
Full Capacity Protocol
Post Discharge Area

Emergency Department Vertical Care Unit

Hospital LOS

Hospital Throughput Committee
SNF Authorization Process Redesign
New Complex Care Navigator

Accountability for Completion % of Care
Navigation Admission Assessments




EDDIE Project Statistics

Problem:

Highest ED wait time in
the state

> 1100 minutesin CY23

EDDIE Goal

By March 31, 2024, the Hospitalist
Medicine, Nursing, and Care Navigation
leadership teams will redesign the

patient discharge process to promptly
identify next day discharges and increase
discharges by 11AM from 11% to 15%.

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare

Effort:

Over 3 years of focused
ED throughput work

Results:

More than 12%
decrease in ED LOS
since CY23

1,560

EDDIE Data — Median Minutes by Month
Jan 2023 to Jul 2024

1,397

,269




Hospital Throughput Committee Key Metrics

99.8%

7.00
6.80
6.60
6.40
6.20
6.00
5.80
5.60
5.40
5.20
5.00

Adult IP LOS decreased 13% between
Aug 2023 & Jul 2024

o \/OMC ALOS

Discharges EVS Room
before 11am Turn/Clean Time
Goal of 15% Met 99.8% toward achieving goal

a*  ar ar o o P
& o W o ¢ ¥ 95-100% 95-100%
SELOS (5.48)

¢

Adventist
HealthCare

IP Lab Resulting Imaging
Time Turnaround Time

All 8 metrics between 95- 4 of 6 Metrics between 95-
100% 100%

Data source: Monitored by Hospital Throughput Committee. Date Range: Jul/Sept 2023 through Jul/Sept 2024
SELOS: Statewide expected LOS based on CY23 statewide average adult LOS by APRDRG & SOI



ED KPIs Monitored for Improvement

ED Door to Provider
Assignment Time

18%

ED Decision to Admit
to Bed Assignment
Time

50%

ED Discharge Order to
Discharge Time

Avg ~ 18 minutes

ED Arrival to ED
Discharge LOS

Avg ~ 350 - 400
minutes

% Left Without Being Seen
40%

% of Patients Left
Against Medical Advice

Avg ~ 0.5%

Adventist
’% HealthCare

a source: Monitored by Hospital Throughput Committee. Date Range: Jul/Sept 2023 through Jul/Sept 2024




“Care Navigation” focus on preventing PAUs, optimizing discharge coordination
with external providers and coordinating care in the community

Identification and [~
Reducing avoidable management of
readmissions high-risk/high-cost

Establish patients
with primary Our Commitment to Population Health

patients care/specialists & Primary Care was 3x the R4R*
Requirement

Social determinants
assessments and Weekly/Bi-weekly
connection to patient touchpoints
resources

ED U-turn program
to reduce avoidable
ED use

- ~$3M
Invested

[ | Specialized chronic

MVP interventions disease Direct coordination ~$1!V| R4R {
management with SNFs Requirement _

programs

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare 8

*R4R: Revenue for Reform



ED Throughput Opportunity Analysis

ED visits are up but per-capita volumes are down and ranks best in
i the Nation on par with Kodiak, Alaska.
|

ED Visits

* 7% increase in ED Visits since 2022 but decreased 6% on a per capita basis

Volumes

¢ Ranks as one of the lowest in the State and Nation for attributed Medicare beneficiaries (per capita)

Need for bedded care and high acuity/intensive OP care is driving ED

. volumes: A ther
= ® 73% of ED minutes driven by need for acute bedded care and OP-high intensity care
* Of this, 84% is for high acuity care (urgent, emergency or life threatening) B

3x ED LOS
Waiting for an acute bed is top driver of ED minutes: : t

m * ED minutes for bedded patients is 2-3x the ED LOS for OP ED and driving ~60%+ of
o ]
OP

extra minutes.

Bedded



New tower capacity downsized by 16% in 2013 by

prior State leadership

By recommendation of prior HSCRC leadership, new
AN tower project was downsized by 28 beds or 16%
ﬁ despite Maryland Department of Planning estimates at
the time.

- 100% physical occupancy.

: WOMC consistently operates its med/surg beds at
= (Capacity: CY2023 93%, CY2022 102%)

m White Oak is licensed for 16% more beds than
O—0 physical/staffed capacity.

% Growth Med/Surg & Observation Census

FY2017-FY2023

Montgomery County
Growth %
Washington Adventist/White Oak 132%
JHH- Suburban 26%
Adventist- Shady Grove 5%
MedStar Montgomery 4%
Holy Cross 4%

Source: HSCRC Experience Reports

10



ED Throughput Opportunity Analysis Continued

Avoidable ED utilization and other volume drivers are small:

* MVP-PAU patients who don’t need an acute care bed make up less than 10% of ED
minutes

Excess IP LOS is concentrated for patients discharged to other providers:

* Nearly 2/3 are discharged home and LOS is 11% below State average
* LOS for the 1/3 patients discharged to another provider is 3x the LOS discharged to home

WOMC struggles with excess LOS to SNFs in the region

® Driven by authorization delays & low managed care reimbursement capping available
SNF beds

45% ED Minutes %
23%

10%
2%
= —_

15%

| =
X

Bedded
MvP-PAU I
Riderwood

Undocumented I i\g
Behavioral

Health

AU Other N

High Intensit

IP LOS by Discharge Location

State Avg.

State Avg.

Home Other Provider

IP LOS — Home vs. SNF

Home SNF 11




LOS Opportunity concentrated with SNF placements and
Managed Care

Average LOS by Discharge Location & Payer
Above/(Below) State

Medicare MD Medicaid MD Medicaid Commercial/
Discharge to: Medicare FFS HMO HMO FFS AU Other Self Pay All Payer

SNF 7% (4% (2%)
Home Health (12%) (15%) (22% (17%) (29%)
Rehab 4% (25%) (29%) (2%) (9%)

II

Home (7%) (24%) (22%) (17%)

Notes: CY23

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare Le




Implement recommendations of independent
consultant

Next Steps

Partnership with State to address SNF and

Managed Care post acute capacity

13



Appendix




EDDIE Update at September Commission Meeting

I ED 1b: ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric

Average Median Wait Time by Hospital
Heporting Month: Asgust 2034

L]
[
- L
- .
=0 ©

o E W e Jd> 03 K I 2o ES ¥ % S o= F rE T oy =3
Sy S RO EEESE ZIFS LRSS = R T .
= I = L o= ¥ oy I 5 < 3 gzxz2@FWwEE 2 E 2w B g
o T el T T - ® 1o - 2 E = a = = 3 B . F
L M = L o Z B O L 5@ e S R 11 |

2 € = ¢ o = -

=1 o

ED Lengthof Stay in Minutes
Changa In Longtho! Stay in Minutes

Il Mean of Madian Want trme B “4ccian of Change from Bazo Month £o Latost

Pt ian Mimutes

t . . r a I = 3 = o = ’ -+ 0o oW oy w ou oo 3
| f T - A = £ E a ) = o g = = 1 g 3 - 1 1= = > = - r « = 3 X .
= L zi g Y 5 57, UF = w ] - = = 2 = o 4w e £ & E = T - o = =< =
B s ¥ o o= 3 | s = B R s E G o> oW R - - . or B = =
x| -z = f > = T 2 o 0 E - 3 e = o= 3 O @B o g @ z @ & &= 2
5 = T - O et T = E = m 2} R . x = 5 o
B a =2 = § — - =

£ = o = g == By 2 ExB 2a8aSg > maryland
| F - 2" 233§ 25 § 23 9 health services 23

cost review commission

B o= @

i OFE oS om

o
B #ict Availshie B o B ttecicn B 1 W vory High




EDDIE Update at September Commission Meeting

I OP18b: ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric

hlgasura

OP-18h
Avera ge Med n Wait Time by Hospital
arting Month: August 2024
H 3
T =
z a
g : £
H :
2 R B B S - - . — 1 - - - 5
= L s - - ~ > 5 L "9 a g 2 TE E

dedian Minutes

Hesniennununnnnllinnenneniilennunnnnniill
: =B = = RS ENES RN SN

maryland

TR e ks e 1 s S - health services 32
..I. bt o - =l - _--P” : .- Costl review comimission




WOMC

Exce

A
HO

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare

lence
e

OIS

Pathway to Excellence Designation® by the American Nurses
Credentialing Center

A" Hospital Safety Group from The Leapfrog Group (Fall 2023 &
Spring 2024)

3-Star Rating from The Society of Thoracic Surgeons
Blue Cross Blue Shield Blue Distinction for Maternity Care
Designation by CMS as a Birthing-Friendly Hospital
3-Star Hospital Rating from CMS

American Heart Association/American Stroke Association’s 2024
Get With the Guidelines—Stroke GOLD PLUS quality achievement
award with Target: Stroke Elite Honor Roll and Target: Type 2
Diabetes Honor Roll recognitions

American Heart Association/American Stroke Association’s 2024
Get With The Guidelines—Coronary Artery Disease NSTEMI Gold
with Target: Type 2 Diabetes recognition



Adventist HealthCare,

« A mission driven organization that provides health care

to more than 1 million residents in Maryland and the

District of Columbia

* An integrated health care delivery system providing a
full continuum of care through an integrated team of

physicians and care centers that include:

Three acute care hospitals

A rehabilitation hospital

Behavioral health services

Two cancer centers

Primary care and specialty physicians
Free standing emergency center
Imaging and outpatient centers
Extensive home health services

» Top-ranked cardiac surgery program

/X ﬁqﬁﬁﬁ@' §§:%ke center

Not shown: CARROLL COUNTY BALTIMORE
Frederick Core Life w COUNTY
FREDERICK
COUNTY HOWARD
w COUNTY
MONTGOMERY Columbia
Germantown
/X Adventist g e / Laurel
HealthCare il 7\ : v
o V]
ol T
m Qc;‘r‘riﬂ
Aquilino Cancer Center 9% Greenbelt
White Oak Cancer Center o
A 4
[3 Germantown Emergency Cente Ce ®
[f1 shady Grove Medical Center o ®
© Bladensburg
[Z] White Oak Medical Center WASHINGTON,
[ FortWashington Medical Center X o @
Rehabilitation Hospital
O Rehabilitation Centers
@® Behavioral Health Services
(O The Lourie Center & Head Start Programs PRINCE
® Adventist Medical Group GEORGE'S
® Imaging Centers HOUTE
@ Cardiac Associates B 0o
CorelLife | Adventist HealthCare Fort Washington
) Home CareHQ
B Home Care Office
V¥V Patriot Urgent Care Waldorf
V' Takoma Alternate Care Site

CHARLES COUNTY

HOWARD

UNIVERSITY
11 Howard University Hospital

Ean, Borwas of 1 smmgartaon i2gtnbc, Gmorsy viema Ghobel (opmeston m 4y mbon B Netoong
Comsgapha: Mugs and Makcoar Mocha Inc. Tomlam U & Dupartomend of Camemart e, U S Comaun Bptiss




Impact of Boarding Admitted Patients on Emergency Department

Function

When census is <B5%, hospitals typically can function efficiently (green). Hospitals become stressed as
census increases beyond 852 and admissions from the ED begin to accumulate from prolonged
boarding (yellow) filling the ED to capacity. Most hospitals cannot overcome inefficiencies when
hospital census is above 90% (red). The ED becomes overwhelmed and backed up. filling the waiting
room and delaying care for those patients leading to increased risk of patient harm.

Hospital Census <B85% Hospital Census >20%

Efficient Function Assured ED Crowding

Admitted

Patients Patients

l...,
ia

Source; The authors, based in part on internal Association of Academic Chairs of Emergency Medicine (AACEM)
members’ data, and informed by Forster A, Stiell |, Wells G, Lee A, van Walraven C. The effect of hospital occupancy
on emergency department length of stay and patient disposition, Acad Emerg Med. 2003;10(23127-133.
https:/fonlinelibrarywiley.com/doifepdf/10.1197 faemj 10.2.127.




CY 2022

On ED diversion 70% of the time, only able to
accept 4% of Montgomery Count ambulances vs.
12% at Takoma Park

ED Diversion

CY 2023

Increased ED diversion by +7 percentage points
from 70% in CY22 to 77% in CY23. Still only able to
accept 5% of Montgomery Count ambulances

Q
. &B Reduced ED Holds by -65% down to 6 ED holds
17 ED holds (boarder.s) per dayf 60 instances | (boarders) as of midnight census in CY2023, 47
of 25+ patients holding ED Holds instances of 25+ patients holding during the day

9.75 hours

e

Hours From Bed Assignment
to an Inpatient Bed

Reduced average hours from bed assignment to
an inpatient bed by -19%, down to 7.93 hours in
2023

15 hours due to this med/surg bed capacity
shortfall

/ Adventist
/ HealthCare

2

ED Wait Time

Average ED wait time increase +20% since CY22 to 18
hours (15 hours in 2022) due to increased volumes.

Admissions increased +4.5% in 2023 vs. 2022 but patient
days decreased -2.7%. IP LOS improved +6% , ED visits
increased +2%.



Wielv|e
Hospital
Throughput
Committee

(HTC)

White Oak Medical Center’s Throughput Committee, established in March 2021, is an
interdisciplinary team dedicated to optimizing patient flow from admission to discharge.
Meeting monthly, the committee focuses on reducing delays, enhancing care quality,
shortening wait times, and expanding the hospital's capacity.

Key Functions

Performance Indicators: Develop and track key performance indicators (KPls) for patient
throughput

Monitoring Patient Flow: Analyze patient flow data to identify and address bottlenecks
in admissions, diagnostics, surgery, and discharge processes.

Process Improvement: Implement strategies to streamline operations, such as revising
bed management policies, enhancing interdepartmental communication, and optimizing
scheduling.

The committee includes representatives from nursing, administration, emergency services,
surgery, and case management



ED Admissions from Laurel have more than tripled WOMC market share

* Shift of Laurel patients driving increased ED
volumes: 8.5% increase in ECMADs admitted
through the ED resulting in an incremental ADC
Of 31 (as compared to the last full year on the Takoma Park campus )

* ED Admissions are not a use-rate-per-capita
increase:
* Result of shift in care patterns and
ambulance traffic from 6-zip code Laurel
region

* CY2022 ED admissions per 1,000 were 5%
below CY2018 levels from 6-zip code Laurel
region

* Equates to 10,000 fewer ED visits (37%
reduction) and 2,700 fewer ED admissions
(55% reduction) between Holy Cross
Hospital and UM Capital Region Health

ED Admissions Gr..

{533) 89:‘ ;’-\La{:nnswlia
DREFTIERSY PSS
T Takoma Park

S'ewomc

« H Holy Cross

n' C Capital Region MC
L Laurel

sy

Great Falls )"
\/\\H Cabin John (havy(ha

Ellicott City 7
> 4 : Du
Daytsn = WOMC is closer in
1044 Nbia proximity to these 6 zip
2. A7 codes than Holy Cross
Brookeville Highland u\{ Hosbital

u /5
723 (avage

Jessup y
| \, Pasade
Severn

_ L7}
Odenton

Laurel discontinued
inpatient services
(no offsetting
increase at UM
Capital Region from

20715.°

4 vl .
RestaD 4~ NIRRT 001 this area)
Oak Hill ) WOHTF-‘F“_D ‘Mclean L
o7 Tysons . _,c 20?21
Chantilly Idylwood Washln g
" W'e_st Falls 3
; Church [ 0 ; ™
Centraville Fairfax A Tt W = 0 [Z]
Kings Park oS [ 20728 i Lothian
West W Alexaljl “1(13) ‘Springs |
Clifton Burke Sges Belleti g zﬁf;z
5 Groveton 20744 :
55as Hayfield /2y 20735
Buckhall . . .
{ Comparison periods: July to December 2022 Annualized vs. RY2019
* July-December 2022 annualized (to exclude impact of Omicron) Chesa
* HSCRC Rate Year 2019 (Last full Year at Takoma Park) Be:

=
Winndheidaea  Mason Mack:

Accokeek

Rarlan



Maryland Medicare Beneficiary Enrollment Trends — 2019 vs. 2023

Beneficiary 2019v 2023 Weighted Impact on

Population % by Beneficiary Statewide 8%
County CY2019 CY 2023 County 2023 Growth Rate Population Growth
Montgomery 166,612 184,482 16% 11% 21%
Prince George's 131,717 143,972 13% 9% 14%
Anne Arundel 94,823 103,415 9% 9% 10%
Baltimore 160,648 168,810 15% 5% 9%
Howard 47,796 54,111 5% 13% 8%
Frederick 42,080 48,439 4% 15% 8%
Harford 47,825 52,873 5% 11% 6%
Charles 23,687 26,939 2% 14% 4%
Carroll 32,968 35,718 3% 8% 3%
St. Mary's 16,597 18,569 2% 12% 2%
Calvert 15,969 17,788 2% 11% 2%
Queen Anne's 10,256 11,949 1% 17% 2%
Cedcil 19,152 20,846 2% 9% 2%
Washington 31,204 32,988 3% 6% 2%
Worcester 14,898 16,311 1% 9% 2%
Wicomico 19,800 21,298 2% 8% 2%
Talbot 11,270 11,904 1% 6% 1%
Dorchester 8,098 8,692 1% 7% 1%
Garrett 7,169 7,619 1% 6% 1%
Caroline 6,583 7,040 1% 7% 1%
Kent 5,608 6,100 1% 9% 1%
Somerset 5,138 5,385 0% 5% 0%
Allegany 16,989 16,952 2% 0% 0%
Adventlst Baltimore City 100,064 100,274 9% 0% 0%

// HealthCare Total 1,036,951 1,122,474 100% 8%

Data source: https://data.cms.gov/summary-statistics-on-beneficiary-enrollment/medicare-and-medicaid-reports/medicare-monthly-enrollment




I TCOC Model Year 5 Performance — Met/Exceeded All Targets
T S N L R

CGLGUELR S ERITETER efeled $300M in annual Maryland Medicare TCOC per Beneficiary $509.1 million
STV of savings for MY5 (2023)

TCOC Guardrail Test Cannot exceed growth in National Medicare TCOC per 1.9 percentage points below the
beneficiary by more than 1% per year and cannot exceed National growth rate in 2023 v
the National Medicare TCOC per beneficiary by any
amount for 2+ consecutive years

All-Payer Revenue Limit All-payer growth < 3.58% per capita 2.70% per capita v
$1.71 billion below the
maximum revenue amount(

Improvement in All- Improve upon the CY 2018 PPC rates for 14 Potentially 0.36 percentage point reduction v
Payer Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPCs) that comprise Maryland’s in the All-Payer PPC rate
Preventable Conditions Hospital Acquired Condition program (MHAC) compared to CY 2018
Readmissions Maryland’s risk-adjusted Hospital Wide Readmission rate 0.97 v
Reductions for for Medicare FFS beneficiaries at regulated hospitals <the  (below the national rate of 1.00)
Medicare National Readmission Rate for Medicare FFS beneficiaries™
Hospital Population = 95% of all Regulated Revenue for Maryland residents 97.9% of Hospital Regulated v
Based Payment paid according to a Population-Based Payment Revenue is under Global

methodology Budgets
* Starting with 2023, Maryland is accountable for readmissions on a risk-adjusted basis. Prior to 2023, the State was held accountable for ﬁg;f{ﬁ services 2

readmissions based on the Medicare 30-day unadjusted all-cause, all-site readmission rate at regulated hospitals. CMS agreed to change

, ) N 4 ol / ; 1 2 cost review commission
this measure due to increases in patient acuity in Maryland’s hospitals (relative to the nation), which is an expected effect of GBRs.



CMS

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
CENTER FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID INNOVATION

August 08, 2024

Jon Kromm

Executive Director, HSCRC
4160 Patterson Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Re: Maryland’s Performance on the Total Cost of Care Requirements, CY 2023

Dear Dr. Kromm:

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) has reviewed the State’s performance on the annual
requirements specified in sections 6 and 8 of the Maryland Total Cost of Care (TCOC) Model (the Model)
State Agreement (the Agreement) and determined that the State has met all six annual requirements for
calendar year (CY) 2023 (Model Year 5): the All-Payer Revenue Limit performance requirement, the Annual
Medicare Savings requirement, the TCOC Guardrail requirement, the Readmissions Reductions for
Medicare Requirement, the All-Payer Quality Improvement Reductions in Potentially Preventable
Conditions performance requirement, and the Hospital Revenue Population-Based Payment performance.

In response to the state of Maryland’s 2022 Diabetes Outcomes Based Credit memo, CMS agrees that the
BMI outcome measure may be substituted for performance on the 2022 diabetes outcomes-based credit.

Maryland’s Performance on the Annual Requirements specified in the Model Agreement

Annual Medicare Savings (Section 6.c)?!

The State is required to produce annual savings in the Maryland Medicare TCOC per Beneficiary of $300
million for CY 2023. In accordance with the Methodology defined in Section 6.b and Appendix C of the
State Agreement, CMS has calculated the annual Medicare TCOC savings per Maryland Medicare
Beneficiary to be $509.1 million for CY 2023, inclusive of an effective Medicare Part B expenditure
reduction via a Maryland Primary Care Program (MDPCP) Care Management Fee (CMF) non-claims
based payment (NCBP) offset resulting from performance on the CY 2022 diabetes outcomes-based
credit. CMS verifies Maryland has met this requirement of the Model for CY 2023.

CMS received and reviewed the state of Maryland’s 2022 Diabetes Outcomes Based Credit memo, dated
March 6, 2024, requesting that, due to changes in the Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS)
survey, the diabetes outcomes-based credit? be granted for 2022 on the basis of the complementary Body

! Additional Non-Claims Based Payments were identified and included in the calculation of the Annual Medicare Savings
Requirement in accordance with section 2.b.ii of the MD TCOC State Agreement.

2 The test prevalence metric derives from the Behavioral Risk Factor Surveillance System (BRFSS) survey from the Centers for
Disease Control (CDC) and compares prevalence in the current year to a 2017 baseline as agreed by CMS and the State using self-
report question 'PDIABTST' in the 2017 survey form. However, the survey form language was subsequently changed from
'PDIABTST' to a new version 'PDIABTS1' which is reflected in the 2022 response data.



Mass Index (BMI) measure per consensus methodology?® agreed upon between CMS and the State. After
consulting with subject matter experts from the CDC, CMS concurs with the State’s assessment that this
change in survey question language renders it infeasible to compare diabetes testing prevalence in 2022 to
that in 2017. As a result, CMS agrees that the BMI outcome measure may be substituted for performance
on the CY 2022 diabetes outcomes-based credit, yielding a credit amount of $4,726,091 against MDPCP
CMF NCBP Medicare Part B expenditure for CY 2023.

TCOC Guardrail (Section 6.e)

The State must not exceed the National Medicare TCOC per beneficiary spending growth by more than
one percent for any given Model Year and must not exceed the National Medicare TCOC per beneficiary
spending growth by any amount for two or more consecutive Model Years. The State’s TCOC per
beneficiary growth rate was 0.9 percentage points above the National growth rate in CY 2022 and was
1.9 percentage points below the National growth rate in CY 2023. CMS verifies Maryland has met this
requirement of the Model for CY 2023.

All-Payer Revenue Limit (Section 6.f)

Maryland’s all-payer regulated gross patient service revenue must be less than or equal to the maximum
revenue that Regulated Maryland Hospitals may earn in that Model Year from All Payers. In accordance
with the Methodology defined in Appendix B.II of the State Agreement, CMS has calculated the State's all-
payer regulated gross patient service revenue for CY 2023 to be $1.43 billion below the maximum
revenue amount; therefore, CMS verifies Maryland has met this requirement of the Model or CY 2023.

All-Payer Quality Improvement Reductions in Potentially Preventable Conditions underthe
Maryland Hospital Acquired Condition Program (Section 8.d.1-3)

The State must maintain improvements seen under the All-Payer Model by not exceeding the CY 2018
PPC rates for 14 Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPCs) that comprise Maryland’s Hospital Acquired
Condition Program in a given Model Year. The HSCRC reported that All-Payer PPC performance for CY
2023 yielded a 0.36 percentage point reduction in the All-Payer PPC rate compared with CY 2018. Based
on the State’s report, CMS considers this requirement of the Model met for CY 2023.

Readmissions Reductions for Medicare (Section 8.d.1-3)

The State must maintain the improvements achieved under the All-Payer Model on the aggregate CMS
Medicare Hybrid Hospital Wide Readmissions (HWR) risk-adjusted measure* for Medicare FFS
beneficiaries such that regulated Maryland Hospitals have achieved equal to or less than the National
Readmission Rate for Medicare FFS beneficiaries at the end of CY 2023. This represents an adjusted
methodology compared to CY 2022 when the State was held accountable for readmissions under the 30-
day unadjusted all-cause, all-site hospital readmission rate. Moving forward into CY 2024 and beyond,
the State will continue to be held accountable for readmissions on the basis of hybrid HWR, accounting
for risk adjustment of the beneficiary population compared to the National. CMS has reviewed the

3 The “Maryland Diabetes Incidence Outcome-Based Credit Methodology”, which was agreed upon January 17, 2019, and updated
May 2, 2019, and dictates that “the State will evaluate performance under the complementary outcome during a given year of the
intervention period if the diabetes outcome estimation indicates no improvement in Maryland, but diabetes test prevalence in
Maryland in that year increases by more than two points over the 2017 value” (p.47).

4 https://www.cms.gov/files/document/hybrid-hospital-wide-readmission-measure-electronic-health-record-
extracted-risk-factors.pdf-0



https://www.cms.gov/files/document/hybrid-hospital-wide-readmission-measure-electronic-health-record-extracted-risk-factors.pdf-0
https://www.cms.gov/files/document/hybrid-hospital-wide-readmission-measure-electronic-health-record-extracted-risk-factors.pdf-0

State’s calculation and concludes that the State’s CY 2023 Standardized Readmission Rate of 0.9671 is
below the National CY 2023 Standardized Readmission Rate of 1.00; therefore, CMS verifies Maryland
has met this requirement of the Model for CY 2023.

Hospital Revenue Population Based Payment (Section 8.a.)

The State is required to facilitate the movement of Regulated Revenue? for Maryland residents into
Population-Based Payment®. Section 8.a.ii requires that at least 95 percent of all Regulated Revenue for
Maryland residents is paid according to a Population-Based Payment methodology. CMS has determined
that all Regulated Revenues under Maryland’s ‘Rate Setting System’ meet the definition of Population-
Based Payment. The HSCRC has reported 97.90 percent of Regulated Revenues for CY 2023 meet this
standard. Based on the State’s report, CMS considers this requirement of the Model met for CY 2023.

In summary, CMS has determined that the State has met or exceeded the annual requirements of the
Model across all six requirements for the fifth year of the Model. CMS appreciates the State’s
commitment to and continued success in achieving the annual performance requirements of the
Model and looks forward to our continued partnership.

Sincerely,

Amanda Johnson

Acting Director

State and Population Health Group

Center for Medicare and Medicaid Innovation
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

> The full subset of revenue charged by Regulated Maryland Hospitals for which the State has the legal authority to set
payment rates.

6 Population-Based Payment is defined to mean hospital payment that either (1) is directly population-based, such as
prospectively tying hospitals’ reimbursement to the projected utilization of services by a specific population or
subpopulation of Maryland residents, or (2) establishes a fixed budget for Regulated Maryland Hospitals for services

projected to be furnished.
3



CMS

CENTERS FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID SERVICES
CENTER FOR MEDICARE & MEDICAID INNOVATION

September 6, 2024

Jon Kromm

Executive Director, HSCRC
4160 Patterson Avenue
Baltimore, Maryland 21215

Re: Update to Maryland’s All-Payer Regulated Gross Patient Service Revenue, CY 2023

Dear Dr. Kromm:

On August 9, 2024, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) issued a letter to HSCRC (subject:
“Maryland’s Performance on the Total Cost of Care Requirements, CY 2023”) affirming that the State has
met all six annual requirements specified in sections 6 and 8 of the Maryland Total Cost of Care Model
(the Model) State Agreement (the Agreement) for calendar year (CY) 2023 (Model Year 5). This memo
serves to notify HSCRC that the calculation of the State's all-payer regulated gross patient service revenue
for CY 2023, estimated at $1.43 billion below the All-Payer Revenue Limit in the aforementioned letter,
has been revised to an increased savings estimate of $1.71 billion below the maximum revenue amount.
With this revised all-payer revenue growth and savings estimate, Maryland continues to meet the All-
Payer Revenue Limit requirement specified in section 6 of the Agreement.

This update was made in accordance with the Methodology defined in Appendix B.Il of the Agreement
and incorporates new findings from the Maryland Department of Planning in conjunction with the 2020
census revising the Maryland population estimate for 2020 by an increase of about 2%, as noted in an
HSCRC memo on April 3, 2024 (subject: “Report of the All-Payer Revenue Limit for Model Year 5 of the
TCOC Model State Agreement”).

In summary, CMS has determined that the State has met or exceeded the annual requirements of the
Model across all six requirements for the fifth year of the Model and has revised the estimate of the
State's all-payer regulated gross patient service revenue for CY 2023 to be $1.71 billion below the
maximum revenue amount.

Sincerely,

Amanda Johnson

Acting Director

State and Population Health Group

Center for Medicare and Medicaid Innovation
Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services



maryland

health services

cost review commission

Update on Medicare FFS Data & Analysis

October 2024 Update
Data through June 2024, Claims paid through August 2024

Data contained in this presentation represent analyses prepared by HSCRC staff based on data summaries provided by the
Federal Government. The intent is to provide early indications of the spending trends in Maryland for Medicare FFS patients,
relative to national trends. HSCRC staff has added some projections to the summaries. This data has not yet been audited
or verified. Claims lag times may change, making the comparisons inaccurate. ICD-10 implementation and EMR conversion
could have an impact on claims lags. These analyses should be used with caution and do not represent official guidance on
performance or spending trends. These analyses may not be quoted until public release.




I \edicare Hospital Spending per Capita
Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)

65.0%
55.0%
45.0%
35.0%
25.0%
15.0%
5.0%
-5.0%
-15.0%
-25.0%
-35.0%

Jan-24 | ...

o B Maryland Hospital B National Hospital
-45.0%
T ot oo S DWW WD WO WD WD P~ M 00D Odd®dm I OO 00— — — — 0o oD < <
T I L LTI L LTI TTITGTITIILILYSITII R Rgggagaagqaaagaaaaaaado
g’ﬁ_:EE’a:E:a:E:a:E:a:EEE:EEE:EEE:EEE:EEE:E 58 3
208 e B e e e e 20 = e B e I =0 =
= <L = < - =T = =T = =T = =T = <L = <L = =T = =T =T
maryland |

CY16 has been adjusted for the undercharge. f health 59"‘"935 2
: cost review commission



I \edicare Non-Hospital Spending per Capita
Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)

85.0%
75.0% E
65.0%
55.0%
45.0%
35.0%
25.0%
15.0%
5.0% |
-5.0% =
15.0%
25.0%

-35.0%
-45.0% B Maryland Non-Hospital

National Non-Hospital

Jan-14
Jul-21
Oct-21
Jan-22
Apr-22
Jul-22
Oct-22
Jan-23
Apr-23
Jul-23
Oct-23
Jan-24 | |
Apr-24
Jul-24

maryland

health services 3

cost review commission



I \edicare Hospital and Non-Hospital Payments per Capita

Year to Date Growth
January-June 2023 vs January-June 2024

40.0%
30.0%
20.0%

10.0%
0
5.5% 4.6%

oo, | ]

-10.0%

Hospital Mon-Hospital
M Maryland M National

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)

65.0%
55.0%

I \edicare Total Cost of Care Spending per Capita

ve-nr

vg-1dy
ve-uer
€210
ec-nr

gg-idy
€g-uer
e R0
¢cinr

Zg-1dy
¢c-uer
12100
Le-inr

1Z-1dy

|g-uer
02490
0g-inr

0g-1dy
0g-uer
61-190
6L-INr
61-1dy
61 -UEr
8L-120
gL-nr
gl -1dy
gl-uer
L1100
LLAnr
LL-dy
L]-Uer
9L-120
gL-nr
9l -1dy
9l-uer
GL-100
GL-nr
Gl -1dy
Gl-Uer
71100
FL-nre
. -1dy
ri-uer

-
h services
cost review commission

maryland
health serv

B Maryland TCOC M National TCOC

()
(®)]
pust
®
=
(&)
sl
()
©
c
>
(O]
=
=3
—
O
w—
o
Q
-
(]
>
©
@®
c
()]
()
o]
(2]
®
e
O
=
>
O

45.0%
35.0%
25.0%
15.0%
5.0%
-5.0%
-15.0%
-25.0%
-35.0%
-45.0%



I \edicare Total Cost of Care Payments per Capita

Year to Date Growth
January-June 2023 vs January-June 2024

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%
|

—

10.0%

6.6%

2.0% 4.6%

] S ..
0.0%

-10.0%

Total Cost of Care Medicare Part A Medicare Part B
M Maryland M National

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I \aryland Medicare Hospital & Non-Hospital Growth
CYTD through June 2024

$10,000K ($970K)

S0K
- g = C N iy II
($14,838K)

($10,000K)
($20,000K)

($30,000K)

($42,752K)
($40,000K) ($44,509K)

($50,000K) ($59,769K)

($60,000K)

($70,000K)

($80,000K) ($88,371K)

($90,000K)
Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24
M MTD Hospital (Savings) Dis-savings %l MTD Non-Hospital (Savings) Dis-savings ¥TD TCOC (Savings) Dis-savings

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



maryland

health services

cost review commission

Final Staff Recommendation
HSCRC Confidential Patient Level Data Request from

Johns Hopkins University Bloomberg School of Public Health for
the AIDS Linked to the Intravenous Experience (ALIVE) Study.

Health Services Cost Review Commission

4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, MD 21215

This is a final recommendation for Commission consideration at the October 9, 2024, Public Commission Meeting.




 maryland

@ health services

cost review commission

Johns Hopkins University, Bloomberg School of Public Health, requests access to the Statewide
Confidential Hospital Discharge Data Sets (Inpatient) and Hospital Outpatient Data Sets (Outpatient)
collected by the Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) to obtain information on clinical
encounters, procedures, diagnoses, outcomes, and healthcare costs of participants in the AIDS Linked to
the Intravenous Experience (ALIVE) Study. This ongoing observational cohort study focuses on adults from
the Baltimore area with a history of injection drug use.

Background

The objective of this study is to ascertain clinical encounters, procedures, diagnoses, outcomes,
and healthcare costs of participants in the AIDS Linked to the Intravenous Experience (ALIVE) Study, an
ongoing observational cohort study of the health of adults from the Baltimore area who have a history of
injection drug use. All ALIVE participants provided informed consent, allowing the investigators access to
their medical records (including claims covered under 42 CFR Part 2). The Investigators are using HSCRC
data to study health outcomes and healthcare utilization in this population, particularly, the characterization
of the incidence and risk factors for blood borne infections, the natural history of injection drug use, the
natural and treated course of HIV infection, and the impact of coinfection and comorbidities in the setting of
HIV.

The information obtained from the study will provide important public health insights by providing
clinical outcomes for risk predictions, conducting cost-benefit analysis, and guiding public health and clinical
interventions. Johns Hopkins University Bloomberg School of Public Health received approval from the
Maryland Department of Health (MDH) Institutional Review Board (IRB) on January 18, 2024, and the MDH
Strategic Data Initiative (SDI) office on July 8, 2024. The Data will be retained by JHU for the duration of the
project. Once the project is completed, the Data will be destroyed, and a certification of Destruction will be
submitted to the HSCRC.

REQUEST FOR ACCESS TO THE CONFIDENTIAL PATIENT LEVEL DATA

All requests for the Data are reviewed by the HSCRC Confidential Data Review Committee (“the
Review Committee”). The Review Committee included representatives from the MDH Environmental Health
Bureau. The role of the Review Committee is to determine whether the study meets the minimum
requirements listed below and to assist HSCRC staff in making recommendations for approval to the
Commission at its monthly public meeting:

The proposed study or research is in the public interest;

The study or research design is sound from a technical perspective;

The organization is credible;

The organization is in full compliance with HIPAA, the Privacy Act, Freedom Act, and all other state
and federal laws and regulations, including Medicare regulations; and

5. The organization has adequate data security procedures in place to ensure protection of patient
confidentiality.

rPobd-~

The Review Committee voted unanimously to give Johns Hopkins University, Bloomberg School of
Public Health, access to the Data. As a condition for approval, the applicant will be required to file annual
progress reports to the HSCRC, detailing any changes in goals, design, or duration of the project; data
handling procedures; or unanticipated events related to the confidentiality of the data. Additionally, the
applicant will submit a copy of the final report to the HSCRC for review prior to public release.



¢ maryland

health services

cost review commission

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

1. HSCRC staff recommends that the request by Johns Hopkins University Bloomberg School of
Public Health for the Data for Calendar Year 2014-2024 be approved.

2. This access will include limited confidential information for subjects meeting the criteria for the
research.




Bl BCORE Program Introduction

Proposal for HSCRC to become “outcomes buyer” for BCORE
participation in ARAPA-H HEROES program

BCORE representatives in attendance to describe ARPA-H program and
BCORE capabilities.

BCORE to submit application to ARPA-H in early November
BCORE has received funding commitment from Baltimore City

Staff looking for input on draft recommendation to support including a
letter of intent from HSCRC to BCORE for the application

& health services | -



Baltimore
Comprehensive
Overdose
Response to

End the Epidemic

ADRAIRARAIN

‘l X IURMUCUMUX X |’




APRA-H HEROES Opportunity

ARPA-H:
$15M
funding

For grantees:
$2M guaranteed
$13M at risk,
pay for
performance

$30M
funding
match

Grantees asked to
engage additional
“outcome buyers”
to pay for
performance

$10Mcommitted by the City of Baltimore

HEROES

Performance

Metric

* 10% reduction
in EMS
encounters for
fatal and non-
fatal OD
compared to
the national
average



A Broad Coalition is Ready to Help

A multidisciplinary collaborative leveraging broad expertise and established
operational infrastructure will implement a comprehensive scope of services —
building upon the foundation of overdose response in BALTIMORE




KEY CONTRIBUTORS

University of Maryland, Baltimore
University of Maryland, Baltimore County
Johns Hopkins Medicine

University of Maryland Medical System
Baltimore City Fire Department

Maryland Institute for Emergency Medical
Services Systems

MedStar Health

Charm City Care Connection
Behavioral Health System Baltimore
Baltimore City Health Department
Baltimore VA Medical Center

People Encouraging People

Ascension St.Agnes Mobile Health Clinic

Health Care for the Homeless

LEAD WORKING GROUP

Justin Brooks, MD, PhD

Associate Professor

University of Maryland, Baltimore County

Director of Entrepreneurship

University of Maryland Institute for Health Computing

Samuel Burris, MPA
Director, External Affairs — Baltimore City
University of Maryland Medical System

Bhakti Hansoti MBChB, MPH, PhD
Associate Professor, Department of Emergency Medicine
Johns Hopkins School of Medicine

Associate Professor, Department of International Health
Johns Hopkins School of Public Health

Robert Harris MSN, MPH, CRNP
Johns Hopkins School of Medicine

Medical Director for Mobile Clinical Services
Baltimore City Health Department

Martha Jurczak, MFA

Assistant Dean for Business and Economic Development
University of Maryland School of Medicine

Director, Strategy & Business Development

University of Maryland Institute for Health Computing

Anne Langley, MPH, ]D
Executive Director
Charm City Care Connection

Benjamin J. Lawner, DO, MS, EMT-P
Associate Professor, Department of Emergency Medicine
University of Maryland School of Medicine

Medical Director

Maryland ExpressCare

Medical Director

Baltimore City Fire Department

Amanda Rosecrans, MD, MHS
Assistant Professor

Johns Hopkins School of Medicine

Clinical Chief for Mobile Clinical Services
Baltimore City Health Department

Eric Weintraub, MD

Professor & Co-director

Kahlert Institute for Addiction Medicine
University of Maryland School of Medicine

Lucy Wilson, MD, ScM
Professor & Graduate Program Director
Senior Advisor to the University
for Public Health and Pandemic Response
Department of Emergency and Disaster
Health Systems
University of Maryland, Baltimore County



EMERGENCY DEPARTMENTS
* Bias Reduction
« Standardized Protocols

HEALTH HUBS &
MOBILE UNITS

* Scale Existing Services

* Low-Barrier Access

TELEMEDICINE LINE
* 24/7 Service
* Immediate Access to MOUD
* Pharmacy Partnerships

- -~
.- ~<
- ~
- ~o
- ~

CARCERAL RE-ENTRY
* MOUD Access Post Release
* Reintegration Support

BCFD POPULATION
HEALTH UNITS
* Scale Existing Services
* Emergency Co-Response

B‘CORE

Care Teams
Addiction Medicine Physicians
Nurse Providers
Peers
Social Workers
Case Managers

@ GOLDIE Enabling Technology

INTEGRATION WITH OTHER CARE AND SERVICE PROVIDERS
Primary Care Physicians ¢ Mental Health Services ¢ Social Services * Employment Services



Goldie: A Patient Management Tool

Goldie is built to engage patients with opioid use disorder and facilitate the work of
multidisciplinary care teams, including in non-traditional care settings. CORE BENEFITS

Engage more
patients in treatment
and recovery

Easier and more

G O L D I E complete reporting

the right care. the right time. and analytiCS

Performance bench-
> marking to identify
Referral and Release of soia O ol a n d ad opt best

Information Sent via Fax

New Note -
Greg Dill's Referral and Release of ra( : I ( :e s
Information has been sent via fax. FE— T
< view mon




Benefits of Monthly Buprenorphine

Non-fatal
overdose
risk

4.7% 5.3% 3.9%

All-cause
hospital-
ization

All-cause
ED visits

MD DORM Report
2022:

Only 13.7 percent of
individuals who
experienced their first
NFOD in Maryland
between July 2016 and
December 2021
received a prescription
for buprenorphine in the
year following the index
NFOD

62.5% of individuals
visited an ED in the
year after their NFOD



BCORE’s Daily Reach

Emergency Department:

* 10 patients post NFOD ANNUAL
BCFD Population Health: IMPACT
« 7 patients post NFOD

Mobile Health:

* 4 patients per mobile unit v
Telemedicine Line: 1 3 y 50 5

* 16 patients ENCOUNTERS

NFOD=non-fatal overdose




Baltimore
Comprehensive
Overdose
Response to

End the Epidemic




B Recommendation

- HSCRC agrees to become an “outcomes buyer’” and makes payments to
BCORE based on an agreed upon outcome measure.
« Contingent upon acceptance of BCORE’s application by ARPA-H

« Measure will be based on healthcare spending by Baltimore City residents directly or

indirectly related to an ED visit with an opioid-related diagnosis. Staff to work with BCORE to
finalize measurement.

« Payment set at 30% of valued savings.
« Payment capped at $15 M over 3 years (likely starting in FY2026)

- Final recommendation scheduled for December. Public comment due
by October 23, 2024.

{ maryland

| Jc# health services | 11

COsL review CoOmmission




maryland

health services

cost review commission

Baltimore Comprehensive Overdose
Response to End the Epidemic
Outcome Buyer
Draft Recommendation
October 9, 2024
This is a draft recommendation for consideration by the Commission. Public

comments must be received by October 23, 2024, to

william.henderson@maryland.gov

P: 410.764.2605 . 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 . hscrc.maryland.gov



p maryland .
health services

cost review commission

Table of Contents

List of Abbreviations

Policy Overview

Summary of the Recommendation
Background

ARPA-H HEROES

BCORE
Alignment with HSCRC goals
Funding Approach
Staff Recommendation
Appendix A: Description of BCORE
About BCORE

Overview of the Program

Innovation, Team Composition, and Mitigating Technical Risk

References

w w N N

w

a ~»p b W




¢ maryland

health services

cost review commission

List of Abbreviations

AHEAD

BCORE

CMS

ARPA-H

HEROES

HSCRC

States Advancing All-Payer Health Equity Approaches and Development model
Baltimore Comprehensive Overdose Response to End the Epidemic

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

Advanced Research Projects Agency for Health

Health Care Rewards to Achieve Outcomes

Health Services Cost Review Commission




¢ maryland

&

health services

cost review commission

Policy Overview

Policy Objective Policy Solution Effect on Effect on Effect on Health
Hospitals Payers/Consum Equity
ers

To fund an Commit to providing Hospitals benefit | Payers and BCORE’s focus
innovative, funding based on from reduced consumers on opioid use
comprehensive outcomes achieved so | emergency benefit from disorder in
approach to opioid | BCORE, a partnership | department and improved health Baltimore City is
treatment in focused on opioid inpatient outcomes and consistent with a
Baltimore City treatment, can utilization reduced costs for | strategy that
while leveraging participate in a through improved | those with opioid | prioritizes
available Federal Federally funded community use disorder. reducing health
funding. health care program treatment of disparities.

that focuses on opioid use

improving health. disorder.

Summary of the Recommendation

Staff recommend the Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) commit to providing up to $15

million of funding over 3 years as an outcome buyer for the Baltimore Comprehensive Overdose Response

to End the Epidemic (BCORE) in support of BCORE’s application under the Advanced Research Projects
Agency for Health’s (ARPA-H) Health Care Rewards to Achieve Outcomes (HEROES) program. The
provision of any funding by the HSCRC is contingent upon BCORE being selected for participation in the

HEROES program.

Assuming BCORE is selected, the initiative will invest in evidence-based interventions including medication

for opioid use disorder, targeted naloxone distribution, and community-based peer recovery specialists with

a focus on decreasing opioid overdose mortality in Baltimore City. As part of the HEROES program

BCORE, the “Health Accelerator” is required to identify “Outcome Buyers” who will agree to provide

additional funding based on BCORE'’s success in addressing their targeted issue and an agreed upon

outcome metric. Payments are proposed to be set at 30% of the value measured. If this recommendation

is adopted the HSCRC will be committed to acting as an outcome buyer for the program.

BCORE and the HSCRC have preliminarily agreed on a metric centered on reducing costs directly and

indirectly related to emergency room visits for opioid use disorder for residents of Baltimore City. HSCRC

Staff will continue to work with BCORE to refine the outcome metric and will periodically report to the

Commission with updates.




¢ maryland

% health services

cost review commission

Background

BCORE is applying to participate in ARPA-H's HEROES program. The application is due in November
2024.

ARPA-H HEROES

ARPA-H HEROES is a three-year program that aims to demonstrate that novel outcome-based incentives
can dramatically improve health outcomes by accomplishing the following three goals: 1) improve
healthcare in large, geographically defined populations through implementation of novel technologies and
strategies; 2) track changes in quantifiable outcomes metrics in near real-time; and 3) develop economic
incentives that reward improvements via a sustainable, scalable economic model. Leveraging a conceptual
framework of outcomes-based financing, the HEROES program will provide payments to organizations
based on activities that aim to improve health outcomes. These incentives, or outcome payments, will
depend on HEROES program Performers achieving transparent and measurable pre-determined outcomes

that will have major impacts on health.

BCORE

BCORE is a unique collection of clinical experts, community program leaders, EMS personnel, data
scientists, and public health specialists who will leverage broad expertise and existing operational
infrastructure to implement a comprehensive interconnected scope of services in Baltimore City focused on

decreasing opioid overdose mortality.

A description provided by BCORE of their activities, goals and evidence base is attached as Appendix A to

this recommendation.

Alignment with HSCRC goals

Reducing overdose mortality is one of the goals under the population health programs of the Total Cost of
Care Model. Further, the State anticipates opioid use disorder and overdose mortality will continue to be a
priority area under Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services’ (CMS) States Advancing All-Payer Health
Equity Approaches and Development (AHEAD) model which is anticipated to be the next phase of the Total
Cost of Care Model. The focus on Baltimore City and on opioid use disorder is consistent with the AHEAD

model’s prioritization of reducing disparities in health outcomes.

BCORE’s focus on treating patients in the community to avert future acute crises that are costly both in
personal and dollar terms is also consistent with the general goals of the HSCRC'’s global budget model

which seeks to move dollars from reactive, expensive acute care and into prevention.



 maryland

@ health services

cost review commission

Based on these factors Staff believe the BCORE program is highly aligned with the HSCRC’s goals and

serves the interests of payers and providers by bringing specialized resources to bear on a critical issue.

Funding Approach

Under the HEROES program the Outcome Buyer (HSCRC) and the Health Accelerator (BCORE) must
agree on an outcome measure which is used to evaluate progress and set funding. HSCRC is proposing

to fund the program at 30% of the measured outcome.

Based on preliminary discussions HSCRC Staff and BCORE have agreed to use the cost of emergency
department (ED) visits and subsequent care for opioid use disorder in Baltimore City as the outcome
measure. Staff and BCORE will continue to work together to refine that measure and will share periodic

updates with the Commission.

Initial data shows that Baltimore City residents had approximately 12,500 relevant visits in 2023 with a total
direct cost of ~$100 million. A methodology for identifying follow-up costs is still being developed but any
definition will add considerably to this amount. BCORE hopes to reduce ED costs by about 10% and
related inpatient costs by about 2%, this level of achievement would generate approximately $6.0 M of
savings and an HSCRC funding liability of $1.8 M (30%) on the direct visit costs. However, these estimates

are still being refined, once follow-on costs are included these potential savings will increase.

Staff recommend capping payments under this program at $15 million over 3 years in order to provide some
cost certainty to the HSCRC. Payments will be made using a method established by Staff. Staff anticipate

that any payments will commence during Fiscal Year 2026 and go through Fiscal Year 2028.

Staff Recommendation

Staff recommend the Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) commit to providing up to $15
million of funding over 3 years as an outcome buyer for the Baltimore Comprehensive Overdose Response
to End the Epidemic (BCORE) in support of BCORE’s application under the Advanced Research Projects
Agency for Health’'s (ARPA-H) Health Care Rewards to Achieve Outcomes (HEROES) program. Staff
anticipate any funding due will be paid from FY2026 to FY2028. The provision of any funding by the

HSCRC is contingent upon BCORE being selected for participation in the HEROES program.




¢ maryland

% health services

cost review commission

Appendix A: Description of BCORE
About BCORE

The city-wide, multi-disciplinary collaborative, Baltimore Comprehensive Overdose Response to End the
Epidemic (BCORE) is a unique collection of clinical experts, community program leaders, EMS personnel,
data scientists, and public health specialists who will leverage broad expertise and existing operational
infrastructure to implement a comprehensive interconnected scope of services in Baltimore City focused on

decreasing opioid overdose mortality.

Overview of the Program

BCORE will invest in evidence-based interventions including medication for opioid use disorder (MOUD),
targeted naloxone distribution, and community-based peer recovery specialists (PRS). These resources will
be coupled with innovative service delivery models and new linkages across the system of care.
Specifically, BCORE will provide access to a spectrum of services including evidence-based treatments,
harm reduction, tailored crisis response, and support for social determinants of health (SDoH). The
lifesaving services proposed in this intervention, while accessible to all, will be targeted to those in
neighborhoods and settings with the highest overdose rates. Major components of the BCORE proposal are
centered around the evidence-based recommendations of the National Institute of Health’s (NIH) Opioid-
Overdose Reduction Continuum of Care Approach (ORCCA)," and will be developed and implemented to

build on the strengths and fill the gaps of the Baltimore ecosystem.
BCORE’s solution components include:

- Expanded MOUD access to at-risk populations (e.g., OUD hotspots, justice-involved individuals,

multi-visit emergency department patients)
- Community Connection Teams that will provide intensive personalized support

- Strategically located Health Hubs, in partnership with community-based organizations, that will

anchor multifaceted treatment and harm reduction services in high-needs neighborhoods

- Tailored crisis response, in partnership with the Baltimore City Fire Department, that facilitates

connection to services
- Bolstered support for existing programs addressing social determinants of health (SDoH)

- A unified community health-enabling software platform and technology infrastructure enabling (i)
precision medicine and (ii) and care connections across the health care and social service

continuums



 maryland

@ health services

cost review commission

A major focus of BCORE’s work will be a systematic expansion of access points to increase engagement
and retention in MOUD, which has been demonstrated to reduce overdose deaths by up to 80%.23 Recent
analyses have shown that only 40% of Marylanders who would benefit from MOUD accessed treatment,*
and only 14% of individuals experiencing a non-fatal overdose received a buprenorphine prescription. In a
recent Maryland study, Sugarman and
colleagues demonstrated the positive effect of

Benefit Per Month of Buprenorphine 7 buprenorphine on OUD; with each additional

month of buprenorphine treatment after a non-

Non-fatal All-cause All-cause MDDORM Ropact
onerdoes ED visits hospital- e fatal overdose the risk of subsequent overdose,
i tony e,
b 216 all-case ED visits, and all- cause
received a
: ; S n o hospitalizations was reduced by 4.7%, 5.3%
' o
0 o 0 .5% of individusls 0, H 5 D
4.7% 5.3% 3.9% and 3.9%, respectively.5 Additionally, health

yoar after their NFOD

care costs decreased with each subsequent

Sugarman, et al. 2024

month of MOUD adherence.

The potential benefit of MOUD expansion can only be fully realized if implemented within a system of
integrated services tailored to address structural barriers including stigma, racism, transportation, and
housing that disproportionately prevent people who use drugs from starting and continuing care.®'° Peer
recovery specialists (PRSs) and Programs of Assertive Community Treatment (PACT) models can enhance
linkage and increase retention in care, decrease relapse, improve relationships with treatment providers,
and provide social support to individuals outside of typical office-based settings and foster longitudinal

relationships.1-13

Anchored geographically in neighborhoods with high rates of overdose, BCORE will invest in
multidisciplinary Community Connection Teams that will utilize real time data and a public-facing referral
line to respond to engage clients. Integrating PACT team models with existing PRS teams, Community
Connection Teams will use evidence-based, trauma-informed approaches to facilitate long term
relationships in support of whole-person wellness. Community Connection Teams will partner with
emergency services and hospitals to provide targeted, intensive follow-up after a non-fatal overdose.
Community Connection Teams will engage clients in housing case management, insurance enroliment, and
vital document retrieval. Lastly, Community Connection Teams will provide overdose education and

naloxone distribution throughout the community.

Innovation, Team Composition, and Mitigating Technical Risk
The success of the B-CORE solution relies on several new, publicly accessible innovations, including the
development of a city-wide MOUD telemedicine line, CCTs, integrated Health Hubs, and technical

software/data solutions that connect the existing health system with these new publicly available health



¢ maryland

% health services

cost review commission

resources. The approach is designed to serve the entire population through using a ‘no wrong door’
approach, where access can occur across the health system and community-based networks. The team
comprises experts from the UMMS, UMB, JHU, UMBC, city and state government, and various nonprofit
organizations, and was carefully developed to balance the need for comprehensive expertise with
operational simplicity. Technical risk will be mitigated through rigorous testing and phased implementation.
Use cases will focus on post non-fatal overdose response and MOUD care linkage, especially among high
interest groups (e.g. older adults, people with high ED and hospital utilization). Data types including patient
trajectories and system performance metrics will be developed to ensure effective monitoring and

intervention.

References

1. National Institutes of Health HEAL Initiative. Opioid-overdose reduction continuum of care approach A
guide for policymakers for implementing evidence-based strategies that address opioid overdose. . 2023.
https://4023e02e-82ff-4e82-af5f-

a47435b56092.usrfiles.com/ugd/4023e0 b359da2a1f4e408balbccbf3ca98d96f. pdf.

2. Larochelle MR, Bernson D, Land T, et al. Medication for opioid use disorder after nonfatal opioid
overdose and association with mortality: A cohort study. Ann Intern Med. 2018;169(3):137-145. doi:
10.7326/M17-3107 [doi].

3. Sordo L, Barrio G, Bravo MJ, et al. Mortality risk during and after opioid substitution treatment:
Systematic review and meta-analysis of cohort studies. BMJ. 2017;357:j1550. doi: 10.1136/bm;.j1550 [doi].

4. Krawczyk N, Rivera BD, Jent V, Keyes KM, Jones CM, Cerda M. Has the treatment gap for opioid use

disorder narrowed in the U.S.?: A yearly assessment from 2010 to 2019". Int J Drug

5. Sugarman OK, Saloner B, Richards TM, et al. Association of buprenorphine retention and subsequent
adverse outcomes following non-fatal overdose: An analysis using statewide linked maryland databases.
Drug Alcohol Depend. 2024;258:111281. doi:10.1016/j.drugalcdep.2024.111281.

6. Madras BK, Ahmad NJ, Wen J, Sharfstein JS. Improving access to evidence-based medical treatment for
opioid use disorder: Strategies to address key barriers within the treatment system. NAM Perspect.
2020;2020:10.31478/202004b. eCollection 2020. doi: 10.31478/202004b.

7. Barnett ML, Meara E, Lewinson T, et al. Racial inequality in receipt of medications for opioid use
disorder. N Engl J Med. 2023;388(19):1779-1789. doi: 10.1056/NEJMsa2212412.

8. Motavalli D, Taylor JL, Childs E, et al. "Health is on the back burner:" Multilevel barriers and facilitators to
primary care among people who inject drugs. J Gen Intern Med. 2021;36(1):129-137. doi: 10.1007/s11606-
020-06201-6.


about:blank
about:blank

¢ maryland

Q health services
v cost review commission

9. Hsu M, Jung OS, Kwan LT, et al. Access challenges to opioid use disorder treatment among individuals
experiencing homelessness: Voices from the streets. J Subst Use Addict Treat. 2023;157:209216. doi:
10.1016/j.josat.2023.209216.

10. Amiri S, Panwala V, Amram O. Disparities in access to opioid treatment programs and buprenorphine
providers by race and ethnicity in the contiguous U.S. J Subst Use Addict Treat. 2024;156:209193. doi:
10.1016/j.josat.2023.209193.

11. Eddie D, Hoffman L, Vilsaint C, et al. Lived experience in new models of care for substance use
disorder: A systematic review of peer recovery support services and recovery coaching. Front Psychol.
2019;10:1052. doi: 10.3389/fpsyg.2019.01052.

12. Magidson JF, Kleinman MB, Bradley V, et al. Peer recovery specialist-delivered, behavioral activation
intervention to improve retention in methadone treatment: Results from an open-label, type 1 hybrid
effectiveness-implementation pilot trial. Int J Drug Policy. 2022;108:103813. doi:
10.1016/j.drugpo.2022.103813.

13. Allness DJ. The program of assertive community treatment (PACT): The model and its replication. New
Dir Ment Health Serv. 1997;(74):17-26. doi(74):17-26. doi: 10.1002/yd.2330227404.




D maryland

health services

cost review commission

Hospital Community Benefit Reporting:
Recommendation to Adopt Changes to Regulations

October 9, 2024




I Promulgating Regulations- Key Steps

« Staff engage stakeholders (workgroup) - Changes were reviewed in the Community Benefits
Reporting Workgroup.

« Staff present proposed regulations to Commission - July 10, 2024.

« The Commission votes to send the proposed regulations to Maryland Register for public comment
- July 10, 2024.

« Public comment period begins when the regulations are published (30 days) - August 23, 2024
« Staff consider public comments and revise regulations if needed - No public comments received.

» If substantive changes are made to the regulation, staff propose updated regulations, repeating the
steps above - Not applicable.

« Staff present final regulations to the Commission for adoption.

« Commissioners vote to adopt the final regulations.

* Notice of Final Action sent to Maryland Register; regulations are effective 10 deysrafterspublication.
5of health services 2

cost review commission



I CEdits to COMAR 10.37.01.03

M. Annual Nonprofit Hospital Community Benefit Report.

(1) Beginning on December 15, 2009, each nonprofit hospital shall submit the Annual
Nonprofit Hospital Community Benefit Report to the Commission by [December 15 of every
calendar year] the date prescribed by the Commission in the format prescribed by the
Commission.

(2) Hospitals shall complete the report on the basis of actual data covering the reporting
period of the previous July 1 through June 30 or other time period as specified by the
Commission.

(3) The Commission shall provide instructions for completing the report [in its
"Accounting and Budget Manual for Fiscal and Operating Management"] on its public website.

{ maryland

k-4 health services

cost review commission



B Questions?

Zach Starr

Intern, Policy and Government Affairs

zachary.starr@maryland.gov

Megan Renfrew

Deputy Director, Policy and Consumer Protection

megan.renfrew1@maryland.gov

maryland

ic§ health services 4

cost review commission


mailto:zachary.starr@maryland.gov
mailto:megan.renfrew1@maryland.gov

maryland

health services

cost review commission

Final Recommendation

Revised Community Benefits Reporting
Regulation
COMAR 10.37.01.03.M.

October 2024

P: 410.764.2605 @ 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 @ hscrc.maryland.gov



 maryland

% health services

cost review commission

Purpose: These amendments to existing regulations will provide the Commission with
the flexibility for determining the appropriate due dates for hospitals to submit their annual
reports on community benefit activities and will simplify access to the submission
instructions for these reports. These amendments were published as proposed

regulations in the Maryland Register on August 23, 2024. HSCRC did not receive any

public comments during the public comment period, which closed on September 23,
2024. Commissioners will be asked to vote on adopting these amendments to the

regulation as final during the Commission meeting on October 9, 2024.

Title 10

MARYLAND DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Subtitle 37 HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION

Chapter 01 Uniform Accounting and Reporting System for Hospitals and Related
Institutions

Authority: Health-General Article, §§19-207, 19-215, and 19-303, Annotated Code of Maryland

Notice of Proposed Action

.03 Reporting Requirements; Hospitals.
A — L. (text unchanged).

M. Annual Nonprofit Hospital Community Benefit Report.

(1) Beginning on December 15, 2009, each nonprofit hospital shall submit the Annual
Nonprofit Hospital Community Benefit Report to the Commission by [December 15 of every
calendar year| the date prescribed by the Commission in the format prescribed by the Commission.

(2) Hospitals shall complete the report on the basis of actual data covering the reporting period
of the previous July 1 through June 30 or other time period as specified by the Commission.

(3) The Commission shall provide instructions for completing the report [in its "Accounting
and Budget Manual for Fiscal and Operating Management"| on its public website.

N — U. (text unchanged).


https://dsd.maryland.gov/MDRIssues/5117/Assembled.aspx

maryland

health services

cost review commission

Draft Recommendation for Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-of-State
Volume Policies

October 9 2024




I Adenda

- Volume Policy Overview and Workgroup Timeline

- Methodology Overview
* Deregulation
* Repatriation
*  Out-of-State

- Implementation Considerations
- Volume Scorecard

- Draft Recommendations

P maryland

k4§ health services

cost review commission




I Global Budget Volume Policy Background

« The HSCRC adjusts global budgets for anticipated changes in demographics/volume patterns and
observed shifts in the market
+ To that end, the Commission implements the following volume adjustments:

Volume Approved | Stand Purpose Comment
Adjustment Policy Alone

Demographic Annual age adjusted population funding for in-state use rate growth

Adjustment

Marketshift X Semi-annual adjustments for regulated market shifts (zero sum)

Out-of-State Annual adjustments for material changes to out-of-state volumes Due to WG will use ECMADS

Deregulation As needed reductions for observed shifts to unregulated settings Delayed due to WG concerns

Repatriation As needed adjustments for cross state border hospital shifts New methodology requested
by WG

Complexity X X Prospective funding to Academic Medical Centers for growth in unique

and Innovation quaternary services

CDS-A X X Funding for changes in volume for select drugs (only volume

variable methodology)

+  Once the last remaining policies are established (with the Volume Scorecard), staff will reconsider with Commissioners any
necessary modifications to volume policies. s
«  Ex: New service lines independent of population growth health services

cost review commission



I Revised Timeline for CY 2024 Volume Workgroup

Staff Prep Work 0O0S Tool, Deregulation Tool
First Workgroup Meeting (March 18) 0O0S Methodology, Current Volume Scorecard
Second Workgroup Meeting (April 25) Deregulation Methodology, EAPG Marketshift

Additional Staff work ~ CY 23 Deregulation & Repatriation Analysis
Third Workgroup Meeting (September 6) Final Release of OOS, Deregulation and Scorecard | Industry Input
Report to Payment Model Workgroup
Draft Recommendation (October 9)

Final Recommendation (December 11)

6/23 8/22 10/21 12/20 2/18 4/18 6/17 8/16 10115 12114 2/12
Start Date Duration

Due to data delays as well as requests for Repatriation and VCF Analyses, staff
extended the timeline

p maryland

health services

cost review commission




I New Volume Policies Overview Example

Hospital A - Growth Hospital Hospital B - Declining Hospital

Out-of-State
Volumes are
handled in a
stand alone
methodology

Algebra Item ECMADs Algebra2 Iltem2 ECMADs2

A Base Period 6A Base Period 10

B Performance Period 10B Performance Period 3

C=B-A Change 4 C=B-A Change -7

D Marketshift 2D Marketshift -2

E=C-D Unrecognized 2 E=C-D Unrecognized -5

Hospital A - Growth Hospital Hospital B - Declining Hospital

Algebra Item ECMADs Algebra2 ltem2 ECMADs2

A Base Period 6A Base Period 10

B Performance Period 10 B Performance Period 3

C=B-A Change 4 C=B-A Change -7

New

Policies D Marketshift 2D Marketshift -2
E=C-D Unrecognized 2 E=C-D Unrecognized -5

F Repatriation 1F Expatriation -1

G=E-F Unrecognized 1G Deregulation -1

H=E-F-G Unrecognized -3

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Deregulation Methodology

;
7,
ik

maryland
health services
cost review commission

oo



I \\Vhat is Deregulation?

Deregulation is the movement of a hospital service from a HSCRC regulated space to an
unregulated space (most often outpatient services but also chronic and rehab).
. A service is presumed to be regulated if the building is on the campus of a hospital
. Criteria outlined in COMAR are considered for determination of unregulated services, which
need to be approved by the Commission

Service movement can be initiated by three main actors: 1) payers, 2) the hospital itself, 3) and
physician practices
1. Payer Initiative Example: A payer steers members to endoscopies at an Ambulatory Surgery
Center.
2. Hospital Example: The hospital makes the decision to shift radiation therapy services to an
unregulated setting.
3. Physician Practices Example: A community physician makes the decision to no longer perform
hand surgeries at the hospital. In this instance, the physicians made the decision outside of the
hospital's control.

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I Deregulation Methodology

. Deregulation is similar to the Commission’s Market Shift policy.

. Evaluation of deregulation is complicated by:
The different service offerings that occur between regulated and unregulated facilities
The incompleteness/availability of data

. For these reasons, staff have created a methodology that:

1. Utilizes Medicare TCOC data to determine shifts across all settings of care

2. Utilizes 3M’s Enhanced Ambulatory Patient Groups (EAPGs) for outpatient services, in lieu of 3M’s
aggregated service lines to better identify at a more granular level potential deregulation (e.g.,
pacemaker replacement and/or echocardiography versus “Cardiovascular” service line)

3. Incorporates total trend in EAPGs to remove use rate decline across all settings, which is not
indicative of deregulation

4. Extrapolates to all-payer using hospital casemix data

5. Cross references against the Market Shift methodology to ensure there are effectively no
duplicative volume adjustments.

6. Removes from consideration all EAPG cases that have a dominant procedure code that map to
CMS Ambulatory Surgical Center Exclusion List

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Repatriation Methodology

F
7,
i

maryland
health services
cost review commission

oo



I \\V'hat is Repatriation?

e Repatriation is the cross border movement of Maryland residents from out-of-state

hospital facilities to Maryland regulated facilities
e Only accounts for hospital services; no evaluation along the continuum of care
e The TCOC Model savings improve under repatriation because funding is reduced at a 100% variable cost
factor outside of the State and in Maryland is increased at most at a 50% variable cost factor
e Ex: Outpatient surgery from Wilmington, DE into Cecil county

o Expatriation is cross border movement of Maryland residents from Maryland regulated

hospital facilities to out-of-state hospital facilities
e  Only accounts for hospital services; no evaluation along the continuum of care
e The TCOC Model savings degrade under expatriation because funding is increased at a 100% variable cost
factor outside of the State and in Maryland is decreased at a 50% variable cost factor
e Ex:Inpatient Surgery & Cardiology into D.C.

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Il Repatriation Methodology

Repatriation is similar to the Commission’s Market Shift policy.

Evaluation of repatriation is complicated by:
e The incompleteness/availability of data
e Random variation that occurs by assessing volume change among hospitals not located in contiguous

states (or Districts)
e  Market shifts that are occurring within border states versus shifts that are occurring across state lines.

For these reasons, staff have created a methodology that:

1. Utilizes Medicare TCOC data to determine shifts across state lines by determining the aggregate change
for Maryland and non-Maryland facilities in a given geographic area and service line (excludes non
contiguous states)

2. Utilizes 3M’s inpatient and outpatient service lines because both settings are susceptible to repatriation,
and there is no need for more granular analysis since acute care facilities (in-state and out-of-state) have
similar service offerings.

3. Extrapolates to all-payer using hospital casemix data

4. Cross references against the Market Shift methodology to ensure there are effectively no duplicative

volume adjustments. maryland .
health services

cost review commission



S
Out-of-State Methodology

;
7,
oY

maryland
health services
cost review commission

oo



I Out-of-State Volume Background

» Perthe GBR contract, the Commission can adjust a hospital’s global budget revenue “If this percentage
[out-of-state volume] changes materially during the term of this Agreement...” - Section X, Global Budget
Revenue Agreement

+ To date, staff have adjudicated a few out-of-state adjustments because a) the volume change has
been material and b) the volume change represented a material share of the hospital’s global
budget

* Unlike typical volume methodologies, staff have elected to use reported experience data in lieu of
ECMADS from abstract data because the longitudinal assessments have base years under:
» Different Groupers
» Different Casemix Methodologies
» Different Diagnosis and Procedure Code Versions (e.g., ICD-9 to ICD-10)

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I Out-of-State Volume Methodology

» Baseline for hospital evaluation is:
« 2014 if hospital has not had an adjustment for out-of-state
+ Rate year subsequent to 2014 that was used to adjudicate out-of-state adjustment
+ Rate year subsequent to 2014 that was used to adjudicate full rate application

» Performance year for evaluation is last completed fiscal year

* All volume changes are measured at a 50% variable cost factor
*+ 0OOS Revenue Increase @ 50% VCF = Current Rate X (Performance Year Volume - Base Year
Volume)
« Conversion factors are accounted for in volume assessment, e.g. clinic RVU conversion

* Notable Exclusions
e CDS rate center
e MSS rate center

 Material volume declines

*  Workgroup successfully argued for using ECMADS in future assessments so that all volume change from

maryland

RY 2023 are assessed with acuity adjusted cases, inclusive of all rate centers Q health services

cost review commission



Implementation Considerations

;
7,
ik

maryland
health services
cost review commission

oo



I Accuracy of Volume Evaluation and Potential for Temporal Volume

Change
e Three principal concerns were raised during the Volume Workgroup.

1.
2.

Reliance on Medicare TCOC data and the small and potentially temporal
nature of the associated volume changes.

Not all hospitals have the same efficiency and retained revenue levels, and
thus there should be some consideration of varying cost structures and
profitability when implementing adjustments.

In certain cases the reduction of services through dere%]ulation, expatriation,
and/or out-of-state movement may not be driven by a hospital and/or may
happen rather suddenly

e For these reasons, staff proposed the following implementation approaches:

Implement Deregulation and Expatriation at the next available rate issuance
on a one-time basis, negative Out-of-State adjustments on a permanent basis.

Hospitals can provide additional information to contest an HSCRC finding, but
\(/jvill.h.ave the burden of proof, and HSCRC staff will be final arbiters of this
ecision.

If one-time adjustments are made and the same finding is made the following
year, the adjustment will be made permanent.

All adjustments will be subject to a materiality threshold. LB
health services

cost review commission



] Materiality Thresholds

«  Ultility of Materiality Thresholds

Ensures that adjustments are only
made when the variation is significant,
similar to Minimum Savings Rate
(MSR) in EQIP program

Creates alignment with various policies
that incentivize actions like
deregulation (GBR’s, MPA, EQIP),

Future maturity of the Model may
depend on moving to glreater_ capitation
risk, especially for rural hospitals

Aligns with principle of creating
revenue predictability through global
budgets

«  Utility of Asymmetrical Materiality
Thresholds & Integrated Efficiency

Growing repatriated and out-of-state
volumes is good for the Model

Helps reduce outlier cost status

Implement one-time

Impl: t
initially and R

Materiality permanently

ermanently one year
Threshold . t b

later

upon initial
adjustment

Recommendation 5

Deregulation

Decreases GBR Approach A X

Change to Rendering Location State for MD resident

Repatriation Approach B X

Expatriation Approach A X

Change to Rendering Location State for Out of State residents

Into State Approach B X

Out of State Approach A X

Materiality Approach A is:

1. The hospital is in the worst quartile of the most recently published Integrated
Efficiency policy OR

2. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent ofthe hospital's GBR OR

3 The adjustment exceeds 3 percent ofthe associated service line revenue

Materiality Approach B is
1. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent ofthe hospital's GBR OR
2. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent ofthe associated service line revenue

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Volume Scorecard

maryland

health services

cost review commission




I Scorecard Background

« The HSCRC is no longer a price regulator and thus the market no longer
allocates funding in an unimpeded fashion

+  With Global Budgets, the Commission must interpret the invisible hand of the
market through several volume policies

« To ensure that the volume policies are working well, it is incumbent on the
HSCRC to verify that the policies in aggregate are adequately covering the
costs of new volumes

«  Staff calculated an expected volume funding that would have occurred if all —l
volume change was adjusted through a volume variable or fee-for-service
methodology (“Counterfactual FFS Funding),” versus all revenue adjustments |
that actually occurred in the All-Payer and TCOC Models (“Observed =
Funding.”)

MR 07

«  Staff do not believe this scorecard should be used as a methodology, as the
Model is no longer volume based.

«  Staff do believe this scorecard is an important analytical tool that the HSCRC
can use for future evaluations, thereby improving the Commission’s selection
of what population based methodology to potentially modify.

WP maryland

k9 health services

cost review commission




I Volume Efficacy: Marketshift Funding Only

*  Updates through CY 2023 still
demonstrate that through the
Funding Relative to Volume Variable System with MS Marketshift alone very few hospitals
(CY14 - C23 at 2 50% VCF) are not funded for volume at at least

. a 50% variable cost factor
$60,000,000

e CY22-3%467M favorable
$40,000,000

e CY23-9%275M favorable
$20,000,000

*  Analysis that only uses Marketshift
“ ] |||||||III|||||||||I”“ y y .
I I11111 and/or excludes Demographic

Adjustment funding is flawed

-$20,000,000
$40,000,000 . Marketshift is not intended to
CoUEFECCPLBYLYO FE0YOTFTOSTE L EETEELTELETET 2T EELwgY s ERTELYE
5 I T 535 o =< £ < & © S & = 29 c g = z e o
;-Egg;eggﬁ.si?ggggﬁgﬁggggéggggggggggggg§§§§§§§g§£§§§ capture all volume growth by
= - - - EmES @ £ 8 S = £ — = = TOUO g
g = c 2T ol R € =T T g oD (=] EI“‘F>O‘;NW'W-—>_<DIDC =3 .
£ES22:3:2"z:232¢2 £58z£2:532e% 25122 c552zc232% 5 £ & ¢ design
C!'_;j > PS5Ec£E EszezTETES 223585522875 2 5 I 2
- 0O ¥ E=235Fv o o T - = = 35 [ o =S o — =
g 8735 &% 55 E TIE= 3 @ B g2 s £ Z
T & = O g Q = = @ a > @ . .
S 1% : Iz = z b= T 2 ° Demographic Adjustment funds
) S o o =
z S= = 2

use rate growth over and above
what is considered a “shift”

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I \/olume Efficacy: Current Scorecard

$80,000,000
$70,000,000
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000
$30,000,000
$20,000,000
$10,000,000

S0
-§10,000,000
-520,000,000

HC-Germantown
UM-Queen Anne's ED

Germantown ED

UM-PGHC
UM-Bowie ED
Western Maryland

Funding Relative to Volume Variable System with MS & Demographic Adjustment
(CY14 - CY23 ata 50% VCF)

Garrett
McCready
UM-Easton

UM-Chestertown

- o=

Meritus
UM-Dorchester

Atlantic General
UMMC Midtown

Ft. Washington

MedStar Montgomery

Peninsula
UM-Harford
MedStar St. Mary's
UM-Charle s Regiona

UM-Laurel

Union of Ceci
MedStar Harbo

Doctors
UM-St. Joe

Carroll
Northwest

Holy Cross

UMROI

MedStar Southern MD

MedStar Fr Square

Suburban

Washington Adventist

Bon Secours

Howard County
MedStar Good Sam
UM-Upper Chesapeake

Frederick

St. Agnes
JH Bayview

GBMC

Shady Grove

Mercy

MedStar Union Mem

UM-BWMC

Johns Hopkins

Anne Arundel

umMmMcC

Sinai

Staff continue to demonstrate that
most hospitals are funded at least
a 50% VCF for in-state volume
changes

« CY22-$1.10B favorable

CY23 - $958M favorable

Scorecards on next few slides will

layer in
e OQut-of-state
« PAU
*  Miscellaneous Volume
Adjustments
+  Efficiency

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I \/olume Efficacy: Current Scorecard with OOS & PAU

$80,000,000

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

$20,000,000

$0

-520,000,000

-540,000,000

HC-Germantown

Meritus

Peninsula

Western Maryland

UM-Easton

UM-PGHC

MedStar Fr Square
UM-Queen Anne's ED

Germantown ED

Funding for MS, Demographic Adjustment, 00S, & PAU
(CY14 - CY23 at a 50% VCF)

Garrett

UM-Bowie ED

Holy Cross

Doctors

MedStar Montgomery

Suburban

McCready

MedStar St. Mary's

Carroll

Union of Cecil

Atlantic General

UM-St. Joe

MNor thwe st
UMMC Midtown

$499M favorable

UM-Harford
Ft. Washington

Calvert

UM-Chestertown

Howard County
MedStar Southern MD

MedStar Harbor

JH Bayview
UM-Dorchester

UM-Charle s Regional
UM-Upper Chesapeake

Frederick

Washington Adventist

MedStar Good Sam

UMROI
St. Agnes
Anne Arundel

MedStar Union Mem

UM-Laurel

UM-BWMC

GBMC
UMMC

Shady Grove

Johns Hopkins

Mercy

Bon Secours

Sinai

Inclusion of OOS
volume adjustments
generally increases
favorable funding
. Statewide
Increase
$139M
Inclusion of PAU
generally decreases
favorable funding
. Statewide
Decrease
$597M

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I Volume Efficacy: Current Scorecard with OOS, PAU and Misc.

. Miscellaneous adjustments fall into

Funding for MS, Demographic Adjustment, Q0S, PAU, Other Volume Adjustments, & Efficiency three categories

(CY14 - CY23 at a 50% VCF) . Deregulation
SR «  Other Volume (e.g., payer
460,000,000 $652M favorable initiated ShlftS)
$40,000,000 . Efficiency
520,000,000 I I I I I I I I I I | | +  Summary findings
SO — e - - nnunn B 01N I I I I I l I I I
11t «  Population-based volume
-520,000,000 policies are having their
-$40,000,000 intended effect; there is no
bg00io0s need for modifications at
this time
-$80,000,000
TLETRESEELERO G R >T 53 LT WELTERSE S YLD ERL YL ROE0C L FUTFT Y . ’
§HEu§gtEﬁ::gggggg$£3§§§gE%E%%ggsggggggsggggﬁgaéé‘és *  Any perceived funding
FEB B E 0w s E fET s FEEGMDE>5 a0 g2 08 fEa0z2a " 30 . . . i
AR R R R AR AR RE NN E F R R AL R REL AN E AN I S misallocation is being
> g 8 S £ v I Z a S LgigmE = £ ok £ i c B
85 §57EG§8 2 3 55 $iFiif § 12 £ £5 handled through PAU,
s & w8 st = 5 VT T “ - T . B
: 23°5 g ; Y378 % g 3 Integrated Efficiency, and
] & - 2 3
= 5 : - the Full Rate Application
policies
maryland
health services

cost review commission



] Draft Recommendations

1.

2
3.
4

Establish a Deregulation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will result in negative revenue
adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.
Establish a Repatriation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will result in positive (repatriation)
and negative (expatriation) revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.
Establish an Out-of-State policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will result in positive and negative
revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.
Implement Deregulation, and Expatriation, the next available rate issuance on a one-time basis, negative Out-of-
State adjustments on a permanent basis, when the following materiality thresholds are met:

a. The hospital is in the worst quartile of the most recently published Integrated Efficiency policy OR

b. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the hospital's GBR OR

c. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the associated service line revenue

d. All Planned Deregulations should still be reported to the Commission in conformance with the GBR

agreement and adjusted accordingly.
i.  If deregulation methodology indicates a potential deregulation that varies from planned deregulation
by more than 10 percent, staff may consider revising the deregulation adjustment

Implement Repatriation at the next available rate issuance on a one-time basis, positive Out-of-State adjustments
on a permanent basis, when the following materiality thresholds are met:

a. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the hospital’'s GBR OR

b. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the associated service line revenue
Implement Deregulation, and Repatriation/Expatriation adjustments on a permanent basis one year following the
initial one-time revenue adjustment to allow for potential backfilling and/or dissipation. Hospitals can provide
additional information to contest the volume finding, but will have the burden of proof, and HSCRC staff will be
final arbiters of this decision.
Recognize the staff's approach to evaluating the over/under funding of volume in Commission’s volume policies

maryland

health services

cost review commission



Appendix

maryland

o health services

cost review commission



P

pendix 1: Deregulation Methodology Example

Example (AAMC; SPINEINJECTIONS

Step Methodology Description Algebra AND OTHER RELATED PROCEDURES) Comments
Arrayat an EAPG level the base year ECMAD countfor
1 regulated Medicare FFS semvices A 101 ECMADS Staff utilized 2018 base period
Staff utilized 2023 performance period in line
Array at an EAPG level the performance year ECMAD with volume subgroup recommend ation to not
2 countfor regulated Medicare FFS senices B 56 ECMADS use 2022 due to ongoing COVID confounding
At an EAPG level evaluate year over year ECMAD %
3 growth in Medicare FFS regulated services C=B/A-1 -A45%
At an EAPG level evaluate year over year ECMAD %
growth in Medicare FFS regulated & unregulated services
4 (similarto Step 3) D -2%
Subtractthe regulated yearover year % chan ge from the
regulated & unregulated year overyear percentage
change. Exceptions: If the hospital year over year %
change is greater than 0, value is listed as 0. Ifthe total Step ensures that general use rate decline as
yearover year % change is greater than 0, it is not opposed to movement of services down the
5 subtracted from the year over year % change E=D-C 43% continuum of care are not scored
Determine potential deregulated ECMADS for Medicare If step 5 is negative (total use rate decline is
FFS by multiplying the base year ECMAD wvolume count greater than hospital use rate decline), there is
6 bythe variance calculated under Step 5 F=AXE 43 no potential deregulation
Arraythe share of evaluated EAPG attributable to
7 Medicare FFS from base year G 38% Derived rom hospital casemix data
Determine potential deregulated ECMADS forall-payer
by dividing potential deregulated ECMADS for Medicare
8 FFS by EAPG Medicare FFSShare H=F/G 115
Requires creating EAP G marketshift analysis
from regular service line marketshift by prorating
quantifiable shifts and unrecognized ECMADS to
S Array unrecognized ECMADS from EAP G marketshift * 94 individual EAP Gs
Determine all-payer ECMADS eligible for deregulation by Ensures that deregulation does not remove
calculating the lesser of unrecognized ECMADS & more volume than actual use rate decline not
10 potential deregulated ECMADS for all-payer J=LesserofH &I 94 recognized by Market Shift methodology
Array performance year average charge per ECMAD for
relevant senvice line (base year if not available plus
11 inflation) K $14,057
Determine all-payer $ amount eligible for deregulation by
multiplying relevant senvice line average charge by all-
payer ECMADS eligible for deregulation and a 50%
12 variable costfactor L=) x K x 50% $662,276
Identify and itemize dollars associated with EAPG's
under Step 12 that have a Dominant Procedure Code Per recommendation from workgroup, staff
which cannot be performed in an Ambulatory Surgical identified and removed all EAP G caseswhere
Center {only performed for services that map to Major the dominant procedure code was listed on
Surgery, Minor Surgery, and Cardiovascular Service Addendum EE - Surgical Procedures to be
13 Lines) M 0 Excluded from Payment in ASCs
14 Determinefinal potential deregulation for Hospitals N=L-M $662,276

Does not include
Materiality Thresholds

maryland

health services

cost review commission



— Appendix 2: EAPG Marketshift Example

Actual Unrecognized ECAMDS for Frederick
Hospital, Major Surgery in Prince George's (0.953)

HOSPITALMAME Frederick X

PROD_CAT Major Surgery T

zipcode Prince Georges .T Calculated Proof

A B C=B-4 D E=C/SUM(C:C) F=CXSUM(D:D)
Sum of Sumof Unrecog Allocated Normalized
Row Labels T ecmadCY¥1922 hospshift ecmads Unrecog ecmads Share of EAPG/Unrecognized Unrecognized ECMADS

115:::DEEP LYMPH STRUCTURE PROCEDURES (0.862) (0.38) ([0.242) (0.234) 25% (0.234)
172::LEVEL N KIDMEY AND URETERAL PROCEDURES (0.94) (0.94) - - 056 .
208 LEVEL Il OTHER UTERIME AND ADMEXA GYMECOLOGICAL PROCEDURES (0.59) (0.29) (0.302) (0.292) 31% (0.292)
26G:LEVEL IENEEAND LOWER LEG PROCEDURES (0.52) (0.52) - - 0 .
28::LEVEL | SPINE PROCEDURES (0.58) (0.24)  (0.442) (0.428) 45% (0.428)
25 LEVEL IISPINE PROCEDURES (1.52) (1.52) - - 0 .
G4 LEVEL | LOWER AIRWAY ENDOSCOPY 0.33 0.33 - - 0% -

Grand Total (4.54) (3.55) (0.985) (0.953) 1004 (0.953)

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I Aprpendix 3: Repatriation Methodology Example

Repatriation Example (Cardiology, Allegany County)

Repatriation

Non-Maryland Net Proportion of Medicare Medicare Allpayer Unrecognized Repatriation Average |Expatriation)

Hospital ECMAD Change MD Net Change Change Eligible for MS Shift FFS MS FFS % MS ECHMADS (Expatriation) Charge Adjustment

I=CY 2022+
D=Minimum of G=20190r CY2023 J=MinimimofHorlif K=2023or
A=CY23ECMADS - Absolute Value 2023 Med Unrecognized Positive, Maximum if 2019 Average
Algebra>>>> CY2019ECMADS B=[A[Maryland) C=JA[Border States) forB&C E=A/[BorC) F=KXD FFS%orl H=FIG ECMADS Negative Charge L=1XKX50% |
Western Maryland 49.72 4292 -0.69 069  11584%  0.80 70% 113 3.38 113 $19,015 $10,787
Maritus 3.15 42.92 -0.69 0.69 7.34%: 0.05 100% 0.05 10.32) = £16,096 $0
Frederick 1.13 42,92 -0.69 0.69 2.63% 0.02 100% 0.02 . . $17,147 50
Calvert 06 4292 -0.69 0.69 1.40% 0.01 100% 0.01 . . $15,554 30
UMMS- UMMC -0.37 42,92 -0.69 0.69 -0.86% {0.01) 30% (0.02) . . $26,039 80
GBMC -0.47 42,92 -0.69 0.69 -1.10% 10.01) 100% (0.01) 10.08) (0.01) £17,946 -$68
JHH- Howard County -0.48 4292 -0.69 0.69 -1.12% (0.01) 100%  (0.01) - - 513,596 50
Lifebridge- Northwest 0.5 42,92 -0.69 0.69 +1.16% 10.01) 100% (0.01) . . £16,523 $0
UMMS- Charles +0.56 42,92 -0.69 0.69 -1.30% 10.01) 100% (0.01) . . $15,504 50
MedStar- Southern MD 0.76 4292 -0.69 0.69 -1.77% 10.01) 100% (0.01) {0.11) [0.01) $17,611 -$108
IHH- Bayview -0.87 4292 -0.69 0.69 -2.03% {0.01) 100%  (D.01) . - $23.417 30
Trinity - Holy Cross Germantown -1.35 4292 -0.69 0.69 -3.15% 10.02) 100%  (0.02) < = $12,419 30
Saint Agnes -1.45 4292 -0.69 069 -340%  (0.02)  100% (0.02) - - 524,802 50
MadStar- Harbor -1.51 42,92 0,69 0.69 -3.52% 10.02) 100%  (0.02) - . $18,234 50
Garratt +1.53 42.92 -0.69 0.69 -3.56% 10.02) 82% [0.03) . . £20,087 50
JHH- lahns Hopkins -1.82 4292 -0.69 0.69 -4.24% {0.03) 8% (0.33) 10.38) [0.33) $31,537 -$5.177
wv 6.16 42.92 -0.69 0.69  -892.75% {6.16) 100%  [6.16) * . . $0
PA 5.42 42.92 -0.69 069 -785.51% {5.42) 100% (5.42) - . . $0
oE 1.86 42.92 -0.69 069 -269.57% (1.86) 100%  [1.86) - . - $0
DC -3.72 42.92 -0.69 0.69 539.13% 3.72 100% 3.72 . . . 50
(] -10.41 42.92 -0.69 0.69 1508.70% 10.41 100% 10.41 * . . $a
maryland
health services

cost review commission



I Aprpendix 4: Additional Details on Volume Scorecard Background

What do you mean by expected Observed adjustments are changes in revenue recorded in hospitals’ rate file. Expected adjustments are what a
versus observed? hospital would have received at a 50% VCF if volumes were funded under a fee-for-service methodology

What are unrecognized Unrecognized ECMADS are volume that grew or declined but were not shifted in the marketshift methodology
ECMADS?

How are unrecognized dollars Unrecognized ECMADS X the base year average charge per case X 50% VCF X an inflation factor

value calculated?

Why don’t the CY 2022 Staff attempted to allocate the census catch up portion of the RY 2024 DA in the CY 2022 evaluation. Moving forward
Demographic Adjustments tie to the entire RY 2024 DA will be in the CY 2023 evaluation.
the rate file?

What revenue adjustments are Marketshift adjustments and Demographic Adjustments for the existing scorecard. The scorecard today will also layer
used in the volume scorecard? in the PAU Shared Savings Adjustments and out-of-state adjustments as well as additional miscellaneous volume
adjustments (e.g., Kaiser realignment) and adjustments related to efficiency

*  Notes about updated scorecard _
+  Expected out-of-state revenue adjustments do not have any exclusions for PAU
+  Expected PAU adjustments include unrecognized marketshift values and marketshift values
*  New PAU Shared Savings Approach is reflected in CY23 assessment

*  Marketshift values are final values

Hospital specific adjustments have been reviewed by external consultants and only exclude the following:
Capital Adjustments

+  Oncology Drug Adjustments NS 'I:“'"‘*'Lﬁ':ﬁ Fvi
p Quaternary Care Adjustments ealin services

Capital Adjustments ¥ cost review commission



— Appendix 5: Methodology Results

Deregulation

Repatriation

Out-of-State

Oncology Total with
Related Materiality Re-patli-mionlExpatri
Hospital Cardiovascular CT/MRI/PET Major Surgery Minor Surgery Services  Radiology Total Thresholds al"':;:r‘i’:ltiry Chrisln
ANNE ARUNDEL { - o Suburban
GBMC 1 $51 §635 $512 83475 $3% 033 T vy s "a‘"at"’"’Ex"at"at"’" T'“h"lds Medstar Montgomery
JOHNS HOPKINS $ $161 -§448 -$3.005 $0 -$41 655 $1 == Anne Arundel
UMMC $o1 $539 $705 $1,393 $0 $165 52,398 $2808| |Laminis- Anne Arundel $ 1105904 $ 598505 | peninsula
’ ! ! UMMS- BWMC $ 1,042,118 $ 802,351 | |Northwest
UM-5t. Joe 4735 -$60 -$842 -$618 -$110 -$516 -82,881 $2881 || S iburban s 1231427 $ o665 | [OMEDI
SINAI -$5 $186 -$870 -$821 -$479 -$454 -$2,865 $2865  [cavent s 568,005 § 626486 |UM-Chestertown
Frederick -$15 434 -§1,141 $744 $0 -$161 82,09 $69 | Trinity - Holy Cross Ger s 644512 | § 515507 | [Shock Trauma
Medstar Good Sam £ 40 $1 $1,924 $27 44 31,995 8144 UMMS. St Joe $ 136738 $ w7788 W )
Peninsula $108 $144 -$325 453 4473 $638 61,741 66 Medstar- Frankiin Square s 73856 | § 386225 "‘j‘;“z‘hz’r:f:::‘;‘:‘l‘a'e
MERTUS 33 40 -856 81,628 $0 %0 -81,720 94, |JHH- Johns Hopkins $ (512,259) $ 329,728 | |Medstar Harbor
UM-BWMC $0 -$64 -$507 -$850 -$196 -$46 51,664 15 Adventist-Ft i $ 319769 $ 303,468 | |Grace Medical Center
Doctors $166 41 -$459 -$456 $178 -$206 -§1,467 67 |MedStar- Union Mem $ 732,156 $ 264,371 |UM-Harford
Western Maryland 4235 $253 4397 $313 433 $82 -$1,312 49 Mercy $ 334,19 $ 188,509 | (Garrett
ATLANTIC GENERAL 0 -$56 -$58 -$445 -$307 $421 -$1,288 -$274.  |MedStar- Montgomery $ 353702 $ 181,618 ‘;Z‘(‘::Mc
HOLYCROSS -$51 4195 -$35 $713 $0 $172 -$1,165 -$123  |UMMS- Midtown $ 353,997 $ 172,878 Holy Cross
NORTHWEST $1 -$30 -$52 -$146 -$466 -$448 -$1,141 $1,141 | Lifebridge- Levindale $ (193,342) $ 136451 | | medstar Union Memorial
Ascension Saint Agnes Hospital -$301 $0 -$278 -$227 -$232 77 -$1,115 -$2|  JHH-Bayview $ 137,054 $ 120,394 | st Agnes
SHADY GROVE ) $89% 422 $1 30 467 41,054 -§703 | UMMS- Charles $ 13347 $ 88,720 | |UM-Upper Chesapeake
CALVERT -$5% $0 $121 -$155 30 -$614 -$946 -§297  GBMC $ (1,244,030) $ 83,205 Zhaﬂvuﬁmve
UM-Charles Regional -$5 $23 $73 -$663 $15 419 -$668 §41 |SaintAgnes $ 800,568 _$ 69830 [ o0
IH Bayview $120 ~$80 $104 $523 $0 37 $864 64| | Meritus $ 154136 $ 54297 | \1edstar Good Sam
MERCY 49 $93 -$62 $197 $0 $4n -$653 0| |UMMS UMROI $ 20301 $ 44379 | lym-Laurel FMF
CARROLL 821 43 4358 8102 0 42 4806 3806 Tidal- Peninsula $ (655,204) $ 11,828 UM-St. Joe
UMHMC MIDTOWN 3 $62 360 5393 4 am 778 sy MedSiar: St Mary's . Cee oy . a0 [come
UM-Upper Chesapeake $125 $218 4212 155 30 441 4751 -$331 U'M;S gapieél‘["egm g G ebie) | Merey
MedStar Union Mem $246 46 -$22 -$35 $0 -$4% 5745 $34 JHH- Howard County $ (193911) $ (32’792' JH Bayview
MedStar St. Mary's -$38 0 $177 -$203 -$160 -$161 -$738 45 MedStar- Good Sam $ (109208) § (65'036) Adventist White Oak
MedStar Fr Square 40 0 -$56 $115 -$459 -% 635 $0 | ptantic General 3 (13&’889' 3 (55Y273; Western Maryland
B 'UM-Capital Region
Adventist White Oak 45 $270 -821 $47 $0 -$249 -$591 -$608 | MM Upper Chesapeake $ (1114711 $ (70,759)  |ummcC
UM-Easton -6 $41 -$129 432 $0 $340 -$549 8549 |MedStar- Harbor $ (202,183) $ (76,998)  Johns Hopkins
SUBURBAN -$13 -$18 4115 $173 do -$116 -$435 $17 UMMS- Chestertown $ (8L513) $ (81,513)
UM-Harford El 467 -$189 454 30 $116 4425 47 |Lifebridge- Grace $ (244.216) $ (106,489) 1ot
ChristianaCare, Union $ -$83 $124 -$15 45 -$178 -§405 -$405  Garrett $ (333959) $ (107,563)
MedStar Harbor -§35 -$16 -$270 $11 $0 -$69 -$402 33| |Lifebridge- Northwest $ (206,732) $ (206,732)
Garrett § 0 -$13 $280 0 4% -$337 -$1/  Trinity - Holy Cross $ (2.943,102) $ (218,897)
UM-Capital Region Medical Center -$86 -$5 -$19 -$5 0 -$1% -$310 -$310| | Frederick $ (573,660) $ (298,516)
HOWARD COUNTY $13 42 77 $126 0 4 -$246 $0  |UMMS- Easton $ (404,124) $ (404,124)
Grace Medical center $0 $128 $0 $0 0 -$108 -$237 -$323 | Adventist- White Oak $ (225,528) $ (468,169)
MedStar Southern MD -$105 -$11 $0 410 $0 47 $197 $4  |ChristianaCare, Union $ (480,977) $ (480,977)
HC-GERMANTOWN -$5 -$19 -$85 -$28 $1 -§1 -$138 -§1)  Lifebridge- Carroll $ (762,716) $ (762,716)
UM-Chestertown $0 $0 $0 -$130 $0 -85 $136 -§136|  Luminis- Doctors $ (927,158) $ (915,759)
MedStar Montgomery 4 $53 -$29 -$2 40 $37 $129 -$106) |UMMS- Harford $ [1,323,453) $ (992,333)
FT. WASHINGTON %0 $0 $28 $10 $0 459 496 §17  Western Maryland $ (3,144,793) $ (1,320,072)
Meereacy % 0 50 i 0 % i g0 |Lfebridge- Sinai $ (1,723,501) $ (1,723,501)
Adventist- Shady Grove $ (4,546,224) $ (3,058,101) .
Total $2897  $3874  $13750  $1B985 7321 $7701  $54509 $18005) [UMMS UMMC $ 13,608,282)  § 13,608.282)
Grand Total $ (15,682,898) $ (5,395,11:

00S Revenue Increase @ 50%
$2,642,943
$2,436,391
$1,352,522
$1,204,766

$474,859
$343,157
-$355,415
-$422,391
-$433,419
-$456,469
-$488,951
-$510,257
-$522,913
-$562,990
-$597,587
-$606,328
$722,384
-$882,268
-$923,236
-$1,237,563
-§1,402,526
-$1,488,932
-$1,612,735
-$1,900,581
-$2,496,323
-$2,629,575
-$3,226,947
-$3,278,295
-$3,614,904
-$3,644,367
-$5,406,642
-$6,222,775
-$6,669,239
-$8,226,074
510,162,905
-$12,358,036
-$65,682,740

-$139,761,961

maryland

health services

cost review commission

Integrated Efficiency
$934,768

-$355,415
-$422,391

-$1,900,591
-$2,496,323
S0
-$2,345,398
-$3,278,295
$0

$0

$0
-$6,222,775
$0

-$616,389
-$10,162,905
-$12,358,036
-$567,814

-$39,699,940,



maryland

health services

cost review commission

Draft Recommendation for Deregulation, Repatriation,
and Out-of-State Volume Policies

October 9, 2024

This document contains staff draft recommendations for Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-
of-State Volume Policies. Comments are due by COB Wednesday Oct 30, 2024and may be
submitted to allani.pack@maryland.gov

P: 410.764.2605 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 hscrc.maryland.gov


mailto:allani.pack@maryland.gov

RECOMMENAATIONS ..ttt sttt et b e bt e s bt st et et et e e sbeesbeesanesane e 2
INEFOTUCTION .ttt s e e st e st e e bt e e s bt e e ae e e s abeesaneeesabeesabeeeanteesnenesaneenns 3
Background & MethodoIOgY OVEIVIEW...........uiiiiiiii ettt e e et e e e e e e e e sbrrae e e e e e e esnnsraaaeeaanas 6
Workgroup Engagement & Impetus for New PoliCies ........coeevuiiie i 6
D LTt = (U] P o o [P SSR 7
REPAtHAtiON/EXPALIIAtION .veiivieieeie ettt ettt et eete e ettt e et eeeareeeteseeateesbeeeteeeeateeenneeeenreeens 9
TaaY o] (=T 0 V=Y o =1 4 o o IS TSR 12
Accuracy of Volume Evaluation and Potential for Temporal Volume Change ..........ccccccvvvvveeeeeeenens 12
RESUIES .ttt et e s bt s ae e st s bt e bt e bt e e bt e e bt et et e e bt e s bt e she e saneeabe e bt e re e neennees 15
[DL=T gt ={ U] P o o [ RS SR 15
LEY=T o T= 4 = [0 o PPt 16
Y=T 0 g T 1T 1T T 0 13 = L T o PPt 17
OUE-OT-STATE ..ttt bttt st et e bt e b e s bt e s me e et e et e et e e sbeesheesanesareeane 17
Appendix 1. Key Methodology Concepts and Definitions .........cccceeecvieeeiciiee e 23
Appendix 2. EAPG Market Shift EXamPIe......coociiiiieiiie ettt e e e e e saree e e e 24
Appendix 3. 50 Percent Variable Cost FACtor ANAlYSES .....cceeeeccuiiiiiieee et e e e e e e e e 25

Staff recommend the following:

1. Establish a Deregulation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will
result in negative revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.

2. Establish a Repatriation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will result
in positive (repatriation) and negative (expatriation) revenue adjustments to hospitals’
global budgets. The terms, “repatriation” and “expatriation,” refer to volumes related to
Maryland residents moving into and out of state and are described in full below.

3. Establish an Out-of-State policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will
result in positive and negative revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.

4. Implement Deregulation and Expatriation adjustments at the next available rate
issuance on a one-time basis and negative Out-of-State adjustments on a permanent
basis, when the following materiality thresholds are met:

a. The hospital is in the worst quartile of the most recently published Integrated
Efficiency policy OR
b. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the hospital’s GBR OR



c. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the associated service line revenue
d. All Planned Deregulations should still be reported to the Commission in
conformance with the GBR agreement and adjusted accordingly.

i. If deregulation methodology indicates a potential deregulation that
varies from planned deregulation by more than 10 percent, staff may
consider revising the deregulation adjustment

5. Implement Repatriation at the next available rate issuance on a one-time basis, positive
Out-of-State adjustments on a permanent basis, when the following materiality
thresholds are met:

a. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the hospital’s GBR OR
b. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the associated service line revenue

6. Implement Deregulation, and Repatriation/Expatriation adjustments on a permanent
basis one year following the initial revenue adjustment to allow for potential backfilling
and/or dissipation. Hospitals can provide additional information to contest the volume
finding but will have the burden of proof and HSCRC staff will be the final arbiters of this
decision.

7. Recognize the staff’s approach to evaluating the over/under funding of volume in
Commission’s volume policies

The State of Maryland has led an effort to transform its health care delivery system to a
population-based system that increases the emphasis on patient-centered care, improves
population health, and lowers health care costs. To achieve these goals, the State of Maryland
worked closely with hospitals, payers, other providers, consumers and the Centers for Medicare
& Medicaid Services to develop the Maryland All-Payer Model, which was implemented in
2014, and later the Total Cost of Care Model, which was implemented in 2019. The Models
moved away from a volume-based payment system that limited the growth in inpatient charge-
per-case to a system that limits the growth in total hospital spending per capita and
increasingly focused on outcomes: readmissions, in-hospital complications, potentially
avoidable utilization, total cost of care, and patient satisfaction, among others.

Fundamental to the Models was the Global Budget Revenue (GBR) methodology, which was
piloted by ten rural hospitals in 2010 and aimed to provide stability to hospitals by establishing
annual prospective budgets and allowing for charges to fluctuate in line with reasonable
changes in volume.! However, while hospital budgets were fixed during a given fiscal year,
thereby incentivizing hospitals not to grow volumes unnecessarily and providing a high level of
predictability, the Commission had to develop strategies to modify budgets in future years
based on changes in population, the aging of the population, changes in market selection, and

1 The HSCRC allows hospitals to adjust charges for individual rate centers (e.g., room and board) to fluctuate within
a 5 percent corridor. HSCRC reviews hospital requests to adjust prices beyond a 5 percent corridor.



new health care innovation cost drivers, the latter of which has been directly addressed by the
Commission’s two stand-alone volume methodologies, the CDS-A and Complexity and
Innovation policies.

To achieve the twin goals of funding population related utilization changes and realigning
budgets for market shifts, the HSCRC developed two core volume funding methodologies: the
Demographic Adjustment and Market Shift Adjustment. The Demographic Adjustment
methodology provides funding for age-adjusted growth/decline at the zip code or county level
in order to anticipate changes in utilization based on demographic changes.?

The HSCRC staff also developed a Market Shift Adjustment methodology that evaluates
hospitals’ growth/decline for each defined service line and geography to determine the degree
to which patients moved from one hospital to another in the most recent calendar year in
comparison to the prior year. The Market Shift moves money in the following year at a 50
percent variable cost factor® when volumes are moved up at one hospital and down at another
in the same service line and geography.

Taken together, the Demographic Adjustment and Market Shift policies ensure a competitive
hospital market where money follows the patient but only such that statewide volume on net
does not grow for anything other than population growth and various forms of healthcare
innovation. Both of these methodologies resulted in adequate volume funding statewide while
maintaining the Models’ status as population-based but have not addressed less common shifts
in market share that occur due to deregulation, repatriation/expatriation (for Maryland
residents), and changes in out-of-state service delivery. See Table 1 below for an overview of
Commission policies that are either currently approved or seeking approval by way of this
recommendation; additionally, please note that staff has categorized policies as either “Stand
Alone,” meaning they do not require additional policies to account for volume change or not
Stand Alone because they work in concert with other volume policies to appropriately address
volume change

2 The Demographic Adjustment is capped by Maryland Department of Planning estimates of statewide population
growth to align with the per capita nature of the Model tests, i.e., the contractual tests are not age-adjusted.

3 A 50 percent variable cost factor is the industry standard for determining the percent of charges necessary to
cover all marginal or variable costs associated with providing one additional service and is the standard by which
the Commission will evaluate its volume methodologies.



Table 1: Volume Policy Overview

Approved Stand Purpose
Volume Policy Alone
Adjustment
Demographic X Annual age adjusted population funding for in-
Adjustment state use rate growth
Marketshift X Semi-annual adjustments for regulated market

shifts (zero sum)

Out-of-State X Annual adjustments for material changes to out-
of-state volumes

Deregulation As needed reductions for observed shifts to
unregulated settings

Repatriation As needed adjustments for cross state border
hospital shifts

Complexity and X X Prospective funding to Academic Medical

Innovation Centers for growth in unique quaternary services

CDS-A X X Funding for changes in volume for select

drugs (only volume variable methodology)

While the Commission does not currently have policies that outline the methodologies for
Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-of-State volume changes, staff have made, over the course
of the All-Payer and Total Cost of Care Models, adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets for
these changes in volume, in keeping with language in hospital’s global budget contracts.

The purpose of this recommendation is to officially establish methodologies for making these
volume adjustments, thereby reducing any potential arbitrary and capricious treatment that
might result from not having methodologies first vetted by external stakeholders and then
reviewed and approved by HSCRC Commissioners. Additionally, this recommendation will lay
out for the first time a complete accounting of all volume adjustments that have occurred over
the course of the All-Payer and Total Cost of Care Models, otherwise known as the “Volume
Scorecard,” and in so doing allow future policy makers to assess the need for potential revisions
to Commission volume policies.



Background & Methodology Overview

Workgroup Engagement & Impetus for New Policies

Over the past year, staff have worked on developing new volume methodologies, which
included extensive data validation, modeling, four stakeholder engagement meetings, and
additional analyses in response to stakeholder feedback.* See Table 2 below for an overview of
the Volume Workgroup Work Plan.

Table 2: Volume Workgroup Work Plan

Staff Prep Work

First Workgroup Meeting (March 18)

Second Workgroup Meeting (April 25)

Additional Staff Work

Third Workgroup Meeting (September 6)

0OOS Tool, Deregulation Tool

0O0S Methodoelogy, Current Volume Scorecard

Deregulation Methodology, EAPG Marketshift
CY 23 Deregulation & Repatriation Analysis

Final Release of OOS, Deregulation and Scorecard | Industry Input

Report to Payment Model Workgroup

Draft Recommendation (October 9)

Final Recommendation (December 11)

6/23 8/22  10/21  12/20

Start Date

2/18 4/18
Duration

6/17 816 10115 1214 212

This is first time staff have significantly reviewed volume policies since 2019 when it
consolidated the geographies and service lines in the Market Shift, thereby reducing Market
Shift cells (e.g., Cardiology services in Allegany County) from approximately 20,000 to 5,000,
and markets with less than 10 discharges (an indicator of a potentially unstable cell size) from
approximately 7,000 to 1,000. Staff additionally created new volume policies unique to the
COVID -19 pandemic in 2020° that have since been suspended, as well as an update to the
Demographic Adjustment policy in 2023 to account for the misestimate of population growth
identified in the 2020 census.

Staff proposed and Commissioners agreed that in 2024 the Commission should revisit its
volume policies to codify adjustments that were being made at the request of hospitals and

4 Over the course of Volume Workgroup engagement, staff performed requested analyses related to the
appropriateness of Commission approved variable cost factors as well as reviews of overlap with Ambulatory
Surgical Center fee schedules.

5 https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/April%2030%202020%20Public%20Meeting%20Materials.pdf (Pages 6 -
15)

8https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/Strong%20als%20Folder/AUUR%20-
%20Unit%20Rates%20and%20GBR/FY%202024/RY24%20Amended%20Final%20UF%20Recommendation%200614
2023%20%20with%20comment%20letters%20(1).pdf (Page 11)



https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/April%2030%202020%20Public%20Meeting%20Materials.pdf
https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/Strong%20als%20Folder/AUUR%20-%20Unit%20Rates%20and%20GBR/FY%202024/RY24%20Amended%20Final%20UF%20Recommendation%2006142023%20%20with%20comment%20letters%20(1).pdf
https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/Strong%20als%20Folder/AUUR%20-%20Unit%20Rates%20and%20GBR/FY%202024/RY24%20Amended%20Final%20UF%20Recommendation%2006142023%20%20with%20comment%20letters%20(1).pdf
https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/Strong%20als%20Folder/AUUR%20-%20Unit%20Rates%20and%20GBR/FY%202024/RY24%20Amended%20Final%20UF%20Recommendation%2006142023%20%20with%20comment%20letters%20(1).pdf

payers. Hospitals often requested revenue enhancements due to growth in out-of-state and
repatriated volumes, and payers often requested that hospitals should have revenue write-
downs for volume that shifted down the continuum of care from acute care settings to
unregulated sub-acute settings, e.g., ambulatory surgical centers. In effect, both sets of
stakeholders were requesting that the Commission reduce the extent of use rate growth (or
decline) that was not recognized in the Market Shift methodology, otherwise known as
Unrecognized Equivalent Casemix Adjusted Discharges (ECMADS). See Table 3 below that
outlines how Unrecognized ECMADS are classified in the absence of Deregulation and
Repatriation policies, and how they can be reclassified if these volumes policies are
established, thereby reducing retained revenue and extending the utility of Demographic
Adjustment funding:

Table 3: New Volume Policies Overview Example

Hospital A - Growth Hospital Hospital B - Declining Hospital
ECMADs Algebra2 Item2

Base Period ) Base Period ) [

Performance Period 10B Performance Period 3

Change 4 C=B-A Change -7

Revenue

(D ‘Marketshift ) 2D Marketshift 2|
[E=C-D___Unrecognized . 2E=CD  Unrecognized -5
Handled by
D:;"’“'E ",'“f Hospital A - Growth Hospital Hospital B - Declining Hospital
A BasePeriod 6A BasePeriod 10
B Performance Period 108 Performance Period 3| Out-of-State
K C=B-A Change 4 C=B-A Change 74| Volumes are
Policies / p Marketshift 2D Marketshift 7 handled in a
E=CD Unrecognized 2 E=C-D Unrecognized -5 stand alone
| methodology
F Repatriation 1F Expatriation =1
G=E-F Unrecognized 16 Deregulation =il
H=E-F-G  Unrecognized -3

Deregulation

Deregulation is the movement of a hospital service from an HSCRC regulated space to an
unregulated space (most often outpatient services but also chronic and rehab). A service is
presumed to be regulated if it is provided on the campus of a hospital. Criteria outlined in
COMAR are considered for determination of whether a service is considered regulated or
unregulated.

Deregulation can be initiated by three principal actors: 1) payers/patients, 2) the hospital itself,
and 3) physician practices. Examples of deregulation include:

1. Payer Initiative Example: A payer makes the decision to no longer reimburse for certain
procedures or therapies to be administered in a regulated hospital setting and move



them to an Ambulatory Surgery Center. Examples of this type of shift include
immunoglobulin therapies and endoscopies.

Hospital Example: The hospital makes the decision to shift radiation therapy services to
an unregulated setting. Perhaps the most straightforward example because the hospital
makes the decision to move services.

Physician Practices Example: A community physician makes the decision to no longer
perform hand surgeries at the hospital. In this instance, the physicians made the
decision outside of the hospital's control. A deregulation adjustment still needs to occur
because the service is no longer being provided at the hospital.

Deregulation is similar to the Commission’s Market Shift policy in that there is a shift in services
from one facility to another; however, because the unregulated facility that is experiencing use
rate growth is outside of the HSCRC regulatory scope (and thus data availability is limited), it is
difficult to quantify precisely the extent of a deregulation. The evaluation of deregulation is
further complicated by the different service offerings that occur between regulated and
unregulated facilities as well as the incompleteness of data, as the Commission only reliably has
access to Medicare total cost of care claims data and yet all-payers are susceptible to
deregulation. For these reasons, staff have created a methodology that:

1.
2.

Utilizes Medicare data to determine shifts across all settings of care

Utilizes 3M’s Enhanced Ambulatory Patient Groups (EAPGs) for outpatient services, in
lieu of 3M’s aggregated service lines to better identify at a more granular level potential
deregulation (e.g., pacemaker replacement and/or echocardiography versus
“Cardiovascular” service line)

Incorporates total trend in EAPGs to remove use rate decline across all settings, which is
not indicative of deregulation

Extrapolates to all-payer using hospital casemix data

Cross references against the Market Shift methodology to ensure there are effectively
no duplicative volume adjustments.

Removes from consideration all EAPG cases that have a dominant procedure code that
maps to CMS Addendum EE -- Surgical Procedures to be Excluded from Payment in
Ambulatory Surgical Centers’ (only applicable to the following service lines: Major
Surgery, Minor Surgery, and Cardiovascular)

Greater details of the proposed methodology are summarized below:

"https://www.cms.gov/medicare/payment/prospective-payment-systems/ambulatory-surgical-center-asc/asc-

payment-rates-addenda



https://www.cms.gov/medicare/payment/prospective-payment-systems/ambulatory-surgical-center-asc/asc-payment-rates-addenda
https://www.cms.gov/medicare/payment/prospective-payment-systems/ambulatory-surgical-center-asc/asc-payment-rates-addenda

Table 4: Actual Example and Methodology Description of Deregulation

Example (AAMC; SPINE INJECTIONS

Step Methodo logy Description Algebra AND OTHER RELATED PROCEDURES) Comments

Array at an EAP G level the base year ECMAD countfor

1 regulated Medicare FFS services A 101 ECMADS Staff utilized 2019 base period

Staff utilized 2023 performance period in line

Array at an EAP G level the performance year ECMAD with volume subgroup recommendation to not

2 countfor regulated Medicare FFS senices B 56 ECMADS use 2022 due to ongoing COVID confounding
At an EAPG level evaluate year over year ECMAD %

3 growth in Medicare FFS regulated services C=B/A-1 -45%

At an EAPG level evaluate year over year ECMAD %
growth in Medicare FFS regulated & unregulated services
4 [similarto Step 3) D -2%
Subtractthe regulated year over year % chan ge from the
regulated & unregulated year overyear percentage
change. Exceptions: If the hospital year over year %

change is greater than 0, value is listed as 0. Ifthe total Step ensures that general use rate decline as
yearover year % change isgreater than 0, it is not opposed to movement of services down the
5 subtracted from the yearover year % change E=D-C 43% continuum of care are not scored
Determine potential deregulated ECMADS for Medicare If step 5 is negative (total use rate decline is
FFS by multiplying the base year ECMAD volume count greater than hospital use rate decline), thereis
6 bythe variance calculated under Step 5 F=AxE 43 no potential deregulation
Array the share of evaluated EAPG attributable to
7 Medicare FFS from base year G 38% Derived from hospital casemix data

Determine potential deregulated ECMADS for all-payer
by dividing potential deregulated ECMADS for Medicare

8 FFS by EAPG Medicare FFS Share H=F/G 115
Requires creating EAP G marketshift analysis
from regular service line marketshift by prorating
guantifiable shiftsand unrecognized ECMADS to
G Array unrecognized ECMADS from EAP G marketshift* 54 individual EAP Gs
Determine all-payer ECMADS eligible for deregulation by Ensures that deregulation does not remove
calculating the lesser of unrecognized ECMADS & more volume than actual use rate decline not
10 potential deregulated ECMADS for all-payer J=LesserofH &I 54 recognized by Market Shift meth odology

Array performance year average charge per ECMAD for
relevant senice line (base year if notavailable plus
11 inflation) K $14,057
Determine all-payer $ amount eligible for deregulation by
multiplying relevant senice line average charge by all-
payer ECMADS eligible for deregulation and a 50%

12 variable costfactor L=) x K % 50% $662,276
Identify and itemize dollars associated with EAPG's
under Step 12 that have a Dominant Procedure Code Per recommendation fromworkgroup, staff
which cannot be performed in an Ambulatory Surgical identified and removed all EAP G caseswhere
Center (only performed for services that map to Major the dominant procedure code was listed on
Surgery, Minor Surgery, and Cardiovascular Service Addendum EE -- Surgical Procedures to be
13 Lines) M 0 Excluded from Payment in ASCs
14 Determine final potential deregulation for Hospitals N=L-M $662,276

*EAPG Market Shift example can be found in Appendix 2

Repatriation/Expatriation

Repatriation is the cross-border movement of Maryland residents from out-of-state hospital
facilities back to Maryland regulated facilities. Unlike deregulation, the assessment is localized
to Maryland residents and does not account for any movement across the continuum of care; it
only assesses patient movement from one acute care facility to another and in this case when
that transpires across state lines. It is important to note that repatriation potentially improves
access, patient satisfaction and clinical outcomes, because Marylanders do not have to travel
out-of-state for care. Additionally, repatriation improves TCOC Model savings because funding
is reduced at a 100 percent variable cost factor outside of the state, and in Maryland it is
increased at a 50 percent variable cost factor, the imbalance of which may increase further if
materiality thresholds that will be discussed below are included in the methodology. In effect,



10

the Commission should consider how to more directly incentivize repatriation, as it does
represent “good volumes.”

Expatriation, on the other hand, is cross border movement of Maryland residents from
Maryland regulated hospital facilities to out-of-state hospital facilities. When expatriation
occurs, there are TCOC Model dissavings, because funding is increased at a 100 percent variable
cost factor outside of the state, and in Maryland it is decreased at a 50 percent variable cost
factor. However, it should be noted that there are several mechanisms currently in place to
mitigate potential expatriation, including GBR corridors that limit hospital delegated pricing
authority to 5 percent, the Medicare Performance Adjustment (MPA) that assesses Medicare
TCOC performance that penalizes hospitals for volume loss to border states (among other
things), the Integrated Efficiency Policy that scales inflation for hospitals deemed relatively
inefficient (potentially due to expatriation), and the TCOC Model savings targets that ensure
that any significant dissavings from activities like expatriation are accounted for in the annual
Update Factor policy.

Repatriation, like deregulation, is similar to the Commission’s Market Shift policy in that there is
a shift in services from one facility to another; however, again it is difficult to precisely quantify
the extent of the shift because non-Maryland facilities are not subject to HSCRC regulations and
as such the data is incomplete. Additionally, staff were concerned that: a) assessments of
volume change among hospitals not located in contiguous states (or Districts) would be
indicative of random variation versus genuine, permanent changes in market selection; and b)
the current Market Shift methodology that evaluates all facilities separately would be
confounded by market shifts that are occurring within border states versus shifts that are
occurring across state lines. For those reasons, staff have created a methodology that:

1. Utilizes Medicare data to determine shifts across state lines by determining the
aggregate change for Maryland and non-Maryland facilities in a given geographic area
and service line

2. Utilizes 3M’s inpatient and outpatient service lines because both settings are susceptible
to repatriation, and there is no need for more granular analysis since acute care facilities
(in-state and out-of-state) have similar service offerings.

3. Extrapolates to all-payer using hospital casemix data

4. Cross references against the Market Shift methodology to ensure there are effectively
no duplicative volume adjustments.

Greater details on the proposed methodology are outlined below in an actual example:



11

Table 5: Repatriation Example (Cardiology, Allegany County)

Repatriation

Men-Maryland Net Proportion of Medicare Medicare Allpayer Unrecognized Repatriation Average (Expatriation)
Hospital ECMAD Change  MD Net Change Change Eligible for MS Shift FFSMS FFS % M5 ECMADS (Expatriation) Charge Adjustment
I=CY 2022+
D=Minimum of G=20190r CY2023 J=MinimimofHorlif K=2023o0r
A=CY23ECMADS - Absolute Value 2023Med Unrecognized Positive, Maximum if 2019 Average
Algebraz>>= CY2018ECMADS B=fA[Maryland) C=}A(BorderStates) forB&C  E=A/(BorC) F=KXD FFS5%orl H=F/G ECMADS Negative Charge L=I X KX 50%
Western Maryland 4872 42,82 -0.69 0.62 115.84% 0.80 0% 113 3.38 113 $18,015 $10,787
Meritus 3.15 4262 -0.69 0,69 7.34% 0.05 100% 0.058 0.32) = 516,006 $0
Frederick 1.13 4282 -0.69 0.69 2.63% 0.02 100% 0.02 . - $17.147 $0
Calvert 06 4282 069 0.69 1.40% 0.01 100% 0.01 = = $15,554 $0
UMMS- UMMC -0.37 4282 -0.69 0.69 -0.86% (0.01) a0%  [0.02) - - $26,039 $0
GBME 0.47 42.92 -0.69 0.69 1105  (0.01) 100%  (0.01) (0.08) (0.01) $17,948 68
JHH- Howard County -0.48 42.92 -0.69 0.6% -1.12% 10.01) 100%  [0.01) - - $13,586 $0
Lifebridge- Northwest 0.5 4292 -0.69 0.69 -1.16% (0.01) 100% (0.01) . - $16,523 $0
UMMS- Charles -0.56 42,82 -0.69 0.69 -1.30% (0.01) 100% [0.01) - - $15,504 $0
MedStar- Southern MD -0.7¢ 42,82 -0.69 0.69 -1.77% (0.01) 100%  (0.01) 10.11) [0.01) $17,611 -$108
JHH- Bayview -0.87 42,92 -0.69 0.69 -2.03% 10.01) 100%  [0.01) - - £23,417 $0
[Trinity - Holy Cross Germantown -1.38 42,82 -0.69 0.69 -3.15% 10.02) 100%  [0.02) - - £12,418 $0
Saint Agnes -1.48 42,82 -0.69 0.69 -3.40% 10.02) 100%  [0.02) - - $24,802 $0
MedStar- Harbor -1.51 4292 -0.69 0.69 -3.52% 10.02) 100% (0.02) - - $18,234 0
Garrett -1.53 42,92 -0.69 0.69 -3.56% (0.02) a2%  (0.03) - - $20,097 $0
JHH- Johns Hopkins -1.82 42,82 -0.69 0.69 -4.24% 10.03) 9%  [0.33) 10.38) [0.33) $31,537 -$5,177
wv 6.16 42.92 -0.69 0.68  -892.75% (6.18) 100%  [6.18) - - - $0
PA 5.42 42.92 -0.69 069 -785.51% (5.42) 100%  (5.42) - - - 30
oE 1.86 42.92 -0.69 068 -269.57% (1.86) 100%  [1.86) - - - $0
oc -8.72 42.92 -0.69 0.69 539.13% a.72 100% a.72 = = = $0
VA -10.41 42.92 -0.69 0.68  1508.70% 10.41 100% 1041 - - - 30

Out-of-State

Out-of-state evaluations of volume are specific to patients that live outside of the state of
Maryland, which is different from repatriation and expatriation volume assessments that are
specific to Maryland residents. Per the GBR contract, the Commission can adjust a hospital’s
GBR “If this percentage [out-of-state volume] changes materially during the term of this
Agreement...” - Section X, Global Budget Revenue Agreement.® To date, staff have adjudicated
a few out-of-state adjustments because: a) the volume change was material; and b) the volume
change represented a material share of the hospital’s global budget. Due to the increasing
frequency of hospital requests to adjust for out-of-state volumes, staff believe it is necessary to
establish a formal policy.

Unlike typical volume methodologies, staff elected to use reported experience data in lieu of
ECMADS, e.g., patient days versus weighted APR-DRGs, when previously adjudicating out-of-
state volume adjustments because these evaluations were longitudinal assessments with base®
and performance years under:

e Different Groupers
e Different Casemix Weighting Methodologies
e Different Diagnosis and Procedure Code Versions (e.g., ICD-9 to ICD-10)°

8 Hospital GBR Agreement, section X, page 13

9 Most hospitals have a base year of 2014 because that is when global budgets were established. A few hospitals
have a more advanced base year because they were effectively rebased through a direct out-of-state adjustment
or indirectly through a full rate application policy.

10 The transition from ICD-9 to ICD-10 codes for diagnoses and inpatient procedures in the United States occurred
on October 1, 2015. https://www.cms.gov/medicare/coding-billing/icd-10-
codes#:~:text=Pages%20in%20this%20section&text=What's%20New?,wh0%20bill%20Medicare%200r%20Medicai
d.



https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/global-budgets/Global-Budget-Revenue-Agreement-AAMC.pdf
https://www.cms.gov/medicare/coding-billing/icd-10-codes#:%7E:text=Pages%20in%20this%20section&text=What's%20New?,who%20bill%20Medicare%20or%20Medicaid
https://www.cms.gov/medicare/coding-billing/icd-10-codes#:%7E:text=Pages%20in%20this%20section&text=What's%20New?,who%20bill%20Medicare%20or%20Medicaid
https://www.cms.gov/medicare/coding-billing/icd-10-codes#:%7E:text=Pages%20in%20this%20section&text=What's%20New?,who%20bill%20Medicare%20or%20Medicaid

12

With the exception of utilizing experience data, the out-of-state methodology is pretty straight
forward, as it is a volume variable methodology!! that is only implemented when there is a
material change.'? The specifics of the methodology are as follows:

1. Out-of-state Revenue Increase = Current Hospital Rate X (Performance Year Volume -
Base Year Volume) X 50 percent Variable Cost Factor

2. Excluded from this analysis are drug and supply rate centers because of the unreliable
unit of cost and because a significant portion of drug costs are covered by the
Commission’s stand-alone CDS-A policy

3. Conversion factors are accounted for in volume assessment, e.g., clinic RVU conversion

During the volume workgroup engagement, stakeholders understood the need for utilizing
experience data, especially over the course of the ICD-9 to ICD-10 conversion but were
nevertheless concerned about the permanent departure from using ECMADS in a volume
assessment because: a) growth in out-of-state drugs and supplies would not be accounted for;
and b) multiple volume statistics would over complicate the volume ecosystem. Staff
concurred and furthermore agreed to the workgroup’s suggestion to lock in out-of-state
assessments from Rate Year 2014 to Rate Year 2023 using experience data, and then to
advance to ECMAD assessments for Rate Year 2023 to future fiscal years. Moving forward, this
will require a compounding calculation on the part of HSCRC staff between the two volume
statistic periods but will ensure that no future volume adjustments will be made without
utilizing ECMADS, the industry standard for assessing acuity adjusted volumes.

In this section, staff explains implementation considerations that were discussed by the Volume
Workgroup and reported out to the Payment Model Workgroup. In addition to the volume
methodologies outlined in this recommendation, staff request that the comment letters also
opine on the proposed implementation processes.

Accuracy of Volume Evaluation and Potential for Temporal Volume Change

Three principal concerns were raised by the Volume Workgroup. First, workgroup members
raised the issue of methodology accuracy, given the reliance on Medicare total cost of care data
and the small and potentially temporal nature of the associated volume changes. Second,
members noted that not all hospitals have the same efficiency and retained revenue levels, and
thus there should be some consideration of varying cost structures and profitability when
implementing adjustments. Third, members noted that in certain cases the reduction of
services through deregulation, expatriation, and/or out-of-state movement may not be driven
by a hospital and/or may happen rather suddenly, e.g, a physician practice elects to quickly

11 The Total Cost of Care contract requires that 95 percent of all in-state revenue be under a population-based
methodology. Out-of-state volume is not subject to this requirement, which is why it can be evaluated through a
volume variable methodology.

12 Materiality will be discussed in the following Implementation section.



13

sever affiliation with a hospital and moves its referrals elsewhere. In this case the hospital may
still like to replace the departing practice with a new physician group over the course of the
next year which would make any adjustment temporary. This last point is particularly salient
for deregulation, as Commission staff noted in the workgroup engagement that it would not
advance a policy incentive to Commissioners that reverses deregulation and rewards
movement up the continuum of care, given the goals of the TCOC Model.

For these reasons, staff proffered the following implementation approaches:

1. Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-of-State adjustments are to be implemented at the
next available rate issuance on a one-time basis, thereby recognizing potentially
temporal volume change

2. Hospitals can provide additional information to contest an HSCRC finding, but will have
the burden of proof, and HSCRC staff will be final arbiters of this decision.

3. If one-time adjustments are made and the same finding is made the following year, the
adjustment will be made permanent.

4. All adjustments will be subject to a materiality threshold.

Materiality Thresholds

Staff spent the majority of time with the workgroup debating what are appropriate materiality
thresholds, which represent a tool the Commission has previously used to reduce the need for
making out-of-state volume adjustments year after year, per the GBR contracts. While no
consensus was reached, many members did appear to support the idea of not applying
materiality thresholds for negative adjustments to inefficient hospitals, as identified by the
Integrated Efficiency policy.'® Additionally, many members supported the idea of asymmetrical
materiality thresholds, whereby hospitals would receive a negative adjustment only when a
larger materiality was met - a commercial payer representative did not agree with this
recommendation.

Staff concurred with the idea that inefficient hospitals should not get special protections from
negative materiality thresholds, because these hospitals are already classified as outliers and
allowing them to retain more revenue would worsen their position. Staff believe, however,
that negative materiality thresholds are warranted for non-inefficient hospitals, because most
of these volume changes are small and potentially temporal. Additionally, various policies
incentivize actions like deregulation (GBR’s, MPA, EQIP), and the future maturity of the Model
may depend on moving to greater capitation risk, especially for rural hospitals; therefore, it is
not desirable to be overly punitive towards these changes.

13 The Integrated Efficiency policy simultaneously evaluates hospitals relative ranking in hospital cost per case
efficiency and total cost of care effectiveness, both for Medicare and Commercial beneficiaries.
https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Pages/efficiency.aspx



https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Pages/efficiency.aspx

14

The asymmetrical proposal was the most difficult proposal to evaluate because symmetry is
methodologically desirable and more intuitive; however, upon further reflection, staff
identified that all growth in out-of-state volumes is beneficial for the Model because Maryland
is effectively exporting services, which when reimbursed at a 50 percent variable cost factor,
lowers price per case and Maryland TCOC. Additionally, all repatriation is favorable for the
Model because reimbursement at a 50 percent variable cost factor inside the state and
divestment at a 100 percent variable cost factor outside the state lowers price per case and
Maryland TCOC. Thus, applying a higher materiality threshold to desirable actions, albeit
symmetrical, may disincentive hospitals from growing “good volumes.”

In light of these considerations, staff propose the following recommendations:
Table 6: Recommendations for Materiality Threshold Implementation

Implement one-time
.. Implement
initially and

Materiality permanently
permanently one year

Threshold upon initial

later .
. adjustment
Recommendation 5

Deregulation
Decreases GBR Approach A X
Change to Rendering Location State for MD resident
Repatriation Approach B X
Expatriation Approach A X
Change to Rendering Location State for Out of State residents
Into State Approach B X

Out of State Approach A X

Materiality Approach A is:

1. The hospital is in the worst quartile of the most recently published Integrated
Efficiency policy OR

2. The adjustment exceeds 3 percent ofthe hospital's GBR OR

2 The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the associated service line revenue

Materiality Approach Bis
1. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent ofthe hospital's GBR OR
2. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the associated service line revenue



Results

15

This section will outline the results of the proposed methodologies!4, both with and without the

materiality thresholds. For Deregulation and Repatriation the assessment is calendar year 2023 over
2019, per the workgroup recommendation. For out-of-state volume the assessment is rate year 2023
over rate year 2014 (except for hospitals that have been rebased since 2014).

Deregulation

Table 7: Deregulation 2019-2023 ($ Thousands; with and without materiality thresholds)®

Total with
CT/MRI/PE Major Minor Oncology Related Materiality
Hospital Cardiovascular T Surgery Surgery Services Radiology Total Thresholds
ANNE ARUNDEL -$68 -$7 -$4,558 -$1,346 -$698 -$111 -$6,788 -$70.
GBMC -$1 -$51 -$635 -$512 -$3,475 -$359 -$5,033 -$970
JOHNS HOPKINS $0 -$161 -$448 -$3,005 $0 -$41 -$3,655 -$1
UMMC -$94 -$539 -$705 -$1,393 $0 -$166 -$2,898 $2,898]
UM-St. Joe -$735 -$60 -$842 -$618 -$110 -$516 -$2,881 $2,881
SINAI -$56 -$186 -$870 -$821 -$479 -$454 -$2,865 $2,865)
Frederick -$15 -$34 -$1,141 -$744 $0 -$161 -$2,095 -$69
MedStar Good Sam $0 $0 -$1 -$1,924 -$27 -$43 -$1,995 $144
Peninsula -$108 -$144 -$325 -$53 -$473 -$638 -$1,741 -$66
MERITUS -$35 $0 -$56 -$1,628 $0 $0 -$1,720 -$94
UM-BWMC $0 -$64 -$507 -$850 -$196 -$46 -$1,664 -$15
Doctors -$166 -$1 -$459 -$456 -$178 -$206 -$1,467 -$63
Western Maryland -$235 -$253 -$397 -$313 -$33 -$82 -$1,312 -$9
ATLANTIC GENERAL $0 -$56 -$58 -$446 -$307 -$421 -$1,288 -$274
HOLY CROSS -$51 -$195 -$35 -$713 $0 -$172 -$1,166 -$123
NORTHWEST -$1 -$30 -$52 -$146 -$466 -$448 -$1,141 $1,141
Ascension Saint Agnes Hospital -$301 $0 -$278 -$227 -$232 -$77 -$1,115 -$10.
SHADY GROVE -$70 -$896 -$22 -$1 $0 -$67 -$1,054 -$703]
CALVERT -$56 $0 -$121 -$155 $0 -$614 -$946 -$297,
UM-Charles Regional -$59 -$23 -$73 -$669 -$15 -$49 -$888 -$34
JH Bayview -$120 -$80 -$104 -$523 $0 -$37 -$864 -$864
MERCY -$9 -$93 -$82 -$197 $0 -$472 -$853 $0
CARROLL -$21 -$3 -$358 -$402 $0 -$22 -$806 -$806!
UMMCMIDTOWN -$1 -$62 -$60 -$393 -$9 -$250 -$773 -$773
UM-Upper Chesapeake -$125 -$218 -$212 -$155 $0 -$41 -$751 -$335!
MedStar Union Mem -$246 -$6 -$22 -$35 $0 -$436 -$745 -$34
MedStar St. Mary's -$38 $0 -$177 -$203 -$160 -$161 -$738 -$5
MedStar Fr Square $0 $0 -$56 -$115 -$459 -$6 -$635 $0
Adventist White Oak -$5 -$270 -$21 -$47 $0 -$249 -$591 -$608
UM-Easton -$6 -$41 -$129 -$32 $0 -$340 -$549 -$549
SUBURBAN -$13 -$18 -$115 -$173 $0 -$116 -$435 -$17
UM-Harford $0 -$67 -$189 -$54 $0 -$116 -$425 -$7
ChristianaCare, Union $0 -$83 -$124 -$15 -$5 -$178 -$405 -$405
MedStar Harbor -$35 -$16 -$270 -$11 $0 -$69 -$402 -$1
Garrett -$7 $0 -$13 -$280 $0 -$36 -$337 -$1
UM-Capital Region Medical Cen -$86 -$5 -$19 -$5 $0 -$196 -$310 -$310]
HOWARD COUNTY -$13 -$2 -$77 -$126 $0 -$28 -$246 $0
Grace Medical center $0 -$128 $0 $0 $0 -$108 -$237 -$323]
MedStar Southern MD -$105 -$11 $0 -$10 $0 -$71 -$197 -$4
HC-GERMANTOWN -$5 -$19 -$85 -$28 -$1 -$1 -$138 -$1
UM-Chestertown $0 $0 $0 -$130 $0 -$5 -$136 -$136
MedStar Montgomery -$9 -$53 -$29 -$2 $0 -$37 -$129 -$106
FT. WASHINGTON $0 $0 -$28 -$10 $0 -$59 -$96 -$12
Mccready $0 $0 $0 -$1 $0 $0 -$1 $0
Total -$2,897 $3,874  -$13,750 -$18,965 -$7,321 -$7,701 -$54,509 -$18,024,

14 please note that the modeling will differ slightly from what was provided to the Volume Workgroup because
staff amended the materiality thresholds to reconcile to the threshold value versus the whole variance once the

threshold is triggered.

5 Values are subject to change because the Rate Year 2025 Integrated Efficiency rankings have yet to be finalized
due to data delays in Commercial TCOC data.



Repatriation

Table 7: Repatriation 2019-2023 (with and without materiality thresholds)!®

Repatriation/Expa

. e _ triation with

Hospital Repatriation/Expatriation Materiality

Thresholds
MedStar- Southern MD $2,003,143 $2,584,312
JHH- Suburban $1,231,427 $796,658
UMMS- BWMC $1,042,118 $802,351
Saint Agnes $800,568 $69,830
Calvert $568,005 $626,486
MedStar- Union Mem $732,156 $264,371
Trinity - Holy Cross Germantown $644,512 $515,597
JHH- Johns Hopkins -$512,259 $329,728
UMMS- St. Joe $436,738 $387,783
MedStar- Montgomery $353,702 $181,618
UMMS- Midtown $353,997 $172,878
Mercy $334,196 $188,599
Adventist-Ft. Washington $319,769 $303,468
Luminis- Anne Arundel $1,195,994 $1,538,505
MedStar- Franklin Square $73,856 $386,225
JHH- Bayview $137,054 -$35,957
UMMS- Chestertown -$81,513 -$81,513
Tidal- McCready -$68,431 -$3,142
UMMS- Capital Region -$24,639 -$95,277
MedStar- St. Mary's -$111,081 $9,626
MedStar- Good Sam -$109,206 -$65,086
Lifebridge- Levindale -$193,342 $136,451
JHH- Howard County -$193,911 -$32,792
MedStar- Harbor -$202,183 -$76,993
Lifebridge- Grace -$244,216 -$106,489
Lifebridge- Northwest -$206,732 -$282,755
Adventist- White Oak -$225,528 -$468,169
Garrett -$333,959 -$107,563
UMMS- Easton -$404,124 -$404,042
ChristianaCare, Union -$480,977 -$488,558
Frederick -$573,660 -$298,516
Lifebridge- Carroll -$762,716 -$762,716
Luminis- Doctors -$927,158 -$915,759
Atlantic General -$138,889 -$65,273
Tidal- Peninsula -$655,294 $11,828
UMMS-Upper Chesapeake -$1,114,711 -$70,759
UMMS- Harford -$1,323,453 -$992,333
GBMC -$1,244,030 $83,295
Lifebridge- Sinai -$1,723,591 -$1,780,935
Western Maryland -$3,144,793 -$1,320,072
Trinity - Holy Cross -$2,943,102 -$218,897
UMMS- UMMC -$3,608,282 -$3,539,955
Adventist- Shady Grove -$4,546,224 -$3,058,101

Total -$15,870,771 -$5,882,04

16 See supra note 15

16



Remaining Limitations

Staff have ensured that volumes adjusted through the Deregulation and Repatriation

17

methodologies do not duplicate what has already been shifted through the Market Shift policy.

However, this cross-referencing step was done separately for each methodology. There is a

scenario where deregulation adjustments and expatriation adjustments can simultaneously but

independently cross reference the same service lines in the Market Shift policy, which could
result in removing more volume from GBR’s than actual declines that occurred. Staff believe
this is a small but still important risk to consider, and as such will release additional modeling,
prior to the final policy recommendation, that ensures the deregulation and expatriation
methodologies are not duplicative.

Out-of-State

Table 9: 00S Volume Change through RY 2023 (removes potential adjustments under $300k)

HospitalName
ChristianaCare, Union
Suburban
MedStar Montgomery
Anne Arundel

Peninsula

Northwest

UMROI
UM-Chestertown
Shock Trauma

Ft. Washington
MedStar Franklin Square
UM-Charles Regional
MedStar Harbor
Grace Medical Center
UM-Harford

Garrett

UM-BWMC

Doctors

Holy Cross

MedStar Union Memoarial
St. Agnes

UM-Upper Chesapeake
Shady Grove

Carroll

Sinai

MedStar Good Sam
UM-Laurel FMF
UM-St. Joe

Frederick

GBMC

Mercy

JH Bayview
Adventist White Oak
Western Maryland
UM-Capital Region
UMmMC

Johns Hopkins

Total

00S Revenue Increase @ 50%
$2,642,943
$2,436,391
$1,352,522
$1,204,766

$474,859
$343,157
-$355,415
-$422,391
-$433,419
-$456,469
-$488,951
-$510,257
-$522,913
-$562,990
-$597,587
-$606,328
-$722,384
-$882,268
-$923,236
-$1,237,563
-$1,402,526
-$1,488,932
-$1,612,735
-$1,900,591
-$2,496,323
-$2,629,575
-$3,226,947
-$3,278,295
-$3,614,904
-$3,644,367
-$5,406,642
-$6,222,775
-$6,669,239
-$8,226,074
-$10,162,905
-$12,358,036
-$65,682,740

-$139,761,961

Materiality Thresholds: 1%
growth, 3% Decline OR
Integrated Efficiency

$934,768

S0
S0
S0
S0
$0

-$355,415
-5422,391

S0
S0
S0
$0
S0
S0
S0
$0
S0
S0
S0
S0
S0
$0
$0

-$1,900,591
-$2,496,323

S0

-$2,345,398
-$3,278,295

S0
S0
S0

-$6,222,775

S0

$616,389
-$10,162,905
-$12,358,036
$567,814

-$39,699,940,



18

The HSCRC is no longer strictly a price regulator. The Commission has direct oversight of price
and volume under GBRs, and thus the market no longer allocates volume funding in an
unimpeded fashion. With Global Budgets, the Commission must interpret the invisible hand of
the market and distribute funding through several volume policies. To ensure that the volume
policies are working well, it is incumbent on the HSCRC to verify that the policies in aggregate
are adequately covering the costs of new volumes.

For several years, staff have demonstrated that the combination of the Demographic
Adjustment and Market Shift policy revenue adjustments exceed total in-state volume changes.
However, there was no accounting for additional adjustments related to irregular volume
change (deregulation, repatriation, out-of-state, and miscellaneous), negative adjustments that
occurred due to the Potentially Avoidable Utilization Shared Savings policy, and Efficiency
adjustments that are heavily influenced by volume change.

As such, during the Volume Workgroup engagement, staff created a “Volume Scorecard” to
assess the relationship of volume to funding during the All-Payer and Total Cost of Care Models.
Specifically, staff calculated an expected volume funding that would have occurred each year if
all volume change was adjusted through a volume variable or fee-for-service methodology
(utilizing a 50 percent variable cost factor), otherwise known as “FFS Counterfactual Funding,”
versus all revenue adjustments that occurred, otherwise known as “Observed Funding.” Staff
purposefully used a 50 percent variable cost factor because the fixed costs are already covered
by the global budgets and are adjusted each year for inflation through the Annual Update
Factor.!” The evaluation builds off previous analyses of Market Shift and Demographic
Adjustment policies and purposefully demonstrates how each revenue adjustment layers on
top of each other to adequately fund volume at both the state and individual hospital level.

Staff do not believe this scorecard should be used as a methodology, for example to reconcile
hospital revenue to FFS Counterfactual Funding, as the Model is no longer volume based, and a
hospital that has failed to implement appropriate population health initiatives may have
Observed Funding below FFS Counterfactual Funding in this approach. Staff do believe this
scorecard is an important analytical tool that the HSCRC can use for future evaluations, thereby
improving the Commission’s selection of what population-based methodology to potentially
modify. Below are the results of the Volume Scorecard for calendar year 2014 through 2023:

17 During the Volume workgroup engagement staff did extensive analyses, per workgroup member requests, to
support the use of a 50 percent variable factor. Highlights of those analyses can be found in Appendix 3.



19

Volume Scorecard (with Market Shift Adjustments)

Table 10a

Funding Relative to Volume Variable System with MS

(CY14 - CY23 at a 50% VCF)

$80,000,000

$275M Favorable

$60,000,000

$40,000,000

S0 IIIIIII_._-

$20,000,000
-$20,000,000

-540,000,000

leuls

5.In02as uog

nwan

wes pooo Jeyspay
Adaspy

W3 uolun Jejspajl
104NN

J0qeH Je1Span
JWWN

|2punJay auuy

53UBY 15

aA0ID Apeys
UMOIPIN JWINN
asenbs i sejspay
|34neT-AIN

malnheg Hr
puejiiely uI2Isapn
15amU1IoN

|193] yo uoun

15 1UAPY UOIBUILSEAA
JWME-IN
PAOLIEH-INN
1915942400 N
uojBulysean 14
1ane)

[[[eXN =}
uMmOoLIRISAYI-AIN
Aunoj piemoH
sso1) AjoH

|BJBUD) JNUeY
Apeaidow

AW Wayinos Jeispajy
|euo18ay Saleyd-nN
J3amog-iNn

s, Aley 115 JeISPaIA
3 UMoIUE WD
FRERTL)

AlawoRuow Jeispay
3 5,2Uuy U3aND-AIN
supdoH suyor
ayeadesay) Jeddn-wWn
30[ 15-INN

s10300Q

uoise3-|n

uequngns

puapaly

CI[LAVIER]

JHOd-WN

SmuBY
UMOIUBLIBE-JH

Volume Scorecard (with Market Shift and Demographic Adjustments)

Table 10b

Funding Relative to Volume Variable System with MS & Demographic Adjustment

(CY14 - CY23 at a 50% VCF)

$80,000,000

§70,000,000

$958M Favorable

$60,000,000

$50,000,000

$40,000,000

$30,000,000

$20,000,000

SOI

$10,000,000
-610,000,000

-620,000,000

reus

JWINN

|9puny suuy
supdoH suyor
AN

wispy uolun Jeispany
Adaapm

aA0ID Apeys

NdD

mamnAeg HI

saudy 15

Puapad
ajyeadesayd saddn-INN
WES P09 JeIspam
Auno) piemoH
54n022s uog
1SNUBAPY UOIBUIYS BAA
uequngns

alenbs 14 1eISPaIN
QW wayinos Jeispay
1odwnin

ss 0.2 AjoH
15amuyloN

l1oaed

301 "15-IAIN

s10100Q

l1oqueH J1e1S5paly
11232 jo uojun
JEEE )

12ane1-1n

|euociZay sapeyd- NN
s, AR “1S JBISPBIAY
PJOjIeH- NN

CI ATIER

At woSiuopy Jeispay
uolBuIsEM 1
UMOLPIIA DININN
|E1BUSD S1IUERY
A21s94yo00-INN
EYTRETTN]
UMOIIRISIYD-INN
uoiseI-|n
Apeasdownl

118D

PuejAlely UI1S2 AN
aiswmwog-iNn
JHSDd-INN

a3 uMmojUELLIBE

a3 s,2uuy u22ND-INN
UMOUE ULIBE-JH

tments & Out-of-

jus

Volume Scorecard (with Market Shift and Demographic Ad

Table 10c

State and Potentially Avoidable Utilization Adjustments)



20

Funding for MS, Demographic Adjustment, 00S, & PAU

(CY14 - CY23 ata 50% VCF)

$80,000,000

$499M Favorable

$60,000,000

S0

$40,000,000
$20,000,000

-$20,000,000

-640,000,000

leuis

5JN023s uog

Adaapy

supdoy suyor

aaouD Apeys

JWKN

owas

JNAE-INN
[2aneT-AN

way uoiun Jeispaly
[2puUnIY auuy

S3UBY 1S

1odKIn

wes poos 1e1spapy
1SIUBAPY UOIBUIUSBAN
puspaity
ayeadesayd saddn-yn
|euoi8ay sapeyd-N
121834100- NN
malaseg HI

J0qJeH IeISpain

awN wiayInos Jeispaiy
Auno) premon
uMmoIBISBYD-INN
FREVY -6

uojBuilysen 14
plojIeH-IAIN
UMOIPIA JWIAIN
1SaMUIION

30 "I5-INN
[CIETVELLTHILT
1932 jo uotun

(XL

s, ey "15 Je1Spapy
ApeaiDopy

ueqangng
AswoBuop Jeyspapy
s10100Qq

$5040 AJoH
ajasmwog-inn
11a.Men

a3 umolueuan

a3 5,8uuy UBBND-ININ
aisenbs 14 Jeispapy
JH2d-IN
uolsel-IAIN

puBlAey UIDISIAA
ersuIuag

smR

UMOIUB WD DH

tments, Out-of-State

jus

Volume Scorecard (with Market Shift and Demographic Ad

Table 10d

and Potentially Avoidable Utilization Adjustments, & Other Volume and Efficiency

Adjustments)

Funding for MS, Demographic Adjustment, 00S, PAU, Other Volume Adjustments, & Efficiency

(CY14 - CY23 at a 50% VCF)

$652M Favorable

$80,000,000
$60,000,000
$40,000,000
$20,000,000

50

-$20,000,000

-640,000,000

-$60,000,000

-$80,000,000

anoiD Apeys

[2PuUnay Uy

feuls

DHODd-N

LS NETEY]

aaenbs 44 Jeispapy
201 "1I5-INN

ensuuad

FEENIETS)

awang-Inin

supjdoH suyor
SNz

spuspaiy
uolrBuiysean 14

s, MBI 1S 1E1SPaIY
1odmin

uegingng

JWKnN

5101500

oWwan

ayeadesay) Jaddn-n
uMoIP AL DIALININ
malaieq Hi
1S1IUBAPY Uo1SUIUS EAA
Aunod piesmoH
[euoISaY S AeYD- NN
[CRCIVEISETHITET A

AN LIBLYINOS 1e1Spaiy
UMOIUELWIRD-DH
saudy 1S

11222 jo uon
plojIeH-IAN

aneD

Apesidow
Ja1sayolod-1Mn
Hoa1es

ArawoSivopy teaspary
ss013 AjoH

1S 2MMYIION

a3 smwog-1Nn

a3 s, 2uuy u2aND-INN
uMOPBISBYD-INN

d3 umoluewWIRD

wia A uoIun JeIspaiy
wes pooo Je1span
uoIseI- N

puejAles] UI21SI AN
loqueH 1e1spa
54n0235 uog
124neT-Inn

As noted in Table 10a, there are thirteen hospitals through the Market Shift policy alone that

have not been funded for all volume growth, which is by design, as the Market Shift was never



21

intended to fund all use rate growth. In table 10b, the addition of the Demographic Adjustment
reduces this to only two hospitals not meeting this standard. In table 10c, when out-of-state
and Potentially Avoidable Utilization (PAU) volumes and revenue adjustments are accounted
for, there are eight hospitals that where FFS Counterfactual Funding is below Observed
Funding, largely due to the nearly $700 million that PAU Shared Savings Model removed from
GBR’s. It should be noted that this was also by design and that PAU Shared Savings Model is no
longer a system savings mechanism. Finally, in table 10d when all relevant adjustments are
accounted for, there are seven hospitals where FFS Counterfactual Funding is below Observed
Funding, but of the seven, two are free-standing medical facility (FMF) conversions that should
be evaluated along with their sister system hospitals as there are offsetting relationships (UM-
Laurel with Cap Region and Grace with Sinai). Moreover, some deficit between FFS
Counterfactual Funding and Observed Funding of a few hospitals for volume growth may be
entirely warranted in the Model if select hospitals have been unsuccessful in reducing
potentially avoidable utilization and/or if use rate growth is generally outpacing population
growth.

The other side of this dynamic is that far more hospitals across all evaluations had high
Observed Funding, relative to the FFS Counterfactual Funding, and several hospitals were by a
significant amount. However, this is the central incentive of the Model to retain revenue as
efforts are made to improve the health of the population and potentially avoidable utilization is
averted. Nevertheless, over the past several years, the Commission has implemented three
significant policies to reduce any perceived imbalance or misallocation in the system that may
result because of the population based volume methodologies: a) PAU Shared Savings, which
penalizes hospitals with above average levels of readmissions and avoidable admissions and has
evolved to a redistribution policy; b) Integrated Efficiency, which scales inflation for relatively
inefficient hospitals that have idle resources due to excessive retained revenue, among other
things; and c) the Full Rate Application policy, that has provided over the past two years nearly
$150 million to hospitals that are relatively efficient, in large measure due to lower than
average volume funding.

In summary, it appears that the population-based volume policies, as a whole, are having their
intended effect in funding volume changes across the system and at this time there is no need
to modify the underlying methodologies. Further, even if it showed all volumes were not
funded it would not necessarily indicate a need to change policies as Maryland is not operating
under a volume-based fee-for-service system; however, it could be a warning sign to gaps in the
policy suite. For example, the Volume Scorecard could indicate that new service line offerings
that were never provided to the population when global budgets were first established require
an additional volume policy.® Finally, staff cautions against any perceived funding
misallocation that the Volume Scorecard might propound, as redistribution is being addressed

18 Staff has currently engaged a contractor to help develop methodologies for measuring access, across multiple
care domains, that will help with future policies that aim to address unmet need.



22

each year, in parallel to the volume policies, through the formulaic methodologies of PAU,
Integrated Efficiency, and the Full Rate Application policies.

1. Establish a Deregulation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will
result in negative revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.

2. Establish a Repatriation policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will result
in positive (repatriation) and negative (expatriation) revenue adjustments to hospitals’
global budgets.

3. Establish an Out-of-State policy based on the methodology outlined herein that will
result in positive and negative revenue adjustments to hospitals’ global budgets.

4. Implement Deregulation, and Expatriation, the next available rate issuance on a one-
time basis, negative Out-of-State adjustments on a permanent basis, when the following
materiality thresholds are met:

a. The hospital is in the worst quartile of the most recently published Integrated

Efficiency policy OR

The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the hospital’s GBR OR

The adjustment exceeds 3 percent of the associated service line revenue

d. All Planned Deregulations should still be reported to the Commission in
conformance with the GBR agreement and adjusted accordingly.

i. If deregulation methodology indicates a potential deregulation that
varies from planned deregulation by more than 10 percent, staff may
consider revising the deregulation adjustment

5. Implement Repatriation at the next available rate issuance on a one-time basis, positive
Out-of-State adjustments on a permanent basis, when the following materiality
thresholds are met:

a. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the hospital’s GBR OR
b. The adjustment exceeds 1 percent of the associated service line revenue

6. Implement Deregulation, and Repatriation/Expatriation adjustments on a permanent
basis one year following the initial one-time revenue adjustment to allow for potential
backfilling and/or dissipation. Hospitals can provide additional information to contest
the volume finding, but will have the burden of proof, and HSCRC staff will be final
arbiters of this decision.

7. Codify the staff’s approach to evaluating the over/under funding of volume in
Commission’s volume policies

[gle



23

All-Payer Refined Diagnosis Related Groups (APR-DRG) — 3M'’s classification system that
groups hospital inpatients according to their reason for admission, severity of illness and
risk of mortality.

Enhanced Ambulatory Patient Groups (EAPGs) — 3M’s classification system that groups
outpatient medical visits and procedures based on similar clinical characteristics,
resource use and costs. 3M EAPGs are designed to reflect the resources used in an
ambulatory visit and to calculate expected payments for outpatient services.

Equivalent Case Mix Adjusted Discharges (ECMADS) — Often referred to as casemix,
ECMADS are a volume statistic that account for acuity, as not all services require the
same level of care and resources.

Markets Shift Policy (Market Shift) — Provides the criteria to reallocate funding to
account for shifts in cases between regulated hospitals, with the objective of ensuring
that funding follows the patient and hospitals continue to have a competitive interest in
serving patients. The MSA does not currently address all volume changes, only those the
Commission can quantify as shifts between hospitals and only volumes the Commission
deems appropriate.

Demographic Adjustment Policy (Demographic Adjustment) — Provides funding for age-
adjusted growth at the zip code or county level in order to anticipate changes in
utilization based on demographic changes. The Demographic Adjustment is capped by
Maryland Department of Planning estimates of statewide population growth to align
with the per capita nature of the All-Payer/Total Cost of Care Model tests.

Unrecognized ECMADS — Acuity adjusted volume that grew or declined but was not
shifted in the Market Shift methodology.

Casemix Data —Confidential patient-level hospital administrative data on all inpatient
admissions and outpatient visits.

Experience Data — Monthly hospital unaudited revenue and volumes data by rate center
used to monitor hospital charging compliance with approved rates.

Variable Cost Factor — The percentage of charges required to reimburse a hospital for
the variable costs (supplies, drugs, etc.) associated with increases in volume. The
standard by which the industry and the Commission evaluates volume funding adequacy
is 50 percent, as 50 percent of all service charges on average covers fixed costs and 50
percent covers variable costs. This value is not uniform by service line.



24

10. Service Lines — Groupings of services into higher level categories that reflect similar
clinical delivery. Service lines are utilized to determine market shifts in the Market Shift
methodology and the proposed Deregulation and Repatriation Policies.

11. Volume Scorecard — A comprehensive visualization tool that accounts for all volume
policies. The Volume Scorecard assesses Market Shift, Demographic Adjustment, out-of-
state volumes, deregulation, repatriation/expatriation and PAU, as well as adjustments
related to efficiency policies. The scorecard will not include CDS-A and Complexity and
Innovation, as those policies are standalone.

12. Chronic Condition Warehouse (CCW) Data - Medicare and Medicaid beneficiary, claims,
and assessment data linked by beneficiary across the continuum of care.

Appendix 2. EAPG Market Shift Example

Actual Unrecognized ECAMDS for Frederick
Hospital, Major Surgery in Prince George's (0.953)

HOSPITALNAME Frederick T

PROD_CAT MajorSurgery T

zipcode Prince Georges .T Calculated Proof

A B C=B-A D E=C/SUM(C:C) F=CXSUM(D:D)
Sum of Sumof Unrecog Allocated Normalized
Row Labels T ecmadCY1922 hospshift u og Share of EAPG/Unrecognized Unrecognized ECMADS

115:::DEEP LYMPH STRUCTURE PROCEDURES (0.62)  (0.38) (0.242) (0.234) 25% (0.234)
172::LEVEL NI KIDNEY AND URETERAL PROCEDURES (0.94) (0.94) - - 0% -
208:::LEVEL Il OTHER UTERINE AND ADNEXA GYMECOLOGICAL PROCEDURES (0.59) (0.29) (0.302) (0.292) 31% (0.282)
26::LEVEL | KNEEAND LOWER LEG PROCEDURES (0.52) (0.52) - - 0% -
28::LEVEL | SPINE PROCEDURES (0.68B)  (0.24) (0.442) (0.428) 45% (0.428)
29::LEVEL Il SPINE PROCEDURES (1.52) (1.52) - - 0% -
64::LEVEL | LOWER AIRWAY ENDOSCOPY 0.33 0.33 0%

Grand Total (4.54) (355) (0.985) (0.953) 100% (0.953)



25

Appendix 3. 50 Percent Variable Cost Factor Analyses

Evaluation Process

Calculate Adjusted
Charges* = Casemix
Charges * 0.75 (to

Calculate Direct Cost to
Charge Ratio = Ratio of
e COsts for each Direct Rate
Center to Adjusted
Charges

Obtain Annual Filing Cost
e data for each Direct Rate L
Center (e.g. MSG)

Obtain FY23 Casemix

eliminate margin,
assessments and
differential) for every line.

Charges at the line level

quhﬁféecagfme&sntﬁe; Aggregate Adjusted Develop Variable Direct % Calculate Variable Direct
g:ost ‘o Cha? = Ratio Charges and Direct Costs = Assumed Variable % for Costs = Direct Costs *
g into Service Groupings each Service Grouping Variable Direct % for each

using a%%l:;:ti?le Rate (distinct for IP and OP) (see next slide) Service Grouping

Calculated Variable

Indirect %= 10%** Calculate Variable Cost %

= Variable Direct
bmmed Costs/Adjusted Charges
+Variable Indirect %, for
each Service Grouping

(Adjusted Charges —
Direct Costs)/Adjusted
Charges (same across all
IP and all OP)

* Adjusted Charges is conceptually = total costs since all non-cost items have been stripped out.

** Indirect variable ratio of 10% was obtained based on a review of which indirect cost centers were likely to flex with
volume in the short term. As all costs are variable in the long term this value would move towards 100% with time, this
approach can be used to derive estimates of variable % over the longer time windows.

Results — Inpatient

Lab & MSS &
Calculation Service Grouping Tests CDs R&B Therapy Total

A=Charges X -
75 Adjusted Charges($M) $698  $1,377  $1,636  $1,081 $100  $3,848 $494

B Direct Costs ($M) $377 $677  $1,196 $507 $62  $2,507 $311 -

C Variable Direct % 50.0% 20.0%  100.0% 50.0% 50.0% 90.0% 80.0% -

D=B*C Variable Direct Costs ($M) $189 $135  $1,196 $253 $31 $2,257 $249 -

E Variable Indirect % 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% 3.9% -

F=D/A+E Variable Cost % 30.9% 13.7% 77.0% 27.3% 35.2% 62.5% 54.3%



Results — Outpatient (see formulas on IP Table)

Service Grouping

Adjusted Charges($M)
Direct Costs ($M)
Variable Direct %

Variable Direct Costs ($M)
Variable Indirect %

Variable Cost %

$687

$444

50.0%

$222

4.3%

36.7%

Lab &
Tests

$526

$271

20.0%

$54

4.3%

14.6%

MSS &
CcDs

$1,767

$1,235

100.0%

$1,235

4.3%

74.2%

$1,255

$556

50.0%

$278

4.3%

26.5%

$16

$6
50.0%
$3
4.3%

23.9%

Rad.
Therap
Clinic y

$370

$252

50.0%

$126

4.3%

38.5%

$202

$81

20.0%

$16

4.3%

12.4%

Radiol.

$714

$317

30.0%

$95

4.3%

17.6%

N

$95

$51

80.0%

$41

4.3%

47.3% I RE

6



D maryland

health services

cost review commission

RY 2027 Quality Based Reimbursement Draft Policy
October 9, 2024

HSCRC Quality Team




I RY 2027 QBR Policy Updates

e RY 2027 Policy is largely unchanged from RY 2026
e HCAHPS:

o Updated survey goes into effect January 2025: Responsiveness and composite care
transitions domains temporarily removed from VBP/QBR
o HCAHPS Learning Collaborative
e Timely Follow up measure updates
e ED LOS updates
e Digital Measures Update
e RY 2025 cut-point adjustment
e RY 2027 Recommendations

maryland

ic§ health services 2

cost review commission



- QBR RY 2026 Program

Performance Measures Standardized Measure Hospital QBR Score &

Scores Revenue Adjustments
Individual Measures are Hospital QBR Score is Sum of
Domain and Measures: Converted to 0-10 Points: Earned Points / Possible Points
Person and Community Engagement-— with Domain Weights Applied
-8 HCAHPS categories; Points for Attainment Compare
Scale Ranges from 0-80%
-Timely Follow Up (TFU) Medicare and Performance to a National €
Medicaid & TFU Disparity Gap* Threshold (median) and Max Penalty 2% & Reward +2%
-ED LOS, admitted patients* Benchmark (average of top 10%) (ALL HOSPITALS HAVE
Safety— 6 Measures: OPPORTUNITY TO EARN
-5 CDC NHSN HAI Categories; REWARD)
-AHRQ PSI 90 All-payer Threshold Benchmark Abbreviated Pre- | QBR | Finandial
Clinical Care- Set Scale Score | Adjustment
--Mortality Inpatient, 30-day All-payer* | | | | |
0 2 4 6 8 10 Max Penalty 0% -2.00%
10% -1.51%
Points for Improvement Compare 20% -1.02%
Performance to Base (historical ; 30% -0.54%
Penalty/Reward
perf) and Benchmark Cutpoint T
Hist. Performance Benchmark 50% 0.46%
T T 1711 oo%_| 07
0 2 4 3] g8 9 :
i Person and Community Engagement Max Reward BO%+ 2.00%
® Clinical Care Final Points are Better of nd A
m Safety *New in RY 2026 | | Improvement or Attainment L‘fﬁ?gﬂgﬁﬁ




Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare
Providers and Systems (HCAHPS)

s .-,-"-,':? health serwces 4

cost review commission



I HCAHPS Most Recent Available Performance

HCAHPS Performance, MD vs Nation, 10/1/2022-9/30/2023

Nurse Staff Medication Discharge Info Understood Post- Clean & Quiet 9-10 Overall
Communication Communlcatlon Responsiveness Explained Provided Discharge Care Rating

100

80

7

o

&

3

=]

2

o

1

o

o

W Nation mMD

maryland

health services

cost review commission



I Linear Measure HCAHPS Results: Statewide Results Lag
National Average, CY 2019 vs 7/1/22-6/30/23

Averages of Linear Measures, MD vs. Nation

95

90

85
80
) I I I I
70

Murse Communication Dr Communication Staff Responsivenass Care Transition

B MD Base Period B MD Performance Period B Mation Base Period B Mation Performance Period
_____services 6

WY cost review commission



I Updated HCAHPS Survey CYs 2025 through 2027

e There is a decrease from eight to six HCAHPS sub-domains in the Person and Community Engagement
VBP domain:

O

o O O O O

Communication with nurses
Communication with doctors
Communication about medicine
Hospital cleanliness and quietness
Discharge information

Overall hospital rating

e CMS is updating two HCAHPS sub-domains and will be re-adopted into the PCE VBP domain in CY 2028

O

O

O

Composite care transition

Responsiveness of hospital staff

The two HCAHPS categories are included in the HCAHPS linear score measure and will need to be
replaced; staff recommends including the overall hospital rating, and will vet linear measure inclusions
with the PMWG.

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



HSCRC Learning Collaborative to Target HCAHPS Improvement

‘Goals: Compile best practices to improve patient experience; improve HCAHPS scores
‘Co-led by Jonathan Sachs (HSCRC consultant) and MHA

:Stakeholders: Hospital HCAHPS and operations leaders, HSCRC Quality leadership team, national survey representatives

EStaff tasks: Analyze HCAHPS data; Learn best practices from national organizations that consult to hospital providers; Quality improvement initiatives
‘Meetings: Monthly; HCAHPS knowledge level-setting, learning best practices from survey vendors and hospitals, and presenting data analysis results
‘Deliverable: Report of findings to the Commission

Jul-Aug

2024-

Draft work

p|an Sept 2024-
presented ~ Present

to project to
HSCRC Commission

Jan 2025-

Nov 2024 - Convene
Convene learning
initial collaborativ
learning e for data
collaborative review from
mtg; refine the
goals and HSCRC/
objectives. MHCC

Mar 2025 -

Convene Sep-Oct 2025 —
learning Share findings with
collaborative HSCRC and work
to begin with Performance
process Measurement
improve- Workgroup to
ment assess QBR
initiatives incentives

Sep 2024 -

Begin data
analysis; 4

initial meetings
with MHA;
identify
collaborative co-
chair from hospital
leadership

Oct 2024 -
Finalize
work plan
with MHA

Dec 2024 -
Convene
learning
collaborative
for data review
with national
survey
vendors.

Feb 2025 -
Convene
learning
collaborative
to share best
practices.

Apr-Sep 2025 - Convene
sessions with learning
collaborative to share findings
initiatives, and draft final
report.

Oct-Dec 2025
Update QBR
HCAHPS policy
recommendations
as appropriate

{ maryland

7 |
1 health services

Ch? ; :
' COST review Commission




QBR TFU Measure Updates for CY 2025

4 maryland

k9 healthservices @ 9

cost review commission




mmmm 'mely Follow Up After an Acute Exacerbation of a Chronic
Condition (TFU)- RY 2023-2026

The TFU measure assesses the percentage of ED visits, observation stays,
and inpatient admissions for one of six chronic conditions in which a follow-
up was received within the time frame recommended by clinical practice:

Hypertension (follow-up within 7 days)

Asthma (follow-up within 14 days)

Congestive Heart failure (CHF)(follow-up within 14 days)

Coronary artery disease (CAD)(follow-up within 14 days)

Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (COPD) (follow-up within 30 days)
Diabetes (follow-up within 30 days)

O O O O O O

4 maryland

b9 health services

cost review commission




- TFU Measure Update: Spring of 2024 by the Partnership for
Quality Measurement
“Qualifying” follow up visits that contribute to the numerator are now defined as those for which

follow-up care was received after the discharge date (i.e., not same date as discharge) within the
timeframe recommended by clinical practice guidelines, as detailed below:

Chronic Condition Original Follow-Up Days Revised Follow-Up Days

14 days for high-acuity patients

Hypertension 7 days 30 days for medium-acuity patients
Asthma 14 days 14 days
Congestive Heart Failure 14 days 14 days
: 7 days for high-acuity patients
Coronary Artery Disease 14 days 6 weeks for low-acuity patients
Chronic Obst.ructlve Pulmonary 30 days 30 days
Disorder
Diabetes 30 days 14 days of the date of discharge for

high-acuity patients




ED Length of Stay Measure

" ,-,-'.,':? health serwces 12

cosLre W commission



I COBR Policy and ED LOS Measurement Development Timeline

® September/October/November 2023: Discussed at Performance Measurement \Workgroup
e 11/8/2023 QBR Draft Policy: Proposed options for inclusion of ED LOS measure

o Comment Letters: 11/1/2023 - 11/15/2023
e 12/13/2023 QBR Final Policy: Approved inclusion of ED LOS measure at 10 percent weight

® (Commission discussion:
0 QBR ED LOS Measure Development plan was proposed on January 10, 2024 and reviewed on
February 14, 2024
e ED LOS Development Subgroup Meetings:
O ED Subgroup 1 (Data): February 2nd, 2024, March 1st, 2024, April 12th,2024
m ED LOS Data Submission Memo was sent via email to hospitals on May 20, 2024

m ED LOS Data Submission Dates: Extended to September 13, 2024 (CY2023 and Jan-Mar 2024
data), December 16, 2024 (Apr-Sept 2024 data), March 2025 (Oct-Dec 2024 data)

o ED Subgroup 2 (Incentive): April 26th, 2024, May 17th, 2024, June 21st, 2024, September 10, 2024,
September 27, 2024

O Meeting recordings and slides: Subgroup ED LOS Measure (maryland.gov)

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission

13


https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Pages/ED-length-of-stay-workgroup.aspx

I \\Vhy include ED LOS in QBR?

CMS ED1b Average (median)time patients spentin the emergency department, before they

were admitted to the hospitalas an inpatient

2018

800

700

600

o (=] o
=] o o
L < o

sanully U1SO1 a3

Z000te
60001¢
¢1001¢
£0001¢
GG00TE
620012
0r00Te
8E001¢
£€001¢
Evoote
96001¢
15S00T¢
LT00T¢
Zco0te
#0001¢
81001¢C
¢9001¢
£200te
Ggroote
67001¢C
v2oote
100012
80001¢
910012
rE0012
G000Te
€90012
GeootTe
rr00Lc
¢e001e
G8001¢
810012
820012
0€00Te
LE00TE
9000T¢
61001¢
6£001¢
£S00TE
0380012
L200Te

I/ T00TC

S [ S001C

200

100

o

14

National

mmm MD Hospitals



I OP18b Outpatient ED LOS (more recent data)

Outpatient ED Wait Times (non-psych) 10/1/2022 - 09/30/2023

450

400

350

300

91001¢
S1001E
Er001C
6000T1¢
£9001¢
00012
€£9001¢
6200T1¢
Z0001¢
8E00LC
ovoote
150012
81r001¢
ge001e
£0001¢
090012
€¢001¢e
Froot1e
110012
L5001¢
Le001e
S9001¢
80001¢
95001¢
6E00TC
SE0OTC
S0001¢
810012
CEOOTE
¢c001¢e
Feootle
100012
€E001C
VEOOLC
61001¢
Z1001¢e
6¥001¢
LEOOTE
g0001e
L1001

e (E00T

[ e T T )

= = =
Lo = [T¢]
o~ (] —

S9INUIly Ul SOT a3 UeIpaly

100

=]
L

o

15

rvices

mnmission

Mational Median

I MD Hospitals Median



I QOBR ED LOS Incentive CY 2024

® |ncentive measures improvement from CY 2023 to CY 2024

e Measure: Percent change in the median time from ED arrival to physical
departure from the ED for patients admitted to the hospital

e Population: All non-psychiatric ED patients who are admitted to
Inpatient bed and discharged from hospital during reporting period

e Scoring: Use attainment calculation for percent change to convert
improvement into a 0 to 10 point score (see next slide)

e Data: Ad hoc data submissions of time stamps to merge in with case-
mix data

e Performance standards: See Current Proposal slide

maryland
ic§ health services

cost review commission

16



Il QBR Scoring Example

Threshold Benchmark

Improvement 0% Improvement 10%

| 1 I ] N ] I 1
T T T ST T T
— —
0 points 2% 4% 6% 8%

Hospital Improvement = 6.0%
Calculates to a score of 6 out of 10

e [
10 points

Scores are summed
across QBR measures
and weighted to get total
hospital score

QBR Revenue Adjustment Scale

Abbreviated Pre- OBR Financial
Set Scale Score | Adjustment

Max Penalty 0% -2.00%
10% -1.51%
20% -1.02%
30% -0.54%

Penalty/Reward

Cutpoint 41% 0.00%
S0% 0.46%
B0% 0.975%
70% 1.49%

Max Reward B0%+ 2.00%

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission




Hospitals beneath the

®
C Q
C N
e G
5 5
..oﬂup
()]
Q o
C 4
= 0O
n C
O —
= =
22
E S
6r
()
Q2

Y
o
C

©

©
o
£
®©
C

Q0

-
©

pd

O

f—

()]

LU

oo

~—

(@]

N

I Current Proposal

ED 1b: ED LOS for Non-Psych Admitted Patients

0%

Benchmark = -10%

Threshaold

mAhove Mediaq

e

Qf

S

(0]

e Lo
[ S e — R A o

. L9

1200

mEelow Median

0%

Threshold
Benchmark = -5%

] ”H”

-
-
=]

1000 -

E=INUIN Ul 507 a4

=
0
o

400

200

0

T
L0E'GEES (VL LT |
996'65% |WCET-
BElL'rocs- [WBT'CT

rRE'SSe' 1§ (%60 8-
L0Z'LSPE | PSS -
zez's9gs (WIS T-

CLL'ZOE' LS (W99 -
L8L' L95%- [WHEO T
050'9.9% |%90°CT-
0s2'6rLE- [WET'ET
951'8r2¢ |05 9"
Z95'001L%- %9 'SE
LSL'06E$ |%WPPOE-
BZ8'9LilLE (%99°T-
090'0FL$- [%B8S'S
BOC'9EEd- [WST'S
L40'L98% |(%BYV 6T
BFL'0LLE |WELS
Di9'clEs [WPSTL-
Feo'gLd- |WIE'CT
lri'ees | W6T0-
r0'2e9s (%88'6T-
gL0'65%- |W6E'0
950'PEZPE- | WEG'D

oLe'sro' L3 [%W6T -
Bri'S6$- |WBPIO
00L'LLGE |WSOVT-

PST'PL0 LS | WSETVT-
zZe0'9.%- |WBTT0-
LPE'EFZE- (%S8O
090'LZLE | WELT-
gLs'cozd- [WBT'C
2/9'a0l%- [W8S'S
BlL¥'ezlL$- WP 0T
L12'59:.8 |WTBTE-
ErF' Zert |WEE'6-
05Z'S0ZE- |WES'E
£51L'68LE (%91 E-
GZL'6L%  [%90'9-
FPre'rOlLE [*BLEE-

fwg B

586, -EE5

S Sege

o x m c < o

M s SN £

18



I CY25 Recommendations to Consider

e Staff is proposing the following for subgroup input:

©)

O

©)

Include ED1b in QBR PCE Domain at 10 percent of QBR (same weight)

Maintain improvement
Develop risk-adjusted ED LOS measure for attainment to be monitored or retrospectively
adopted

Set improvement standards based on Statewide Improvement Goal established by ED
Wait Time Reduction Commission

m Base year: Cumulative improvement from 2023 vs. Year over Year improvement.
m Tiers: Recommend if improvement only
Consider treating observation stays (23+ hrs?) as inpatient admissions

Other inclusion/exclusion criteria?

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission

19



State Digital Measures Update

: .,., health services | 20

cosLre W commission



I Goal: Drive Development and Use of Digital Quality Measures to
Replace Claims-Based and Chart Abstracted Measures

e Reporting Requirements in CYs 2024 and 2025
o Seven Electronic Clinical Quality Measures with

o Hybrid Hospital Wide Readmissions and Hospital Wide Mortality measures for
all payers beginning in July 2024

o Submission timelines are quarterly

e Hospitals have voiced concern about stepped up timeline (CMS requires annual
data submission after the performance year) related to EHR/vendor readiness

e The Commission has established an Exceptional Circumstances Exemption
process for Maryland hospitals that also applies to delayed timelines

e Additional detail is included in the draft policy document

4 maryland

cost review commission




HH RY 2025 Revised Cut Point
-]

4 maryland

ki@ healthservices = 22

cost review commission




I RY 2025 QBR Cutpoint Discussion

e Background:
o Current cut point is 41%, based on average national scores from FFY16-FFY21
using QBR weighting
o Due to changes in performance post-COVID, the cut point is retrospectively

evaluated to try to ensure that MD hospitals are rewarded or penalized relative to
national performance

o For RY 2025 the by-measure analysis has a national average score of ~31%
e To account for degradation in National and State performance, Staff

recommends to lower cut point to 32 percent

o Based on average performance of three post-covid years (FFY21-
22, RY25)

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



I QBR RY 2027 Draft Recommendations

1. Maintain Domain Weighting as follows for determining hospitals’ overall performance scores:
Person and Community Engagement (PCE) - 60 percent, Safety (NHSN measures) - 30 percent ,
Clinical Care - 10 percent.

a. Within the PCE domain, weight the measures as follows:

V.

V.

Vi.
Vii.

HCAHPS Top Box: 33.33 Percent
HCAHPS Consistency: 16.67 percent
HCAHPS Linear: 16.67 percent
Timely Follow-Up for Medicare: 5.56 percent

Timely Follow-Up for Medicaid: 5.56 percent

Disparities in Medicare Timely Follow-Up: 5.56 percent

Emergency Department Length of Stay: 16.67 percent

b. Within the Safety domain, weight each of the six measures equally (i.e., 30 percent divided by
number of measures).

c. Within the Clinical Care domain, weight the inpatient and 30-day mortality measure equally(i.e.,

10 percent divided by two measures).

{ maryland

health services

cost review commission

24



mm QBR RY 2027 Draft Recommendations

2. With regard to monitoring reports to track hospital performance:

a. Consider the feasibility of developing a Timely Follow-Up for Behavioral Health measure.

b. Disseminate Sepsis Dashboard.

c. Develop tools to monitor HCAHPS performance by patient and hospital characteristics.
3. Implement an HCAHPS learning collaborative with hospitals.

4. Continue collaboration with CRISP and other partners on infrastructure to collect hospital Electronic
Clinical Quality Measures (eCQM) and Core Clinical Data Elements (CCDE) for hybrid measures.

5. Continue to hold 2 percent of inpatient revenue at-risk (rewards and penalties) and maintain the
pre-set revenue adjustment scale of 0 to 80 percent with cut-point at 41 percent.

a. Retrospectively evaluate 41 percent cut point using more recent data to calculate national
average score for RY 2026 and RY 2027.

b. Based on concurrent analysis of national hospital performance, adjust the RY25 QBR cut point
to 32% to reflect the impact of using pre-COVID performance standards and to ensure that

Maryland hospitals are penalized or rewarded relative to national performance. @y marytand
Qg health services = 25

cost review commission



maryland

health services

cost review commission

Draft Recommendations for Updating the
Quality-Based Reimbursement
Program for Rate Year 2027

October 9, 2024

This document contains the staff draft recommendations for updating the Quality-
Based Reimbursement Program for RY 2027. Comments are due by COB
10/24/2024 and may be submitted to hscrc.quality@maryland.gov.

P: 410.764.2605 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215 hscrc.maryland.gov



Table of Contents

List of Abbreviations 3
Policy Overview 4
Draft Recommendations 4
Introduction 5
Background 9
Overview of the QBR Program 9
Assessment 11
Person and Community Engagement Domain 12
Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (HCAHPS) 12

HCAHPS Improvement Framework 14
Emergency Department Length of Stay 15

Timely Follow-Up After Discharge 19
Disparities in Timely Follow-Up 21

Safety Domain 24
CDC NHSN HAI Measures 24
Patient Safety Indicator Composite (PSI-90) 26

Sepsis Early Management Bundle (Sep-1) 29
Clinical Care Domain 31
Mortality 31

CMS 30-Day Condition-Specific Mortality Measures 31

QBR Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality measure 32

30-Day Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality Measure 33

Digital Measures Near-Term Reporting Requirements 34
Domain and Measure Weighting 36
Revenue Adjustment Methodology 37
Draft Recommendations for RY 2026 QBR Program 38
APPENDIX A: QBR PROGRAM BACKGROUND 1
APPENDIX B: RY 2025 QBR PERFORMANCE BY HOSPITAL 13
APPENDIX C: HCAHPS PATIENT LEVEL DISPARITY ANALYSIS 15
APPENDIX D: HCAHPS LEARNING COLLABORATIVE 20
APPENDIX E: HSCRC EFFORTS TO ADDRESS ED LENGTH OF STAY 22
APPENDIX F: ED LOS MEASURE DEVELOPMENT AND MODELING 27



LIST OF ABBREVIATIONS

AHEAD

APR DRG
CDC
CAUTI
CCDE
CDIF
CLABSI
CMS
DRG
eCQM
ED

ED-1 Measure
ED-2 Measure
EDDIE
FFY
HCAHPS
HSCRC
LOS
MIEMSS
MRSA
NHSN
PQl

QBR

RY

SIR

SSI

TFU
THA/TKA
VBP

State’s Advancing All-Payer Health Equity Approaches and Development
Model

All Patient Refined Diagnosis Related Group

Centers for Disease Control & Prevention

Catheter-associated urinary tract infection

Core Clinical Data Elements (for digital hybrid measures)
Clostridium Difficile Infection

Central Line-Associated Bloodstream Infection

Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services

Diagnosis-Related Group

Electronic Clinical Quality Measure

Emergency Department

Emergency Department Arrival to Departure for Admitted Patients
Time of Order to Admit until Time of Admission for ED Patients
Emergency Department Dramatic Improvement Effort

Federal Fiscal Year

Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems
Health Services Cost Review Commission

Length of Stay

Maryland Institute for Emergency Medical Services Systems
Methicillin-Resistant Staphylococcus Aureus

National Health Safety Network

Prevention Quality Indicators

Quality-Based Reimbursement

Maryland HSCRC Rate Year (Coincides with State Fiscal Year (SFY) July-
Jun; signifies the timeframe in which the rewards and/or penalties would
be assessed)

Standardized Infection Ratio

Surgical Site Infection

Timely Follow Up after Acute Exacerbation of a Chronic Condition
Total Hip and Knee Arthroplasty Risk Standardized Complication Rate
Value-Based Purchasing



PoLicy OVERVIEW

Policy Objective

Policy Solution

Effect on
Hospitals

Effect on Payers/
Consumers

Effect on Health Equity

The quality programs operated by
the Health Services Cost Review
Commission, including the Quality-
Based Reimbursement (QBR)
program, are intended to promote
quality improvement and ensure
that any incentives to constrain
hospital expenditures under the
Total Cost of Care Model do not
result in declining quality of care.
Thus, HSCRC's quality programs
reward quality improvements and
achievements that reinforce the
incentives of the Total Cost of Care
Model, while guarding against
unintended consequences and
penalizing poor performance.

The QBR program
is one of several
pay-for-
performance
quality initiatives
that provide
incentives for
hospitals to
improve and
maintain high-
quality patient
care and value
within a global
budget
framework.

The QBR policy
currently holds
2 percent of
hospital
inpatient
revenue at-risk
for Person and
Community
Engagement,
Safety, and
Clinical Care
outcomes.

This policy ensures
that the quality of
care provided to
consumers is
reflected in the
rate structure of a
hospital’s overall
global budget. The
HSCRC quality
programs are all-
payer in nature
and so improve
quality for all
patients that
receive care at the
hospital.

HSCRC Quality programs (QBR and
Readmission Reduction Incentive
Program)) give hospitals two scores,
one for achievement and one for
improvement; the final score is the
higher of the two scores. Including
improvement allows all hospitals the
potential to earn rewards regardless of
the types of patients served. In
advance of the approval of the RY 2026
policy, staff worked with the Health
Equity Workgroup (HEW) and found
disparities in the Medicare Timely
Follow-Up (TFU) measure by race,
dual-status, and Area Deprivation, and
thus adopted a within hospital
disparity gap improvement metric for
TFU. Going forward, HSCRC staff will
continue to analyze disparities and
propose incentives for reducing them
in the program.

DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS
This document puts forth the RY 2027 Quality-Based Reimbursement (QBR) draft policy

recommendations for consideration. The policy has few changes compared to the RY 2026 approved

recommendations. The main updates are changes to the HCAHPS measures, consistent with the CMS

VBP program, and proposal for the ED LOS performance standards. Staff has and will continue vetting

these recommendations with the Performance Measurement Workgroup (PMWG) and also greatly

benefits from feedback provided by Commissioners and other stakeholders on draft recommendations

and longer-term priorities that should be considered as Maryland transitions to the AHEAD model.

Draft Recommendations for RY 2027 QBR Program:

1. Maintain Domain Weighting as follows for determining hospitals’ overall performance scores:

Person and Community Engagement (PCE) - 60 percent, Safety (NHSN measures) - 30 percent ,

Clinical Care - 10 percent.

a. Within the PCE domain, weight the measures as follows:
i. HCAHPS Top Box:

33.33 Percent




ii. HCAHPS Consistency: 16.67 percent

iii. HCAHPS Linear: 16.67 percent
iv. Timely Follow-Up for Medicare: 5.56 percent
V. Timely Follow-Up for Medicaid: 5.56 percent
Vi. Disparities in Timely Follow-Up for Medicare: 5.56 percent
Vii. Emergency Department Length of Stay: 16.67 percent

b. Within the Safety domain, weight each of the measures equally (i.e., 30 percent divided
by number of measures).
c. Within the Clinical Care domain, weight the inpatient and 30-day mortality measure

equally.
With regard to monitoring reports to track hospital performance:
a. Consider the feasibility of developing a Timely Follow-Up for Behavioral Health measure.
b. Disseminate Sepsis Dashboard.
c. Develop tools to monitor HCAHPS performance by patient and hospital characteristics.
Implement an HCAHPS learning collaborative with hospitals.
Continue collaboration with CRISP and other partners on infrastructure to collect hospital
Electronic Clinical Quality Measures (eCQM) and Core Clinical Data Elements (CCDE) for hybrid
measures.
Continue to hold 2 percent of inpatient revenue at-risk (rewards and penalties) and maintain the
pre-set revenue adjustment scale of 0 to 80 percent with cut-point at 41 percent.
a. Retrospectively evaluate 41 percent cut point using more recent data to calculate national
average score for RY 2026 and RY 2027.
b. Based on concurrent analysis of national hospital performance, adjust the RY25 QBR cut
point to 32% to reflect the impact of using pre-COVID performance standards and to

ensure that Maryland hospitals are penalized or rewarded relative to national

performance.




INTRODUCTION

Maryland hospitals are funded under a population-based revenue system with a fixed annual revenue cap
set by the Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC or Commission) under the All-
Payer Model agreement with the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) beginning in 2014,
and continuing under the current Total Cost of Care (TCOC) Model agreement, which took effect in 2019.
Under the global budget system, hospitals are incentivized to shift services to the most appropriate care
setting and simultaneously have revenue at risk under Maryland’s unique, all-payer, pay-for-performance
quality programs; this allows hospitals to keep any savings they earn via better patient experiences,
reduced hospital-acquired infections, or other improvements in care. Maryland systematically revises its
quality and value-based payment programs to better achieve the state’s overarching goals: more efficient,
higher quality care, and improved population health. It is important that the Commission ensure that any
incentives to constrain hospital expenditures do not result in declining quality of care. Thus, the
Commission’s quality programs reward quality improvements and achievements that reinforce the
incentives of the global budget system, while guarding against unintended consequences and penalizing

poor performance.

The Quality-Based Reimbursement (QBR) program is one of several quality pay-for-performance
initiatives that provide incentives for hospitals to improve and maintain high-quality patient care and value
over time. The program currently holds 2 percent of hospital revenue at-risk for performance by hospitals
on patient experience, clinical care, and safety. In RY 2024, the net revenue adjustments statewide for
QBR were -$63,871,949. HSCRC staff has evaluated the reward/penalty scale for the performance
period and determined that an adjustment is needed; staff is recommending to lower the cut point form
41% to 32% based on National performance. For purposes of the RY 2027 QBR draft Policy, staff vetted
the updated draft policy with the Performance Measurement Workgroup (PMWG), the standing advisory

group that meets monthly to discuss Quality policies.

Under the TCOC Model, Maryland must request a waiver each year from CMS hospital pay-for-
performance programs, e.g., the Value Based Purchasing (VBP) program for which QBR is the State
analog. CMS assesses and grants these waivers based on a report showing that Maryland’s results
continue to meet or surpass those of the Nation. Currently, CMMI is reviewing the RY 2025 waiver
request and any feedback will be included in the final policy. However, based on the FY 2024 VBP
waiver request, and as discussed further in the assessment section of this policy, CMS continues to note
Maryland's lagging performance on the Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and
Systems (HCAHPS) survey, and also noted Maryland’s relatively high rate of Hysterectomy Surgical Site
Infections, and Maryland’s need to focus on areas such as the Medicaid population, ED throughput, and

non-hospital settings of care.



Additionally, with the onset of the TCOC Model Agreement, each program was overhauled to ensure they
support the goals of the Model. For the QBR policy, the overhaul was completed during 2021, which
entailed an extensive stakeholder engagement effort to address CMS and other stakeholders’ concerns.’
Additional changes were also approved in the RY 2026 policy, such as reintroduction of an emergency
department length of stay measure. This year’s draft policy updates include changes to the HCAHPS
measures consistent with changes to the National VBP program, and updates to the ED LOS
performance standards. Figure 1 provides the RY 2027 QBR domain and measure updates, and related

updates for future program years.

Figure 1. QBR Updates

Domain/ Measure RY 2027 Future program years

Person and Community Engagement domain

HCAHPS e Continue to weight HCAHPS top box scores e Continue to use HCAHPS patient-level data

more heavily than the CMS VBP program;
evaluate efficacy of including HCAHPS linear
scores

Continue to use HCAHPS patient level data from
the Maryland Health Care Commission (MHCC)
for additional analytics, including on disparities,
and hospital improvement

Collaborate with hospitals, MHA and other
stakeholders on learning collaborative to share
best practices with evidence that implementation
improves HCAHPS scores

Modify scoring of HCAHPS Survey consistent
with the CMS VBP program; beginning in CY
2025, CMS will not score the Responsive of Staff
or Care Transition sub-measures.?

from the MHCC for additional analytics,
including on disparities, and hospital
improvement.

e Continue, through designated staff support,
to work with stakeholders to facilitate sharing
of best practices

e Consider adoption of additional question(s)
linked with best practices with evidence of
improving HCAHPS performance in the
payment program after CY 2024.

e Modify scoring on the HCAHPS Survey
measure for the RY 2028 through RY 2029
program years to only score on the six
unchanged dimensions of the survey while
updates to the survey are adopted and
publicly reported in the Hospital IQR
Program.

' See the RY 2024 QBR policy for additional information on the findings from the QBR Redesign.

2 The HCAHPS Survey will be updated by adding three new sub-measures—“Care Coordination,” “Restfulness of Hospital

Environment,” and “Information about Symptoms”—which will be publicly reported starting October 2026, with the intent to adopt the
measures in the VBP Program in 2030. The updates also include removing the “Care Transition” sub-measure from Hospital Compare
in January 2026 and revising the “Responsiveness of Hospital Staff” sub-measure by removing “Call Button” questions and adding a
new “Get Help” question beginning January 2025.



https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/QBR%20RY%202024%20Final%20Approved%20File.pdf
https://www.cms.gov/newsroom/fact-sheets/fy-2025-hospital-inpatient-prospective-payment-system-ipps-and-long-term-care-hospital-prospective

Domain/ Measure RY 2027

Emergency e Collect ED length of stay measures through
department (ED) HSCRC case-mix submissions
wait times

e Collaborate with the new ED Wait Time
Reduction Commission to develop a statewide
improvement goal

e Develop performance standards for RY 2027
that support statewide improvement goal

e Develop risk-adjusted attainment for ED LOS for
monitoring or payment

e Develop separate policy on ED-Hospital Best
Practices to incentivize structural and process
measures to support improved hospital
throughput

Timely Follow-up e Continue to include the TFU measure for

measure Medicaid(added in the RY 2025) and the TFU
within-hospital disparity measure beginning with
Medicare (added in RY 2026) to reduce
disparities and support achievement of the SIHIS
goal for Timely Follow-up

e Explore behavioral health data sources and
ways to monitor follow up following a
hospitalization for behavioral health

Safety domain

SEP-1: Severe e Monitor hospital performance on the Sepsis
Sepsis and Septic Bundle measure and implement a hospital-level
Shock: “Sepsis Dashboard” that includes inpatient and
Management 30-day mortality, 30-day readmissions, and the
Bundle Sepsis PPC and PSI| measures

CDC National e [n light of the work group's findings that

Health Safety demonstrate that Maryland is on par with
Network national performance, continue the 30% domain

weight to better align with the National VBP
Program; focus on improvement on current
measures

Clinical Care domain
Mortality

e Maintain IP and 30-day all-cause, all-payer
mortality measures weighted equally in the
domain

e Begin implementation of data collection on an
all-payer 30-day digital Hybrid Hospital Wide
Mortality measure using the digital measures
infrastructure

Total hip °
arthroplasty/total
knee arthroplasty
(THA/TKA)

Monitor THA/TKA measure performance
removed from QBR in RY2026

e Continue to explore options for expanding
measurement of THA/TKA complications to all-
payers and outpatient cases

Future program years

e Continue to evaluate ED length of stay
measures, and use of the QBR program to
incentivize improvement

e Adopt risk-adjusted ED LOS measure for
attainment into QBR

e Provide staff support to the State’s ED Wait
Time Reduction Commission

e Implement and continue to evaluate ED-
Hospital Best Practice measures for
monitoring and/or payment

e Evaluate the ongoing TFU rates for
Medicare and Medicaid as well as the within-
hospital disparity gap measure, to ensure
SIHIS goal is met

e Consider feasibility, based on data
availability, of adding a measure that
includes behavioral health patients

e Continue monitoring hospital performance on
the Sepsis Dashboard measures and
consider adjustments to payment measures if
performance declines

e Continue to analyze Maryland trends
compared to National performance.

e Explore working with CDC to add more
innovative and less burdensome “digital”
measures.

e Monitor the Medicare and all-payer digital
Hybrid Hospital Wide Mortality measures
using the digital measures infrastructure in
advance of planning for implementation of
an all-payer hybrid measure.

e Continue to develop outpatient quality of
care strategy using THA/TKA as exemplar

e Explore opportunities for Patient Reported
Outcome Measures (PROMs)




BACKGROUND
Overview of the QBR Program

The QBR Program, implemented in 2010, includes potential scaled penalties or rewards of up to 2
percent of inpatient revenue. The program assesses hospital performance against National standards for
measures included in the CMS VBP program and Maryland-specific standards for other measures unique
to our all-payer system. Figure 2 presents RY 2026 and proposed RY 2027 QBR measures and domain

weights compared to those used in the VBP Program.

Figure 2. RY 2026 and Proposed RY 2027 QBR measures and Domain Weights Compared to the
CMS VBP Program

Maryland RY 2026 and Proposed RY

2027 QBR domain
weights and measures

CMS VBP domain

weights and measures

Clinical Care

10 percent

Two measures: all-cause, all-condition
inpatient mortality; all-cause, all-condition
30-day mortality

25 percent

Five measures: Four condition-
specific mortality measures;
THA/TKA complications

Person and 60 percent 25 percent
Community ¢ Eight HCAHPS categories (RY 2026) Six HCAHPS measures top box
Engagement Six HCAHPS categories (RY 2027), score and consistency
top box score and consistency, 4
categories for linear scores ;
e TFU (Medicare, Medicaid, disparities
improvement);
e EDLOS
Safety 30 percent 25 percent
Six measures: Five CDC NHSN hospital- Six measures: Five CDC NHSN HAI
acquired infection (HAI) measure measure categories; Sep 1 Bundle
categories; all-payer PSI 90 measure
Efficiency n.a. 25 percent

One measure: Medicare spending
per beneficiary

The QBR Program assesses hospital performance by comparing each measure to National or State

performance standards. For all measures, except the ED LOS measure?, the performance standards

range from the 50th percentile of hospital performance (threshold) to the mean of the top decile

(benchmark). Each measure is assigned a score of zero to ten points, then the points are summed and

divided by the total number of available points, and weighted by the domain weight. A total score of 0

percent means that performance on all measures is below the performance threshold and has not

3 The ED LOS performance standards are still being finalized for CY 2024/RY 2026 performance.




improved, whereas a total score of 100 percent means performance on all measures is at or better than
the mean of the top decile (about the 95th percentile). This scoring method is the same as that used for
the national VBP Program. But unlike the VBP Program, which ranks all hospitals relative to one another
and assesses rewards and penalties to hospitals in a revenue neutral manner retrospectively based on
the distribution of final scores, the QBR Program uses a preset scale to determine each hospital’s
revenue adjustment and is not necessarily revenue neutral. This gives Maryland hospitals predictability
and an incentive to work together to achieve high quality of care, instead of competing with one another
for better rank.

Historically, Maryland hospitals have low scores on the QBR program in part due to HCAHPS
performance. In order to ensure Maryland hospitals are not rewarded for subpar performance, the preset
revenue adjustment scale for the entire QBR program ranges from 0 to 80 percent, regardless of the
score of the highest-performing hospital in the state (i.e., the scale is not relative to Maryland
performance so that poor performance compared to the Nation is not rewarded). The cut-point at which a
hospital earns rewards or receives a penalty has been based on an analysis of the national VBP Program
scores. For RY 2024 and RY 2025, federal fiscal years 2016—2021 were used to calculate the average
national score using Maryland QBR domain weights (without the Efficiency domain). This resulted in a
cut-point around 41 percent (range of scores was from 38.5 to 42.7). However, due to the COVID Public
Health Emergency (PHE) the RY 2024 through RY 2026 policies indicated that the cut point would be
reassessed retrospectively with more recent National data. While this is inconsistent with the guiding
principle to provide hospitals with a way to monitor revenue adjustments during the performance year, it
protects Maryland hospitals from excessive penalties due to changes in performance post-COVID
compared to national hospitals. The RY 2026 approved policy lowered the RY24 QBR cut point to 32
percent based on more analyses on the impact of pre-COVID performance standards on National hospital
performance. The RY 2027 policy also provides recommendations for the RY 2025 final cut point based
on more recent analyses. Given performance standards are now post-COVID, staff believes scores may
be higher beginning in RY 2026 than in RYs 2024 or RY 2025.

As a recap, the method for calculating hospital QBR scores and associated inpatient revenue
adjustments has remained essentially unchanged since RY 2019. It involves:

1. Assessing performance on each measure in the domain.
Standardizing measure scores relative to performance standards.

Calculating the total points a hospital earned divided by the total possible points for each domain.

r ow N

Finalizing the total hospital QBR score (0 to 100 percent) by weighting the domains, based on the

overall percentage or importance the HSCRC placed on each domain.

10



5. Converting the total hospital QBR scores into revenue adjustments using the preset revenue

adjustment scale (range of 0 to 80 percent).

This method is shown in Figure 3.

Figure 3. RY 2026 QBR Policy Methodology Overview

Performance Measures Standardized Measure Hospital QBR Score &
Scores Revenue Adjustments
Individual Measures are Hospital QBR Score is Sum of
Domain and Measures: Converted to 0-10 Points: Earned Points / Possible Points
Person and Community Engagement-— with Domain Weights Applied
-8 HCAHPS categories; Points for Attainment Compare Scale Ranges from 0-80%
-Timely Follow Up (TFU) Medicare and Performance to a National
Medicaid & TFU Disparity Gap* Threshold (median) and Max Penalty 2% & Reward +2%
-ED LOS, admitted patients* Benchmark (average of top 10%) (ALL HOSPITALS HAVE
Safety— 6 Measures: OPPORTUNITY TO EARN
=5 CDC NHSN HAI Categories; REWARD)
-AHRQ PSI 90 All-payer Threshold Benchmark A el ol e
Clinical Care- ‘ | | Set Scale Score | Adjustment
--Mortality Inpatient, 30-day All-payer* |
0 2 A 6 8 10 Max Penalty 0% -2.00%
10% -1.51%
Points for Improvement Compare 20% -1.02%
Performance to Base (historical = - 30% -0.54%
Penalty/Rewar
Gi perf) and Benchmark Cutpoint e P
Hist. Performance Benchmark 50% 0.46%
T T 1 1] 60% 0.97%
o 2 4 6 8 9 70% 1.49%
i Person and Community Engagement Max Reward 80%+ 2.00%
® Clinical Care Final Points are Better of
= Safety *New in RY 2026| | Improvement or Attainment

Appendix A contains more background and technical details about the QBR Program. Appendix B
contains the by-hospital QBR results for RY 2025 with the 41 percent cut point and a proposed revised
cut point of 32 percent. With the 41 percent cut point, 36 hospitals would receive penalties totalling ~-
$66M and 5 hospitals would receive rewards totalling ~$1.6M yielding a State net total of ~-$64.4M.
These statewide results are similar to those awarded prior to COVID. With the proposed revised 32
percent cut point, 24 hospitals would receive penalties totalling ~$33M and 17 hospitals would receive

rewards totalling ~$11M yielding a State new total of ~$22M.

Assessment

The purpose of this section is to present an assessment, using the most current data available, of
Maryland’s performance on measures used in the QBR program, compared to the Nation when national

data is available. Finally, this draft policy provides recommended measure and domain weights; while the

cut point for rewards and penalties is discussed, the modeling of scores will be included in the final policy.




Person and Community Engagement Domain

The Person and Community Engagement domain currently measures performance using the HCAHPS
patient survey, three measures of timely follow-up (TFU) after discharge for an acute exacerbation of a
chronic condition (one measure for Medicare fee-for-service (FFS), one measure for Medicaid
beneficiaries, and one measure on within-hospital disparity gap reduction for Medicare FFS

beneficiaries). In addition, an ED LOS measure for patients admitted to the hospital (non-psychiatric) was
added to the program in RY 2026. This domain currently accounts for 60 percent of the overall QBR

score.

Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (HCAHPS)

The HCAHPS survey is a standardized, publicly reported survey that measures patient’s perceptions of
their hospital experience. In keeping with the national VBP Program, the QBR Program scores hospitals
using top box scores (e.g., the percent of respondents who indicate the highest performance category) to
calculate improvement and attainment points (0-10), and counts the points for whichever is highest,
across the following HCAHPS domains beginning in CY 2025 (RY 2027 policy performance period): (1)
communication with nurses, (2) communication with doctors, (3) communication about medicine, (4)
hospital cleanliness and quietness, (5) discharge information, and (6) overall hospital rating. Staff notes
that the two HCAHPS sub measures that include the composite care transition measure and
responsiveness of hospital staff measure are being updated by CMS beginning in CY 2025 and therefore
cannot be included in the HCAHPS scoring for CYs 2025 through 2027 (VBP FFY 2027 through FFY
2029).4

The QBR Program also scores hospitals separately on HCAHPS consistency?; the lowest performing
HCAHPS domain score is compared to the floor (worst performer in the Nation in the base) and the
achievement threshold performance level. If the worst domain score is above the achievement threshold
then all domains are above, and the full 20 points are earned. If the lowest domain score is above the
floor but less than threshold, partial points of 1-19 are earned. If the lowest scoring domain score is less

than or equal to the floor, zero consistency points are awarded.

4Beginning in CY 2025, the HCAHPS Survey will be updated by adding three new sub-measures—“Care Coordination,” “Restfulness
of Hospital Environment,” and “Information about Symptoms”—which will be publicly reported starting October 2026. The updates
also include removing the “Care Transition” sub-measure from Hospital Compare in January 2026 and revising the “Responsiveness
of Hospital Staff” sub-measure by removing “Call Button” questions and adding a new “Get Help” question beginning January
2025.Because of these changes to the survey, VBP scoring on the HCAHPS Survey measure FY 2027 through FY 2029 program
years will be modified to only score on the six unchanged dimensions of the survey while updates to the survey are adopted and
publicly reported in the Hospital IQR Program.

5 For more information on the national VBP Program’s performance standards, please see
https://qualitynet.cms.gov/inpatient/hvbp/performance.



https://qualitynet.cms.gov/inpatient/hvbp/performance

In RY 2024, HCAHPS linear scores were added as 20% of the PCE domain (i.e., 10 percent of overall
QBR score) for the following domains: the nurse communication, doctor communication, responsiveness
of staff, and care transition. The addition of the linear measures was designed to further incent focus on
HCAHPS by providing credit for improvements along the continuum and not just improvements in top box
scores. Based on stakeholder feedback from last year, HSCRC staff recommends continuing the linear
measures for RY 2027 at the current weight. However, with the modifications to the HCAHPS survey
beginning in CY 2025 that exclude the scores for Staff Responsiveness and Care Transition sub-
measures, staff proposes to replace these measures in the linear score performance calculations with
Overall Hospital Rating, and to vet with the PMWG an alternate sub-measure for inclusion. Staff has
included the communication about medicine for modeling scores as it is one domain where the State
could improve. As staff noted in previous years’ QBR policies, we will assess if adding the linear
measures helps improve top-box scores over the next few years. If top box scores do not improve, staff

will recommend reducing the weight or removing the linear measures in future rate years.

CMS Care Compare data on HCAHPS top box and linear performance through 6/30/23 reveal the

following, as illustrated in Figures 4 and 5 below:

e Both the Nation and Maryland declined slightly from the base to the performance periods on top
box and linear scores for all of the HCAHPS categories.

e For both top box and linear scores, Maryland lags behind the Nation in the base and the
performance periods.

e For “Discharge Information Provided”, Maryland and the Nation performed most similarly on top

box scores.

Figure 4. Top Box HCAHPS Results: Maryland Compared to the Nation, CY 2019 vs 7/1/22-
6/30/23




HCAHPS Top-Box Measure Results: Maryland compared to Nation
100
90

®

0

0 ||“ |“| | ““ ||
0 || | |||| “ll |||| ||
u d

nderstoo

% of Surveys with TopBox Score
= N w S ol D ~
o o o o o o

Nurse. br . Staff. Medication Discharge Post- . 9/10 Overall
Communicat Communicat Responsiven X A . Clean/Quiet .
. . Explained  Info Provided Discharge Ranking
ion ion ess
Info
mMD Base CY19 76 77 61 61 86 49 63.5 66
m MD Performance FY23 74 75 55 56 85 48 61 65
m Nation Base CY19 81 82 70 66 87 54 69 73
m Nation Performance FY23 79 80 66 62 86 52 67.5 71

mMDBaseCY19  mMD Performance FY23 m Nation Base CY19 m Nation Performance FY23

Figure 5. Linear Measure, Maryland Compared to the Nation, CY 2019 vs 7/1/22-6/30/23

Averages of Linear Measures, MD vs Nation

Nurse Communication Dr Communication Staff Responsiveness Care Transition

95

9

o

8

(&3]

8

o

~l
[45]

% of Surveys with TopBox Score

70

m MD Base CY19 m MD Performance FY23 m Nation Base CY19 m Nation Performance FY23

Starting in CY 2022, MHCC began collecting patient level HCAHPS data from Maryland hospitals. This
patient level data is critical for identifying opportunities within hospitals at a more granular level, including
identification of disparities. See Appendix C for more information on the data collection and results

indicating there are disparities by race in completion of the survey, with the black hospital population

underrepresented and the white hospital population overrepresented compared to their proportion of the




total population, and the black population indicating an overall lower rating of care, particularly in the

Maternity service line.

HCAHPS Improvement Framework

One important area CMS has identified in feedback to the Commission is the need for targeting
improvement in HCAHPS in the Person and Community Engagement domain. CMS has recommended
that the State consider implementing a Statewide HCAHPS performance improvement initiative that
leverages input from providers, industry experts, and other stakeholders to develop future improvement
goals. Further, CMS noted they are looking for the State to further develop these strategies and commit to
creating a framework for setting HCAHPS performance improvement goals for future performance years.
To improve HCAHPS performance as a state, the HSCRC is co-leading a Patient Experience Learning
Collaborative with the Maryland Hospital Association (MHA). As outlined in Appendix D the goal of the
learning collaborative is to compile best practices to help Maryland hospitals improve patient experience
and attain higher HCAHPS scores. The learning collaborative will accomplish this task by analyzing
patient-level HCAHPS data, learning best practices from national organizations that consult hospital
providers on improving patient experience, and through quality improvement initiatives using Plan, Do,
Act Study (PDSA) cycles. HSCRC has brought on an HCAHPS expert with hospital executive leadership
experience as Chief Patient Experience Officer to lead the HCAHPS improvement framework
implementation. Based on Maryland’s overall lagged HCAHPS performance and MHCC'’s analysis, it is of
great import to focus on disparities in HCAHPS results; staff will examine disparities, for example, in the
response rates and the maternity service line responses for HCAHPS, as well as other related process

and outcome measures.

Emergency Department Length of Stay

ED length of stay (LOS)--i.e., wait times—has been a significant concern in Maryland, predating
Maryland’s adoption of hospital global budgets instituted in 2014,¢ with multiple underlying causes and
potential negative impacts (e.g., poorer patient experience, quality, care outcomes). Thus, the
Commission approved the addition of an ED wait time or length of stay (LOS) measure in the RY 2026
QBR program. Previously published and available data on CMS Care Compare reveals Maryland’s poor
performance compared to the Nation on both inpatient and outpatient ED measures (i.e., higher wait

times for both those admitted to the inpatient hospital and those discharged home), as shown in Figure 6.

6 Under alternative payment models, such as hospital global budgets or other hospital capitated models, some
stakeholders have voiced concerns that there may be an incentive to reduce resources that lead to ED-hospital
throughput issues.




Figure 6. Emergency Department Performance on CMS ED Wait Time Measures

ED-1b: Arrival to Admission for Admitted Patients ED-2b: Decision to Admit until Admission for Admitted
400 patients
T 350 R 160
E 300 _ 140 m
£ 35p o % 120
o E
£ 200 £ 100 ,___4___,___._..—-—-—--\/
g 150 P
= E 6o
s 100 i
=e==S5Statewide =e=National T a0
50 = —s—Statewide -—e—National
20
0 [1]
CY2012 CY2013Q3 CY2014  CY2015  CY2016  CY2017  Cy2018

CY2012 CY201303 CY2014  CY2015  CY2016  CY2017  CY2018  CY2019
Rolling 12M Ralling 12M

OP-18b: Arrival to Discharge for Discharged Patients Measure
300 D Measure Definition

Median time from ED arrival to departure

<

I, ED-1 . .
: for admitted patients
S 150 '—._‘_‘_‘_._._._\_‘_‘_’_'_'_'_"_,_,_.—ﬁ—'_'_'_'—‘——.
- Median admit decision time to ED departure
z —e—Statewide —a=Hationa ED-2 time for admitted patients
50
Median time of ED arrival to departure for
Y2014 CY2015 Y2016 Y7 CY1019 Jul-Dec Y2021 Y2201 Op_ls

discharged patients

2020

As illustrated in Figure 7 below, based on the most current data available, the OP-18b wait time for
discharged patients has increased slightly for both Maryland and the Nation from the base to the
performance year, and Maryland wait times continue to be significantly above those of the Nation for both

the base and performance years.
Figure 7. Maryland and National Performance on ED Wait Times for Discharged Patients

OP-18b Performance, MD and Nation

300

250
2

. 200
s
@

£ 150
=
=
]

= 100
=

i

0

MD Mation

W Base [CY21) o Performance [July 2022- June 2023)




Furthermore, all but a couple of hospitals in Maryland perform worse than the national average. Figure 8,
shows the ED length of stay for non-psychiatric patients who are admitted (ED1b) for 2018 (last year this

was reported) and for those who are discharged home (OP-18b) using the most recently available data.

Figure 8. Maryland by Hospital and National Performance on ED Wait Times

CMS EDMb Average (median)time patients spent in the emergency department, before they
were admitted to the hospital as an inpatient
2018

A Minutes

Median ED LOS

A g EBEgEnEHAEEEAREE 8 LS

Qi

W BN CH N N O

MDD Hospitals Median  =——MNational Median

Qutpatient ED Wait Times (non-psych) 10/1/2022 - 09/30/2023
450

400
350
300
250

200

150

Median ED LOS in Minutes

100

50

210039 I S

0 |
—
=
2
o~

210019 I

BNSR3 2383388583338 388R03388388333888838383932¢

o o o o o o o o o oo oo oo o o o0 00 0o o 0000 oao o o oo oo oo

™ = o ™ o A H A A i e T B B T B e B e B e o B B | Ll e B B B

Lo I o B o B B o B o' (o Aot B o B ot B o VA ot I o R oV ) Lo B o B o B o A o A oo N o Y oV A o B ot N ot I o I o M [ I o B ot B o B o B o B o I )
MDD Hospitals Median  =——National Median




Based on these results, staff believes all hospitals in Maryland have an opportunity to improve.
Furthermore, there has been increased public scrutiny on Maryland’s poor performance in ED Wait times,
as evidenced by the several initiatives that have been underway over the last couple years to promote
understanding Maryland’s ED length of stay and promote improvement (e.g., MHA Legislative Taskforce,
EDDIE). | n the 2024 Maryland General Assembly Session, a new ED Wait Time Reduction Commission
was established. The ED Commission is co-chaired by the HSCRC Executive Director and staffed by the
HSCRC. The ED Commission will work on hospital and wider access issues to improve hospital
throughput and will develop a State goal for improvement in ED wait times. The QBR ED LOS measure
is one of the HSCRC levers to assist with this effort and will build off of the goals set by the Commission.

Appendix E provides additional information on ED initiatives and the ED Commission.

For RY 2026, the QBR ED measure and performance standards were under development during the
performance year through a stakeholder subgroup process. Recently, the hospitals have expressed
concern that the ED LOS measure should have been monitored and not in payment for the CY 2024
performance period, since the exact measure and performance standards were unknown. Despite not
knowing the exact measure or performance standards, hospitals were aware of the need to improve ED
LOS since prior to the start of CY 2024. However, in recognition of the hospital's concerns, staff plans to
recommend performance standards that give credit to hospitals for maintaining or improving the ED
length of stay during CY 2024. This will be discussed as part of the ED update at the October
Commission meeting, with the expectation that the decision on performance standards will be determined
by the end of the month. Appendix F provides details on the development of the ED LOS measure and
modeling estimates of the RY 2025 results with the ED LOS measure included, using the latest proposal
on performance standards and estimates of hospital performance. Of note, the hospitals have just
completed submitting the first round of historical data at a patient level for the calculation of the ED LOS
based on data submission requirements that were provided to the industry in May 2024. Staff will be
analyzing this data and will provide updates on the data collection process in the final RY2027 QBR

policy.
In terms of the RY 2027 measure and performance standards, the staff propose the following:

e Maintain the ED1b measure in the QBR PCE domain and weight at 10 percent of the QBR
program (same as RY 2026)

e Continue to assess hospital on improvement on ED1b

e Develop risk-adjusted ED LOS measure for attainment

e Monitor attainment and consider retrospectively adopting attainment in the policy

e Set improvement standards based on State improvement goal established by the ED
Commission

e Including observation stays (23 hrs+) as inpatient admissions in the ED1b measure

18



While the staff are deferring the CY 2025 performance standards, hospitals should be aware that an
improvement in ED LOS is expected during CY 2025. The final RY 2027 QBR policy will include

additional details and potentially modeling of performance standard options.

Timely Follow-Up After Discharge

The HSCRC introduced this National Quality Forum-endorsed measure for Medicare beneficiaries into the
RY 2023 QBR Program within the PCE domain, expanded the measure to Medicaid in RY 2025, and
added a within-hospital disparity gap measure in RY 2026. The measure for RY 2026 assesses the
percentage of ED visits, observation stays, and inpatient admissions for one of six conditions in which a
follow-up was received within the time frame recommended by clinical practice.” Staff recommends
continuing these measures in the RY2027 QBR program and notes that the measure was updated in the
spring of 2024 by the Partnership for Quality Measurement.? Specifically,”qualifying” follow up visits that
contribute to the numerator are those for which follow-up care was received after the discharge date

within the timeframe recommended by clinical practice guidelines, as detailed below:

® Hypertension: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients or within

30 days for medium-acuity patients

® Asthma: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge

® Heart Failure: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge

® Coronary Artery Disease: Follow up within 7 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients
or within 6 weeks for low-acuity patients (defined by ICD 10 codes)

® Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease: Follow up within 30 days of the date of discharge

® Diabetes: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients

The Medicare TFU measure is also included in the Care Transition SIHIS domain with the goal of
achieving a 75 percent follow-up rate by the end of 2026.° Figure 9 shows Maryland’s performance over
time for each chronic condition and all conditions combined within the Medicare population. For all

conditions, there was a slight increase in Medicare rates from in 2018 to 2023 (70.85% to 71.23%)

7 The measure currently assesses the percentage of ED visits, observation stays, and inpatient admissions for one of six conditions
in which a follow-up was received within the time frame recommended by clinical practice: Hypertension (follow-up within seven days),
Asthma (follow-up within 14 days), Heart failure (follow-up within 14 days), Coronary artery disease (follow-up within 14 days), Chronic
obstructive pulmonary disease (follow-up within 30 days), Diabetes (follow-up within 30 days).

8 In the spring of 2024, the measure was reviewed and re-endorsed through Battelle’s Partnership for Quality Measurement (PQM).
As a designated Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) certified consensus-based entity, Battelle’s PQM uses a
consensus-based process involving a variety of experts - clinicians, patients, measure experts, and health information technology
specialists - to ensure informed and thoughtful endorsement reviews of qualified measures. See the Battelle PQM website for more
information about the measure.

9The SIHIS goal is to achieve a 75 percent TFU rate for Medicare FFS beneficiaries across the six specified conditions and respective
time frames.



https://www.cms.gov/
https://p4qm.org/measures/3455

across all conditions; for asthma, CHF, COPD, diabetes, and hypertension there were increases in the

rates of timely follow-up; however, for CAD there was a slight decrease in follow-up (-0.87%).

Figure 9. Medicare FFS: Maryland Timely Follow-Up by Condition '

Medicare FFS: MD TFU Performance by Chronic Condition

90.00%
80.00%

70.00%
60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

ASTHMA CAD COPD DIABETES TOTAL
2018 61.76% 73.85% 72.12% 79.32% 80.60% 55.02% 70.85%
W2023 63.77% 72.98% 73.31% 80.69% 83.18% 55.95% 71.23%

m 2018 m2023

While some stakeholders have raised concerns around the follow-up times by condition, it is important to
note that Maryland and the Nation are being measured on the same timeframes and the expectation is
not 100 percent follow-up. Figure 10 shows the annual performance on the total TFU measure for
Maryland and the Nation (national data is based on the Chronic Condition Warehouse 5 percent sample).
Comparing 2018 to 2023, the Nation has seen a 2.29 percent increase and Maryland has seen a 0.54
percent increase in timely follow-up rates; however, Maryland still performed about 4 percent better than
the Nation in 2023.

Figure 10. Medicare-only: Timely Follow-Up across All Conditions

TFU Rates
CY2018 CY2019 CY2020 CY2021 CY2022 CY2023

Maryland 70.85% 71.45% 67.90% 70.07% 70.59% 71.23%

19 Maryland numbers are claims-based and built on the Claim and Claim Line Feed with a four-month runout.
CAD = coronary artery disease, CCW = Chronic Conditions Data Warehouse; CHF = coronary heart failure; COPD
= chronic obstructive pulmonary disease; HTN = hypertension.

20



US 66.82% 69.00% 64.75% 67.68% 67.26% 68.35%

As part of the 2021 SIHIS proposal, staff said they would explore expanding the TFU rates for chronic
conditions to other payers and adding follow-up after a hospitalization for behavioral health. In CY 2022,
staff worked with CRISP and Maryland Medicaid to provide hospitals monthly Medicaid Timely Follow-Up
reports on the CRS portal. In RY 2025, the HSCRC introduced the Medicaid TFU measure and
recommends continuing it in the RY2027 QBR program weighted the same as the Medicare measure but
assessed separately due to large differences in the rates. Figure 11 shows Maryland’s performance over

time for each chronic condition and all conditions combined for Medicaid patients.

Figure 11. Maryland Medicaid Timely Follow-Up by Condition

Medicaid (FFS & MCQO}: MD TFU Performance by Chronic Condition
80.00%

70.00%

60.00%
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%

0.00%

Asthma COFPD Diabetes Total

HFY 2022 CY 2023

Staff is continuing to work to understand the Medicare and Medicaid behavioral health data to create a

Timely Follow-Up monitoring report for Behavioral Health.

Disparities in Timely Follow-Up

In the Summer of CY 2022, staff convened a Health Equity Workgroup to review Maryland’s quality
measures stratified by social demographic factors to glean disparities. For the QBR program, staff
stratified the Timely Follow-Up measure by race, dual-eligibility status, and Area Deprivation Index (ADI).

Results of this stratification analysis found marked disparities on all three factors. Given that the State did

21



not meet the 2021 Year 3 Milestone SIHIS Target and the overwhelming evidence of disparities in this
measure, HSCRC staff developed a timely-follow up disparity gap metric similar to the readmissions
disparity gap measure that was added to the PCE domain in RY 2026. The timely follow-up disparity gap
metric takes the patient-level social exposures of race, dual eligibility status, and ADI and estimates the
association between these social exposures and the likelihood of receiving a follow-up in the
recommended timeframe. Based on this analysis, a TFU Patient Adversity Index score (TFU PAl) is
assigned to each patient and hospitals are then assessed on the TFU rate for low and high PAI patients
(i.e., the within-hospital disparity gap is the difference between these rates). The performance metric for
RY 2027 would be the change in the TFU disparity gap from 2018 to 2025. Staff modeled the TFU
disparity gap improvement using CY 2018 to CY 2023 and proposes to use this data to set the standards
for improvement in the disparity gap for RY 2027.

Figure 12 shows the TFU disparity gaps by hospital in CY 2023. The median gap between low and high
PAI patients is 7.74 percent, with a range of 3.54-11.60 percent indicating all hospitals have a gap and
there is variation across hospitals.

Figure 12. By Hospital TFU Disparity Gap, CY 2023

TFU Disparity Gap, CY 2023
90.00%
80.00% ] . *
] . *® c0e *
L] L]
. * * 8 > ® s * ™ ] * 5 "
* o * 5 * @ o * ] . ®
o e B e @
70.00% g . L] e ® 0 * e
" E R K. ® & & & B @
s s a8 0@ e ® &0 0 @
o PO 000
. L
60.00% ®
50.00%
40.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
0.00%
o T oV I B Y = T o IR T e ST T Y e IO o T T Y S T < o o O Y = O = o T ¥ Y S o T o T = e N O O o L o N T o RO o N O o T oo T o [ = O -
P 9 9 = MR T oW o e L = = I I B o — N B — - E-R R - - -
- e R s [ e | o R e T e I e - o o o o oo o - L e Y s [ e | | Y e R o | L e Y s [ e | o R T e I e - L e Y e [ e | L R I s = B =
R — A | =N ] == == R — I I A
= o~ o = = = = o o A = o = = N = = - o o= o H = = A=
o o N Lo I ot I et I o o N N N o o N N N ™l o N N N od o N Lo I ot I ot I 2 od
eHEhPAl @ Low PA|

22



As illustrated in Figure 13 below, 18 hospitals have seen progress in the reduction of disparities in timely
follow-up thus far in 2024 compared to 2021. However, 23 hospitals saw increases in their disparities with
two hospitals seeing almost 60 percent increases. To continue incentivizing hospitals to improve on the
disparities experienced by their patients, staff proposes to continue use of this measure in the QBR
program in the PCE domain. Because the overall goal is improvement and the performance metric is the
percent change over time, this measure is assessed using the attainment methodology (i.e., we do not
measure whether there was improvement on the change in the disparity gap, instead we measure
whether or not the improvement made meets and/or exceeds the set performance standards). However,
as stated above, staff proposes to use the change in the TFU disparity gap from 2018 to 2023, to
prospectively set the attainment standards. The threshold and benchmark are to be calculated as the
median percent and average for the top 10th percentile of performers respectively, on the change in

disparities from CY 2018 to CY 2025 (consistent with how VBP calculates other performance standards).

Figure 13. By Hospital Improvements in TFU Disparity Gap, 2024 YTD vs 2021

% Change in TFU Disparities 2024 YTD vs. 2021

80.00%
60.00%

40.00%

[T
-20.00%

-40.00%

210028
210029
210037
210043
210023
210065
210040
210039
210049
210024
210061

210004
210063
210038
210034
210016
210032
210019
210048
210015
210035
210006
210017
210011
210022
210033
210060
210008
210005
210027
210002
210056
210051
210009
210003
210044
210018
210057
210062
210001
210012




Safety Domain

The QBR Safety domain contains five measures from six CDC NHSN HAI categories and the AHRQ
Patient Safety Index Composite (PSI-90)." This domain is weighted at 30 percent of the total QBR
score. In the FY 2026 VBP program, CMS added the Sepsis and Septic Shock Management Bundle
(SEP-1), a measure that has been publicly reported on Care Compare since July 2018. However, staff
proposed not adopting this measure in the QBR program based on stakeholder input, inclusion of sepsis
mortality in QBR, and Maryland performance on sepsis. Instead, the staff proposed and has been
working to finalize a Sepsis Dashboard that would allow the State and hospitals to monitor performance
on a comprehensive set of measures for sepsis patients (see below for more details). Another difference
between the VBP and QBR safety domain is that QBR has maintained the use of the AHRQ PSI measure
rather than moving this measure to a standalone complications program, i.e., the MHAC program. While
the Safety Domain will remain in the QBR program for RY 2027, consolidation of the Safety domain with

the MHAC program may be considered for future years.

CDC NHSN HAI Measures

The CDCs National Healthcare Safety Network (NHSN) tracks healthcare-associated infections such as
central-line associated bloodstream infections and catheter-associated urinary tract infections. Both
Maryland and the Nation have seen increases in HAls during CY 2020 and CY 2021 largely related to the

COVID 19 pandemic, as was discussed in previous policies, and supported by peer reviewed research. 12

CMS Care Compare has updated the Healthcare Associated Infection Standardized Infection Ratio (SIR)
data tables for the Nation and by state through June 2023. Figure 14 below shows how Maryland
performs relative to the Nation, and how performance has changed over time for both Maryland and the
Nation. For the most recent time period, Maryland’s performance is similar to that of the Nation on SSI-
Colon, worse (higher SIRs) on CAUTI, SSI-Hysterectomy, and C.Diff, and slightly better on CLABSI and
MRSA. Nationally the SIRs got worse from the base period for CLABSI, SSI-Colon, and SSlI-
Hysterectomy, remained similar for MRSA, and improved for CAUTI and C.Diff. In Maryland, the SIRs got
worse from the base period for CLABSI, CAUTI, SSI-Colon, remained similar for C.Diff, and improved for
SSI-hysterectomy, MRSA. As noted previously, CMS has raised concern regarding Maryland’s relatively
high rate of Hysterectomy Surgical Site Infections; upon looking further into the data, staff notes State
rates are impacted by relatively low numbers of events occurring at a small subset of hospitals that varied

over time. For example, one hospital accounted for 30% of the SSI Hyst cases between 2018 and

" For use in the QBR Program, as well as the VBP program, the SSI Hysterectomy and SSI Colon measures are
combined.
12 Lastinger, L., Alvarez, C., Kofman, A., Konnor, R., Kuhar, D., Nkwata, A., . . . Dudeck, M. (2022). Continued increases in the

incidence of healthcare-associated infection (HAI) during the second year of the coronavirus disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic.
Infection Control &Hospital Epidemiology, 1-5. doi:10.1017/ice.2022.116

24



2020.In reviewing the hospital’s cases, they served a complex, high risk population including a large
proportion of oncology patients that were not accounted for in the NHSN measure. Hospital interventions
in partnership with the Maryland Dept of Health began in 2018 resulting in sustained low SIRs since
2021. Interventions included:

Targeting Staff competency and education on vaginal and skin prep

Pre-operative antiseptic cleansing by patient the night before and morning of surgery
Updated antibiotic prophylaxis grid with follow up to providers for any fallouts
Enhanced patient education regarding surgical site infection prevention
Observations in the ER

Hand hygiene observations in procedure areas

ATP testing in the OR to ensure environmental cleanliness

VVVVYVYYVYY

Figure 14. NHSN SIR Values for CY19 compared to Q3 CY2022-Q2 CY2023, Maryland versus the

Nation.

1.5
o
e M MD Base CY19
§ MD Performance FY23
kS 7] USBase CY19
§ B US Performance FY23
g 59

0 > Q & N Py N\
¥ ‘?9 ® xO & %
0\/ (@) A\ Q,o @
2 2
o &
S
%%

The CDC publishes an annual report that includes state specific performance on HAI measures that

includes comparison of performance to the previous year as well as the statistical significance of the

25



change; '3 Figure 15 below illustrates Maryland’s change from CY 2021 to CY 2022 (the most current
annual report published by CDC). The data reveal that Maryland’s performance had statistically
significant improvement (decrease) or unchanged performance on all HAI measure SIRs included in the

QBR program.

Figure 15. CDC Healthcare-Associated Infections Progress Report, Maryland SIRs, CY 2022
Compared to CY 2021

Maryland Changes in Statewide Stantardized Infection Ratios (SIRs) Between
2021 and 2022 for NHSN Acute Care Hospitals.

2021SIR | 2022 SIR | Percent Direction of Change p-value
Change Based on Statistical
Significance*
CLABSI 1.023 0.946 -8% No change 0.2369
CAUTI 0.920 0.753 -18% Decrease 0.0041
MRSA 0.941 0.767 -18% No change 0.0566
CDI 0.645 0.57 -12% Decrease 0.0056
SSI Hyst 1.368 1.185 -13% No change 0.5265
SSIColon 0.760 0.879 16% No change 0.2512

*Percent SIR changes from 2021 to 2022 decreased for 5 of 6 categorie; the
differences were statistically significant for 2 of the categories.

The RY 2026 QBR policy finalized a slight reduction in the weight of the Safety domain from 35 percent to
30 percent compared to the VBP Safety domain weighted at 25 percent; staff is recommending
maintaining the 30 percent domain weight in the RY 2027 policy. While the NHSN measures are used in
the National VBP program, there are some concerns that have been raised about surveillance bias of
these measures. Furthermore, the CDC is currently developing and piloting digital measures that, when
broadly implemented, will help to address the concerns related to surveillance bias and also constitute
less burden than current manual chart abstracted data collection efforts. See RY2023 QBR policy for

additional discussion of NHSN surveillance bias concerns and assessment of Maryland performance.

Patient Safety Indicator Composite (PSI-90)
The Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality (AHRQ) Patient Safety Indicators were developed' and

132022 National and State Healthcare-Associated Infections Progress Report found at:
https://www.cdc.gov/healthcare-associated-infections/php/data/progress-

report.ntmI?CDC_AAref Val=https://www.cdc.gov/hai/data/portal/progress-report.html, last accessed
8/15/2024

4 AHRQ contracted with the University of California, San Francisco, Stanford University Evidence-based Practice
Center, and the University of California Davis for development. For additional Information:
https://www.qualityindicators.ahrq.gov/Modules/psi_resources.aspx

26


https://hscrc.maryland.gov/Documents/Quality_Documents/QBR/RY2023/QBR%20RY23%20FINAL%202020-12-02%20FINAL%20Final_%20For%20Web.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/healthcare-associated-infections/php/data/progress-report.html?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/hai/data/portal/progress-report.html
https://www.cdc.gov/healthcare-associated-infections/php/data/progress-report.html?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/hai/data/portal/progress-report.html
https://www.cdc.gov/healthcare-associated-infections/php/data/progress-report.html?CDC_AAref_Val=https://www.cdc.gov/hai/data/portal/progress-report.html
https://www.qualityindicators.ahrq.gov/Modules/psi_resources.aspx

released in 2003 to help assess the quality and safety of care for adults in the hospital. PSI-90 focuses

on a subset of ten AHRQ-specified PSls of in-hospital complications and adverse events following

surgeries, procedures, and childbirth. The PMWG noted previously that CMS removed the PSI-90

measure from the VBP program in FFY 2024 but retained the measure in the Hospital Acquired

Conditions Reduction Program. Since Maryland does not have PSI-90 in the MHAC program, staff has

recommended retaining the measure in the QBR program.

Maryland’s statewide performance compared to the Nation on the PSI 90 Composite measure and the

individual measures within the Composite for FY 2022 and CY 2023 are summarized below and

illustrated in Figures 16, 17 and 18.:

e On the overall PSI 90 composite measure, the State has improved.

e The State has improved with lower rates in CY 2023 compared to FY 2022 on the following PSls:

o

o

o

o

o

o

@)

PSI 08- In Hospital Fall and Fracture

PSI 06- latrogenic Pneumothorax

PSI 03- Pressure Ulcer

PSI 09- Perioperative Hemorrhage or Hematoma

PSI 13- Postoperative Sepsis

PSI 12- Perioperative Pulmonary Embolism or Deep Vein Thrombosis

PSI 11- Postoperative Respiratory Failure

e The State has worsened with higher rates on the following PSls:

©)

¢)

@)

PSI 10- Postoperative Acute Kidney Injury with Dialysis (slight increase)

PSI 14- Postoperative Wound Dehiscence (slight increase)

PSI 15- Abdominopelvic Accidental Puncture or Laceration Rate




Figure 16. Maryland Statewide All-Payer Performance on PSI-90 and Component Indicators,
CY 2023 Compared to FY 2022 (July 2021-June 2022)

Maryland PSI-90 and Component Performance

B ] o
By g & Q«f‘ o

s

w

(%]

=

0.028
"Q-'& Q{b

il
.

c‘ o

) 0\ i
3 5t ; \) 3 Q z A
o & o o o & al 2 +° o G@QD
o S > N B a7 & 2 2 2 o
<&@ Q{\z;’ & & W &2 &5 Q@ & =5 o
\qﬂa e 45'{" e r,-s."-‘Q 9 R . @ '\:QO &
& £ &% & " & A &
" n
& &

WFY 2022 mCY 2023

Figure 17 below illustrates the hospital-level performance on the all-payer PSI-90 composite measure for
CY 2023; consistent with last year, the variation in performance by hospital suggests there may be

opportunity for improvement on this measure.

Figure 17. PSI-90 Hospital-Level Performance, CY 20235

1.8

16

0 |||||

15 evindale Hospital performs the worst on the PSI-90 measure; their results are driven by poor performance on
pressure ulcers. Given they have a longer length of stay than most acute care hospitals, they need to focus on
uality improvement for pressure ulcers.

PSI 90 Risk-Adjusted Rate
= | o
O TR R

=]
pa

28



The Agency for Research and Quality publishes all-payer risk-adjusted PSI 90 data by state and for the
Nation using the hospital Healthcare Cost and Utilization Project (HCUP) data. Figure 18 below,
indicates that Maryland has improved over time and performs better than the Nation based on the most
currently available CY 2023 data.

Figure 18. Maryland vs. National Performance on PSI 90 Composite Measure, CY 19-CY 236

PSI 90

CY2019 CY2020 CY2021 CcY2022 CcY2023

= =
o ]
=1 o

2
s}
=}

Observed / Expected Ratios
=} =}
- )]
o (=]

o
¥
(=]

e
[=}
s}

®m Maryland ™ Nation

Sepsis Early Management Bundle (Sep-1)

Medicare adopted the Sep-1 measure into the VBP program in FY 2026. However, in the RY 2026 QBR
policy, the Commission approved the staff and stakeholder recommendation to not adopt the Sep-1
measure. Specifically, there were opposing views on the SEP-1 measure adoption for payment and
given Maryland performed well on the measure, and includes the sepsis PSI, PPC, and sepsis mortality in
the Maryland in its quality programs, the determination was made that instead of adopting the measure
the HSCRC staff would develop and disseminate a hospital Sepsis Dashboard (discussed below). Given
Maryland continues to perform well compared to the Nation on Sep-1 and Sepsis PSI, as illustrated in

Figure 19 and Figure 20 below, the HSCRC staff still do not recommend adopting this measure.'”

'6 Data provided by MHCC used for the Maryland Hospital Performance Guide published on the MHCC
website.

7 See the RY 2026 QBR policy for additional information on the concerns with the Sep-1 measure.




Figure 19. Maryland vs. the Nation, Sep-1 Early Management Bundle Measure

Data Source: Care Compare
Data Time Period: 10/1/2022-9/30/2023
66 65.53
65
64
63
62

61.15

61
60
59

Percent of Sep-1Bundle Compliance

58
Nation Maryland

On PSI 13, Maryland has improved from FY 2021 to CY 2022 as noted in the PSI 90 section above; as shown in
Figure 21 below, Maryland has performed consistently favorably compared to the Nation from CY 2019-2022.

Figure 20. PSI 13 Postoperative Sepsis, Maryland vs. the Nation 2019-2023

PSI 13

5.00
4.50

4.00 i
3.50 / \
3.00
250
2.00
1.50
1.00

0.50
0.00

Rate per 1000

CY2019 CY2020 Cy2021 Cy2022 CY2023

e [aryland s Nation

Maryland Hospital-Level Sepsis Dashboard




Staff supports the continued monitoring of performance compared to the Nation along with other existing
outcome measures that include PSI 13 postoperative sepsis complications, PPC 35 Sepsis acquired in
the hospital, inpatient and 30-day mortality, and 30-day readmissions in a Sepsis Dashboard currently
under development that will be disseminated through CRS portal by the end of the year. If performance
deteriorates or concerns with the sepsis bundle measure are addressed, staff will reconsider its inclusion
in QBR for future years. Finally it should be noted that in July 2024, the FDA announced that there is a
shortage of blood culture vials from one of the main suppliers, and CMS has stated this may impact

sepsis care, which this monitoring report may help us to identify.

Clinical Care Domain

This domain, weighted at 10 percent of the QBR score, currently includes:

e Inpatient, all-payer, all-condition mortality measure

e 30-Day all-payer, all-condition mortality measure

Of note, Maryland’s QBR mortality measure currently differs from the CMS VBP Program that uses four
condition-specific, 30-day mortality measures for Medicare beneficiaries. Medicare also monitors two
additional 30-day mortality measures for Coronary Artery Bypass Graft (CABG) and Stroke (STK). In
addition, the RY 2026 QBR policy removed the Inpatient Medicare Total Hip Arthroplasty-Total Knee
Arthroplasty (THA/TKA) Complications measure with a proposal to monitor performance on the measure
and consider alternative measures in the future such as the newly required THA-TKA patient reported
outcome measure. The data through March 2023, shows Maryland hospital performance is on par with
the Nation for the THA/TKA measure.

Mortality

CMS 30-Day Condition-Specific Mortality Measures

On the CMS 30-day condition-specific mortality measures used in the VBP program, based on the most
recently available data through June of 2023, Maryland performs essentially on par with the Nation
(Figure 21). Specifically, Maryland performs slightly better on 30-day mortality for AMI, CABG, and HF,
and slightly worse on COPD, PN, and Stroke.

Figure 21. Maryland vs. National Hospital Performance on CMS Condition-Specific Mortality
Measures

31



Data Source: Care Compare
Data Time Period: 7/1/2020 - 6/30/2023

20.00
(o]
=
> 15.00
=
= 10.00
[m]
=
2 500
5
S H
3 000
AMI CABG COPD 5TK
H MNation 12.49 2.76 922 11.25 17.44 13.54
®m Maryland 12.00 2.68 9.39 10.99 18.10 13.90

H Nation M Maryland

QBR Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality measure

For the QBR all-payer inpatient mortality measure, which assesses hospital services where 80 percent of
the mortalities occur (80% DRG exclusion), the statewide survival rate decreased during the COVID PHE
from 94.86 percent in CY 2019 to 93.55 percent in the CY 2022 performance period. In CY 2023, the
statewide survival rate increased to 94.92 percent, on par with the pre-COVID PHE statewide survival
rate in 2019. These mortality results were derived with a modified risk-adjustment model where COVID
status during admission and percent of patients at the hospital with COVID were added to the regression
model to better account for COVIDs impact on mortality. As illustrated in Figure 22 below, CY2023, all

hospitals perform above 90 percent.8

'8 The lowest performing hospital is Ft. Washington followed by Atlantic General.

32



Figure 22. Maryland Hospital Performance, CY 2023 QBR Inpatient All Condition, All Payer
Mortality Measure

Risk-Adjusted Survival Rate CY23

100
@ 98
3
& 96
hud
o 94
4]
© 92
o
© 90
=
> 88
v

86

Maryland Hospitals
B CY23 Performance

30-Day Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality Measure

HSCRC began reporting the 30-day, all-payer, all-condition, all-cause mortality measure to hospitals
through the CRISP portal in CY 2023 and the measure was adopted into the RY 2026 program. For the
CY 2023 performance period, as shown in Figure 23 below, survival rates range from 95 percent to 97
percent. Staff continues to support inclusion of the 30-day measure along with the inpatient measure to
better capture the quality of care delivered by hospitals, and notes that these measures are not strongly
correlated with one another. Staff also supports continuing to split the domain weight of 10 percent
equally between the all-payer, all-cause, inpatient and 30-day mortality measures. In future years staff
will further examine the correlation between inpatient and 30-day mortality and decide whether to fully
move to the 30-day measure or maintain both measures if the inpatient measure is capturing different
patients based on the 80 percent DRG selection. In the future staff may want to explore whether there is
sufficient weight on mortality overall, given the significance of this outcome and because it is how we are

assessing sepsis performance (as opposed to adding Sepsis bundle measure).

33



Figure 23. Maryland Hospital Performance, CY 2023 30-Day, All Cause All Condition, All Payer
Mortality Measure

Risk-Adjusted 30-Day Survival Rate

~ @

w
=]
=]
"

Survival
[ 4
4
[=
[
.

ustea

Risk Ad

Last, as part of the digital measures initiative, staff plans to consider transitioning from the fully claims-
based mortality measure to the hybrid 30-day mortality measure (claims plus Core Clinical Data
Elements) in the future. In order to do this on an all-payer basis, electronic health record (EHR) vendors
will need to be able to adapt measures specifically for Maryland’s all-payer measurement environment, a

difficult undertaking according to hospitals and EHR vendors providing feedback to staff.

Digital Measures Near-Term Reporting Requirements

In CY 2021 Maryland implemented statewide infrastructure and required all acute hospitals to report to
HSCRC electronic Clinical Quality Measures (eCQM) measures beginning in CY 2022, with planned
expansion to other digital measures going forward. The reporting requirements are more aggressive than
the National CMS requirements in terms of measures, and the expectation for quarterly data submissions

as opposed to annual submissions required by CMS.

The State believes that more current digital data submission/availability strengthens hospitals’ and the
State’s ability to use the data for quality tracking and improvement that is actionable. Further, the early
adoption and migration to digital data and measures in general will ultimately constitute less burden for
hospitals and the State. However, it is also important to note that some hospital stakeholders and
Electronic Health Record (EHR) vendors have raised concerns regarding the quarterly data submissions

related to EHR vendor system digital measure updates and hospitals’ implementation of the updates, and

34



hospitals have submitted Exceptional Circumstances Exemption requests for timeline extensions which
have been granted on a case by case basis by the Commission.The Commission will continue to consider
and approve timeline extension requests up to the CMS annual submission deadlines. Figure 24 below
illustrates the Maryland and CMS CY 2025 reporting requirements.

Staff notes that, in alignment with the State’s goals to improve on maternal health and the SIHIS goal to
reduce Severe Maternal Morbidity, the HSCRC required submission of the Severe Obstetric
Complications measure beginning in CY 2022, a year ahead of CMS’ requirement for hospitals to submit
this eCQM; of note, beginning this year, Maryland will work with a contractor, Mathematica, to develop
risk adjustment for this measure so it may be used to compare hospital performance in the future. Also,
through data/information sharing, staff will continue to collaborate with Maryland’s Department of Health

on this important population health improvement priority.

Figure 24. CMS-Maryland CY 2024CY 2025 Anticipated eCQM Reporting Requirements

Reporting Period/ payment CMS Measures Maryland Measures
determination
CY 2024-2025/ Three self-selected eCQMs; Two self-selected eCQMs;
FY 2026-2027 Three required eCMQs Required eCQMs-
-Safe Use of Opioids -Safe Opioids
-Cesarean Birth -hypoglycemia
-Severe Obstetric -hyperglycemia
Complications -Cesarean Birth

-Severe Obstetric complications
Clinical data elements for two
hybrid measures for Medicare

-30-day mortality Clinical data elements for two
-30-day readmissions hybrid measures ( for
all-payers beginning in July
2024-June 2025)

-30-day mortality

-30-day readmissions

In addition to the eCQM reporting requirements, Maryland will also utilize the established infrastructure to
collect 30-day Hospital Wide Readmission (HWR) and Hospital Wide Mortality (HWM) hybrid measures

required as of July 1, 2023. The State notes that subsequent transition to and adoption of an all-payer

hybrid HWM measure will allow for its use in the QBR program.




Domain and Measure Weighting

Staff proposes to maintain the domain and measure weights adopted for RY 2026 to support the saliency
of more recently added measures, e.g., ED Wait Times, Disparities in Timely Followup for the second
performance year, as illustrated in figure 25 below. However, as noted previously, the HCAHPS top box
measures will now only include 6 domains instead of 8 domains, and staff do not propose adjusting the
weight overall. Stakeholders should provide feedback on whether the HCAHPS top-box scores
should be weighted lower and the weight shifted to other priorities such as ED LOS or Timely

Follow-Up.

Figure 25. RY 2026 and Proposed RY 2027 Domain and Measure Weights

‘"T;:;?‘fﬁ"glé%ﬂ Domain (ABR Program | IP Revenue at
H = - o
total at-risk) Weight Weight Risk (%)

Clinical Care
Domain
IP Mortality

Safety Domain
CAUTI 16.67%

C. Diff 16.67%

SSI (2) 16.67%
CLABSI 16.67%
MRSA 16.67%
PSI 90 (10) 16.67%




Revenue Adjustment Methodology

The revenue adjustments for QBR are calculated using a preset scale so that hospitals can prospectively
and concurrently track financial performance in quality programs. In addition to determining the range of
the scale, the cut point for penalties and rewards needs to be set such that it does not reward the highest
performing Maryland hospitals for performance that is subpar compared to the nation. However,
establishing this cut point prospectively has become more difficult to do over the course of the COVID-19
PHE. As mentioned previously, quality of care declined over the COVID-PHE in Maryland and nationally.
Thus, the RY 2024 through RY 2026 policies indicated that the cut point would be reassessed
retrospectively with more recent national data. For RY 2025, as discussed below, staff are proposing that
the cut point be revised from 41 percent to 32 percent based on a simulation of how hospitals outside of
Maryland would have performed under QBR. While a retrospective revision is inconsistent with the
guiding principle to provide hospitals with a way to monitor revenue adjustments during the performance
year, it protects Maryland hospitals from excessive penalties due to changes in performance post-COVID
compared to national hospitals. Below is a discussion of the more recent analyses and a proposed new
cut point for RY 2025, as well as updates and recommendations for RY 2026 through RY 2027. The final
policy will include additional modeling of QBR scores with the HCAHPS changes and ED LOS options.

RY2025 Update

As with RY 2024, staff reassessed the current preset scale for RY 2025 as was indicated in the policy.
Based on an analysis that estimates how national hospitals would perform in the QBR program, staff are
recommending to reduce the cutpoint to 32% from 41%. Staff estimated national hospitals’ performance
in the QBR program by applying QBR weighting to CMS/Care Compare measures and by using the
average of MD hospitals’ performance for MD-only measures. As noted previously, Appendix B
documents how each hospital performs with the cut point of 41% and 32%. Statewide, revising the 41%
cut point to 32% reduces penalties by about $33M and increases rewards by about $9M. While staff are
recommending a reduction in the cut point to 32%, the definite cut point will not be determined until the

final policy is passed by Commissioners.

RY2026 Update

As with RY 2024-2025, staff will reassess the current preset scale for RY 2026 as was indicated in the
policy. Similar considerations will be examined as was done for RY 2024 and RY 2025; however, it
should be noted that the performance standards for RY 2026 are post-COVID and thus the base periods
are reflective of worse patient experience and quality of care. This could increase improvement points for
performance that returns to pre-pandemic levels and lower attainment standards. Providing rewards or

lower penalties for returning to pre-pandemic performance may be questionable. Thus, further discussion

37



is needed amongst stakeholders once data is available to determine the best way to adjust the RY 2026

scaling.

RY2027 Revenue Adjustment Scale

For this policy, staff believes it is still important to have a preset method for taking scores and converting

those scores to revenue adjustments on a prospective basis despite the concerns discussed above.
Thus, for RY 2027, staff proposes to maintain the 0-80 percent scale where rewards start for those who
score greater than 41 percent. As was done for RY 2024 and RY 2025 and will be done for RY 2026,

staff will retrospectively assess the cut point with more recent data. However, unlike earlier RYs, the staff

believes QBR scores may be on the rise since the performance standards are now set during the post-

COVID time period. Thus, the cut point could decrease or increase with this retrospective assessment.

As with RY 2026, staff will not use a single year of data to determine the cut point. Thus, staff proposes

to maintain the current scale, but determine if the cut point needs to be amended once we have more

recent complete data. If staff determines the cut point needs to be amended, we will report this to the

Commission.

DRAFT RECOMMENDATIONS FOR RY 2026 QBR PROGRAM

Draft Recommendations for RY 2027 QBR Program:

1. Maintain Domain Weighting as follows for determining hospitals’ overall performance scores:

Person and Community Engagement (PCE) - 60 percent, Safety (NHSN measures) - 30 percent ,

Clinical Care - 10 percent.

a. Within the PCE domain, weight the measures as follows:
i.

i.

iii.

iv.

V.

Vi.

Vii.

b. Within the Safety domain, weight each of the six measures equally (i.e., 30 percent

HCAHPS Top Box:

HCAHPS Consistency:

HCAHPS Linear:

Timely Follow-Up for Medicare:

Timely Follow-Up for Medicaid:

Disparities in Timely Follow-Up for Medicare:

Emergency Department Length of Stay:

divided by number of measures).

c. Within the Clinical Care domain, weight the inpatient and 30-day mortality measure

equally(i.e., 10 percent divided by two measures).

2. With regard to monitoring reports to track hospital performance:

33.33 Percent
16.67 percent
16.67 percent
5.56 percent
5.56 percent
5.56 percent
16.67 percent

a. Consider the feasibility of developing a Timely Follow-Up for Behavioral Health measure.

38



b. Disseminate Sepsis Dashboard.
c. Develop tools to monitor HCAHPS performance by patient and hospital characteristics.
Implement an HCAHPS learning collaborative with hospitals.
Continue collaboration with CRISP and other partners on infrastructure to collect hospital
Electronic Clinical Quality Measures (eCQM) and Core Clinical Data Elements (CCDE) for hybrid
measures.
Continue to hold 2 percent of inpatient revenue at-risk (rewards and penalties) and maintain the
pre-set revenue adjustment scale of 0 to 80 percent with cut-point at 41 percent.
a. Retrospectively evaluate 41 percent cut point using more recent data to calculate national
average score for RY 2026 and RY 2027.
b. Based on concurrent analysis of national hospital performance, adjust the RY25 QBR cut
point to 32% to reflect the impact of using pre-COVID performance standards and to

ensure that Maryland hospitals are penalized or rewarded relative to national

performance.




APPENDIX A: QBR PROGRAM BACKGROUND

Maryland’s QBR Program, in place since July 2009, uses measures that are similar to those in the federal
Medicare VBP Program, under which all other states have operated since October 2012. Similar to the
VBP Program, the QBR Program currently measures performance in Clinical Care, Safety, and Person
and Community Engagement domains, which comprise 15 percent, 35 percent, and 50 percent of a
hospital’s total QBR score, respectively. For the Safety and Person and Community Engagement
domains, which constitute the largest share of a hospital’s overall QBR score (85 percent), performance
standards are the same as those established in the national VBP Program. The Clinical Care Domain, in
contrast, uses a Maryland-specific mortality measure and benchmarks. In effect, Maryland’s QBR
Program, despite not having a prescribed national goal, reflects Maryland’s rankings relative to the Nation

by using national VBP benchmarks for the majority of the overall QBR score.

In addition to structuring two of the three domains of the QBR Program to correspond to the federal VBP
Program, the HSCRC has increasingly emphasized performance relative to the Nation through
benchmarking, domain weighting, and scaling decisions. For example, beginning in RY 2015, the QBR
Program began using national benchmarks to assess performance for the Person and Community
Engagement and Safety domains. Subsequently, the RY 2017 QBR policy increased the weighting of the
Person and Community Engagement domain, which was measured by the national HCAHPS survey
instrument to 50 percent. The weighting was increased to raise incentives for HCAHPS improvement, as
Maryland has consistently lagged behind the Nation on these measures. In RY 2020, ED-1b and ED-2b
wait time measures for admitted patients were added to this domain, with the domain weight remaining at
50 percent. In RY 2021, the domain weight remained constant, but the ED-1b measure was removed
from the program. For RY 2022, ED-2b was removed from QBR because CMS no longer required

submission of the measure for the Inpatient Quality Reporting Program.

The QBR domains and weights have remained constant from RY2023 to RY2025; modifications are
proposed for RY 2026. Although the QBR Program has many similarities to the federal Medicare VBP
Program, it does differ because Maryland’s unique model agreements and autonomous position allow the
state to be innovative and progressive. Figure A.1. below illustrates the QBR RY2025 measurement

domains and weights compared with what is proposed for RY 2026 and the National VBP program.

A1



Figure A.1. RY 2025 and Proposed RY 2026 QBR measures and domain weights compared with

those used in the VBP Program

Maryland Proposed RY
2026

QBR domain
weights and measures

Maryland Proposed RY
2027

QBR domain

CMS VBP
domain
weights and
measures

weights and measures

Clinical 10 percent (-5% from RY 10 percent 25 percent
Care 2025) Two measures: all-cause,  Five measures:
Two measures: all-cause, all-condition inpatient Four condition-
all-condition inpatient mortality; all-cause, all- specific mortality
mortality; all-cause, all- condition 30-day mortality, = measures;
condition 30-day mortality, THA/TKA
complications
Person 60 percent (+10% from 60 percent 8 measures: 25 percent
and RY 2025) e Six HCAHPS categories  Eight HCAHPS
Communi 10 measures: top box score and measures top
ty e Eight HCAHPS consistency, and four box score.
Engagem categories top box score categories linear score;
ent and consistency, and e TFU Medicare,
four categories linear Medicaid, disparities
score; improvement;
e TFU Medicare, e EDLOSO
Medicaid, disparities
improvement;
e EDLOSO
Safety 30 percent (-5% from RY 30 percent (-5% from RY 25 percent
2025) 2025) Five measures:
Six measures: Five CDC Six measures: Five CDC CDC NHSN HAI
NHSN hospital-acquired NHSN hospital-acquired measures
infection (HAI) measure infection (HAI) measure
categories; all-payer PSI categories; all-payer PSI
90 90
Efficiency n.a. n.a. 25 percent
One measure:
Medicare
spending per
beneficiary
Note:  Details of CMS VBP measures can be found at https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-

Assessment-Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html.

The methodology for calculating hospital QBR scores and associated inpatient revenue adjustments has
remained essentially unchanged since RY 2019. It involves (1) assessing performance on each measure
in the domain; (2) standardizing measure scores relative to performance standards; (3) calculating the

total points a hospital earned divided by the total possible points for each domain; (4) finalizing the total

hospital QBR score (0—100 percent) by weighting the domains based on the overall percentage or



https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html
https://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html

importance the HSCRC has placed on each domain; and (5) converting the total hospital QBR scores into

revenue adjustments, using a preset scale ranging from 0 to 80 percent.

QBR program revenue at risk

The HSCRC sets aside a percentage of hospital inpatient revenue to be held “at risk” based on each
hospital’s QBR Program performance. Hospital performance scores are translated into rewards and
penalties in a process called scaling.!® Rewards (positive scaled amounts) or penalties (negative scaled
amounts) are then applied to each hospital’s update factor for the rate year. The rewards or penalties are
applied on a one-time basis and are not considered permanent revenue. The HSCRC previously
approved scaling a maximum reward of 2 percent and a penalty of 2 percent of the total approved base

revenue for inpatients across all hospitals.

HSCRC staff has worked with stakeholders over the last several years to align the QBR measures,
thresholds, benchmark values, time lag periods, and amount of revenue at risk with those used by the
CMS VBP Program, where feasible,?? enabling the HSCRC to use data submitted directly to CMS.
Maryland implemented an efficiency measure outside of the QBR Program, based on potentially
avoidable utilization (PAU). The PAU savings adjustment to hospital rates is based on the costs of
potentially avoidable admissions, as measured by the Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality’s
Prevention Quality Indicators and avoidable readmissions. HSCRC staff will continue to work with key

stakeholders to develop updates to efficiency measure that incorporate population-based cost outcomes.

QBR score calculation

QBR scores are evaluated by comparing a hospital’s performance rate to its base period rate, as well as
to the threshold (which is the median, or 50t percentile, of all hospitals’ performance during the baseline
period) and the benchmark (which is the mean of the top decile, or roughly the 95™ percentile, during the

baseline period).

Attainment points: During the performance period, attainment points are awarded by comparing a
hospital’s rates with the threshold and the benchmark. With the exception of the Maryland mortality
measure and ED wait time measures, the benchmarks and thresholds are the same as those used by
CMS for the VBP Program measures.?' For each measure, a hospital that has a rate at or above the

benchmark receives 10 attainment points. A hospital that has a rate below the attainment threshold

19 Scaling refers to the differential allocation of a predetermined portion of base-regulated hospital inpatient revenue based on an
assessment of hospital performance.

20\/BP measure specifications can be found at www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-
Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html.

21 one exception is the ED wait time measures. For these measures, attainment points are not calculated; instead, the full 10 points
are awarded to hospitals at or below (more efficient) than the national medians for their respective volume categories in the
performance period.



http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html
http://www.cms.gov/Medicare/Quality-Initiatives-Patient-Assessment-Instruments/HospitalQualityInits/Measure-Methodology.html

receives 0 attainment points. A hospital that has a rate at or above the attainment threshold and below

the benchmark receives 1-9 attainment points.

Improvement points: Improvement points are awarded by comparing a hospital’'s rates during the
performance period to the hospital’s rates from the baseline period. A hospital that has a rate at or above
the attainment benchmark receives 9 improvement points. A hospital that has a rate at or below the
baseline period rate receives 0 improvement points. A hospital that has a rate between the baseline

period rate and the attainment benchmark receives 0—9 improvement points.

Consistency points: Consistency points are awarded only in the HCAHPS measure in the Experience of
Care domain. The purpose of these points is to reward hospitals that have scores above the national 50t
percentile in all eight HCAHPS dimensions. If they do, they receive the full 20 points. If they do not, the

dimension for which the hospital received the lowest score is compared to the range between the national

0 percentile (floor) and the 50t percentile (threshold) and is awarded points proportionately.

Domain denominator adjustments: In certain instances, QBR measures will be excluded from the QBR
Program for individual hospitals. Hospitals are exempt from measurement for any of the NHSN Safety
measures for which there is less than one predicted case in the performance period. If a hospital is
exempt from an NHSN measure, its Safety domain score denominator is reduced from 50 to 40 possible
points. If it is exempt from two measures, the Safety domain score denominator would be 30 possible

points. Hospitals must have at least two of five Safety measures to be included in the Safety domain.

Domain scores: The better of the attainment score and improvement score for each measure is used to
determine the measure points for each measure. The measure points are then summed and divided by

the total possible points in each domain and multiplied by 100.

Total performance score: The total performance score is computed by multiplying the domain scores by
their specified weights and then adding those totals together. The total performance score is then

translated into a reward or penalty that is applied to hospital revenue.

RY 2023-RY 2027 Updates to the QBR Program
Since RY 2023, the HSCRC has not made fundamental changes to the QBR Program’s methodology but

implemented the addition of the Follow-Up After Acute Exacerbation of Chronic Conditions measure and
PSI-90 composite measures. In RY 2025, Timely Follow Up (TFU) for Medicaid was added. In RY 2026,
a measure of within-hospital TFU disparities reduction as well as the ED1-like measure was added and
the domain weights were adjusted as follows: Patient and Community Engagement weight was updated
to 60%, Safety weight updated to 30% and Clinical Care updated to 10%. Figure A.2. shows the steps
for converting measure scores to standardized scores for each measure, and then to rewards and
penalties based on total scores earned, reflecting the updates through RY 2026 (added the ED1

A4



decreasing number of HCAHPS sub-measures to six)..

measure), and proposed for RY 2027 (no changes to domain weights from those of RY 2026, and

Figure A.2. Proposed RY 2027 Process for Calculating QBR Scores

Performance Measures

Standardized Measure
Scores

Hospital QBR Score &
Revenue Adjustments

Domain and Measures:

Person and Community Engagement—
-6 HCAHPS categories; *

-Timely Follow Up (TFU) Medicare and
Medicaid & TFU Disparity Gap

-ED LOS, admitted patients

*Decrease from 8 in RY 2026 program
Safety— 6 Measures:

=5 CDC NHSN HAI Categories;

-AHRQ PSI 90 All-payer

Clinical Care—

--Mortality Inpatient, 30-day All-payer

Person and Community Engagement

® Clinical Care
m Safety

Individual Measures are
Converted to 0-10 Points:

Points for Attainment Compare
Performance to a National
Threshold (median) and
Benchmark (average of top 10%)

Threshaold Benchmark

0 2 4 6 8 10

Points for Improvement Compare
Performance to Base (historical
perf) and Benchmark

Hist. Perf Benchmark

| | | ] -
| | | |
0 2 4 ] 8 9

Final Points are Better of
Improvement or Attainment

Hospital QBR Score is Sum of
Earned Points / Possible Points
with Domain Weights Applied

Scale Ranges from 0-80%

Max Penalty 2% & Reward +2%
(ALL HOSPITALS HAVE
OPPORTUNITY TO EARN

REWARD}
Abbreviated Pre- QBR Financial
Set Scale Score | Adjustment

Max Penalty 0% -2.00%
10% -1.51%
20% -1.02%
30% -0.54%

Penalty/Reward

Cutpoint 41% 0.00%
50% 0.46%
60% 0.97%
70% 1.49%

Max Reward 80%+ 2.00%

Figure A.3. below details the baseline and performance timelines for the measures in the QBR program
for RY 2027.




PSI 90 measure (adopted beginning RY 2023)

Newly adopted in RY 2023, the Patient Safety Indicator composite measure was developed by the
Agency for Healthcare Research and Quality in 2003.22 CMS first adopted the composite measure in the
VBP program in FFY 2015 and removed the measure in FY 2019-FY 2022 due to operational constraints
from the International Classification of Diseases, Tenth Revision (ICD-10) transition. The HSCRC had
used the ICD-9 version of this measure in the QBR program but applied it to Maryland’s all-payer
population. CMS adopted the updated NQF endorsed ICD-10 version of the measure (Medicare only)
that is used beginning with the FY 2023 Hospital VBP program?3 , and also adopted by the QBR program
(all-payer version) in RY 2023.

AHRQ’s specified PSI uses include:

e Assess, monitor, track, and improve the safety of inpatient care

e Comparative public reporting, trending, and pay-for-performance initiatives

e |dentify potentially avoidable complications that result from a patient’s exposure to the health care
system

e Detect potential safety problems that occur during a patient’s hospital stay

The discharge weighted average of the observed-to-expected ratios for the following subset of AHRQ'’s
PSls comprise the PSI-90 composite measure:

e PSI 03 Pressure Ulcer Rate

e PSI 06 latrogenic Pneumothorax Rate

e PSI 08 In-Hospital Fall With Hip Fracture Rate

e PSII 09 Perioperative Hemorrhage or Hematoma Rate

e PSI 10 Postoperative Acute Kidney Injury Requiring Dialysis Rate

e PSI 11 Postoperative Respiratory Failure Rate

e PSI 12 Perioperative Pulmonary Embolism (PE) or Deep Vein Thrombosis (DVT) Rate

e PSI 13 Postoperative Sepsis Rate

22 Source: https://www.qualityindicators.ahrg.gov/Downloads/Modules/PS1/V2020/TechSpecs/PS1%2090%20Patient%20
Safety%20and%20Adverse%20Events%20Composite.pdf.

2 For more information on the measure removal and adoption, reference the FY 2018 IPPS/LTCH PPS final rule
(82 FR 38242-38244) and (82 FR 38251-38256).

A6



https://www.qualityindicators.ahrq.gov/Downloads/Modules/PSI/V2020/TechSpecs/PSI%2090%20Patient%20Safety%20and%20Adverse%20Events%20Composite.pdf
https://www.qualityindicators.ahrq.gov/Downloads/Modules/PSI/V2020/TechSpecs/PSI%2090%20Patient%20Safety%20and%20Adverse%20Events%20Composite.pdf
https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2017-08-14/pdf/2017-16434.pdf

e PSI 14 Postoperative Wound Dehiscence Rate

e PSI 15 Abdominopelvic Accidental Puncture or Laceration Rate

PSI 90 combines the smoothed (empirical Bayes shrinkage) indirectly standardized morbidity ratios
(observed/expected ratios) from selected Patient Safety Indicators. The weights of the individual
component indicators are based on two concepts: the volume of the adverse event and the harm
associated with the adverse event. The volume weights were calculated based on the number of safety-
related events for the component indicators in the all-payer reference population. The harm weights were
calculated by multiplying empirical estimates of the probability of excess harms associated with each
patient safety event by the corresponding utility weights (1—disutility). Disutility is the measure of the
severity of the adverse events associated with each harm (for example, the outcome severity or the least-

preferred states from the patient perspective).

The PSI 90 measure scores are converted to program scores, as described in the QBR Score Calculation

section of this appendix.
Follow-Up After Acute Exacerbation for Chronic Conditions (adopted for RY 2023)

Newly proposed for RY 2023, this measure was developed by IMPAQ on behalf of CMS.2* Technical

details for calculating measure scores are provided below.
Measure full title: Timely Follow-Up After Acute Exacerbations of Chronic Conditions
Measure steward: IMPAQ International

Description of measure: The percentage of issuer-product-level acute events requiring an ED visit or
hospitalization for one of the following six chronic conditions: hypertension, asthma, heart failure,
coronary artery disease, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, or diabetes mellitus (Type | or Type ),
where follow-up was received within the time frame recommended by clinical practice guidelines in a non-

emergency outpatient setting.
Unit of analysis: Issuer-by-product

Numerator statement: The numerator is the sum of the issuer-product-level denominator events (ED
visits, observation hospital stays, or inpatient hospital stays) for acute exacerbation of the following six
conditions in which follow-up was received within the time frame recommended by clinical practice

guidelines:

1. Hypertension: Within 7 days of the date of discharge

24 Source: https://impagint.com/measure-information-timely-follow-after-acute-exacerbations-chronic-conditions



https://impaqint.com/measure-information-timely-follow-after-acute-exacerbations-chronic-conditions

2. Asthma: Within 14 days of the date of discharge

3. HF: Within 14 days of the date of discharge

4. Coronary artery disease: Within 14 days of the date of discharge

5. Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease: Within 30 days of the date of discharge
6. Diabetes: Within 30 days of the date of discharge

Numerator details: This measure is defined at the issuer-by-product level, meaning that results are
aggregated for each qualified insurance issuer and for each product. A product is defined as a discrete
package of health insurance coverage benefits that issuers offer in the context of a particular network
type, such as health maintenance organization, preferred provider organization, exclusive provider
organization, point of service, or indemnity. Issuers are broadly defined as health insurance providers
who participate in the Federally Facilitated Marketplaces and health insurance contracts offered in the

Medicare Advantage market.

Timely follow-up is defined as a claim for the same patient after the discharge date for the acute event
that (1) is a non-emergency outpatient visit and (2) has a Current Procedural Terminology (CPT) or
Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System (HCPCS) code indicating a visit that constitutes
appropriate follow-up, as defined by clinical guidelines and clinical coding experts. The follow-up visit may
be an office or telehealth visit and takes place in certain chronic care or transitional care management
settings. The visit must occur within the condition-specific time frame to be considered timely and for the

conditions specified in the numerator. For a list of individual codes, please see the data dictionary.?®

The time frames for a follow-up visit for each of the six chronic conditions are based on evidence-based

clinical practice guidelines, as laid out in the evidence form.

Denominator statement: The denominator is the sum of the acute events—that is, the issuer-product-
level acute exacerbations that require an ED visit, observation stay, or inpatient stay—for any of the six
conditions listed above (hypertension, asthma, heart failure, coronary artery disease, chronic obstructive

pulmonary disease, or diabetes).

Denominator details: Acute events are defined as either an ED visit, observation stay, or inpatient stay.
If a patient is discharged and another claim begins for the same condition on the same day or the
following day, the claims are considered to be part of one continuous acute event. In this case, the
discharge date of the last claim is the beginning of the follow-up interval. The final claim of the acute

event must be a discharge to community.

25 Please see https://impagint.com/measure-information-timely-follow-after-acute-exacerbations-chronic-conditions.



https://impaqint.com/measure-information-timely-follow-after-acute-exacerbations-chronic-conditions

An acute event is assigned to [condition] if:

1.

OR

2.

The primary diagnosis is a sufficient code for [condition].

The primary diagnosis is a related code for [condition] AND at least one additional diagnosis is a
sufficient code for [condition].

— If the event has two or more conditions with a related code as the primary diagnosis and
a sufficient code in additional diagnosis positions, assign the event to the condition
with a sufficient code appearing in the “highest” (closest to the primary) diagnosis

position.

If the visits that make up an acute event are assigned different conditions, the event is assigned the

condition that occurs last in the sequence. Following this methodology, only one condition is recorded in

the denominator per acute event.

Denominator exclusions: The measure excludes events with:

Subsequent acute events that occur two days after the prior discharge but still during the follow-
up interval of the prior event for the same reason; to prevent double-counting, the denominator

will include only the first acute event

Acute events after which the patient does not have continuous enroliment for 30 days in the same
product
Acute events in which the discharge status of the last claim is not “to community” (“left against

medical advice” is not a discharge to community)

Acute events for which the calendar year ends before the follow-up window ends (for example,

acute asthma events ending less than 14 days before December 31)

Acute events in which the patient enters a skilled nursing facility, non-acute care, or hospice care

during the follow-up interval

Measure scoring:

1.

Denominator events are identified by hospitalization, observation, and ED events with appropriate
codes (that is, codes identifying an acute exacerbation of one of the six included chronic

conditions).

Exclusions are applied to the population from Step 1 to produce the eligible patient population

(that is, the count of all qualifying events) for the measure.

For each qualifying event, the claims are examined to determine whether they include a

subsequent code that satisfies the follow-up requirement for that event (for example, whether a




diabetes event received follow-up within the appropriate time frame for diabetes, from an
appropriate provider). Each event for which the follow-up requirement was satisfied is counted as
one in the numerator. Each event for which the follow-up requirement was not satisfied is counted

as zero in the numerator.

4. The percentage score is calculated as the numerator divided by the denominator.

Measure-scoring logic: Following the National Quality Forum’s guideline, we use opportunity-based
weighting to calculate the follow-up measure. This means each condition is weighted by the sum of
acute exacerbations that require either an ED visit or an observation or inpatient stay for all of the six

conditions that occur, as reflected in the logic below.

[NUM(ASM) + NUM(CAD) + NUM(HF) + NUM (COPD) + NUM(DIAB) + NUM(HTN)] / [DENOM(ASM) +
DENOM(CAD) + DENOM(HF) + DENOM (COPD) + DENOM(DIAB) + DENOM(HTN)]

Although the development team designed the measure to aggregate each condition score in the manner
described above into a single overall score, programs may choose to also calculate individual scores for
each chronic condition when implementing the measure. Individual measure scores would be calculated
by dividing the condition-specific numerator by the condition-specific denominator, as in the example for
heart failure: NUM(HF) / DENOM(HF).

The follow-up measure scores are converted to QBR scores, as described in the QBR Score Calculation

section above.
Updated TFU Measurement Specifications CY 22025

Staff notes that the TFU measure specifications were updated in 2024 and were approved by the CMS-
designated Partnership for Quality Measurement. The updated specifications will be adopted for the RY
2027 QBR program and include modifications in the follow up times for some conditions as illustrated

below.

1. Hypertension: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients or within 30
days for medium-acuity patients
Asthma: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge
Heart Failure: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge
Coronary Artery Disease: Follow up within 7 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients or
within 6 weeks for low-acuity patients
Chronic Obstructive Pulmonary Disease: Follow up within 30 days of the date of discharge

Diabetes: Follow up within 14 days of the date of discharge for high-acuity patients

Digital Quality Measures Infrastructure: CMS Roadmap

A.10



Maryland is an early adopter of digital measure reporting and has established beginning in CY 2022
statewide infrastructure and reporting requirements, initially for monitoring; Maryland envisions
transitioning to the use of digital measures in the QBR program as well as other quality-based payment

programs when digital measurement has had sufficient development and implementation is feasible.

Over the past decade, CMS has led efforts to advance the use of data from electronic health records
(EHRs) to enhance and expand quality measurement. However, accessing clinical patient data from
EHRs for the purpose of quality reporting remains relatively burdensome. Additionally, CMS’s current
approach to quality measurement does not easily incorporate emerging digital data sources such as
patient-reported outcomes (PROs) and patient-generated health data (PGHD). There is a need to
streamline the approach to data standardization, collection, exchange, calculation, and reporting to fully

leverage clinical and patient-centered information for measurement, quality improvement, and learning.

Advancements in the interoperability of healthcare data from EHRs create an opportunity to dramatically
improve quality measurement systems and realize creation of a learning health system. In 2020, the
Department of Health and Human Services (HHS) finalized interoperability requirements in CMS’s
Interoperability and Patient Access final rule and in the Office of the National Coordinator for Health
Information and Technology’s (ONC’s) 21st Century Cures Act final rule. Driven by the Cures Act’s goal of
“complete access, exchange, and use of all electronically accessible health information,” these changes
will greatly expand the availability of standardized, readily accessible data for measurement. Most
important, CMS’s and ONC'’s interoperability rules and policies require specified healthcare providers and
health plans to make a defined set of patient information available to authorized users (patients, other
providers, other plans) with no special effort using Fast Healthcare Interoperability Resources (FHIR®)
application programming interfaces (APIs). The scope of required patient data and standards that
support them will evolve over time, starting with data specified in the United States Core Data for
Interoperability (USCDI) Version 1, structured according to the Health Level Seven International (HL7®)
FHIR US Core Implementation Guide (US Core IG).

Maryland, like CMS, believes that In the future, interoperability of EHR and other digital health data can
fuel a revolution in healthcare delivery and advance Measure Calculation Tools to leverage data beyond
just EHRs and across settings and providers. CMS has outlined a roadmap to transition from the current
environment to a learning health system powered by advanced analytics applied to all digital health data

to optimize patient safety, outcomes, and experience.?

% please see full details on CMS Digital Quality Measurement Strategic Roadmap:
https://ecqi.healthit.gov/sites/default/fles/ CMSdQMStrategicRoadmap 032822.pdf, last accessed 8/9/2022.

A1


https://ecqi.healthit.gov/sites/default/files/CMSdQMStrategicRoadmap_032822.pdf
https://ecqi.healthit.gov/sites/default/files/CMSdQMStrategicRoadmap_032822.pdf
https://ecqi.healthit.gov/sites/default/files/CMSdQMStrategicRoadmap_032822.pdf

Figure A.3.QBR RY 2027 timeline: base and performance periods; financial impact

Rate Year
(Maryland Fiscal [Q3-22 (0422 01-23|02-23 |03-23|04-23 |01-24 (Q2-24|Q3-24 04-24|Q1-25|02-25 | Q3-25|Q4-25 | 01-26|02-26 | 03-26 | 4-26|Q1-27 (Q2-27 |Q3-27 |Q4-27
Yearl

Calendar Year |Q1-22|02-22 (Q3-22104-22101-23|Q2-23 |(3-23|Q4-23 |01-24 (Q2-24|Q3-24 | 04-24 Q1-25)1Q2-25 |03-25|Q4-25|Q1-26 | Q2-26 | Q3-26 | Q4-26 | 01-27 |Q2-27

Base Period: Hospital
ase Period: Rospl Performance Period: Hospital

C HCAHFS
m:';pu:; ( AN Compare (HCAHPS measures,
Measures) AIINHSN Measures| Rate Year Impacted by QBR
Base Perinct QBR IP and 30- Results
d:E'EMDEW [;;'Sl-gﬂﬂll::mel Performance Peiroc: GBRIP
Quality Based . o ! and 30-day Mortality, PS-90,
Reimbursement P p[l"-‘l - Follow-up Chranic Conditions
i L F'n .I o .E |care.. (Medicare, Medicaid and wiin
Medicaid and w/in Hospital Hospital Disparity Reduction]
Disparity Reduction) " ’
Base Period: Ememgency EF"erI‘urrmnge Perrtmd‘nt
Department Length of Stay ] merﬁe:c; Eﬁ:j n‘z |
(Admitted Patients) Engno ,w e




APPENDIX B: RY 2025 QBR PERFORMANCE BY HOSPITAL
Cut Point=41%

FY24 Estimated
HOSPID HOSPITAL NAME Permanent Inpatient RY ZQ:S:NAL % Revenue Impact | § Revenue Impact
1 Revenue . . .

2100071 |Mearilus § 201 995 TBG 33.08% -0.39% -Ha82 Fad
210002 JUNMS- UMMC § 1472072120 24 6% -0.80%
210003 JUNMS- Capilal Region b SO 492 BE 29.75% 0.55% -1, 02 211
210004 | Tnnily - Holy Cross b 412,940 580 18.17% -1 6% -5, 387,170
210005  |Frederick § 284 462 530 25.82% 0.7 6% -51,.834 675
210008  |UMMS- Harlord i 18 810,727 38.65% -0.21% -39 503
210008  |Mercy § 220 664 524 31.02% -0.459% -$1,081,256
210009 |JHH- Johns Hopkins ki 1,618 903,295 38.20% -0.13% -5, 364 574
210011 |51 Agnes § 264 e 484 0.17% -0.53% -51,350,252
210012  [Lifebridge- Sinai i 519,012 883 11.75% -51.421 884
210015 |MedStar- Franklin Sguare § 301,862 202 PR 0.5 % -§2.491.47/
210018 |Adventist- White Ogk 8 242 850 872 27 85% -0.64% -$1,654 502
210017 | Garrell b 28 988 189 E515% 1.24% $350 464
210018 |MedStar- Montgomery § a6 052 028 37 B -0.17% -5163, 288
210019 |Tdal- Peninsula i 3450375491 2T AT -0.65% 52 277 441
210022 |JHH- Suburban ki 249 484 035 17 4B% -1.15% 52 860 066
210023 |Lurmiris- Anne Arundel ki J67.920 454 25.83% 0.7 4% -3 722 BB
210024 |MedStar- Unien Mem § 267917, 283 38.60% -0.12% -53z1 501
210027 |Western Marvland § 182,379,829 218.88% -0.10% -5183,280
210028 |WedStar- St Mary's 8 100,479 485 44.38% 0.17% 5170815
210028 |JHH- Bayview § 471,786,218 23.77% -0.84% -$3,963.004
210032 |ChristianaCare. Union b 84 802 922 28.50% -0.61% -5517 294
210033 |Lifebridge- Canoll i 162 844 959 15.82% 0.27% -5d30 681
210034 |MedStar- Harbor i 128 234 465 48 90% 0.30% $384,703
210035  |UNMMS- Charles ki a7 686,229 41.31% 0.02% $19.517
210037 |UNMS- Easton b 123,617 439 a0.487% -0.52% -FE42 811
210038 |UMMS- Midtown 3 140,415 656 1315% -0.38% -$533,591
210039  |Calvert 3 80,925 064 56 94% 0.82% $663,586
210040  |Lifebridge- Northwest 5 160,861,367 26.75% 0. 70% -$1,126,030
210043 |UNMS- BWMC 5 325,584 009 1154 0.43% -$1.400,011
210044  |GBMC 3 263,774,605 28254 0.52% -$1.636,403
210048  |JHH- Howard County 5 220 287 562 27 .50 -0.56% -§1,453,808
210049  |UMMS-Upper Chesapeake 3 236,862 562 79 75 -0.55% -51.302 744
210051 |Luminis- Doctors 3 187,232 108 11.02% -0.49% -$917 437
2100568  |MedStar- Good Sam b 186,625,291 65,424 -0.22% -$410,582
210057 |Adventist- Shady Grove ) 332,973,100 26.08% 0.73% -§2.438,004
210060  |Adventist-Ft. Washington 5 37,782,870 18.39% -1.10% -$415613
210061 |Atlantic General 5 47.434 007 10.33% -0.08% -$37.947
210062 |WedStar- Southem MD $ 210,921,411 25.68% -0.75% -§1.581.911
210063  |UMMS- St. Joe 5 292 568,045 I7.42% 0. T% -$457 266
210065  |Trinity - Holy Cross Germantown kS 94 710,748 18.50% -1.10% -£1.041,818

Statewide Total $11,883 418,741 -$84 389 900




Cut Point = 32%

FY24 Estimated
HOSPID HOSPITAL NAME Permanent Inpatient RY ZgingINAL % Revenue Impact | $ Revenue Impact
i Revenue - - -

210001  |Meritus $ 251,995,786 33.06% 0.04% $100,798
210002  |UMMS- UMMC $ 1,473,072,120 24.60% -0.46% -$6,776,132
210003 |UMMS- Capital Region $ 309,492,831 29.79% -0.14% -$433,290
210004  |Trinity - Holy Cross $ 413,940,590 19.17% -0.80% -$3,311,625
210005  |Frederick $ 254,562,530 25.42% -0.41% -$1,043,706
210006 |UMMS- Harford $ 18,810,727 36.69% 0.20% $37,621
210008 |Mercy $ 220,664,524 31.02% -0.06% -$132,399
210009  |JHH- Johns Hopkins 3 1,818,903,395 38.29% 0.26% $4,729,149
210011 |St. Agnes $ 254,764,484 30.17% -0.11% -$280,241
210012  |Lifebridge- Sinai $ 519,012,883 11.75% -1.27% -$6,591,464
210015  |MedStar- Franklin Square $ 371,862,302 27.25% -0.30% -$1,115,587
210016  |Adventist- White Oak $ 242,890,872 27.85% -0.26% -$631,516
210017 |Garrett $ 28,988,189 65.15% 1.38% $400,037
210018 |MedStar- Montgomery $ 96,052,028 37.60% 0.23% $220,920
210019 |Tidal- Peninsula $ 350,375,491 27.67% -0.27% -$946,014
210022  |JHH- Suburban $ 249,484,035 17.46% -0.91% -$2,270,305
210023  |Luminis- Anne Arundel 3 367,930,454 25.83% -0.39% -$1,434,929
210024  |MedStar- Union Mem $ 267,917,283 38.60% 0.28% $750,168
210027  |Western Maryland $ 183,379,829 38.88% 0.29% $531,802
210028 |MedStar- St. Mary's $ 100,479,485 44.38% 0.52% $522,493
210029  |JHH- Bayview $ 471,786,218 23.77% -0.51% -$2,406,110
210032  |ChristianaCare, Union $ 84,802,922 28.50% -0.22% -$186,566
210033  |Lifebridge- Carroll $ 162,844,959 35.42% 0.14% $227,983
210034  |MedStar- Harbor $ 128,234,465 46.90% 0.62% $795,054
210035 |UMMS- Charles $ 97,586,229 41.31% 0.39% $380,586
210037 |UMMS- Easton $ 123,617,439 30.42% -0.10% -$123,617
210038 |UMMS- Midtown $ 140,418,656 33.15% 0.05% $70,209
210039 |Calvert $ 80,925,064 56.94% 1.04% $841,621
210040 |Lifebridge- Northwest $ 160,861,387 26.75% -0.33% -$530,843
210043 |UMMS- BWMC $ 325,584,009 32.15% 0.01% $32,558
210044 |GBMC $ 263,774,655 28.25% -0.23% -$606,682
210048  |JHH- Howard County $ 220,287,562 27.50% -0.28% -$616,805
210049 |UMMS-Upper Chesapeake $ 236,862,562 29.75% -0.14% -$331,608
210051  |Luminis- Doctors $ 187,232,106 31.02% -0.06% -$112,339
210056 |MedStar- Good Sam $ 186,628,391 36.42% 0.18% $335,931
210057  |Adventist- Shady Grove $ 333,973,100 26.08% -0.37% -$1,235,700
210060 |Adventist-Ft. Washington $ 37,782,970 18.39% -0.85% -$321,155
210061 |Atlantic General 3 47,434,007 39.33% 0.31% $147,045
210062 |MedStar- Southern MD $ 210,921,411 25.58% -0.40% -$843,686
210063 |UMMS- St. Joe $ 292,568,045 37.42% 0.23% $672,907
210065 |Trinity - Holy Cross Germantown $ 94,710,748 18.50% -0.84% -$795,570

Statewide Total $11,683,416,741 -$22,280,907




APPENDIX C: HCAHPS PATIENT LEVEL DISPARITY ANALYSIS

Maryland Health Care Commission Updated Patient-Level HCAHPS Analysis
Starting in CY 2022, MHCC requires that Maryland hospitals submit patient level HCAHPS data to them
directly. This data collection investment was implemented by the State to address the ongoing HCAHPS
performance concerns, with a focus that includes identifying disparities on HCAHPS ratings by patient
demographics and service lines. MHCC analyzed the initial year of data and updated their analysis of
surveys collected between July 2022 and June 2023. Findings were similar across both years.
Highlights of the updated analysis are shown below.
e 30,653 surveys were included in the data set.
e White respondents are more highly represented than Black or other respondent categories
relative to their proportion in Maryland’s population from the 2020 Census.?’
o  White-Comprised 74% of all responses and 49% of the population
o Black- Comprised 21% of all responses and 26% of the population
o Other- Comprised 6% of all responses and 22% of the population
e \When collapsing “would recommend” categories into two, “No” = Definitely No/Probably No -
2,073 (7%), and “Yes” = Definitely Yes/Probably Yes — 28,580 (93%):
o Maryland responses are similar to those of the Nation of 6% and 9 respectively..
o More Black respondents than expected indicated the “No” category.
e When collapsing overall ratings into three categories: (1). 6 or lower, (2).7 or 8, and (3). 9 or 10:
o Maryland responses are lower in the 9 or 10 category than the Nation.
o There are relatively fewer White respondents and more Black respondents in the 6 or
lower category.
e For the responses by service line in Maryland, there were 2,676 surveys within the
Maternitycomprising 9% of the total, 17,217 surveys within Medical comprising 57% of the total,
and 10,225 surveys within Surgical comprising 34%):
o There are significant differences between Black and non-Black respondents for the
Maternity service line:
m  For “would recommend”, there were significantly more “No” reported by Black
patients than expected.
m  For the Overall Rating, there were significantly more “6 or lower” reported by

Black patients than expected

27 Percents by race rounded up to full digit values.

A15



For additional details on the MHCC analysis see below.

Figure C.1. HCAHPS by Race Response Results, 2022 Q3 to 2023 Q2

Across Service Lines-Would Recommend Maternity Service Line-Would Recommend
Yes No Yes No
Black 92% 8% Black 92% 8%
White 94% 6% White 96% 4%
Other 93% 7% Other 96% 4%

Maternity Service Line-Overall Rating

6 or lower 7 or 8 9or 10
Black (n=417) 9% 26% 65%
‘White 5% 24% 70%

(n=1,873)

Other (n=386) 6% 26% 69%




Maryland HCAHPS

Exploratory Data

TITLE OF MEETING
NOVEMBER 2023

Background

» MHCC began requiring detailed level » Q32022 -Q2 2023 (30,653 surveys)
HCAHPS data starting January 2022 (Q3
2021 discharges)

» Joint memo with HSCRC

» MD population data from 2020 Census

» Allows for more detailed analysis into race, 0%
ethnicity, service line, etc. 0%
» More timely s =

» More targeted approaches for quality - 29%

improvement (e.g., patient populations, . 21%
domains, etc.) o .

White Black Other
HCAHPS Surveys EMD Population

2 ©® Maryland Health Care Commission




Service Lines —

~ Denominator — 32,520 - Black & Other is higher in the maternity
-~ Maternity — 4,760 (15%) service line than medical and surgical

~ Medical — 17,475 (54%)
= Surgical — 10,285 (32%)

Service Line

32% ’

mMaternity  ® Medical Surgical

White 56% 69% 75%
Black 31% 25% 20%
Other 14% 5% 5%

@ Maryland Health Care Commission

Overall Rating

» Collapsed Ratings 1-10 » Chi-square test shows marginal differences in
» Denominator — 30,653 Overall Rating between races
» 6 0r lower — 2,963 (10%) » Fewer white respondents, more black

respondents in the 6 or lower category
» 70or8-6,966 (23%)

» 9por10-20,724 (68%)

» White respondents: 2,108 versus 2,180 expected

» Black respondents: 687 versus 610 expected

80%
B8% 71%
60% 6 or lower 687 2,108 168
1% 9% 9%
40%

» - . - 1,402 5,144 420
o ) o 29% 23%, 23%
. 10% 9%

o Maryland afion S 4,220 15,297 1,207
W6orlower WM7or8 MYor10 67% 68% 67%

Mational data: Q2 2021-Q1 2022

4 @ Maryland Health Care Commission




Maternity Service Line — Black Women

Percentage Response

Time period: Q3 2022 — Q2 2023 (30,653
surveys)

Total Maternity Service Line Denominator —
2,676

» Black — 417 (16%)

»  White — 1,873 (70%)

»  Other — 386 (14%)

o 34 66 16
8% 4% 4%

v 383 1,807 370
es 92% 94% 94%

Areas to Explore

Significant differences between black and othe
races

» Would Recommend — Significantly more “No” reported
by black women than expected

» Overall Rating — More “6 or lower” reported by black
women than expected

6 or lower 37 o4 22
9% 5% 6%

7 or8 108 455 99
26% 24% 26%

P 272 1,324 265
65% /0% 69%

Maryland Health Care Commission

» Areas related to communication are found to be sensitive to disparities (cite)

» Within the data set, the largest differences between Black and White respondents relate to Call
Buiton Response and Bathroom Help, with a 4.01% and 3.17% difference between races,

respectively
Call Button by Race

80 t
70 . ‘
60 !
5: I‘ . ' I —
40 {
30 |
{
10 |
0 {
Asian Black White Oter Mult
Spmetimes and Never I Always and Usually Denominator

45,000
40,000
35,000
10,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000

Denominator by Race

Bathroom Help by Race

60
50
2 ‘
£ 40
a
8
& 30
=
8
s 20
a
10
. - .
Asian Black White Other Mult
Sometimes and Mever WAways and Usually Denominator

45,000
40,000
35,000
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
0

aryland Health Care Commission

Denominator by Race




APPENDIX D: HCAHPS LEARNING COLLABORATIVE
Overview

The HSCRC Patient Experience HCAHPS Consultant will co-lead a Patient Experience/HCAHPS
Learning Collaborative with the MHA.

This learning collaborative will include hospital leaders responsible for HCAHPS performance and
reporting, operations leads, members of the HSCRC Quality leadership team, and representatives
from the national survey administrators. The Collaborative will meet on a monthly basis and will
be supported by staff from the HSCRC, with assistance from MHA and MHA members as
appropriate.

The goal of the learning collaborative is to compile best practices to help Maryland hospitals
improve patient experience and attain higher HCAHPS scores. The learning collaborative will
accomplish this task by analyzing HCAHPS data, learning best practices from national
organizations that consult hospital providers on improving patient experience, and through quality
improvement initiatives using PDSA cycles.

The learning collaborative meetings will include level-setting knowledge of HCAHPS and how the survey
is evaluated, learning best practices from survey vendors and MHA member hospitals, and presenting the

results of a state-wide data analysis by the HSCRC team.
As a final work document, the learning collaborative will report findings to the HSCRC.

Work Plan and Timeline

July/August 2024 - Draft work plan presented and discussed with HSCRC leadership

September 2024 - Begin data analysis, have initial meetings with MHA leadership, and identify a co-chair
from hospital leadership for the learning collaborative. The co-chair should be a champion who can both
command and engage teams across all hospitals and have proficiency in quality improvement. This
person should have specific qualifications and experience in conducting large scale quality improvement

and an enthusiasm for the importance of patient experience.

September 2024 - Present to a HSCRC Commission meeting on the value and nuances of patient
experience and the HCAHPS survey. Introduce the learning collaborative and larger effort to improve

Maryland’s performance.
October 2024 - Agree upon a work plan for the learning collaborative with the MHA.
November 2024 - Convene learning collaborative for the first time. Define goals and objectives.

December 2024 - Convene learning collaborative for data review with national survey vendors.

A.20



January 2025 - Convene learning collaborative for data review from the HSCRC/MHCC.

February 2025 - Convene learning collaborative to share best practices.

March 2025 - Convene learning collaborative to begin process improvement initiatives.

April - September 2025 - Facilitative sessions with the learning collaborative to share findings on

improvement initiatives and develop final report.

August/September 2025 — Share findings with HSCRC and work with Performance Measurement
Workgroup to assess QBR incentives to support best practices.

Schedule updates at Commission meetings throughout this process and at the conclusion of the report.

A.21



APPENDIX E: HSCRC EFFORTS TO ADDRESS ED LENGTH OF STAY

Concerns about unfavorable ED throughput data have been shared by many Maryland stakeholders,
including the HSCRC, the MHCC, payers, consumers, emergency department and other physicians,
hospitals, the Maryland Institute of Emergency Medical Services Systems, and the Maryland General
Assembly, with around a dozen legislatively mandated reports on the topic since 1994, including the

Maryland General Assembly Hospital Throughput Work Group Final Report in March 2024.

Historically, the HSCRC has taken several steps to address emergency department length of stay
concerns. However, in the past few years, the COVID public health emergency and its effects on inflation
and labor have had particularly significant negative impacts on hospitals and other care settings that
patients may use after receiving hospital care (e.g., nursing homes), further exacerbating pressures on

emergency departments.

Previously, the HSCRC included ED LOS measures in the QBR program for two years. In RY 2020 (CY
2018 measurement period), the QBR Program introduced the use of the two CMS inpatient ED wait time
measures (chart abstracted measures: ED-1 and ED-2) as part of the QBR Person and Community
Engagement (PCE) domain because of the high correlation between ED wait times and HCAHPS
performance (also in the PCE domain and on which the state also performs poorly). CMS retired ED-1
after CY 2018 and ED-2 after CY 2019 necessitating both measures’ removal from the QBR program
after only two years. Overall, ED LOS improved (i.e., ED LOS time went down) for more than half the
hospitals when the measures were in QBR, although some of the improvements were minimal. With the
retirement of the chart-abstracted ED LOS measures, the HSCRC continued to work to find a way to

collect the data and include the results in QBR.

More recently, staff collaborated with CRISP and their contractor to collect the electronic Clinical Quality
Measure (eCQM) ED-2 (Order of admission to admit time) for CYs 2022-2023. However, analyses of the
ED-2 eCQM found that there are a significant number of hospitalizations (>50,000 statewide) that are
dropped from the ED measure due to an exclusion for stays where the patient spends more than one
hour in observation care. Furthermore, CMS discontinued this eCQM measure in CY 2024, rendering it

not feasible for hospitals to continue to report the eCQM at this time for use in the QBR program.

To determine the direction for inclusion of an ED throughput measure in the RY 2026 QBR policy that
would begin with CY2024 performance, the Commission considered several measurement options

proposed by staff as well as other initiatives underway to address this issue going forward.

Ultimately, the Commission approved inclusion of ED 1-like measure in the RY 2026 QBR program to be
finalized during CY 2024 and that would not require additional Commission approval. In working with ED

Subgroup stakeholders in early 2024, staff selected a measure that mirrors the CMS ED1 measure, with

A.22



specifications aligned with those of The Joint Commission as much as possible; the initial measure
collection and submission is through an ad hoc electronic data pull for all patients that will be submitted
on an ongoing basis eventually through the existing HSCRC case mix data submission process; the initial
ad hoc electronic data pull and submission includes data from CY 2023 to serve as the performance
baseline period, and from January through March 2024. Hospitals will also provide an ad hoc submission
in December that will correct any previously submitted data and provide data from April through
September 2024; beginning with data from October 2024 going forward, the ED measure data elements
will be included as part of the standard case mix submission process. The ED1 LOS measure captures
the time of emergency department arrival to the time of physical departure from the emergency
department for patients admitted to the facility. The population is all ED patients (pediatrics and adults)

admitted to an inpatient (IP) bed and discharged from the hospital during the reporting period.
Additional Initiatives: Emergency Department Dramatic Improvement Effort (EDDIE)

In June of 2023, Commissioner Joshi convened HSCRC, MIEMSS, MHA, and MDH to propose the
EDDIE project with the goal of reducing the time patients spent in the emergency department, and
pushed the HSCRC staff and MHA to begin this project immediately (i.e., not wait until next policy year)
given the importance of this issue. The EDDIE project focuses on short-term, rapid-cycle improvement in
ED patient experience by collecting and publicly reporting on ED performance data, and fostering a

quality improvement process to address those metrics.

Specifically, starting in July 2023, hospitals are submitting data on measures that mirror the CMS ED 1
and OP 18 CMS measures on a monthly basis in accordance with an excel reporting template along with
a memo provided by HSCRC staff that contains reporting instructions and high level specifications. The
HSCRC has requested that the measures submitted be stratified by behavioral health based on initial ICD
codes. Additionally, the HSCRC has developed a reporting process by which MIEMSS provides monthly
reporting on EMS turnaround times by hospital. This will provide hospital accountability for improving
efficiency in handoffs by EMS personnel, which will in turn improve EMS unit availability and decrease

response times.

The HSCRC and MIEMSS are supporting this work by collecting and publicly reporting hospital ED wait
times at monthly Commission meetings. The intent is to provide a mechanism for Commission monitoring
of timely ED performance data that brings on-going attention to this issue through public reporting,
provides an opportunity for the Commission to recognize and learn from high performers, and to track the
hospitals performance improvement efforts relative to their aim statements. Once hospitals have
submitted CY 2023 and CY 2024 patient level data, the staff will ask the Commissioners whether EDDIE
data submissions are still needed.

Additional Initiatives: ED Potentially Avoidable Utilization

A.23



In CY 2021, Commissioners asked staff to evaluate expansion of potentially avoidable utilization (PAU) to
emergency department utilization. Staff recommendations initially focused on high volume and low acuity
chief complaint encounters (e.g., ear pain, dental problems) based on analysis of 2.4M ED observations
with triage ratings. With workgroup/stakeholder vetting, this project was re-focused on multi-visit patients
in the ED with >3 ED visits (statewide) in a 12-month period. A hospital monitoring program with reporting
through CRISP has been established in CY 2023, with plans to consider a payment policy for CY 2025. A
draft ED PAU policy will be presented at the November 2024 commission meeting.

Additional Initiatives: Legislative Workgroup

In early 2023, the Maryland General Assembly passed legislation establishing the Task Force on
Reducing Emergency Department Wait Times to study best practices for reducing emergency department
wait times; and requiring the Task Force to report its findings and recommendations to the Governor and
the General Assembly by January 1, 2024. In response, MHA, with co-chair Dr. Ted Ted Delbridge,
executive director of Maryland Institute for Emergency Medical Services Systems (MIEMSS), led a multi-
stakeholder work group, the Hospital Throughput Work Group, aimed at making recommendations to

improve the patient journey in Maryland.

Members included hospital representatives, legislators, the HSCRC, the MHCC, the state Department of
Health, patient advocates and emergency department and behavioral health providers. The Task Force
was charged with making legislative, regulatory and/or policy recommendations in a report. The
Maryland General Assembly Hospital Throughput Work Group Final Report was submitted in March 2024.
The HSCRC staff were an active participant in the Task Force and believe that inclusion of an ED length
of stay measure in QBR will be consistent with any policy recommendations designed to improve ED
length of stay and hospital throughput (i.e., a payment incentive should bolster performance improvement
and not hinder other policy recommendations).

New Commission: Maryland Emergency Department Wait Time Reduction Commission

In the 2024 General Assembly session, legislation was passed establishing the ED Wait Times Reduction
Commission, which went into effect on July 1, 2024. Figure E1 provides details on the ED Commission

purpose, specific tasks, and what types of members will be on the ED Commission.

A24



Figure E1. ED Wait Time Commission Description

Il Establishment of Maryland ED Wait Time Reduction Commission
Bill went into effect July 1, 2024, and terminates June 30, 2027

Purpose: To address factors throughout the health care system that contribute to increased
Emergency Department wait times

Chairs: Secretary of Health and Executive Director of HSCRC
Specific focus: Develop strategies and initiatives
P P g . Appointed Members:
to recommend to state and local agencies,
. . O E tive Director of MIEMSS
hospitals, and health care providers to reduce ED T ot e
wait times, including initiatives that: 1 2 Indiv. with operation experience in an ED, including 1
) ) ) physician
« Ensure patients are seen in most appropriate 1 1 Indiv with professional experience in an ED, who is not a
setting physician or APP
« Improve hospital efficiency by increasing ED and 1 representative from local EMS
d 1 representative from a Managed Care Plan with experience
IP throughput in Case Management
+ |mprove postdischarge resources to facilitate 1 1 representative of Advanced Primary Care Practice
timely ED and IP discharge 1 1 representative from MHA
i . d 1 representative from a patient advocacy organization
: ldent‘fy and recommend improvements for the 1 1 representative of a behavioral health provider

collection and submission of data
+ Facilitate sharing of best practices

maryland

E’ health services | 5

commissior

The ED Commission’s work aligns with many of the current HSCRC policies and those under
development. These policies, shown in Figure E2, are designed to address ED and hospital throughput
by reducing the number of people who need ED services, improving ED and hospital throughput, and
improving the hospital discharge process and community resources. The ED Commission will address
state-level opportunities related to access and community-based services that impact ED wait times, such
as access to behavioral health, post-acute/SNF beds, and primary care. The ED Commission will also
support hospital best practices to address ED wait times and throughput across Maryland hospitals. The

ED Commission members have been appointed and the first meeting is scheduled for the end of October.

A.25



Figure E2. ED Wait Time Commission and Other Initiatives to Reduce ED Wait Times

ED Wait Time Reduction Commission:

Collaborate on behavioral health, post-acute, primary care, and other
areas of opportunity.

Improve Access

Hospital Payment

Programs to Improve

Maryland Primary Care

Program

Clinical Care

MD Hospital Quality Policies

Expand Behavioral Health

Framework

SNF/Post-Acute

Increase Transparency

MHCC Public Quality
Reporting

ED Dramatic Improvement

ED “Best Practices” incentive

!

Effort

Reduction in Avoidable
Utilization

Programs to optimize high
value care and reduce
avoidable utilization

Y4

Reducing the

number of people
who need the ED

Improving throughput
within the hospital

Improving the hospital
discharge process and
post-ED community
resources

A.26



APPENDIX F: ED LOS MEASURE DEVELOPMENT AND MODELING

The slides below outline the development of the ED LOS measure

I QBR Policy Approval and ED LOS Measurement Development
Timeline

* 11/8/2023 QBR Draft Policy: Proposed options for inclusion of ED LOS measure
* 12/13/2023 QBR Final Policy: Approved inclusion of ED LOS measure at 10 percent weight

* Commission discussion:
* (QBR ED LOS Measure Development plan was proposed on January 10,2024
* QBRED LOS Measure Development Plan was reviewed on February 14, 2024
* Commission meeting materials: Commission-Meetings (maryland.gov)

* Subgroup Meetings:
* ED Subgroup 1 (Data): February 2nd, 2024, March 1st, 2024, April 12th,2024
¢ ED LOS Data Submission Memo was sent via email to hospitals on May 20, 2024

¢ ED LOS Data Submission Dates: Extended to September 13, 2024 (CY2023 and Jan-Mar 2024
data), December 16, 2024 (Apr-Sept data), March 2025 (Oct-Dec data)

* ED Subgroup 2 (Incentive): April 26th, 2024, May 17th, 2024, June 21st, 2024, September 10, 2024
* Meeting recordings and slides: Subgroup ED LOS Measure (maryland.gov)

maryland

i health services 14

cost review commission

H OBR ED LOS Incentive CY 2024

e [ncentive measures improvement from CY 2023 to CY 2024

e Measure: Percent change in the median time from ED arrival to physical
departure from the ED for patients admitted to the hospital

e Population: All non-psychiatric ED patients who are admitted to Inpatient bed
and discharged from hospital during reporting period

e Scoring: Use attainment calculation for percent change to convert
improvement into a 0 to 10 point score (see next slide)

e Data: Ad hoc data submissions of time stamps to merge in with case-mix data
e Statewide Goal: TBD by ED Wait Time Reduction Commission

maryland

ic§ health services 15

cost review commission

A27



I Data Submission and Reporting Timeline

Finalize ED-1 Measure specifications and algorithm May/June 2024 Between 1st and 2nd ad
hoc submissions, check
July 2024 data quality:
1. Data error checks
2. Match ad hoc data
with Case-Mix data;

1st Ad hoc submission window opens: Submit CY23
& Jan-Mar 2024 (15 months data)
Release summary level statewide report on ED-1

median length of stay September/October 2024

2nd Ad hoc submission window opens: Submit Apr- il 2R AR W
Sept 2024 (6 months data) December 2024 3. E::cuiseedDSR, if

Starting in Jan 2025 regular case-mix January 2025 4. Request statewide

submissions will include ED-1 variables or hospital specific

resubmissions

Final data submission (Oct-Dec 24) will use regular

case-mix DSR that includes ED-1 variables March 2025

Release summary level statewide report on ED-1

median length of stay gl Ay 2022

January 2026 (preliminary maryland

Final RY26 QBR Revenue Adjustments July 2025) ! hge[auhseoﬁ\,!ces

— Ad-Hoc Data Submission Requirements (DSR)

Medicare Provider Number Hospital Medicare ID
Medical Record Number Patient's medical record number assigned by hospital
Patient Account Number Patient admission number Required for matching
From Date of Service First day of patient encounter or visit
Thru Date of Service Date of patient discharge
ED Arrival Date Date patient arrived at ED (i.e., sign-in, pre-registration)
ED Arrival Time Time patient arrived at ED (HHMM in military time)
ED Departure Date Date patient departed ED (i.e., physically left the ED) New Variables for £D-1
ED Departure Time Time patient departed ED (HHMM in military time)

Optional Variables

Observation Status Date EHR timestamp for when patient enters observation status; could be

in or outside of the ED To be able to examine impact of
' . . observation status on ED length of
O SEnE e EHR timestamp for when patient enters observation status; could be stay/boarding

in or outside of the ED

IP Unit Arrival Dat Date patient arrived at IP unit (HHMM in military time
nit Artval bate = h unit in military time) To be able to ensure we have data on

) . ) . . . . . total wait time if needed
IP Unit Arrival Time Time patient arrived IP unit ED (i.e., physical arrive at unit)

The next set of slides provide score modeling with the current proposal for performance standards.




I QBR Scoring Example

Benchmark

Threshold

[0} -
o | 8 FAEAES ®
3185 (BIAEE EE5EE
w = Nl A ?| S|s|s|+|N
=
m 2
? | = ®
5| 8§ [elslsls] Bslsleld
<
[0
5| &, ;
5| 23|z 2 -
[ 2 L] = e
o 3|5 £ 3
@ P s 8 5
S s &3 s
o 8
3E8
E2Q @
£E¢28
»ELSR
X3P
aBm.nluu..
005 aq
L wg O
2 |g8=°
£ @52
S
S ©
o
£ e
=)
5
=
@
m =)
=
>
o -+ NS
[=3 )
E 1z <3
o) e
Y
4 S5
E o
~ o
o (]
N ww
.m.s
.. ©
=
2 Hm
a3
e o 3
g T3
=)
N B
0]
=
(6] S
>
2
o
E £
I5)
a
o

sion

health services

cost review commi

maryland

&

523

=
=
k]
i}
=
o
)
©
£
(]
©
»
©
m

I Current Proposal

491

If all hospitals improve to
benchmark, State Median:

ED 1b: ED LOS for Non-Psych Admitted Patients

IS
6o
Qo
SE
A
b
ves
LEOOTT [ oc'azes [eve 2t ﬂ...mm
6C00TC ["oogaes [262eT- .nnvm
CT00TZ [ gy pocs- |%aT et
€000T¢ | pgegeaLs [%60°8- ﬁ
EV00TZ | joz'1svs |%ss v
% " 60001C | zez'ses |%IS'T-
% N [ 700017 |¢.1'z9¢' L |2699°1-
e ST 0001 | Lessess [%E0T-
T — 8P001Z | oso'sr0s [%90°zT-
m .m — 8E00TC | 0s8'6rLS- |H6TET
o 2 —6V001C | 95.'8rEs [%05°9-
W % — QT00TC | zos'o0LS- 2697 °ST
¢9001¢C | Ls2'08e8 |%PY 9T
& —— 10017 | 628'9218 |%99'T-
3 — 9001 | 990'07L$- | %85S
w —80001C | 60€'9ees- |%ST'S
.m — Q00T | £40'298% |%8Y 6T~
< —— CTOQTC | 6PL0LLS |%EL'S
" —CC00TC | 049'EL6S | %¥S L
H v000TZ | ¥89'8i8- |%9ETT
B 150017 | ‘pi'6es |%6T'0-
= GEQOTZ | PPO'889% [%88°61-
H €z00TZ | 9+0'858- |%6E0
3 6T00TZ | 950'vEre- [%E6°9
n 95007z |0+8'8r0’LS |%6T ¥
peoorz | _Breses |%reo
6000z | 00L'4LSE [%SOVT-
170017 LPSE PO LS |%SE T
770017 280948 [T O
= <9001z t‘m.mvmw. ”mmw.c
m/” _._nw SHO0TZ cwc_ LZL$ Wmn.m
" 260012 .w_.m.ncww. \mmn.m
e 190012 879'80L%- (%85S
2 .m sLp'ezLs- [%vooT
gg — V00T T Geis [wetm e
= 2 e 80001 00 e [%EE 6
= 68001Z 1o cozs- [%es €
s 100012 1755 g 1g [260T 2
—— [TO0TC 621628 |%9079-
— 190012 [pcvors |weee
(=] (=] (=] (=] (=] Q o
§ g% % %« Swe g %
— [
SaINUIA U1 01 a3 88, mmm g
Sgpw V5953
s3e ESTE
27 e S~ E

A.29



D maryland

health services

cost review commission

Set Aside Discussion
October 8, 2024




I HSCRC Call for Comments

1.

What constitutes a minimally viable technical proposal?
a. If hospitals reach the standard (i.e., they make it to step 3 of our process which evaluates need and oversight), should they automatically qualify for a
portion of the set aside or should there be a minimum threshold in scoring?

Should some criteria be weighted more favorably in the overall evaluation?
a. Forexample, should hospital regulated margin be given more weight than total margin?

Are there any suggestions for how to allocate the funding?
a. For example, should funds be allocated based on evaluation score, margin and/or days cash on hand, total GBR, or a combination thereof?

Should hospitals withhold executive bonuses as a prerequisite for set aside funding?

Should hospital management be required to outline sustainable reductions in cost to offset funding priorities as a
prerequisite for set aside funding?

Should hospitals need to make a pledge to not ask for funding for a specific period of time following fund allocations?

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



I Comments Received

1. What constitutes a minimally viable technical proposal?

« All hospitals agree that the qualification for funding should focus on the unique financial circumstances of
each hospital. MHA, Medstar, and Frederick Health emphasize the importance of assessing requests on
individual merit, particularly when evaluating financial hardship.

* Hopkins and UMMS suggests that funding decisions should be need-based rather than strictly adhering
to a predefined set of technical criteria. Luminis and Adventist support the idea of prioritizing or
expanding the criteria for those meeting “Financial Hardship” over those meeting “Efficiency” standards,
as efficient hospitals have other funding avenues available.

HSCRC Staff Response:

In light of the significant number of funding requests we've received, HSCRC staff are committed to ensuring that our
evaluation process is both transparent and focused on addressing genuine need. Staff received feedback suggesting
that technical proposals should be assessed based on their ‘need’ or ‘merit.” While we agree that merit and need are
important evaluative criteria, given the broad range of requests and varying circumstances of requesting hospitals,
Staff recommend that a pass/fail for merit and need and a final scoring based on objective measures of financial
hardship and management improvement opportunities is an reasonable approach.

AW maryland

b# health services

cost review commission



I Comments Received

1a. If hospitals reach the standard (i.e., they make it to step 3 of our process
which evaluates need and oversight), should they automatically qualify for a
portion of the set aside or should there be a minimum threshold in scoring?

* Most hospitals argue against requiring a minimum scoring threshold if the hospital meets a standard
of financial hardship. Medstar suggests automatic qualification if funding requests are within
available set-aside limits, while Hopkins, Adventist, and Frederick Health, argue for flexibility and
prioritization based on need, rather than imposing a strict scoring requirement.

HSCRC Staff Response:

Staff agree that if the hospital meets a standard of financial hardship and minimum technical viability, they
should automatically qualify to receive a portion of the funding. Staff created the four step review process to
help define need in an objective and transparent manner.

AW maryland

b9 health services

cost review commission




I Comments Received

2. Should some criteria be weighted more favorably in the overall evaluation? For

example, should hospital regulated margin be given more weight than total margin?

* Most hospitals suggest that total margin should be given significant weight or even prioritized over regulated margin.
They argue that total margin provides a more comprehensive view of financial health because it encompasses both
hospital services and unregulated investments necessary to support health, such as physician services. John
Hopkins also emphasizes the importance of considering the relationship between both the regulated and total
margin, noting that evaluating both metrics is crucial in understanding financial hardship in cases where regulated
operations are not fully covered by GBR or when non-regulated operations affect overall profitability.

« Medstar supports HSCRC staff weighing hospital regulated operating margins more heavily in their evaluation of set-
aside funding allocation.

HSCRC Staff Response:

While Staff understand the requested emphasis of total margin, given our authority over regulated hospital operations,
Staff believe both total and margin statistics should be weighted equally. Secondly, Staff does not currently have a high
degree of visibility related to the drivers related to unregulated losses. HSCRC Staff propose weighting all measures within
the Financial Assessment domain equally in the first year of this evaluation. For future evaluations, staff will work with
stakeholders through the Payment Model Workgroup to determine any potential modifications to the set-aside weighting
method.

p maryland

health services

cost review commission




I Comments Received

3. Are there any suggestions for how to allocate the funding? For example, should funds be allocated
based on evaluation score, margin and/or days cash on hand, total GBR, or a combination thereof?

*  Most hospitals suggest that funding should be based on need and reflect true financial hardship. UMMS, Adventist, and
MHA emphasize that the available excess savings should allow for full support of hospitals in financial distress.

« Medstar suggests using a composite score based on both objective and subjective metrics, emphasizing financial
performance as the key metric, especially for hospitals in hardship. They warn against using inconsistent metrics like
days cash on hand or cash flow from hospital operations for funding decisions due to consistent reporting across the
industry. Additionally, system level reporting may not reflect the financial hardship of individual member hospitals.

» Hopkins and UMMS support allocating funds specifically for justified financial hardship. Frederick Health, Adventist, and
MHA recommend increasing the funding pool if financial hardship exceeds the available set-aside. They also emphasize
that allocation should not be simply prorated or distributed evenly but should reflect each hospital’s unique needs.

HSCRC Staff Response:

Staff developed the scoring rubric to help define true need and define financial hardship. HSCRC staff appreciate
MedStar acknowledging the rubric and composite scoring to define need. Financial scoring includes margin data, both
total and regulated, as well as days cash on hand. Staff believe that days cash on hand is an important metric to consider
in funding allocation as it provides valuable insight into a hospital’s liquidity and ability to manage short-term financial
challenges. This balanced approach will contribute to a more comprehensive understanding of each hospital’s financial
health and sustainability. Staff’'s current calculation to allocate the set-aside funding provides half based on financial
performance ranking and the remaining half based on management improvement opportunity ranking.

' maryland

49 health services

cost review commission




I Comments Received

4. Should hospitals withhold executive bonuses as a prerequisite for set

aside funding?

« All hospitals oppose withholding executive bonuses as a prerequisite for funding. They argue that
executive compensation is managed by hospital boards and is linked to meeting specific goals, such
as quality and service, and are essential for hospital operations. Luminis further adds that executive
compensation is already closely tied to key financial metrics, including those relevant to the financial
hardship criteria.

 Medstar and MHA emphasize that executive bonuses are part of compensation packages
necessary to attract and retain qualified leaders.

HSCRC Staff Response:

Historically, the Commission evaluates the reasonableness of cost. In this particular circumstance, Staff would
be unable to determine the reasonableness of executive compensation.

MW maryland

1; health services 7

cost review commission



I Comments Received

5. Should hospital management be required to outline sustainable reductions in cost to offset

funding priorities as a prerequisite for set aside funding?

« Hospitals generally agree that while outlining cost reduction measures is valuable, it should not be a strict prerequisite for
receiving funding. Frederick Health, Adventist, Luminis and MHA note that cost-cutting alone cannot solve the financial
distress that hospitals face, and many hospitals have already implemented cost-reduction measures.

+ Medstar and MHA suggest that providing information on efficiency efforts could be beneficial, but requiring a one-to-one
offset is not appropriate. Medstar further suggest that hospitals who are engaged in efforts to improve operational efficiency
should be given additional consideration in the HSCRC Staff evaluation process.

HSCRC Staff Response:

Staff appreciate the insights shared by the hospitals regarding cost reductions. Moving forward, sustainable cost
reduction measures will be an integral part of the application process for funding. This requirement will not only promote
accountability but also encourage hospitals to adopt long-term strategies for financial stability. Staff believe that by
including these measures in the application, we can better evaluate the overall health and sustainability of each
institution while still recognizing the unique challenges they face. This balanced approach aims to support hospitals in
their efforts to provide quality care while managing financial pressures.

4 maryland

k9 health services

cost review commission




I Comments Received

6. Should hospitals need to make a pledge to not ask for funding for a specific period of time

following fund allocations?

+ All hospitals oppose requiring a pledge not to request additional funding after receiving allocations. They argue that such a
requirement could endanger access to care if future financial needs arise. Medstar and Hopkins specifically emphasize the
unpredictability of hospital funding needs and the importance of flexibility to request funding when needed.

* Frederick Health and MHA strongly argue that hospitals must be able to secure additional funding to cover costs, emphasizing
that such a pledge is neither practical nor safe. However, while Frederick Health recommends fully allocating the requested
funding, they also believe that, in the event of prorated funding, hospitals should still be allowed to seek the shortfall of
funding.

* Luminis suggests that hospitals should refrain from seeking additional funding only if specific requests are fully funded.

HSCRC Staff Response:

There are several options available to hospitals that have a request related to their Global Budgets. 1) Request related to
misapplication of a policy 2) Request related to a policy change and/or 3) Request that falls within the set aside
framework. For any request that falls outside these three buckets, the administrative remedy is a full rate review. HSCRC
Staff agree with several of the hospitals that if the allocated funding does not cover the amount of the full request, then
they should be able to request further funding under the appropriate avenue, as outlined above, within the same fiscal
year. In a future year, the hospital could make a request through the set aside, however; it should be noted in future
evaluations of this process cost reduction measures will be integral in the evaluation of requests.

B maryland

49 health services

cost review commission




I Other comments

UMMS recommends that certain funding requests be considered for permanent solutions rather than only providing
one-time funding.

« HSCRC Response: Staff has been very clear from the beginning that hospitals that qualify under Integrated
Efficiency will be provided permanent funding while hospitals that qualify under financial hardship will be
provided one-time funding.

MHA and Johns Hopkins seek greater transparency in the funding decision-making process, and advocate for a clear
and objective evaluation criteria for fair resource allocation. MHA recommends that any criteria used be objectively
verifiable and applicable, rather than subjective.

« HSCRC Response: Staff have advanced a scoring rubric with clear and objective evaluation criteria in keeping
with the commenters request.

MHA further requests details regarding the process and timeline used to determine and distribute final awards,
including the individuals who will ultimately make the funding decisions (HSCRC staff, HSCRC commissioners,
appointed reviewers, etc.)

« HSCRC Response: Commissioners have directed Staff to make final determinations on the set aside allocation.
At the direction of Commissioners, Staff provided a public comment period and monthly updates in the public
meeting to ensure transparency of the process.

Adventist believes hospitals should be allowed to amend their applications if new criteria is added to the scoring
process that was not included in the original application instructions.

« HSCRC Response: Given the inherently objective nature of the scoring rubric, staff do not believe any hospitals
need to re-submit information.

maryland

ic§ health services 10

cost review commission



I Comment Received: Eligibility Criteria

« Staff received criticism that the HSCRC’s “arbitrary” criteria exclude hospitals like Luminis
Health Doctor’'s Community Medical Center, which has below-average margins and operating
losses relative to RY 2022.

- In light of this criticism, should the eligibility criteria be amended to allow for additional or new

measures for hospitals experiencing hardship?

a. For example, should hospitals that are below the regulated statewide average margin and have a negative operating
margin over RY 22, RY 23, and RY24, qualify? Should this criteria be broadened?

HSCRC Staff Response:

Staff’s intention of requiring further deterioration in margin performance, in addition to poor performance in the most
recent year, was to ensure that a) profitability concerns were not restricted to one year and b) that the hospital did
not show signs of moving out of territory that would be considered “financial hardship.” The statistic was not
arbitrary. That said, staff do recognize that if a hospital had negative requlated and total margins, albeit with
moderate improvement in recent years, that the hospital could be reasonably classified as an institution in financial
hardship. For those reasons, staff ask Commissioners to consider amending the “gatekeeper criteria” such that
hospitals with below average regulated margins and negative total margins over the past 3 years qualify for set aside
consideration, regardless of the change in profitability over the preceding three years. Staff furthermore ask
Commissioners if any additional criteria should be considered.

AW maryland

bf healthservices = 11

cost review commission



B Overview

The intention of the set-aside is to use these funds for:

Unforeseen events that occur at hospitals with a financial hardship,
regardless of efficiency (e.g., cyberattacks)
Enhancements for relatively efficient hospitals

Due to the volume of submissions & requested funding, staff would like
Commissioners to weigh in on:

Criteria for evaluation
Weighting of evaluation criteria
Evaluation responsibility

.-,.".,:" health serwces
ostre N

12



I Process Overview

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission

13



I Scoring Rubric: Technical Evaluation

A) Financial Hardship Technical Evaluation

« Unforeseen and/or Preventable Ranking
* [s the request being made due to poor decision making/investments?

A) Relative Efficiency Technical Evaluation

* Population Health Ranking

* Does the proposed intervention improve the health of the population?
* Methodology Disadvantage Ranking

« How material is the adverse impact from a methodology?

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission

14



I Scoring Rubric and Allocation

Financial
Assessment

(50%)

* FY24 Total Margin
(Regulated +
Unregulated)

* FY24 Regulated
Margin

* Days Cash

Improvement
Opportunities

(50%)

» Cost per ECMAD

» Overhead Cost per
ECMAD

* Margin from
Unregulated System
Operations

 Potentially
Avoidable Utilization

Requirements for

Funding

» Assessment of cost
drivers

 Corrective Action
plan approved by the
Board for future
financial sustainability

 Commitment to
suspend variable
executive
compensation (TBD)

« Performance assessments are variance from statewide average.

 Measures are weighted equally within the domains.

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission

&



B Recommendation

Creation of a 4 part process for review of set aside submissions in RY25

a. Gatekeeper Test
i. Pass/Fail after eligibility verification
ii. Subject to additional Commission review
b. Technical Evaluation
i. Pass/Fail after review of technical narrative
c. Scoring Rubric based on Hospital's rank compared to statewide metric & Allocation
i. Financial Need
ii. Management Improvement Opportunities
d. Requirements for Funding
I. Cost Review Assessment
ii. Sustainability Plan & Board Approval of Sustainability Plan
iii. Executive Compensation - commitment to suspend variable exec compensation?

maryland

ic§ health services

cost review commission



maryland

health services

cost review commission

TO:
HSCRC Commissioners
FROM:
HSCRC Staff
DATE:
October 9, 2024
RE:

Hearing and Meeting Schedule

November 13, 2024 In person at HSCRC office and Zoom webinar

December 11, 2024 In person at HSCRC office and Zoom webinar

The Agenda for the Executive and Public Sessions will be available for your
review on the Wednesday before the Commission meeting on the
Commission’s website at http://hscrc.maryland.gov/Pages/commission-
meetings.aspx.

Post-meeting documents will be available on the Commission’s website
following the Commission meeting.

Joshua Sharfstein, MD
Chairman

Joseph Antos, PhD
Vice-Chairman

James N. Elliott, MD
Ricardo R. Johnson
Maulik Joshi, DrPH
Adam Kane, Esq

Nicki McCann, JD

Jonathan Kromm, PhD
Executive Director

William Henderson
Director
Medical Economics & Data Analytics

Allan Pack
Director
Population-Based Methodologies

Gerard J. Schmith
Director
Revenue & Regulation Compliance

Claudine Williams
Director
Healthcare Data Management & Integrity

The Health Services Cost Review Commission is an independent agency of the State of Maryland

P: 410.764.2605 F: 410.358.6217 4160 Patterson Avenue | Baltimore, MD 21215

hscrc.maryland.gov



	(0) October 2024 Cmsner Summary Doc DRAFT.pdf
	CLOSED SESSION
	PUBLIC MEETING
	Specific Matters
	Subjects of General Applicability

	(1a) Commission Meeting MINUTES91124 
	(1b) ExecutiveSessionMinutes Sept 11, 2024 Final
	Closed Session Minutes
	of the
	Health Services Cost Review Commission
	September 11, 2024
	Chairman Sharfstein stated reasons for Commissioners to move into administrative session pursuant to 3-103, and 3-104 and of the Authority General Provisions Articles for the purposes of discussing the administration of the Model and providing an upda...
	Upon motion made in public session, Chairman Sharfstein called for adjournment into closed session:
	The Administrative Session was called to order by motion at 11:35 a.m.
	In addition to Chairman Sharfstein, in attendance were Commissioners Elliott, Kane, Johnson, Joshi, McCann and Sabi.
	In attendance representing Staff were Jon Kromm, Claudine Williams, Allen Pack, Alyson Schuster, Cait Cooksey, Bob Gallion, Megan Renfrew and William Hoff.
	Joining by Zoom: William Henderson and Deb Rivkin
	Also attending were Assistant Attorney General Stan Lustman and Ari Elbaum, Commission Counsel.
	Item One
	Jon Kromm, Executive Director, updated the Commission on the process related to rate request letters submitted by hospitals.  Dr. Kromm also updated the Commission's on the AHEAD model and its current status.
	Item Two
	William Henderson, Principal Deputy Director, Medical Economics and Data Analytics, updated the Commission, and the Commission discussed the FY24 Hospital Unaudited Financial Performance.
	The Closed Session was adjourned at 1:05 p.m.

	(1c) ARMORDERHOPKINS- 2658A
	(1c) ARMORDERUMMC- 2659A
	(4a) TCOC Model CY 2023 Performance Memo & Update
	2023_MD_TCOC_Performance_Letter_No_Attachments_signed_080824
	1. Annual Medicare Savings (Section 6.c)0F
	2. TCOC Guardrail (Section 6.e)
	3. All-Payer Revenue Limit (Section 6.f)
	4. All-Payer Quality Improvement Reductions in Potentially Preventable Conditions under the Maryland Hospital Acquired Condition Program (Section 8.d.1-3)
	5. Readmissions Reductions for Medicare (Section 8.d. 1-3)
	6. Hospital Revenue Population Based Payment (Section 8.a.)

	2023_MD_TCOC_Performance_Letter_Update_Signed_090624

	(5) ALIVE-dataRequest_Draft
	(6) Community Benefits Final Regulations
	(7) Draft Recommendation ARPA-HEROES - BCORE Outcome Buyer F
	List of Abbreviations
	Policy Overview
	Summary of the Recommendation
	Background
	ARPA-H HEROES
	BCORE

	Alignment with HSCRC goals
	Funding Approach
	Staff Recommendation
	Appendix A: Description of BCORE
	About BCORE
	Overview of the Program
	Innovation, Team Composition, and Mitigating Technical Risk
	References


	(9) QBR RY 27 Draft Recommendation.pdf
	List of Abbreviations
	Policy Overview
	Draft Recommendations
	Introduction
	Background
	Overview of the QBR Program
	Assessment
	Person and Community Engagement Domain
	Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems (HCAHPS)
	HCAHPS Improvement Framework
	Emergency Department Length of Stay
	Timely Follow-Up After Discharge
	Disparities in Timely Follow-Up


	Safety Domain
	CDC NHSN HAI Measures
	Patient Safety Indicator Composite (PSI-90)
	Sepsis Early Management Bundle (Sep-1)

	Clinical Care Domain
	Mortality
	CMS 30-Day Condition-Specific Mortality Measures
	QBR Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality measure
	30-Day Inpatient, All-payer, All-condition Mortality Measure


	Digital Measures Near-Term Reporting Requirements
	Domain and Measure Weighting
	Revenue Adjustment Methodology

	Draft Recommendations for RY 2026 QBR Program
	APPENDIX A: QBR PROGRAM BACKGROUND
	APPENDIX B: RY 2025 QBR PERFORMANCE BY HOSPITAL
	APPENDIX C: HCAHPS PATIENT LEVEL DISPARITY ANALYSIS
	APPENDIX D:  HCAHPS LEARNING COLLABORATIVE
	APPENDIX E: HSCRC EFFORTS TO ADDRESS ED LENGTH OF STAY
	APPENDIX F:  ED LOS MEASURE DEVELOPMENT AND MODELING

	(8) Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-of-State Volume Policies v4.pdf
	Recommendations
	Introduction
	Background & Methodology Overview
	Workgroup Engagement & Impetus for New Policies
	Deregulation
	Repatriation/Expatriation

	Implementation
	Accuracy of Volume Evaluation and Potential for Temporal Volume Change

	Results
	Deregulation
	Repatriation
	Remaining Limitations
	Out-of-State

	Appendix 1. Key Methodology Concepts and Definitions
	Appendix 2. EAPG Market Shift Example
	Appendix 3. 50 Percent Variable Cost Factor Analyses

	(11) SetAsideDiscussion10082024.pdf
	Slide 1: Set Aside Discussion 
	Slide 2: HSCRC Call for Comments
	Slide 3: Comments Received
	Slide 4: Comments Received
	Slide 5: Comments Received
	Slide 6: Comments Received 
	Slide 7: Comments Received
	Slide 8: Comments Received
	Slide 9: Comments Received
	Slide 10: Other comments
	Slide 11: Comment Received: Eligibility Criteria 
	Slide 12: Overview
	Slide 13: Process Overview
	Slide 14: Scoring Rubric: Technical Evaluation 
	Slide 15: Scoring Rubric: Financial Need & Management Improvement Opportunities
	Slide 16: Recommendation  

	(7) Draft Recommendation ARPA-HEROES - BCORE Outcome Buyer Fv2.pdf
	List of Abbreviations
	Policy Overview
	Summary of the Recommendation
	Background
	ARPA-H HEROES
	BCORE

	Alignment with HSCRC goals
	Funding Approach
	Staff Recommendation
	Appendix A: Description of BCORE
	About BCORE
	Overview of the Program
	Innovation, Team Composition, and Mitigating Technical Risk
	References


	(0) October 2024 Cmsn Agenda FINAL.pdf
	CLOSED SESSION
	PUBLIC MEETING
	Specific Matters
	Subjects of General Applicability
	Subjects of General Applicability

	(2) NSP II Slides for 10.9.24 HSCRC Meeting.pdf
	Nurse Support Program II
	NSP II Timeline Update
	Looking Back – Progress Report Preview
	NSP-II Grants at JHU
	Bowie State University & NSP II
	Conceptual Framework
	Questions for Commissioners

	(3) MDH MCH Presentation.pdf
	Improving Maternal  Health in Maryland
Presentation to the Health Services Cost Review Commission
	Maternal Health Prioritized in Maryland
	Vision for Women’s Health in Maryland
	Women’s Health Action Plan
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	MOM Case Management Participant Experiences
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Progress to Date
	Progress to Date
	Progress to Date for Goals 1 & 3
	Progress to Date for Goals 4 & 6 
	Summary
	Thank you

	(3) page 2 - MCH slide.pdf
	Our current state - Maternal Health

	(4) October Emergency Department Update Commission Presentation, EDDIE.pdf
	Emergency Department Initiatives Update
	Today’s Presentation
	�ED-Hospital Best Practices Policy Development Update
	ED Best Practices Incentive Policy Development
	Real Opportunity for Paradigm Shift
	The Donabedian Model for Quality of Care
	ED-Hospital Best Practices��
	Examples of Best Practices In Review 
	Appendix
	September Data 2024 Reporting
	ED Length of Stay and EMS Turnaround Data
	Monthly Results 2023 vs. 2024
	ED Median Wait Time 
	ED 1a:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission
	ED 1a:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time 
Latest Month Median By Volume--Latest Month
	ED 1a:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission
	ED 1a:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission
	ED 1b:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric 


	ED 1b:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric 


	ED 1b:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Non-Psychiatric 


	ED 1c:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Psychiatric 
	ED 1c:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Psychiatric 
	ED 1c:  ED Arrival to Inpatient Admission Time - Psychiatric 
	OP18a:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month
	OP18a:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month
	OP18a:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month
	OP18b:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric
	OP18b:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric
	OP18b:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time - Non-Psychiatric
	OP18c:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month
	OP18c:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Month
	OP18c:  ED Arrival to Discharge Time by Volume
Psychiatric ED Visits

	EMS Turnaround Times: September Performance
	EMS Turnaround Times: September 2024 Performance

	(5a1) CY2023 Performance (1 DOS slide).pdf
	TCOC Model Savings Targets
	TCOC Model Year 5 Performance – Met/Exceeded All Targets
	TCOC Model Years 1-5 Performance 

	(5b) Monitoring Presentation- October 2024- Public Presentation.pdf
	Update on Medicare FFS Data & Analysis
	Medicare Hospital Spending per Capita�Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)
	Medicare Non-Hospital Spending per Capita�Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)
	Medicare Hospital and Non-Hospital Payments per Capita
	Medicare Total Cost of Care Spending per Capita�Actual Growth Trend (CY month vs. Prior CY month)
	Medicare Total Cost of Care Payments per Capita
	Maryland Medicare Hospital & Non-Hospital Growth�CYTD through June 2024

	(7) FINAL BCORE slides FOR HSCRC 10.9.2024 F.pdf
	BCORE Program Introduction
	Slide Number 2
	APRA-H HEROES Opportunity
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Goldie: A Patient Management Tool
	Benefits of Monthly Buprenorphine
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Recommendation

	(8) October 2024 Community Benefit Regulations .pdf
	Hospital Community Benefit Reporting: �Recommendation to Adopt Changes to Regulations
	Promulgating Regulations- Key Steps
	Edits to COMAR 10.37.01.03
	Questions?

	(9) Volume Policies Commission Meeting.pdf
	Draft Recommendation for Deregulation, Repatriation, and Out-of-State Volume Policies 

	Agenda 
	Global Budget Volume Policy Background

	Revised Timeline for CY 2024 Volume Workgroup

	New Volume Policies Overview Example
	Deregulation Methodology
	What is Deregulation?
	Deregulation Methodology
	Repatriation Methodology
	What is Repatriation?
	Repatriation Methodology
	Out-of-State Methodology
	Out-of-State Volume Background
	Out-of-State Volume Methodology
	Implementation Considerations
	Accuracy of Volume Evaluation and Potential for Temporal Volume Change

	Materiality Thresholds

	Volume Scorecard
	Scorecard Background

	Volume Efficacy: Marketshift Funding Only
	Volume Efficacy: Current Scorecard
	Volume Efficacy: Current Scorecard with OOS & PAU
	Volume Efficacy: Current Scorecard with OOS, PAU and Misc.
	Draft Recommendations

	Appendix
	Appendix 1: Deregulation Methodology Example
	Appendix 2: EAPG Marketshift Example
	Appendix 3: Repatriation Methodology Example
	Appendix 4: Additional Details on Volume Scorecard Background

	Appendix 5: Methodology Results

	(10) RY27 QBR Draft Policy Commission Slides.pdf
	RY 2027 Quality Based Reimbursement Draft Policy
	RY 2027 QBR Policy Updates
	QBR RY 2026 Program
	Hospital Consumer Assessment of Healthcare 
Providers and Systems (HCAHPS)
	HCAHPS Most Recent Available Performance
	Linear Measure HCAHPS Results: Statewide Results Lag National Average, CY 2019 vs 7/1/22-6/30/23

	Updated HCAHPS Survey CYs 2025 through 2027
	HSCRC Learning Collaborative to Target HCAHPS Improvement
	QBR TFU Measure Updates for CY 2025
	Timely Follow Up After an Acute Exacerbation of a Chronic Condition (TFU)- RY 2023-2026
	TFU Measure Update:  Spring of 2024 by the Partnership for Quality Measurement
	ED Length of Stay Measure
	QBR Policy and ED LOS Measurement Development Timeline
	Why include ED LOS in QBR?
	OP18b Outpatient ED LOS (more recent data)
	QBR ED LOS Incentive CY 2024
	QBR Scoring Example
	Current Proposal
	CY25 Recommendations to Consider
	State Digital Measures Update
	Goal: Drive Development and Use of Digital Quality Measures to Replace Claims-Based and Chart Abstracted Measures 

	RY 2025 Revised Cut Point




	RY 2025 QBR Cutpoint Discussion
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	(11) SetAsideDiscussion10082024.pdf
	Set Aside Discussion

	HSCRC Call for Comments
	Comments Received
	Comments Received
	Comments Received
	Comments Received

	Comments Received
	Comments Received
	Comments Received
	Other comments
	Comment Received: Eligibility Criteria	
	Overview
	Process Overview
	Scoring Rubric: Technical Evaluation 
	Scoring Rubric and Allocation
	Recommendation		




